
- -/ -28 7
 
FOREIGN ASSISTANCE LEGISLATIO '
 

FOR FISCAL YEARS 1992-93
 
(Part,6)
 

HEARINGS AND MARKUP
 
BEFORE THE 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON
 
INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC POLICY AND TRADE
 

OF THE 

COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS
 
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
 

ONE HUNDRED SECOND CONGRESS 

FIRST SESSION 

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM, BUREAU FOR PRI'rATE ENTER-
PRISE, HOUSING GUARANTEE PROGRAM, AND OVERSEAS PRIVATE IN-
VESTMENT CORPORATION AND MICROENTERPRISE 

FEBRUARY 28, MARCH 5, 19, AND APRIL 18, 1991 



FOREIGN ASSISTANCE LEGISLATION
 
FOR FISCAL YEARS 1992-93
 

(Part 6)
 

HEARINGS AND MARKUP
 
BEFORE ME 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON
 
INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC POLICY AND TRADE
 

OF THE 

COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS
 
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
 

ONE HUNDRED SECOND CONGRESS 

FIRST SESSION 

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM, BUREAU FOR PRIVATE ENTER. 
PRISE, HOUSING GUARANTEE PROGRAM, AND OVERSEAS PRIVATE IN-
VESTMENT CORPORATION AND MICROENTERPRISE 

FEBRUARY 28, MARCH 5,19, AND APRIL 18, 1991 

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICR 
46-816 WASHINGTON 1991 

For sale by the U.S. Government Printing Office 
Superintendent of Documents, Congressional Sales Office, Washington, DC 2040? 

ISBN 0-16-035710-1
 



COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS 

DANTE B. FASCELL, Florida, Chairman 
LEE H. HAMILTON, Indiana WILLIAM S. BROOMFIELD, Michigan 
GUS YATRON, Pennsylvania BENJAMIN A. GILMAN, New York 
STEPHEN J. SOLARZ, New York ROBERT J. LAGOMARSINO, California 
HOWARD WOLPE, Michigan WILLIAM F. GOODLING, Pennsylvania 
SAM GEJDENSON, Connecticut JIM LEACH, Iowa 
MERVYN M. DYMALLY, California TOBY ROTH, Wisconsin 
TOM LANTOS, California OLYMPIA J. SNOWE, Maine 
ROBERT G. TORRICELLI, New Jersey HENRY J. HYDE, Illinois 
HOWARD L. BERMAN, California DOUG BEREUTER, Nebraska 
MEL LEVINE, California CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH, New Jersey 
EDWARD F. FEIGHAN, Ohio DAN BURTON, Indiana 
TED WEISS, New York JAN MEYERS, Kansas 
GARY L. ACKERMAN, New York JOHN MILLER, Washington 
JAIME B. FUSTER, Puerto Rico BEN BLAZ, Guam 
WAYNE OWENS, Utah ELTON GALLEGLY, California 
HARRY JO1 'STON, Florida AMO HOUGHTON, New York 
ELIOT L. F'., EL, New York PORTER J. GOSS, Florida 
ENI F.H. F.LEOMAVAEGA, ILEANA ROS-LEHTINEN, Florida 

Aimirican Samoa 
GE.'RRY E. STUDDS, Massachusetts 
AUSTIN J. MURPHY, Pennsylvania 
PETER H. KOSTMAYER, Pennsylvania 
THOMAS M. FOGLIETTA, Pennsylvania 
FRANK McCLOSKEY, Indiana 
THOMAS C. SAWYER, Ohio 
DONALD M. PAYNE, New Jersvy 
BILL ORTON, Utah 
(Vacancy)
 

JOHN J. BaADY, Jr., Chief of Staff 
ANNz Gary, StaffAssistant 

SUBCOMMr1TEE ON INTFRNATIONAL ECONOMIC POLICY AND TRADE 

SAM GEJDENSON, Connecticut, Chairman 
HOWARD WOLPE, Michigan TOBY ROTH, Wisconsin 
MEL LEVINE, California JOHN MILLER, Washington 
EDWARD F. FEIGHAN, Ohio AMO HOUGHTON, New York 
HARRY JOHNSTON, Florida DOUG BEREUTER, Nebraska 
ELIOT L. ENGEL, New York BEN BLAZ, Guam 
AUSTIN J. MURPHY, Pennsylvania 
BILL ORTON, Utah 

JOHN SCHICIBam,Subcommittee Staff Director 
EDMUND B. RCz, Minority Staff Consultant
 

KATHLEN BzRTEzuN, Subcommittee Staff Consultant
 
DONNA LA ToRRz, Subcommittee Staff Consultant
 

JuLt ELIASON, Subcommittee Staff Consultant
 

(11) 



COINTENTS 

WITNESSES 

DRAn Luomsi/ oN AUTVORIZING AID's MICROENTERPRisz DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

Thursday, Febnary 28, 1991: Page

Henrietta Halsman Fore, Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Asia and
 

P-iv-te rnterprkis, Agency for International Development ......................
3 
Alex Rondos, director, congressional relations, Catholic Relief Services ......25
 
Cheryl A. Lassen, Lassen Associates ...................................................................
38 
William Burrus, executive director, Accion International ................ 48
 

REALTHORIZATION OF THE TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

Tuesday March 5, 1291:
 
Priscila Rabb Ayres, director, Trade and Development Program .................
80 
Jim Andews, vice president, government affairs, M.W. Kellogg Co.............
103 
William Twmmell, vice president, project finance, Fluor Corp .....................
111 

REAUTHORIZATION OF PROGRAMS WITHIN AID's BUREAU OF ASIA AND PRIVATE
 
ENTERPRISE AND OVERSIGHT OF C)PIC's PROGRAM
 

Tuesday, March 19, 1991:
 
Henrietta Hosman Fore, Assistant Administrator, Bureau for Asia and
 

Private Enterprise, Agency for International Development ........................
127 
James Berg, executive vice president, Overseas Private Investment Pro
gram ........................................................................................................................
169
 

MARKUP OF SELECTED PORTIONS OF FOREIGN AID RFAUTHORIZATION 

Thursday, April 18, 1991:
 
George Foisom, Deputy Secretary for International Development and
 

Debt Policy for the Treasury Department .......................................................
207 

APPENDIXES 

1. Text of subcommittee draft foreign assistance legislation ..................................
237 
2. 	Letter dated April 30, 1991 from Hon. Sam Gejdenson to Hon. Dante
 

Fascell, transmitting subcommittee recommendations .......................................
358
 

(liII 



HEARINGS ON FOREIGN ASSISTANCE LEGISLATION FOR 
'FISCAL YEARS 1992-93 

Part 1-Full committee 
Part 2-Subcommittee on International Security and Scientific 

Affairs 
Part 3-Subcommittee on Europe and the Middle East 
Part 4-Subcommittee on Human Rights and International Orga

nizations 
Part 5-Subcommittee on Asian and Pacific Affairs 
Part 6-Subcommittee on International Economic Policy and 

Trade 
Part 7-Subcommittee on Africa 

Part 8-Subcommittee on Western Hemisphere Affairs 
Part 9-Full committee markup 

(v) 



FOREIGN ASSISTANCE LEGISLATION FOR
 
FISCAL YEARS 1992-93
 

Draft Legislation Authorizing A.i..'s Microenterprise 
Development Program 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 1991 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS, 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL 
ECONOMIC POLICY AND TRADE, 

Washington,DC. 
The subcommittee met at 10:45 a.m., in room 2172, Rayburn

House Office Building, Hon. Edward F. Feighan, presiding.
Mr. FEIGHAN. Ladies and gentlemen, we will begin the hearing of 

the Subcommittee on Economic Policy and Trade. At the discretion
of the Chairman, I would like to welcome everyone to the hearing
this morning and we will be joined by the Chairman of the subcom
mittee who is, unfortunately, detained by commitments at another
full committee, but will be joining us at some point during the 
course of this morning's hearing. And in anticipation of Mr. Gejd
enson's arrival, I want to thank him for the record for holding this 
hearing.

This is really a continuation of the hearing that we held last Sep
tember on A.I.D.'s Microenterprise Development Program. At that
hearing, the subcommittee and A.I.D. began what I felt wag a very
helpful and fruitful dialogue on how A.I.D. works, what constraints
the agency faces, and of particular concern to this committee, what 
we can do together to fashion legislation to ensure that our assist
ance fully recognizes and responds to the enormous potential of mi
croenterprise development.

The draft legislation that we are reviewing this morning is an
outgrowth of that effort. We have been working on it for the past
six months and we will continue to refine it, so that the draft
before you shuuld not be considered by any means a final product.
It is more, I think, a distillation of the ongoLig consultations that 
we have had with A.I.D. end P.V.O. representatives.

I would also like to thank our colleague, Congressman Ben
Gilman, and indicate to the subcommittee that Congressman
Gilman and I have an agreement in principle to make sure that
the final version of this legislation reflects the concerns that he has 
had with the microenterprise program as well. 

(1) 
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It would then be my intention to see this bill finally incorporated 
into our overall foreign aid vehicle as a Gilman amendment to that 
legislation. 

The draft bill before us does three things. First, it lays out goals 
for A.I.D.'s microenterprise program, to continue and expand its 
emphasis on microenterprise. It calls for A.I.D. to increase its effort 
to reach the poor and women. 

Second, it creates a general authority for the President, through 
A.I.D., to carry out this program. It recognizes the need for an um
brella approach that addresses the full range of needs faced by mi
croenterprises, providing credit, institutional development, train
ing, technical assistance and policy reform. 

And, third, it establishes an overall earmark of $85 million for 
each of the next 2 fiscal years, with a sub-earmark for special at
tention on reaching the poorest sectors of the developing world. 
This lower tier would receive $20 million in 1992, and $30 million 
in 1993. 

The bill appears in draft form today because we are still working 
to establish a way to identify and target assistance to that lower 
tier. In the past, Appropriations Committee report language has 
called for $300 loan cap and for targeted assistance to the poorest, 
20 percent of the population. 

I think both Mr. Gilman and myself are convinced that, although 
the loan cap is an imperfect and indirect measure, it nevertheless 
accomplishes the goal of seeing that A.I.D. channels its aid to the 
poorest of the poor. I would hope to explore that issue more closely 
this morning and see if we can reach an accommodation that 
would accomplish our mutual goals of developing a true umbrella 
approach that reaches the poorest of the poor. 

I would like to welcome our witnesses this morning, and I par
ticularly would like to thank Henrietta Holsman Fore for her ef
forts in keeping this dialogue on such a productive track and giving 
us the benefit of her staff's time in trying to reach a nearly consen
sus bill. 

I also want to thank those groups who are represented here this 
morning, as well as several other private voluntary organizations 
who have shared their ideas with us, and I very much look forward 
to your testimony and continuing our work together. 

The gentleman from Wisconsin. 
Mr. RoTH. I thank the Chairman for yielding to me. 
I see the bells are ringing. I have to go to the floor to make a 

statement. But if the Chairman would be so kind, I would like to 
take just about a minute and a half to give you my views. 

Mr. Chairman, no one doubts the good intentions of those who 
support this program. No one does. We all want to see improve
ments in these poorer countries. People should have the opportuni
ty to improve their lot in life. The private voluntary organizations 
are working harder around the world with many of these projects. 
Some of us support them with our own charitable contributions. 
We all have. 

But we have to ask why should this fall on the American taxpay
er, and maybe that's why we have this hearing. Why should we tax 
our citizens to make what is basically small business loans or 
grants to other countries? Why should we give $50 million in $300 
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increments to be taken from American pay checks to be loaned to 
entrepreneurs in other countries? 

I suppose one could ask the impolitic question of what gives this
Congress a right to take American tax dollars for thes-: overseas 
purposes such as this. This is the kind of program that forces my
constituents to ask what the heck is going on in Washington. And 
we take our surveys, all of the congressmen take their surveys; this 
is one of the things that people seem to be questioning.

There is no teal connection to our foreign policy interests just be
cause people in Congress still believe that they can pile program on 
program and hand the cost to our taxpayers, and to move on to 
other ideas. On the other hand, having this program on the books
does, I think, provide somewhat of an example of what people are 
upset about with our Congress today.

So, my message is very blunt, and that is, does this mean, legisla
tion like this, that we are going to have welfare handout, handouts 
to people overseas? I look at this as a well-intentioned program, but
it's going to turn out to be nothing but a handout to some foreign
huckster with an off-the-wall idea. 

And I appreciate the Chairman for allowing, me to make these
remarks, because I have the greatest respect for him and for Mr. 
Gilman, but I think that we have to, in reviewing legislation like
this, be very circumspect, and I think this is one of the views that 
many people would share. I thank the Chairman for allowing me to 
speak.

Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you, Mr. Roth. 
Well, we will begin the hearing with, I guess, the broadest possi

ble range of views on microenterprise, at least American foreign
aid dollars flowing into microenterprise programs. I will not at
tempt a rebuttal of my colleague's views. 

Mr. ROTH. We will have a lot of time for that. 
Mr. FEIGHAN. We will have more than ample opportunity for

that. But perhaps the administration will undertake that in their 
testimony.

I would invite then our first witness, Ms. Henrietta Holsman
Fore, the Assistant Administrator tbr the Bureau of Asian and Pri
vate Enterprise, in the Agency for International Development, and
welcome, Ms. Holsman Fore, back to the committee. You may
begin your testimony. 

STATEMENT OF HENRIETTA HOLSMAN FORE, ASSISTANT ADMIN-
ISTRATOR, BUREAU FOR ASIA AND PRIVATE ENTERPRISES, 
AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Ms. FORE. Thank you, Congressman Feighan.
I am pleased to have the opportunity to continue the dialogue

with you about A.I.D.'s Microenterprise Development Program
which was begun so productively during the hearings before this 
subcommittee last September.

I hope, in my remarks today, to lead you to the conclusions, first,
that we have listened and responded to Congress on the subject of
microenterprise. Second, that A.I.D. has assembled an excellent mi
croenterprise team and has a gonuine commitment to the microen
terprise program. And, third, that sufficient guidance now exists 
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for A.I.D. to run the kind of program both you and we can be 
happy with. 

What we need now is time to bring you results and accomplish
ments. We request relief from arbitrary targets and other limiting
factors which drain enormous energy from our dedicated staff. Our 
highest priority for A.I.D.'s microenterprise program, and I would 
venture to guess, yours as well, is to reach as many people in the 
developing world as possible with the microenterprise services that 
we support.

As Administrator Roskens stated in recent testimony, the whole 
A.I.D. program should aim to give all people, especially poor, chil
dren and women, a stake in the prospects of economic develop
ment. Nowhere is this more apt than in microenterprise develop
ment. 

What stands in the way of meeting the needs of the majority of 
the self-employed and microentrepreneurs? The answer, we believe, 
is not simply more money from donors. One-third of the developing
world's population, about 1 billion people, have incomes less than 
$370. If we are ever to achieve more than a token response to this 
need, it must come not from limited donor capital, but from effec
tive local institutions that can mobilize local funds to serve the 
poor in rowing numbers. 

A.I.D. s microenterprise program seeks to help by creating and 
nurturing stronger local groups and institutions who can, in turn, 
offer credit. We have participated in such a process with breathtak
ing results in the development of Bark Rakyat Indonesia's Unit 
Desa System. A.I.D. worked to convince Indonesia's Minister of Fi
nance to try the program. A.I.D. financed training of thle BRI staff 
and supported a team of advisors who worked with BRI's manage
ment in implementing the new program. Now the program lends 
more than 2 million people, and it takes in nearly $600 million in 
savings. This example shows how helping local groups and institu
tions makes it possible to reach geometrically increasing numbers 
of poor people.

A focus on the benefits-reaching people-as a result of our pro
gram is far better than an exercise of counting the dollars going
into our program. Accordingly, A.I.D. is now setting program objec
tives in terms of results, especially the numbers of people reached. 
We would like to achieve the following program objectives in 1992 
and 1993: 

First, increases of 10 percent in each year in the number of mi
croenterprise loans made.through A.I.D.-supported programs;

Two, so that the programs will focus on the very poor and on 
women, a rate of increase in the numbers of loans to the very poor
and to women higher than 10 percent each year;

Three, increases of 5 percent in each year in the number of local 
institutions and local microenterprises receiving training or techni
cal assistance through A.I.D.-supported programs;

And, fourth, development of new policy and regulatory reforms 
on behalf of microenterprises in two countries each year.

Within this objective-setting process, we will pay close attention 
to the poor, to the very poor, and to loans for these people using 
country-by-country criteria. 
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I was pleased to see in the draft legislation the implicit recogni

tion that assistance to the very lor cannot be defined by an arbi
trary fixed loan size set in the United States for the whole develop
ing world. It is contrary to democratic values for Washington to
dictate loan ceilings to locally managed grassroots programs.

As you know, initial attempts to impose a specific loan size ceiling were soundly rejected by the implementing private voluntary
organizations. The Advisory Committee on Microenterprise, con
vened at the request of Congress by A.I.D., unanimously recom
mended against establishing $300 as a loan ceiling. A letter making
a similar recommendation was sent to Congress last year from 19
of the leading U.S.-based PVOs who implement the micropnterprise 
program.

A loan cap is inconsistent with the aim of helping the poor move 
out of poverty. As their businesses grow from tiny beginnings, borrowers continue to need finance, and local microenterprise institu
tions are almost certainly their only hope for obtaining it.

I am reminded of a seamstress in a black township in Port Eliza
beth, South Africa. The Get Ahead Foundation gave her a small
working capital loan to buy cloth. After a year, she was ready for a
much larger loan to buy an electric sewing machine which enabled
her to compete with products coming into the township from the
outside, and to employ several other women to help. She was able 
to do it because the Get Ahead Foundation is not only committed 
to very poor people, it is committed to helping them get out of pov
erty

eturning now to A.I.D.'s program, the Agency has developed an
action plan to achieve the objectives outlined above. Highlights of 
the plan are: 

Our missions will design new programs and extend existing ones.
USAID/Nicaragua, for example, is planning a major program ofrpicroenterprise credit. It will be a terrific opportunity to support

the rebirth of the entrepreneurial spirit in Nicaragua.


New projects are also about to begin in Bangladesh, Egypt,

Malawi, El Salvador, Dominican Republic, Jamaica, and others.

A.I.D.'s Women in Development Office will ensure that each and every microenterprise program A.I.D. supports will be designed to
maximize the participation of women.

A.I.D. is committed to better reporting. We have already expand
ed the Agency-wide data gathering system to report on fundinglevels for microenterprise programs. More importantly, we will 
soon be able to report systematically on achievements. A microen
terprise monitoring '3ystem has been designed to assess numbers of
loans and sizes of 1,oans, numbers of clients trained, gender of cli
ents and institutions assisted. A team is in Africa right now carrying out a field test of the system. We expect to begin worldwide im
plementation soon thereafter. With regular information, we should
be able to more than satisfy you that A.I.D. is carrying out thekind of microenterprise program that you want to see. 

With regard to the legislation drafted by your staff, we are alsopleased by the very positive spirit that you have mentioned in your
opening remarks that has characterized the recent dialogue with
this subcommittee, and compliment you and your staff on the open
consultative process. 
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We do not agree, however, with the continuation of the earmark 
on microenterprise, and are particularly disappointed to see that 
this draft contains not only an extension of the existing earmark, 
but a new sub-earmark for poverty lending. Such earmarks require 
top-down decisionmaking in an area that cries out for a grassroots 
approach.


Further, giver A.I.D.'s strong microenterprise program and con
tinued commitment to microenterprise, I question the need for any 
legislation on mici centerprise at all. A.I.D.'s achievements to date 
and promise of future commitment are such that we have moved 
beyond the need for legislative earmarks. 

Since my arrival last year, I have sought to show you that A.I.D. 
has both an excellent program in microenterprise as well as a re
newed commitment to e.',pand the achievements of that program. 
A.I.D. has worked very hard to craft a program that incorporates 
congressional concerns. I am hopeful that both through our dia
logue with you and actions within A.I.D. we can satisfy congres
sional concerns without the need for further legislation. 

We propose, as an alternative to legislation, a consultative proc
ess based on establishing internal A.I.D. objectives as I described 
earlier in which the objectives are arrived at through consultation 
rather than legislation. You have my personal commitment to con
sult with you throughout that process 

In closing, let me say how proud I and many, many others at 
A.I.D. are of the microenterprise program. It is an extremely effec
tive program that continues to be on the forefront of the worldwide 
microenterprise movement. We ask you to give us the leeway to 
make it the best program it can be. 

Thank you for this opportunity to present A.I.D.'s views on mi
croenterprise development. With me is Dr. Michael Farbman, Di
rector of our Office of Small, Micro and Informal Enterprise, and 
we would both be happy to answer any of your questions. 

[The statement of Ms. Fore follows:] 



PRZPAMSD STATMMEN OF MENRETTA HOLIXAN 031 

ASSISTANT AMINZIThATOR '-v 

AcnENCYFOR INmTERAiONA DmVI 

ampleased to have the opportunity to be here 

the dialogue with you about A.I.D.' 6 'microenterpriaa davel m 

program, which was begun so produotively during the hearingsj 

before this Subcommittee in September, 1990. As you requesdZI
 

am prepared to update you on A.I.D.'s implementation of its 

microenterprise program and to comment on the proposed 

mioroenterprise legislation. The Administration ha.snot had 

opportunity to review fully this draft legislation, and would be 

pleased at a later time to provide detailed comments. my remarks 

today are of a general nature.
 

We have spent a great-deal of time during the past two or three 

years talking about our areas of difference regarding
 

microenterprise Levelopment. Meanwhile, we have overlooked how
 

very much vs have in common. In my testimony today I would like 

to focus on those common interests and share some ideas about how
 

to pursue them together.
 

Our highest priority for A.X.D.'s miaroenterprise program - ~ 
I would venture to guess, yours as well -- is to reach as any 

people as possible with the microenterprise services we support. 

The need I. very great, and most of it is unmet. In most . 

countries only a small fractizon of the poor haves access t-ons, -. 

training or any other kind of asuistano. We are'vorkinig toward 

a day in which the vast majority of the poor can get the ndof 

financial and other services that enable then to pursue their own
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economic activities. Reaching th .. jority.. "the r "'imn 

a major contribution toward poverty alleviation, eonomio 'growth,
 

and afairer, more democratio social fabric. This AimiO~
 

echoes that of A.Z.D. Adinistrator Dr. Roskirsi tsi tesiimory
 
before the House Foreign Affairs Committee three weeks ago, in
 

which he called for the whole A.LeD. programlaih
 

especially the poor, children and women, a stake in thkjiropets
 

9f economic dovelopment. Commitment to these values und rM.
 

our belief inthe Importance of aicroenterprise development.:
 

What stands Inthe way of meting the needs of the uority of
 

microenterprines? The answer, we believe, isnot necessarily a
 

shortage of funding, particularly funding for loans. Successful
 

institutions can raise loan capital themselvest from the savings
 

of their own clients, from local private sources, and from large,
 

multilateral donors like the Inter-American Development Bank,
 

IFAD, and the World Bank. Rather, the factor limiting expansion
 

of microenterprise activities most severely is the shortage of
 

*effective institutions that can serve the poor in growing 

numbers.
 

A.X.D.t microanterpriso ?"gra peaks to.help-.oreats _ urture 

such institutions. We help inst7tiutions bul their programs in 

whatever way makes the most sense for themn be it support for 

operating costs, assistance indesign of management systems, 

staff training, computers, or loan capital. A.I.D. often 

3
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develops relationships that oontinuc4ter e 

partnership. are successful, the results -a IV.*Weardngi 
after several years of perfecting their a 
institutions grow to raOh thousands and tens of th6esa O'V&'. 
people. At the same time, these programs grow increasingly,
 

independent of A.ZD. support
 

We have participated in such a process with breathaking results 
in the development of the Bank Rakyat Indonesiat's (Eees) Unit 
Desa system.-- now approaching two million borroets and seven
 

14

million savers. 
A.I.D. worked from the start-with xndonesia's 
Ministry of Finance to convinoe them to try the program. A.ZD. 
provided financial and technical support to P!r from the initial 
planning stages until today. We financed training of the 
enormous BR! staff, and maintained a team of advisors at 

headquarters who worked with BRI's management in developing and 
implementing the new program. NoW, the program mobilizes 
hundreds of millions of dollars -- all from the savings of its 

clients, and the days of Intensive dependence on A.IDo,i 

drawing to a close. 

We see similar patterns in many other instan e e1', The 
institutions move up the l.aruiing ourvo .,Once
a r 


ke-off point is reached the rea benefttofA;z,.'~s years 

of investment in the microenterprise programs appear. A.LD. has 

already fostered this type of process In Indonesia with BR and 

S 4"
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several 'of the smaller provincial system, in thic n "'.7 

Republic with ADME10 in South Africa with the .3j9AheaO.-. 

Foundation, and.elsewhere, and nov institutions we pupport are on 

the brink of real expansion in Renya, Bolivia, and Egypt, among 

others. We also see great promise for the rapid replioation of 

smaller programs, such as those using the village banking
 

methodology, which are carried out with A,Z.D. funding by several
 

U.S. privats voluntary organisations. 

From talking with some of you and with your staffs, Z know that 

you share our excitement when these programs begin to take off. 

We all want to see institutions develop to the point where they 

can make a real impact on the poor of their countries. Helping 

this kind of expansion happen In at the heart of your interest In 

microenterprise development and of ours. 

If we can agree on these aims, we should consider a simple, yet
 

far-reaching propositions A.!.D,Isxioroentarprise development
 

program ought to be judged by the results it achievoq.l;ot by the 

Inputs that go into it. Throughout the entire Agency, ve are 

reorienting ourselves to measure success by our achievements,* not 

by inputs -- The American p6eolcn ljI 

assistance program that demonstrates a real diffaren iJ WOve

it to them to show that their foreign assistanoo.dollars result. 

in important, tangible changes in the world. 

5 



A.ZD. i. taking action OP t .. we eriJ- ett . 
internal goals for ths. mlcroenterprima program In terms of 
result..- We plan to i ambitiousa goals for ourselvs'anthose 
organizations we.support and we plan 	to reach th* loal'-
Because our purpose is to expand the reach of mioroein ri 
programs, particularly credit programs that sake s--afCw e 
propose to et objeotives for the institutions we support to 
reach more and more peoples and we will achieve the objectives 
both by helping programs to grow and by supporting additional 

programs. 

we are working with the following program objectives for each of 
1992 and 1993:
 

o. Increases of .10 percent in 3992 and again in 1993 in 
the number of mioroanterprime loans made: (or borrowers 
financed) through A.I.D.-supported programs. 

o 	 rate of increase in numbers of loans to the very pooi 
and to women higher than 10 percent each year, so that 
the program overall will increase its focus on these 
groupe 

o 	 Increases of 5 percent-in each year in the number of 
institutions and mioroenterprises receiving training or 
technical assistance through A. X.D.-supporteO programs. 

a 
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o 	 Development Of a RWPolicy and -"guiWr reforor 

'sub.sotor-based as, stanco effort on~ f o 

*microenterpries ICAtwo countries each year. 

W'Aiming for then goals, particularly those on brodit, bec6
90 

we think that microenterprise programs in $Any Countries Are 
" 

of ago, and are on the Varge of aignificat ' beginning to come 

expansion. The preliminary figures that we have obtained moast 

recently show that on the obligations and expenditures side, 

A.i.D. is putting significantly more funding into credit 

programs, and we expect this to be multiplied on the output side. 

the numbers of loans or borrowers rather than
We are focusing on 

dollar volume because we feel that this information measures more 

This 	focus will force
accurately the success of the program. 


A.I.D. and its grantees to keep their eyes on the shared goals of
 

expanding outreach and replicating programs.
 

Within the objective-setting process, we will pay close attention
 

using criteria that take country-byll 
to loans for the very poor, 

country variation into account. I was pleased to sea in the 

todraft legislation the i.lt recognition thatasast, nee 

very poor cannot be defined by an arbitrary, doflai-a denominat 

loan size, set in the United States for the wfole ofth---

The poor in one country may not be identicaldeveloping world. 


with the poor in another country, and it is inconsistent with
 



demo~a~cvales e~idgood finand'oi s~ 4iW 
dictate: loan cailings to locally-mainaged grassroots 4rgrm; 

As you may remember .Initial attempts to imposetf 
sie ceiling were soundly rejected by impleenting organizations. 
The Advisory Committee on ioroenterprime, convened ti A..D. at 
the earlier request of Congress, unanimously recomended last 
year against establishing $300 or any other fixed figure as A", 
loan coiling. A letter making a similar. recommendation was ent 
last year from 29 of the leading V.S.-based PO who Implement 
the microenterprise program to the Chairmen of the House and 
Senate Appropriations Committee Subcomittees on Foreign 
Operations. A.Z.D. tools very strongly that such a loan cap is 
inconsistent with the financial viability of the institutions
 
that make loans and with the ain of helping the poor move out of 
poverty. As their businesses grow from their tiny beginnings 
into more stable sources of income, borrowers will continue to 
need access to finance, and the microenterprise Institutions we 
support are almost certainly their only hope fc•r*. ,-IngIt. 

Returning now to A.I.D.'s program, the Agency has developed an
 
action plan to achieve the goals Z described above.. The plan is 

currently being discus dinternally throughout t h^ a d-
In consultation with the Advisory Committee' on Microint rrno.' 
It contains the following elements#a 



14
 

o 	 The A.Z.D. field missions will be 

planning objectives, and internal communication ,: "

throughout the Agency will ensure that they are clear.II 	 .I ,I 

to everyone involved in programming deoisions.' 

o-	 A significant number of mmilions are designing new 

program. and extending existing on" thi., . • .; 
USAD/Nicaragua, for example, is planniram ajor.-4.. 

program of mioroenterpriee credit. Thin will be a . 

terrific opportunity to support the rebirth of an 

entrepreneurial spirit in Nicaragua and to stimulate 

employment for the majority of Nicaraguans whose 

standards of living suffered under the previous 

government. Ne projects are also about to begin in 

Bangladesh, Egyptr Nalawi# 31 Salvador# Dominican 

Republic, and Tamaica, among others. 

o 	 A.1.D. 's Women in Development Office will ensure that 
*'1.

every single nov microenterprise program AI.D. . 

supports will be designed to maximize the participation 

of women. Through Its GENESYS project and by working 

With GEMINI,' that of fico- funds gender consultants whQ~ 

work with A.Z.D. and.its grantoes at theC-riia 

design stage to examine and eliminate possibl- barriers* 

to women's participation and to promote actively 

greater women's involvement. 

9 
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o, 	Uhe GEMINI project will maksajor"Oefoit, Co"omois 
microenterprise development among tV . o 
missions and cooperating host oountg!orqanimsations. 

This effort in already well under way. Last fall, 

GEMINI held two conferences for praotittoer cne~on~ 
micronterprise finano and one on non-tsnancial 
assistance. At the earlier conferene,. representatives 
from Grameen Bank, DPJ/DNZ ACCION International, 
village banking programs, credit unions, and others 
examined the prospects for expanding micronterprise 
finance. A videotape of this conference will be 
distributed to A.I.D. missions and grantees, and
 
regional conferences on the same themes will be held as 
soon as travel restrictions are lifted and planning can 

begin. 

o 	 GEMINI is also examining the village bankring 

methodology and Is assisting U.S. 1Oe who &6 
implementing village banking progress in a variety t 
countries. As the methodology becomes better
 
understood within A.I.D., it will, nra ar 

I -, " , . -interest -inatdiprt^:tor -such progrj 

o 	 Very importantly, A.Z.D. Is developing a monito 
systea that will measure the results of our assistance 

10
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in terms that coinaide with the"objeotive w.*Wi 
l i t 

will report on the status'of this -systeom -- &7 

comments.. 

Sectoro The new 	 Institutional Reform and the Informal 

(IRIS) 	 Project promisesto expand, dramatically A.I.De 

support reform of the regulatory,capability to 

and, policy structures in developing.institutional, 

countries.
 

o The Office of Private and Voluntary Cooperation Is 

continuing to emphasizs microenterprise development in 

its matching grant program, with new grants in this 

area to be awarded in 1991.
 

With regard to the legislation drafted by your Subcommittee 

staff, we are very happy about the positive spirit that has 

recent dialogue with thikkommitte, andcharacterized the 

complement you and your staff on the open, no kv* proses!. 

that you have been following. We value the dialogueat the sta'4 

level very highly, and believe that it is crucial for generating 

greater understanding of both Congressional aims and the t 

of the a. !Xb-p-rogra----

A.I.D. is in furdamental agreement with the ultimate goals the

proposed legislation seeks to address. However,.,we cannot agree 

11 



with any legislation earmarking AID.fuds, aM-aie"
 

particularly disappointed to seethat this draft bill contains 

not only an extension of the existing earmark, but a new sub

earmark for poverty lending. Such earmarks artificially 

constrain our employees in the field by requiring them to 
implement a top-down approach, in an area that cries out for a 

grassroots approach.
 

Further, given A.I.D. 'a strong microonterprise program and 

continued commitment to microenterprise, X wonder why any 

Iagiulation on microenterprise is necessary at all. A.Z.D.'Is 

achievements to date and promise of future commitment are such 

chat we have moved beyond the need for legislative earmarks. 

Since my arrival last year, I have sought to show you that A.I.D. 

has both an excellent program in microenterprise, and a renewed 

commitment to expand the achievements of that program. 

Microenterpries activities make development andNones, A.I.D. 

will continue to promote them. A.X.D. has worked very hard to 

craft a program that incorporates Congressiona ,.ooaoA .jrd
 

objectives. A.I.D. has realized the value of loans for the very 

poor, and in fact, the focus on credit in very small amounts has 

Increased. I Jbopeful that both through A f, . , 4 
and through our actions within A.1D. we can safisfyW 
Congressional concerns without the need for further legislation. 

As I described above, A.I.D. is setting ambitious but realistio 

12
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goals of accomplishent Frits Prograu, And, &S V OWN 

in a moment, A.Z.D. Is putting in place a system to track 

performance in reaching theme objectives. we propose, mse"an 

alternative to legislation, a process which is based on these 

objectives, in which the objectives are arrived at and 

performance is monitored through consultation rathet thai 

legislation. You have my personal commitment to consult with you
 

in all phases of such a process.
 

I know how important it is for A.I.D. to be able to report on the 

results of our microanterprise efforts, and I an happy to say 

that we are moving ahead promptly to develop our systematic 

monitoring capability. We have already expanded our normal 

Agency-wide data gathering process to Include information on the
 

funding level of our microenterprise program. Through this 

system A.I.D. assembles data on all A.I.D. operations in
 

preparing for the annual budget submission to Congress. We 

already have begun to use this system to collect systematic 

information on actual and proposed funding levels for 

micronterprise programs, am needed both for planning purposes. 

and to track compliance with any earmark. Data from that 

exercise are now being analyzed, and will be pl. On 

year's report to Congress on the microenterprie p 

Just as important, we are working to develop the ability to
 

report systematically on achievements. A icroenterprise 

13
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monitoring systeo has been designed that will give us info n-ain 
on 1) numbers and sizes of loans# 2) numbers of olients trained, 
3) gender of clients, and 4) other indicators, at the level.of 
the projects and organizations A.Z.D. supports. That system is 
now being field-tested before it Is Implemented worldwide. Our 
team Is in Africa today carrying out a pro-test in three 
countries. 
The results of that test will be available in March
 
and will be discussed in the report to Congress. We expect to 
begin implementation worldwide as soon thereafter as possible.
 
With this kind of Information coming in regularly, V should be
 
able to more than satisfy you that A..D. 
Is carrying out the
 
kind of mioroenterprise program you want 
 to see, vithout the
 
necessity for Curther legislation of any kind.
 

Zn closing, let me say how proud I and many, many others at 
A.I.D. are of the microenterprise program. It is an extrmly 
effective program, that continues to be in the forefront of the
 
worldwide microenterprise movement. We ask you to support our. 
efforts to make it the beat program it can be.,,, 

l4'
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Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you, Madam Administrator. 
Mr. FARBMAN, you may proceed to join the table. 
I know that you have some scheduling constraints but there are 

a few questions that I would like to get into. It seems clear to me 
that over the past several months or actually a couple of years, as 
we have been trying to build a better understanding of microenter
prise, it has been an elusive term for us. The Congress has used the 
term microenterprise generally to contemplate the provision of 
credit to the very poor. A.I.D. has frequently used microenterprise 
in a fairly more expansive view, although clearly much of, if not 
most of what A.T.D. is directed for the benefit of the poor. 

But can you just summarize for us, Ms. Holsman Fore, the com
mitment that A.I.D. has to that niche of microenterprise that con
stitutes credit programs aimed at the very poor? Not as a rebuttal 
to my colleague's opening remarks, but in response to those mem
bers of Congress or Americans who would not fully appreciate the 
value of credit programs within the entire construct of microenter
prise as being an integral and very valuable part of our overall de
velopment plan. 

Ms. FORE. As you know, we do feel that credit is an integral part 
of it. It is one of several parts to us. On the credit side, as you 
know, last year we lent out through the various private voluntary 
organizations that we work with approximately 45,000 loans that 
were approximately $108. 

We plan to increase that amount geometrically by increasing our 
support to the local institutions that in turn can lend out more. We 
have such a huge problem, as you and I have discussed, that we 
need to try to get to more of the developing world. We have many 
new field projects going on. Specifically, FINCA in El Salvador has 
a new one, and the Women's Entrepreneurship Development 
Project (WEDP II) in Bangladesh are earlier institution-building 
initiatives that are particularly aimed at the poverty lending capa
bilities of our institutions. For example, Prodem in Bolivia and 
Fondomicro in the Dominican Republic are looking very good and 

- strong, and many more of the poverty lending and village banking 
U.S. PVOs are receiving assistance from central A.I.D. funding. 

So, we think that through many of those mechanisms of helping 
other groups locally, the concern for poverty lending is going to be 
addressed through these institutions. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. Administrator, you have discussed the action plan 
that your office has been working on for fiscal year 1991. Is that 
action plan complete? Is it still in process? What is the status of 
that? 

Ms. FORE. As you know, in December, the A.I.D. Microenterprise 
Advisory Committee agreed to assist in the development of this 
action plan. It is going to be presented on March 19 when the Advi
sory Committee next meets. It has been in draft. It is not yet final
ized, and it has several parts in it that I believe your staff has 
begun talking about, ways we can market microenterprise, field 
workshops, which seem to be a very important component, techni
cal assistance to the local implementing organizations, and, of 
course, better data. 
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Mr. FEIGHAN. And at this point in the action plan what are therecommendations for targeting to the poorest of the poor and for 

women?
 
Ms. FORE. In the draft?
 
Mr. FEIGHAN. In the draft so far.

Mr. FARBMAN. Well, those are two separate issues.
 
Mr. FEIGHAN. Right.
Mr. FARBMAN. In the first instance, what we are trying to do fortargeting women is consistent with what we are doing overall inthe agency. As I am sure you are aware, we have a fairly comprehensive approach to dealing with women in development in all thesectors in which we work, and that certainly applies for microen

terprise development.
Our Women in Development Office works very closely with Ms.Fore's staff, and with the field missions to try to assure that ineach a: .d every case of a new project being developed for microenterprise, they will promote quality control, as it were, with respect

to how the project reaches women.More generally, the Women in Development Office does a lot oftraining for private sector development with respect to womenwhich almost exclusively means microenterprise development.There is a lot that we do inside the agency to both raise awarenessand to try to increase the reach of our projects very proactively inorder to increase the numbers of women affected.On the side of increasing the poverty-lending focus, this we doprincipally through supporting those institutions, whether they beU.S. PVOs or host country institutions, which have that predilection to work with poverty loans. You and your staff have heardfrom quite a few of them: the U.S. PVOs, programs that are notnecessarily PVO projects in the developing countries. We can document that we are increasing the amount of support that we aregiving to programs which we know have very substantial commitments to the poverty-lending side of what they are doing.And I think that, as Ms. Fore mentioned in her introductorycomments, as we begin to collect the performance data rather thanto focus on how the dollars are applied on the input side to ourprojects, I think you will see that we have achieved our objectivesof increasing the focus of our worldwide program on that kind of

lending.


But at this stage I would say, the evidence is circumstantial, but
I think a heavy burden of circumstance supports this.Mr. FEIGHAN. Now, to accomplish that, does A.I.D. have in eachof its missions today, or does it contemplate in the future havingone individual identified as maintaining responsibility for microenterprise development, including the two categories that we justmentioned of reaching out t, the poorest of the poor and to
women?

Ms. FORE. In all of our missions, we have asked more than oneperson to be interested in and looking at the microenterprise area.And if they have a project outlined and underway, there is at leastone responsible person in every mission. If they do not yet have aprogram, then there just may be one person who is looking at microenterprise, seeing what might be best for that particular coun
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try, what the local institutions are, and what the needs are. Are 
they more on the policy side? Or is it more in credit or training. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. It sort of sounds like no. 
Ms. FORE. No. That is a yes. Is it that there is one person tagged? 

There is at least one in the missions where we have programs 
going on. In the ones where we do not, there is not one person that 
is assigned to do microenterprise poverty lending as their sole 
focus. 

Mr. FARBMAN. May I add, Congressman? 
Mr. FEIGHAN. Please. 
Mr. FARBMAN. I think that part of the perceived problem here is 

not really a problem at all. We have often said to you how the 
projects in the field are often quite different, one from another. 
They take many different shapes. They are done under the guise, 
sometimes of agricultural support or rural development support. 
They may be part of urban projects. They often are done just as 
grant programs directly working with the local non-governmental 
organization community. The point is that these projects can be 
supported in our missions in any of a number of places. And, as 
you know from our earlier reporting, we have projects in microen
terprise development in over 50 missions. 

Where it is supported in the mission can be somewhat idiosyn
cratic. But I think you can be assured that because of the reporting 
requirements which we are now pursuing, our missions are seeing 
to it that they are much more informed on what those projects are 
doing. We are assured that there are people or a person, at least, in 
virtually every mission, to whom we can turn and consider that in
dividual a counterpart for this program. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. I understand that. But it seems to me if there is 
not one individual who feels that sense of responsibility, it is going 
to be very difficult doing accurate country-by-country analysis. And 
if a PVO in a particular country wants to participate, who do they 
know to turn to if there is not one person that there is identified? 

Now you are going to say there are going to be lots of people that 
they can turn to. It seems to me that it might be somewhat more 
efficient and helpful if there was one person who had that as part 
of their mission. 

Mr. FARBMAN. I think partly you are underestimating the 
networking and intelligence-gathering capabilities of some of the 
PVOs. They normally know better than we do. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. I always do, so I am sure you are right. 
Let me turn to the issue of earmarking that the Administrator 

raised in her testimony which we thought was very reasonable. Of 
course, without dealing with the general principle of earmarking 
which I know you do not want to get into, but we thought that the 
$85 million earmark was particularly on target, not at all arbitrary 
and that estimated expenditures for 1990 were 83.8-will be 83.8 
million. So that seemed to be a realistic target. But let me ask you 
about that subcategory of an earmark. 

We talk about a benchmark of $20 million in aid to the poor 
sector for fiscal year 1992. Now, we would include in that figure, of 
course, institutional support for intermediaries that support village 
banking and credit programs and other poverty lending activity. Is 
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that a realistic earmark? Setting aside the general principles oearmarks, does that $20 million figure strike you as being realistic'Ms. FORE. Let me just be clear that I know what you are including in it. You are saying that it is for credit programs, but also folinstitutional strengthening and training.

Mr. FEIGHAN. For those institutions that are engaged in thosi
credit programs.

Ms. FORE. In credit programs. And fs there any limitation on thetype of lending? Like a certain poverty level? Is that what the
question is?
 

Mr. FEIGHAN. Well, we will get to that.

Ms. FORE. We will get to that one later.

Mr. FEIGHAN. Yes. We will get to that.
Ms. FORE. You know our basic premise about all earmarks andhow they shape a program artificially. This, to our way of mind, isa real grassroots program and it should be shaped in a grassrootsway, based on what the needs are. We will have difficulty with anysub-earmark of that sort. It drives a program and shapes it in away that is not necessarily what is needed in a country or what wehere in this room want.
Mr. FEIGHAN. In terms of an earmark. Now if it were in terms ofa goal that we reached after the consultative process, it would 

seem like a realistic goal.
Ms. FORE. Well, as I mentioned earlier, what we are hoping to dois to focus not on how much money goes into a program, but whatthe results and achievements are of the program, itself. What are we getting for it? Where is that U.S. taxpayer dollar going?And so what our objectives are that we have set within our officeis to try to get at what those achievements are, rather than howmuch money is going in. The sub-earmark addresses how muchmoney is going into the program. And what we hope to move all ofus toward is measuring what we have been able to achieve withthe money that has gone into our program. That is what we have 

set our internal objectives on.Mr. FEIGHAN. Let me deal with this issue now of the loan caps. Iunderstand in your testimony you restated your opposition to loancaps. And this has been probably the one area that we have allgiven the most rhetorical attention to, at least, if for no otherreason that it does seem to target our attention on what our
 
mutual goals are.


If our goal is to reach the very poorest of the poor, it seems 
tome we can either means test the recipients of our programs-andnobody wants to do that. I mean the bureaucracy that we wouldhave to create to do that would be enormously difficult and costlyand very counterproductive. Or we can use, it seems to me, the indirect measure of a loan cap. You have argued that the loan cap isincompatible with developing self-sustaining institutions.My view is that under this two-tier system now that we are proposing in the draft legislation, institutions can have a very diversified portfolio that includes both large loans and small loans undera $300 cap. We would like to see those small loans counted againstthe sub-earmark and the rest of the portfolio counted against the
larger earmark. 
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Would that not solve the problems for institutions that lend both 
above and below the $300 loan caps? The argument of self-sustain
ing-of not assisting self-sustaining institutions I think does not 
hold up. 

Ms. FORE. Well, there are two parts to that, I think. One is the 
difficulty that our private voluntary organizations have in segre
gating their lending programs into two categories-those that are 
below a loan cap and those that are above. We have lots of letters 
here that are coming in from our private voluntary organizations 
saying how difficult it is for them currently to differentiate this 
way, and that it is causing a costly burden to them, both in time 
and in money to do so. If we can give them grant money, in time 
they can do it; but they cannot do it now. They cannot do it with
out further funds, and it is a real imposition. It is not we that are 
gathering the data, it is the 400 institutions that are working with 
us around the world. So that is one difficulty that is a mechanical 
one with any kind of a loan cap. 

The second aspect has to do with the notion of growth. These 
people that we are helping are indeed very poor. They are very 
needy. And to get out of poverty, which I think is all of our goals, 
theri is not a line drawn in the sand for how you get out of pover
ty. You have to be sure that you are out enough that you do not 
slip back, that there is a way to be sure that it holds, that it is a 
sustainable effort that you have put into it. 

There is an example that I could cite from East Java in Indone
sia about a women s credit organization. They began with a few 
women just baking cakes and savories which they sold to the street 
vendors. Their reputation grew, their market grew and soon they 
needed to buy ovens and they were catering to the local businesses. 

Once they are at that stage and they have a real business going 
on, hopefully we believe they are out of poverty. They will not slip 
back in again, but you need to get them far enough up that they 
will not just slip back. And a loan cap just sets a line where you 
are saying people who borrow under $300 are needy and poor and 
those above $300 are not as needy or poor. And they are all very 
poor and very needy. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. And I want to ask you in just a few minutes about 
the monitoring program that may be underway, but before I get to 
that, I just want to make clear why we are continuing the dialogue 
and why we are pursuing legislation and why we are including in 
that earmarks. In 1988, we had an earmark of $50 million and 
A.I.D. spent just over $5 million on loans of $300 or less. A year 
later, in 1989, with an earmark increased to $75 million, A.I.D. ac
tually spent less money on loans of $300 or less. So it raises the 
question to us in the absence of legislation, would A.I.D. spending 
on microenterprise increase or decrease. And we are hoping that if 
nothing else, the earmarks can demonstrate the intensity of the 
Congressional interest and support for increasing expenditures in 
those categories. 

Ms. FORE. I hear that. It is something we are after, also. Though 
the numbers stayed the same-approximately the $5.5 million-as 
you know, in 1989, the total number of loans under $300 grew so 
that there were 46,000 loans rather than 41,000 loans with the 
same total dollar amount. So we did increase the number of loans 
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that went out. They were just smaller. And with respect to trends,
as you know, we currently do not have an accurate way to gatherthose data. But we are hearing that lending volumes within the institutions that are lending to that very poor category are increasing geometrically. We do not have perfect data on this, but everyindication is that they are increasing. We really think we areunder-reporting this lending. There is clear growth in it.

Mr. FEIGHAN. Now the monitoring system that we have talkedabout at previous hearings presumably will address some of thosedifficulties. Can you give us an update at this point, Administrator, 
on the development of a monitoring system? And it seems to methat there was a pilot program that was to be in place or may in
fact be in place. Can you give us a status report on that?Ms. FORE. We have a menpilot group that just went out, as I
tioned, to Africa: Swaziland, Botswana and Malawi. They were delayed a little bit because of the Gulf crisis and travel restrictions.
They are out there now. Their report is due back in by March 15th.If they have shown that we have got a good system, that the private voluntary organizations can indeed use in the field, then wewill go out immediately worldwide with it and begin that data collection so that by this time next year we should havw a very good
system in place.


Mr. FEIGHAN. Wcrldwide system?

Ms. FORE. Worldwide system, so that our pilot should be comingback in by March 15th. I think we have consulted with you on eachone of the categories for which we are gathering the data. There are a lot of private voluntary organizations who need to be broughtto one uniform reporting format, but I think as you will hear later

that everyone can come to it. It just takes some time and money
and effort.

Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you very much, Administrator. I appreciateyour testimony this morning and particularly your ringing endorse
ment of portions of our proposed legislation. We look forward to
talking to you again, soon.

Ms. FORE. Thank you, Congressman Feighan. I also appreciateyour ringing endorsement for some parts of our program.
Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you.
Our second panel will consist of Mr. Alex Rondos, the Director ofCongressional Relations for Catholic Relief Services; Sheryl Lassen,
of Lassen Associates, and Mr. William Burrus, the Executive Direc

tor of Accion International.

Mr. FEIGHAN. Mr. Rondos, you could begin your testimony if youwill, and then we'll proceed to Dr. Lassen and Mr. Burrus. 

STATEMENT OF ALEX RONDOS, DIRECTOR, CONGRESSIONAL 
RELATIONS, CATHOLIC RELIEF SERVICES 

Mr. RONDOS. Thank you very much, Congressman. I am verygrateful on behalf of Catholic Relief Services to be able to comment 
on the draft legislation.

The CRS has a long history of implementing credit programs targeted at the poor in the Third World. They range from grain creditschemes to village banking networks to programs for small enter
prise training and credit. 
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These are programs which we have run through a wide array of 
counterpart organizations, including the church and secular 
groups, cooperatives and credit units. 

And to build on this experience, in 1987, CRS launched a $5 mil
lion Small Enterprise Development Program with the support of 
AID. The purpose of the program is to develop alternative financial 
enterprise service institutions for the poor that they themselves 
can manage. This program is currently being tested in Thailand, 
Peru, Bolivia, Togo and Senegal. 

In welcoming the interest taken by Congress to support lending 
programs for the poor, I would like 0. make some general com
ments to underscore the significance of your initiatives. 

First, let us finally dispense with any prejudice that may still 
linger that the poor cannot handle finance and more significantly 
still that they don't nor cannot save. We have learned that credit 
can be given cost effectively to large numbers of the poorest in the 
world and given under appropriate methods, the commensurate 
savings are significant. 

Collection and savings in such schemes are best managed by the 
local benefitting community and communities can indeed and in 
oir view must eventually sustain financially such schemes so that 
many of the social costs and requirements of the community are 
supported through such schemes. 

Second, with adequate support for the strengthening of indige
nous institutions, such programs can reach very large numbers. We 
would submit millions. The value of each dollar invested is re
tained and grows for years to come. 

We look at this through a particular prism which is that of 
Catholic Relief, which for almost four decades now has been dis
tributing food and providing a nutritional and economic safety net 
to millions in need of assistance. 

We would now testify that it is also quite possible to bring credit 
and generate savings with lasting benefits to improve the lives of 
those same very poor populations. 

Third, more than 50 percent of the world working age population 
must live outside the formal sector. That is, they can expect no 
formal employment and must employ themselves. They range from 
indigent mothers, for example, who need a few dollars capital to 
buy tomatoes to sell on the street corner, to a carpenter who needs 
more working capital and technical assistance to expand his enter
prise and become an employer within the community. 

The vital lesson we believe should be drawn is that the needs of 
these millions of impoverished vary. There is no one single method 
of bringing assistance to them, and we would caution against any 
tendency to impose dogmatically any single methodology of credit 
and finance for the poor. 

In our testimony, however, we would like to focus particularly on 
the issue of what is now referred to as poverty lending. 

We do microenterprise programs. We believe that they are vital
ly important and must be supported and your legislation, the draft 
legislation, has clearly identified that as a major target. 

The fact that we are able to discuss lending and savings pro
grams for the poor with relative sophistication and some confi
dence is in very large part thanks to the resources and support pro. 
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vided by USA.I.D. to small business and microenterprise programs
during the last 15 years.

A.I.D.'s matching grant program to build PVO capacity to imple
ment microenterprise programs has been particularly successful in 
our experience. It has helped to build the institutional capacity to 
program the type of funding intended by this legislation in greater
quantities and with greater effect. 

We would now look to A.I.D. to join us to continue sharpening its
focus on reaching the very poorest, and by that I mean the desti
tute, by encouraging its field missions to support more of these pro
grams.

We would also emphasize that A.I.D. spending on microenter
prise should occur to the greatest possible extent in the field where
the true learning occurs and experience is gained.

Any temptation to fund policy research within the United States
rather than in the field under this legislation should be curbed. 

In short, progress made by A.I.D. in its enterprise programs must 
now expand to reach the poorest rungs of societies in the third 
world. 

In our own programs, Catholic Relief Services has learned that
not only can we reach micro entrepreneurs with a small base of 
assets but we can also reach the destitute who have no assets.
These are the people who are the traditional recipients of food,
health care and other social welfare programs that CRS has run 
over many years.

In the last several years, CRS credit programs have reached 
thousands of participants in our food programs in the Philippines,
India and Indonesia. We see this essential complementarity be
tween sustaining nutritional status of very vulnerable groups on
the one hand and enhancing their economic asset base on the other 
as a potentially exciting breakthrough in providing assistance for
long term self-reliance to very large numbers of very, very poor
people.

The participants in our programs are usually women who have
few or no assets. Their needs and indeed some of their objectives
differ significantly from a blacksmith, a carpenter, a mechanic or 
any other micro entrepreneur who CRS serves through its microen
terprise programs.

Thus CRS makes a very important distinction between its mi
croenterprise programs, which we would emphasize again, have
brought vital merit, and those which serve the destitute. Those are 
programs which have been referred to as poverty lending.

Hence, we believe that the effort made in the draft bill to struc
ture the targeting of participants in such programs into two levels,
microenterprise and poverty lending, will encourage all practition
ers in this field of trying to reach the poor to develop a capacity
also to reach the destitute. 

We would suggest that the sections of the draft bill addressing
the poorest target group can be strengthened. The poverty lending
methodology has certain characteristics which we use as criteria in 
our own programming and which might be useful to your own leg
islation. 

Poverty lending programs target the poorest with limited or no
fixed assets. These people have no collateral. The programs use 

46-816 0 - 91 - 2
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series of very, short-term and productive loans. They have a loan 
ceiling to guarantee that the participants are among the poorest.

Poverty lending emphasizes savings mobilization and eventual 
cost recovery in order to reach large numbers of poor people on a 
financially sustainable basis. 

The programs work through group mechanisms which promote
community solidarity.

They are designed, finally, with social as well as economic goals
in mind. Communities come together to find solutions to their own 
problems in health, education and infrastructure. 

We feel that a loan ceiling of $300 as recommended in the draft 
does not place any constraint on poverty lending schemes or indeed 
on any general credit programs. Loan ceilings are already used in 
all our lending programs to ensure that only the destitute are 
being served. Since these programs require a high level of commu
nity participation as a substitute for collateral, only those poor
enough to be attracted by a very small loan will be willing to find 
the time and the commitment to participate.

In Senegal very recently, where CRS opened a village banking
project, we found an enthusiastic response from villagers to the op
portunity of obtaining a mere $40 loan. This is just one example.

There has been much discussion about developing a loan cap
under this legislation, which addresses the differences in various 
economies and it was alluded to again this morning by the adminis
tration. 

We have found that income levels among the very poor do not in 
fact fluctuate so widely around the world, be it in Latin America,
Asia or Africa. The average monthly wage of an agricultural labor
er would range between about $25 to $75. A $300 loan would repre
sent over six months of wages in many countries. 

In the absence of a loan cap, one could index the ceiling to six 
months of average wage of agricultural labor in the appropriate 
country. However, I hope that in the discussion afterwards we can 
come back to this issue and I would like to elaborate on some of 
our own views on it. 

Women should also be considered preferred participants of such 
poverty lending schemes. Our experience shows us that women are 
among the most destitute and they have always spent their income 
on the welfare of their children. Their repayment record is, quite
frankly, much better than that of men. In many of instances, this 
has led CRS to create exclusively women's groups to participate in 
these programs.

The inequalities in gender that are still pervasive in so many 
parts of the world still result in men monopolizing the benefits of 
programs when they participate with women. 

We are also pleased that the draft legislation recognizes the need 
to strengthen the institutional capacity to do poverty lending.
There are a myriad of initiatives throughout the Third World 
which await modest amounts of seed capital and a little training in 
financial management to achieve a lasting impact on very large
numbers of people.

Given the demonstrated potential of poverty lending and mi
croenterprise programs to reach so many who are poor and in need 
and self-employed in the Third World, there could be no more 
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useful investment than in strengthening the capabilities of theseinstitutions to absorb and manage what amounts to an alternative
financial system for the majority of the world's very poor.

I would like to conclude our testimony by stressing the significance of the initiatives that you have chosen to support.
If the hundreds of millions of poor targeted by the intent of thislegislation are not incorporated into the economic life of their soci

eties by being granted access to affordable credit and finance, economic development will only benefit the favored few.
Third World governments, most of which are deeply in debt, willbe left with a financial and political bill for the neglect of the majority of their population. And donor societies like our own willfind themselves financing more and more relief programs at the expense of the growth of economically healthy and socially equita

ble societies. 
That, Congressman concludes my testimony, and I thank you

very much. 
[The statement of Mr. Rondos follows:] 
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AmI RMDS, C&THOLIC RZEF SERVION 

Mr. Chairime mebers of the Commttee, X an very 

grateful for the invitation extended to Catholic Relief 

Services to oument on the proposed draft micro-enterprise 

legislation. 

Catholic Relief Services has a long history of
 

implementing credit programs targeted at the poor in the 

Third World. They range from grain credit schemes to village' 

banking networks to programs for small enterprise training
 

and credit.
 

To build on its experience vith credit, in 1987, CRS
 

launched a $5 million Small Enterprise Development program
 

with the support of USAID. The purpose of the program is to
 

develop alternative financial and enterprise service
 

institutions for the poor that they themselves can manage.
 

The program, curroently being tested in Thailand, Peru,
 

BolAvia, Togo and Senegal, employs a variety of
 

methodologies.
 

In welcoming the interest taken by Congress. to support 

lending programs to the poor, I would like to make some 

general comments to underscore the significance of your 

initiatives:
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First, lit us finally dispense with any prejudice that 

the poor cannot handle finance. We have learned that credit 

can be given cost-effectively to large numbers of the 

poorest in the world; collection and savings, in such 

schemes, are best managed by the local, benefitting
 

community; and, communities can sustain such schemes when 

they develop organizationally and use some of the scheme's 

savings to finance other social costs such as teachers and
 
clinic. "
 

,Second, with adequate support for the strengthening of 

indigenous institutions, such programs can reach millions. 

The value of each dollar invested is retained and grows for 

years to come 

For many years, through our food programs, we at
 

Catholic Relief Services have helped provide a nutritional
 

and economic safety net to millions in need of assistance.
 

We.can now testify that it is also possible to bring credit
 

and finance to bear -- with lasting benefits -- to improve
 

the lives of the same poor populations. 

Third, more than fifty per cent of the Third World's 

working age population must live outside the formal sector:
 

•that is, they can expect no formal employment and-must 

employ themselves. They range from indigent.mothers, for
 

example, who need a few dollars' capital to buy.tomatoes to
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sell on a street corner, to a carpenter who needs more, 
working capital and teohnical assistance to expand his, 

enterprise and beoome an employer vithin the community. The 

vital lesson we believe should be drawn is that the needs of 

these millions of impoverished vary. There is no one single 

method of bringing assistance to them and ve would caution 

against any tendency to dogmatically impose any single 

methodology of credit and finance for the poor. 

with these observations in mind, I would now like to 

speak briefly to some of the questions you have raised when
 

inviting us to testify before your Committee.
 

The fact that we are able to discuss lending programs 

for the poor with relative sophistication and some 

confidence is in large part thanks to the resources and 

support provided by UBAID to small business and 

micro-enterprise programs during the last fifteen years. 

AiDs matching grant program to build PVO capacity to 

implement microenterprise programs has been particularly 

successful, in our experience. It has helped to build the 

institutional capacity to program the type of funding 

intended by thir legislation in greater quantities and'with• 

greater effect. 



We would now look to AID to continue sharpening its
 

focus on reaching the very poorest by encouraging its field 

missions to support more of theLve programs. We would also 

emphasize that AID spending on micro-enterprise should occur 

to the greatest extent possible in the field where the true' 

learning occurs and experience is gained. The tendency to 

fund policy research in the United States under this
 

legislation should be curbed, in favor of field programs
 

which directly benefit the poor.
 

In short, the progress made by AID in its enterprise
 

programs must now expand to reach the poorest rungs of
 

societies in the Third World.
 

In our own programs, Catholic Relief Services has
 

learned that not only can we reach micro-entrepreneurs with
 

a small base of assets , but we can also reach the destitute
 

who have no assets -- the people who are the traditional 

recipients of food, health care and other CRS social welfare 

programs. Over the last several years, CRS credit programs 

have reached thousands of participants in our food programs 

in the Philippines, India and Indonesia. We sea this 

essential complementarity between sustaining nutritional 

status of very vulnerable groups, on the one hand, and 

enhancing their economic asset base, on the other hand, as a 

potentially exciting breakthrough in providing assistance.
 

for self-reliance to lar numbers of very poor people.
 



34 

The participants in our programs are usually Women who 

have few or no assets. Their needs differ significantly from 

blacksmiths, carpenters, mechanics and other 

micro-entrepreneurs whom CRS serves through its 

micro-enterprise programs. CRS thus makes a very important 

distinction between its micro-enterprime programs, which we 

should emphasize, have vital merit, and those which serve 

the destitute - what we would refer to as poverty lending. 

Hence, we believe that the effort made in the draft 

bill to structure the targeting of participants into two 

levels - micro-enterprise and poverty lending - will 

encourage the practitioners of micro-enterprise programs to 

develop the capacity to reach the destitute through 

poverty-lending. 

We would suggest that the section of the draft bill
 

addressing the poorest target groups be strengthened. The
 

poverty lending methodology has certain characteristics
 

which we use as criteria in our own programming and which
 

might be useful to your legislation:
 

Poverty lending programs target the poorest with 

limited or no fixed assets. They have no collateral..They 

use a series of very, short term, productive loans. They have: 

a loan ceiling to guarantee that the participants are, among 

the poorest. Poverty lending emphasi.6s savings mobilization 

http:emphasi.6s
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and cost recovery in order to reach large numbers of poor 
people on a financially sustainable basis. The programs work 
through group mechanisms which promote community solidarity. 

They are designed with social an veil as economic goals in 
mind; communities cone together to find solutions to their 
own problems in health, education and infrastructure and use 
the proceeds of such programs to make improvements in these 

areas. 

We also feel that a loan ceiling of $300, as
 

recommended in the draft legislation, does not place any
 

constraint on poverty lending schemes. Loan ceilings are 
already used in all our lending programs to ensure that only 
the destitute are being served. since these programs 
require a high level of community participation as a
 
substitute for collateral, 
 only those poor enough to be 

attracted by a very small loan will be willing to find the
 
time and commitment to participate. In Senegal for example,
 

where CRS opened a village banking project a year ago, there
 

was an enthusiastic response from villagers to the
 

opportunity of obtaining a more $40 loan.
 

There has been much discussion about developing a loan 
cap under this legislation which addresses the differences 

in various economies. We have found that income levels among 
the very poor do not in fact fluctuate so widely among 

countries. in Latin America, Asia and Africa, the average
 



ronthly wage,-of agriculturai laboi ranige. between. $25 - $75. 

A $300 loan would represent-over six months of wages in many

countries. 

In the absence of a loan cap, one could index the 

ceiling to six months average wage of agricultural-labor :in 

the appropriate country. 

Women should also be considered preferred participants
 

of such poverty lending programs. Based on our experience, 

women are among the most destitute and they have always
 

spent income on the welfare of their children. Their
 

repayment record is better than that of men. In many
 

instances this has led CS to create exclusively women's' 

groups to participate in these programs. The inequalities
 

in gender that are still pervasive in so many parts of the 

world result in men monopolizing the benefits of programs
 

when they participate with women. 

We are also pleased that the draft legislation
 

recognizes the need to strengthen the institutional capacity 

to do poverty lending. There are a myriad of initiatives 

throughout the-Third World which await modest amounts of 

seed capital and a little training in financial management. 

Given the demonstrated potential of poverty lending and
 

micro-enterprise program* to reach vast numbers of the poor 
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and self-employed in the Third World, there could be no nore 

useful investaent than in strengthening the capabilities of 

these institutions to absorb and manage what amounts to an 

alternative financial system for tho majority of the world's 

poor.
 

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, we would like 

to conclude our. testimony by stressing the significance of 

the initiatives you have chosen to support. If the hundreds
 

of millions of poor targeted by the intent of this
 

legislation are not incorporated into the economic life of
 

their societies by being granted access to affordable credit
 

and finance, economic development will only benefit the
 

favored few. Third World Governments, most of which are
 

deeply in debt, will be left with the financial and
 

political bill for the neglect of.the majority of their.
 

population. And donor societies like our own will find
 

themselves financing more relief programs at the expense of 

the growth of economically healthy and socially equitable
 

societies.
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Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Rondos. 
Mr. Lassen. 

STATEMENT OF CHERYL A. LASSEN, LASSEN ASSOCIATES 
Ms. LASSEN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
I am not testifying on behalf of any particular institution today.

I come before you as a person who has worked 20 years in develop
ment assistance, has seen over a hundred of the micro and small 
enterprise projects in 28 different countries, is very familiar with a 
number of PVOs of how A.I.D. is supporting these agencies. And 
also this past summer, I actually did some research on this very
question: is microenterprise credit something distinct from poverty
lending? Should there be loan caps, et cetera. Which was very in
teresting and I would like to offer some of the results of that. 

In terms of what I feel the strengths of A.I.D. are, it's very, very
clear to me that in the 1980s, A.I.D. was absolutely a leader in rec
ognizing the importance of the informal sector and of encouraging
assistance to poor producers. And really we have learned a great
deal. We have come light years in our understanding of credit and 
saving services called financial intermediation to the poor.

In the 1980s, A.I.D. was willing to make a loan or to promote
making loans to the poor-let's say the poor tailor who had just a 
sewing machine and was working out of small corner of his or her 
house and that really was a breakthrough. Those loans did not re
quire collateral, et cetera. 

But the challenge of the 1990s is not just to continue making
loans to these poor producers with a sewing machine, but to make 
loans to the very poorest producers who don't even own a sewing
machine, who don't have any assets and that is really what we are 
concerned about when we talk about getting assistance to the very 
poorest of the poor.

Now, to me, we all have a major challenge. A.I.D. is not the only 
agency that has real difficulty getting assistance to the poor. The 
World Bank, other U.N. agencies, other European donors have the 
same challenges. So this is not something unusual. 

If you will look at the statistics about thi, we can say, well,
they're not very good but I think actually they're very telling.

Of the fiscal year 1989 A.I.D.-supported microenterprise projects
that they reported to Congress, only 13 percent of those projects 
were really focused predominantly on the poorest. Only 6 percent
of those projects were focused predominantly on women. 

Administrator Holtzman's remark that yes, we want to increase 
assistance, for example, her remark that 49,000 loans were made to 
the very poorest and we want to increase this by more than 10 per
cent-well, increasing 10 percent of almost nothing is still almost 
nothing. That's the dilemma we face. 

So what do we do about this? 
I feel that there are real leaders in AID. There are many people

I admire who are doing a really good job, a sincere job and they
demonstrate sincere commitment. And I frankly was very thrilled 
to hear Administrator Holtzman talk today.

But nonetheless, I still feel that there is an unwillingness within 
the agency to make distinctions between assistance to the poor and 
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to the destitute and to target significant resources to the agencies
and to the approaches that are assisting the latter.Sometimes I suspect-I have the impression that there's almost 
an attitude of triage. I once had an A.I.D. official tell me, "Well,what's the difference if we make a loan to somebody who has anannual income of $50 or $500? They're all poor."

Actually, there's a great deal of difference. In the 1990 World Development Annual Report by the World Bank, they showed thatthere wore over 400 million people below the poverty line. In manyof these countries, we are talking about 50 to 70 percent of the eco
nomically active people in the informal sector.

And it is not trivial semantics to be really making distinctions
about the poor, the moderately poor and the severely poor. And itreally is important that we have assistance that reaches the very
bottom. 

Therefore, even though I understand when A.I.D. administrators come and they ask for flexibility, it is a very varied world, I nonetheless really support these earmarks. I feel it's very important tomake distinctions between credit to the poor and credit to the verypoorest or the destitute. And that is why I urge that this legislation
make the distinction between those two. In fact, we have come torefer to credit to the very poorest as poverty lending. To me, it is
something very distinct from microenterprise credit.

It's not so distinct in terms of the methods used, but it is distinctin terms of the clientele served. One of the things I noticed from my research in looking at program after program after program isthat all these programs when they start making thousands of loansthey have a central tendency of who they loan to. And it's truethat some programs for microenterprise credit-yes, they may have5, 10 percent of very small poverty loans, very, very small assistance. But the central tendency is not the destitute. Is not the very
poorest.

And that's why I think it's important to separate the two andactually have earmarks so that we not only have programs thatassist the microenterprise sector, very important programs, but wealso start to really have significant programs developed and signifi
cant programs that target the destitute.

Now, in terms of the question of the loan cap, a small dollar loan cap to me makes a lot of sense when you are talking about creditto the destitute, to the very poorest, to poverty lending. It makes 
very good sense. 

It makes less sense when you are talking about credit to the poor, to the slightly higher strata within this huge informal sector.Why does it make less sense? Because microenterprise credit infact needs to be a little bit more than $300 and also different kindsof microenterprises-some are a little bit more capital-intensive.
What you might need for, let's say, retail trade is different thanwhat you might need if you were a welder. So that's why there hasto be greater flexibility when you're talking about microenterprise
credit. 

A small dollar loan ceiling doesn't guarantee-if we had such athing, it wouldn't guarantee that programs would necessarily make more loans. There are other factors affecting that. But if there 
were such a cap, what it would do, especially in the poverty lend
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ing area, is it would kind of lock in the assistance to the destitute. 
And it would prevent these programs from kind of being captured
and taken away, which happens very frequently. They get captured
and they start increasing the size of the lending and pretty soon 
they lose their focus on the very poorest.

And this is what I'm concerned with. There is already so little of 
the assistance there that I don't want to see that focus lost. And I 
feel a loan cap is very effective in doing that, in locking in that 
focus. 

When we talk about assistan.e to destitute women, I believe that 
really-poverty lending and assistance to destitute women, it's just
about you're talking about the same thing. And it's been my expe
rience, unfortunately, in many cultures today, women are not al
lowed to own productive assets. Young women, young girls are not 
allowed access to education. Oftentimes there are very unstable 
family situations which make women the predominant or often
times the sole support of children. These are very compelling rea
sons for having poverty lending and really making it a predomi
nant focus. 

And even if programs are not large, to these very disadvantaged 
groups just even making a few thousand loans can set a precedent
for more equitable institutions in these countries that's extremely
important.

In this respect, I agree very much with A.I.D. that the United 
States foreign assistance program can never hope to make enough
loans to help everyone. But what it can do, what it can do, is assist 
these countries to build more workable, more equitable, more 
democratic, more economically democratic institutions. 

That's another reason why you want to support poverty lending,
because it really helps with the tremendous problem of building
economic democracy.

The question of is it difficult to know-is it difficult to trace if a 
loan is under a certain size or above a certain size, I don't believe 
that's difficult at all. If you can trace whether a loan is made to a 
man or a woman, if you can trace whether it's for agriculture or 
for commerce or whatever, it's very easy to know if it's below a cer
tain size or above a certain size. That's not difficult at all. 

In terms of the draft legislation, as I say, I support the earmarks. 
I think it is necessary and I support the sub-earmark. I am not sat
isfied at all, in fact, I'm really uneasy with the idea that we're 
going to increase 10 percent of almost nothing. That's why I feel we 
have to have these earmarks. That's why I feel that there has to 
be-there has to be something more than informal consultation 
about the size and the dimensions of the goals we're pursuing in 
this area. 

At the same time, an earmark for what? We have a real problem
in terms of microenterprise and poverty lending because the agen
cies that know how to provide these services, that know financial 
intermediation and development banking, often do not have a pro
pensity to work with the poor, the very poor especially, or they
don't have the methods to go where those people are and in a very
cost effective way organize them for services. So that's their diffi
culty. 
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In terms of PVOs, those who have a great commitment to work
ing with the poor don't have the methods oftentimes for financial
intermediation. There's a lot of modernization that needs to take 
place.

A compromise that I have thought of perhaps would be we would
keep the focus on microenterprise credit and poverty lending but
for agencies that need technical assistance, training, whatever to 
set up these programs, we would allow that to be counted in as the 
allotment. 

You have to distinguish between assistance that is credit focused,
direct assistance that is credit-focused, and assistance that is fo
cused very little on credit or focused on other things.

That's really where the problem lies a lot. That's where we haveto weed out is that there's a lot of assistance out there that is ill
focused, not cost effective. So I'm not uneasy when you talk
about-when the legislation talks about credit-focused assistance. I
definitely feel that this is a lot where reaching large numbers has 
to move. 

In closing, I would say that the legislation has recognized two
major inequities: the inequity of getting assistance to the very poor
est and the inequity of distribution of assistance by gender. But
those are not the only inequities. There are some other major in
equities that in the 1990s we have to address. 

What are they? Well, one inequity is the availability of financial
services for people who live outside of large urban areas. Another
inequity is the distribution of microenterprise and poverty lending
programs across geographic regions, particularly the scarcity of 
them in Africa. 

Another inequity is the distribution of technical knowledge about
sustainable approaches to poverty alleviation. There are too few
agencies who want and need to work with the very destitute who 
know how to provide cost effective financial services.

Really, we are not just talking about agencies who do only mi
croenterprise or poverty lending. We're talking about agencies who
work in mother-child health, nutrition, youth employment, food,
drug eradication-all of these agencies need poverty alleviation.
It's an essential vehicle for them to produce these other kinds of 
benefits. 

And they can actually multiply greatly the number of people we
reach. So we shouldn't just be looking at this as though this were
the preserve of, let's say, the Private Enterprise Bureau or those 
concerned only with business. It is not. 

Finally, to me it's still frustrating because despite what Adminis
trator Holtzman says, and the fact that yes, A.I.D. is moving, A.I.D.
has a lot of initiatives, I still know of situations with local NGOs, 
even with American PVOs who have very promising approaches,
very promising methodologies for poverty lending, and it frustrates 
me to see them struggle to establish and spread their work with 
little or no assistance from A.I.D. 

So I still feel there's a lot to be done. I'm encouraged by the 
statement of leadership and the fact that there are objectives, but I
think we need to actually set our sights a lot higher. And even 
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though I recognize that there is a need for flexibility, I feel that it's 
very important to have legislation that sets those sights, that sets 
those earmarks because to me, it's a doul le remforcement-f 
the direction in which we need to go. 

[The statement of Ms. Lassen follows:] 
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reonal Baocground 

Chairman and members of the Committee, tha .
 
e to testify on yropoaed micro-enterprise 'ai.. o 

:
 

Startinq In 1970, I have spent 20 years in soonomo nt .orking with more than 100 programs or small, and miOr1d e1i&' eassistance in 28 countries. I have a PhD in'Zhrn t in,and Program Analysis. Last summer I wrote 
a .esarch rexamining whether-
 "poverty lending" was the ea as E oenterprise credit,O or whether it was a 
significant now
methodology. I testify today as
not a representative of one
particular foreign aailetance inatitution, but as someone familiar
with the comparative needs of many types of development agencies

and poor producers in developing countries.
 

1. Critique of A.I.D.'s Xicroenterries Program 

In terms or strengths, AID was a leader in the 1980s in recognizingthe importance of the informal sector and putting its resources and
learning behind the development of microonterprise credit progrms.
a result, hundreds of thousands of poor producers.bejnefitted wh9
therwise would have been excluded from' acciii to 'bredit aqd
savings aervioest,, The coverage. of these microen rprise programsi3 not what it"needs"to be for the size o 'tith"p~ldblemsunempioyment and poverty in Third World econoles,--but realadvances have Peon made in defIning methods to : buildmicroenterprise program. of scope and solf-finanaiig capbility. 
D was Wils! ng ponso a0ns the ..190._ -.po era :

like an unlfce,ih ailor o ownd;s.ew ng Macih'
of a corner.. qsCT9. hp .ma! 07
go a step futhI.i im6crod i 1lale tKtho'
 
producer who does not even own a sewing machine or
 

AID, along with most major bilateral and multilateral donors, hashad difficulty reaching the truly destitute with credit assistance.Of 170 AID-sponsored mioroentorprise projects reported to CongressIn FY 1989, only 13% 
were identified as focusing predominantly onthe poorest. only 6% of FY 1989 AID-sponsored microenterpries
projects targetted predominintly women beneficiaries.,,
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oe hAasben an I&nnpsqgw 
poor and the destitute l& d ttm..,rge. r
 

qencies and .aproacnes pnitlnt.the tlt
 

ilcroonterprile credit program target a , u 

roducers in the Third t#orld below the pove~t 1 ?4' hal.Oof who 
ro severely poor. It is not'trivial sm jJbt distingui!h
trat of th oo ," "the modrately .6: ,'_ e .,,veri 

r," and to be especially concerned that asU11anch 'reaches hdi&. 

amicroonterprise credit" and "poverty lending" . to camee 
ecuros specifically for each. Both of thes.types O sstsfan [' 
ave similar methods that rotate large voluneiot credit on a cost 

recovery basis. Hoever, the central tendenoj of'ioronterpmis. 
credit programs is to reach a clientele of producers who are the 
pper strata of poor, while that of poverty lending focuses 

predominantly on the lowest: half of the informal sector poor. 

at is neded las the iii of top AID managers to spearhead the 
emergence ot effective new programs of economic development 
assisatnce for the severely poor with potential to reach large 
numbers. Where there is the will, ays iii be found to take 
risks, aae it easier and faster for promising new agencies to deal 
ith AID, and sver or retool loss equitable, ill-focused, or costr 

oeective program. 

2. can sn dollar lending progra (lees ten, $3po)p~ _. 
sinfcn coetrih.ti to . ovrt aio. , ?' :, ,B 

Small dollar lending polioies such as a $300 loan cap i ae m
for poverty lending rograns simed at assatleak producers 'dit 
extremely lunited money management experenc6 7They .make le 
sense (or, ,rauI. her cap)efor nic oetp.9 2' ram,e,at 

reached. Experince shows that the eize o_li 'p 

on the efficiency of its methods and its wllixi nods'to in e u 
scale. What tlii preence of a sall dollar loan cap can do is 
tarqet assistance on a more d estitute strata or gender of producers 

c ,dit. It is an, ort a JL ... nm nate 'aspeot o ,,n ' 

GEST AVA/LABLE COPY
 

http:coetrih.ti
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t women arMIo dr
reductive assets 'Such as lend, 1arnWl&reduotion., T0Qt Jn znyyIsges st.
rmitted tQ 9 to school and a n uften thore' aro..Rstable fa]4illhituat ins-o1 pon to be a princip -at ties, o 6,hildron. Bven credit programs that reach.seveor 
 thous
ve a significant impact aon country's developuant.) ,yeose with severe disadvantage: to increased income eno break through the cultural barriers arrayed against
ve the way for more equitable institutions to eisO
ountries. 'A.
 

n an individual level, sustainable development d .
 -ot "epi on
the size of a loan received by a producer. It depends an b or
her 2 Di ning acces to means or production such a.a d ?Iu Sthe support of group organization in cases where cult4.,1e 
 ers
must be overcome that pose great difficulties to ind'ivdual 
In the absence of a specific loan cap but where there-Is concern 
with focus on the poorest, I recommend that abetweon dietinotion ba,madewicronterprise 
 credit/asistnom 
 and hp;ertylending/assistance, with amounts earmarked for each. USAIDmissions and contractors 
to AID should report on the equity
dimensions of their program, and who Is benefitting in relation to
these strata of poor.-
In the PY 1989 reporting to Congress on AID-.ponsoredmicroenterprise projects, I was disturbed to see that 460 p*ojectdid not have reporting on equity. Funding preference sh6uld begiven to programs that produce direct rather than indirect benefits(eq., research, policy reform, costly administrative arrangeaents).Programs should be designed and monitored by AID in order to have
a clear and effective focus on equity,. Squit 
, rt.houl# bedone routiely., o.
 
3. Coments on the draft mioroenterprise loginl t On " 

distinguishesI welcome the sub-earmark contained inb ~e nopentarpris"celthis"~1qialation^ oei Which 

ery poores I:,,..,
 

lfith' a4 emark of or' dollar loan cap of $300 or less is aP ropr
of asolstance h t,
to dostituta vomen%_(qy'

resources)." Within the microentorprine cre eaar,n
on individual loans should be higher (eq. $2000).aicroanterprises, are .... '.ale
usually more capital intensive tan, Omle
microenterprise, and 
it is likely 
that a loer prcenEae of
aicroenterprise credit will go to poor women producers (eq., 
one
third of the resources).
 
Further building of Institutions opablo. . l .i.cost-.
 

BET3L COcost-

BEST AVAILABLE COPY'
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ettioient,"sustai ble Ison poo.r
One is th t:*i eT it~h 

for two reasons. 

systems in development bank f p Is. 

.. Ith severely poor as w13l.'I 
The other .i that those Vri p$ sop)y 
isadvantaged often rince 4lio)! "din 

- 0deliver substantial volumes of credit 

cost-recovery basis. , 
an

Because institution-buildingVd key to mi 
poverty lending, the legislation should allow 4 ioan 
und capitalization, and training, technicb L 

operating subsidies necessary to start these programto 

1s part of the "credit assistance" category"(as distin r ro 
an vocational ' in'onon-credit direct assistance such 

indirect types of asaistance)-. '",. 

rhis legislation has recognized the great inequitien in access to 
icroenterprise assistance among different strata of the poor and 

tween genders. But there are additional forms of inequitythat 

ID should make every effort to address. Ono is an inequity of 

people who live outside of large-urbaninancial services for 
enters, especially rural people. Another is an inequity in the 

istribution of microenterprise and poverty lending programs across 

agraphic regions, particularly the scarcity of them in Africa 
ich has a higher proportion of economically active producers in
 
e informal sector than any other area of the world. Anothor 

nequity is the maldistribution of technical knowledge about 
ustainable approaches for poverty alleviation. There are too few
 

gencies who vant and need to work with the destitute who know how 
o provide cost-effective financial services. AID should welcome 
nd encourage agencies .,orking in tangential areas of poverty 
lleviation such as child survival, women-in-development, youth 
mployment, family planning, and drug erradiO.tion to become 
roficient in approaches like poverty lendin that are a low cost 

' 
ehicles for other types of dovelopment,,-Ppally, At',.."is 
rustrating to know of promising methodologies for working wijh the 
ary poorest by indigenous agencies and American private ountary 
rganizations such as ?IHCA (Foundation for International Community 
ssistance), and to see then Ptruggle to establish a read their 

AIDtheib
orkeith alst no assistane eaih 

he top management of AID toq vlmmed 
edressing these inequities 



47 

,v
 

ONT RES
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Predomnmnt!1 1 'V 
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Poorest 
13 L. 

focus . 

NoPaportlngon cqusti No no o ofLifetlme$390 MillionV.1w 

Note": ins 1990 report to The US Congrms AID roported 170 projou InItI FYI 989portfolio which Prmvddd essistanco to mfcroontrprtw. AID Hltons estimtd thitin 21 project, the porat of The poor wars 70- 100X oftho borallpfarles. In29projects, the poorest conhtftuted 20X-69X of The bmnficlarts. In44 procts, thpoorest ware ms than 2OX of the benfcfrles. I.ict m.crent.rpru eince
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Table 1l.2
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Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you, Dr. Lassen. 
Mr. Burrus. 

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM W. BURRUS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, 
ACCION INTERNATIONAL 

Mr. BuRRus. Thank you, Congressman. I appreciate this opportu
nity to testify at this hearing. By way of background, I would like 
to say that I am representing ACCION International today and no 
other views. ACCION International is a U.S.-based private volun

its 30th year ofteer organization which this year is celebrating 
service in support of the economic initiatives of the poor through
out the Americas. ACCION has developed a network of some 50 
local organizations in 13 countries, all of which provide loans and 
other services to low income people. 

During the past five years, that is the period 1986 to 1990, these 
affiliates collectively loaned out about $100 million to over 100,000 
of the self-employed poor. The average loan size during this period 
was slightly under $300 and more than 50 percent of the borrowers 
have been women. 

a common philosophy of lendingI should point out that while 
exists throughout the network of organizations, each affiliate of 
ACCION International is independent and, therefore, the diversity 
of experience within the ACCION affiliation is really quite remark
able. We have experience in lending, for example, to the poorest of 

a market orself-employed women in Guatemala, for example, 
street vendor who might need $50 to buy fruits and vegetables. We 
have experience in the Dominican Republic lending to a shoemaker 
who might have three or four employees and who needs, say, $1500 
to buy additional tools. So the diversity that we bring, I think, is 
interesting. We also have become known in part for our use of the 
solidarity group lending technique which brings together 4 to 6 bor
rowers usually to cross-guarantee each others' loans. 

We have been asked first to talk about, the strengths and weak
and possible areas of improvement in the microenterprisenesses 

program of A.I.D. It is my view that the most notable strengths of 
the A.I.D. program are the following. 

First, I think A.I.D. truly does have a diversity in its portfolio of 
projects. 

I think if there is one lesson that ACCION, itself, has learned 
over the years it is that the microenterprise sector is extremely di
verse and dynamic and the programs to assist that sector must be 
demand driven to reflect this diversity. A.I.D. I think has most ap
propriately taken the position that it should support a broad range 
of efforts designed to assist the self-employed poor. This would in
clude all different types of businesses as well as different sizes of 

in a streetbusinesses, from the single person who prepares food 
kiosk to an auto repair shop, for example. 

Secondly, I believe that A.I.D. rightly puts emphasis on the insti
tutional support of those entities that are delivering credit and as
sistance to the poor. It recognizes that these institutions are the 
cornerstone of any successful strategy for assisting the self-em
ployed poor. 
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Third, and related to that, the A.I.D. program I think also emphasizes the creation of sustainability and self-sustaining financialinstitutions. It recognizes that over the long term the poor in developing countries are best served by the ck eation of self-sustaining financial intermediaries. In other words that they will operate insuch a way that as a minimum they will cover the cost of doingbusiness and hopefully even more and, therefore, be able to expandwhat they are doing.Fourth, is a question of decentralization.

tified before I know others have testhis subcommittee that the decentralized nature ofA.I.D. is a weakness, but in my view, I see it as a strength insofaras it allows for program financing decisions to be made at the mission level where the action is and where one can more effectivelytake into account the specific realities of each country.I would quickly add, however, that decentralization only works ifthroughout the agency there are clear guidelines and a coherentprogram of microenterprise development shared by the key peoplein the agency.Fifth, and Dr. Lassen
had an 

talked about this, A.I.D. has traditionallyactive component of applied research which I think hasbeen very, very important. I can honestly say that ACCION, itself,in the early 1980s radically altered its methodology as a result ofour participation in one of the early efforts in the research, the socalled Pisces Program. So I think that is an important part of whatA.I.D. has to offer to the development community.Finally, as a strength, I would identify that A.I.D. supports innovations in the microenterprise field. Believe it or not, A.I.D.'s turnaround time on projects is relatively short as compared to theWorld Bank and the Inter-American Development Bank and otherentities. A.I.D.'s flexibility gives it a comparative advantage in supporting new initiatives which often are experimental, which oftenrepresent the state-of-the-art and which are often run by grassrootsorganizations and PVOs. This flexibility also enables A.I.D. to dealdirectly with these entities rather than simply through bilateralarrangements, government to government, which very often slowsdown the process, if not stops it.
Now in terms of the weaknesses of the A.I.D. program, I would
identify the following: The first is that I think the A.I.D. program
lacks a clear mandate to support microenterprise development. My
view from an outside perspective is that there is not a clear mandate from the Administrator and from the assistant administrators
that A.I.D. is serious about continuing and expanding its work in
microenterprise development. I do not believe that that mandate
has been clearly communicated.
Secondly, I thiiik still there is lack of a clear well defined microenterprise program within A.I.D. I think in the past few years,A.I.D. has found itself in a defensive or reactive posture, oftentimes. In part, this is because it has not developed and articulateda well defined action plan. And we heard testimony this morningthat that is in process and I am a member of the Advisory Councilof A.I.D. on microenterprise development and I have been assistingin the development of that plan. I can testify today that that plandoes not yet exist and I think it is absolutely critical that the plan 
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is developed and is shared throughout the agency and has the full 
support of the Administrator. 

Finally, and I will not go into it at all except to say that, clearly, 
today still there is a lack of a monitoring and reporting system, a 
simple system which is absolutely essential to learn more about 
what A.I.D. is and is not really doing in this field. 

Now in terms of improvements related to A.I.D., they fall out of 
the weaknesses. And the first is that I believe that the action plan 
is absolutely essential. A.I.D. needs to develop and implement its 
action plan. And I think that would be a great improvement. 

aSecondly, the Administrator needs to issue in my view clear 
other personnel that mistatement to the mission directors and 

croenterprise development is and will continue to be a high priori
ty to the agency. 

Third, as an improvement, I would suggest and it has been men
tioned time and time again, the agency needs to hold at least one 
regional workshop in Asia, Africa and Latin America per year to 
increase-why do we keep talking about these workshops? It is be
cause there is no question that the mission personnel, the mission 
directors need to increase their skill levels and their knowledge 
about the state-of-the-art in microenterprise. They need to under
stand it better and, therefore, hopefully become more committed to 
it. 

I think the Agency needs to take advantage of other opportuni
ties as well, training programs that they run constantly for person
nel, to continually upgrade the knowledge and skills of the A.I.D. 
personnel, particularly those who are in the field who are making 
most of the decisions related to where A.I.D. dollars are going. 

And again, finally, it would be nice if A.I.D. developed a simple 
low-cost monitoring system. 

We have also been asked to testify on the role that small dollar 
lending, that is $300 or less, can have on the alleviation of poverty. 
I can say quite strongly that it is the collective experience of the 
network of ACCION's affiliates in Latin America that very small 
loans, including those well under $300 can make a significant con
tribution to the alleviation of poverty. 

It is clear that a very small loan-50, $75-can result in the in
crease of a borrower's income even if that increase is from a daily 
net income of 3 or $4 to 5 or $6. That is an important increase in 
that person's income level. I won't go into how those increases 
often come about, but the evaluations that have been done on our 
programs, at least, pretty much point to the fact that you can 
expect increases in income through this type of lending. 

Now if implemented on a large scale in any given country, I be
lieve such loans can have a significant impact on that country's de
velopment. We know that the informal sector is extremely large. It 
often includes the majority of the population in many countries 
around the world. And if done on a large scale, this type of lending, 
small scale lending can have a critical impact at the macro level in 
these countries. 

Now, is this sustainable development? That is one of the ques
tions we were asked to address. 

I believe sustainable development with this type of lending will 
occur primarily to the extent that, in the process viable financial 
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institutions are created that over time can dramatically expandtheir work and over the next 5, 10, 15, 20 years can continue toreach more and more borrowers. That, I think, is how it becomes
sustainable. 

Now, with this testimony, however, I am not recommending thatA.I.D. should target all of its microenterprise lending under $300. Ithink the strength of A.I.D.'s program is the diversity it displaysand my view is that it should be doing lending all along what Ichoose to call the microenterprise continuum, with very, very smallloans up to somewhat larger loans.My own view is that the $300 loan cap, the subject of so muchdebate and discussion, can be useful as a measure but I personallyfeel that it is too restrictive and too indirect to determine if theprograms are actually reaching the poorest of the economicallyactive. I think it can be useful as a guide but in the absence of the$300 loan cap, I would recommend that the subcommittee followthe recommendations that were made by the Advisory Committeeto A.I.D. on Microenterprise which establishes relevant criteria tojudge the eligibility of program borrowers considering a variety ofmeasures, including the amount of collateral, the degree to whichsomeone is self-employed or the degree that they have one or twoemployees working for them, the amount of assets that they mayhave, the extent to which they are landless-rural laborers, for example, and certainly the degree to which programs are reaching
women.

Now I would like to make some specific comments regarding thedraft bill supporting A.I.D. and authorizing microenterprise programs within AID. I should say that I strongly support the generalthrust of this draft bill. I would make the following specific obser
vations.

I think first, it recognizes the importance of credit in assistingthe self-employed poor. I think that credit is terribly important.But it also notes that other activities such as training, policyreform, and technical assistance are necessary and appropriate andshould be included.
The bill emphasizes the critical role of institutional development.And I absolutely think that is critical. Along the same line, the billrightly focuses on the financial intermediaries through whichA.I.D. works, and actually establishes various appropriate criteriafor determining the eligibility for assistance.And I would just say that some of those criteria specificallypoints 6 and 7 need further clqrification. I know that you are working on that, and I will not go into any of the details.I also think that there is a clear emphasis placed on women inthe legislation, and I applaud that completely. I also agree that amonitoring system needs to be set up. That is addressed in the leg

islation.
And finally, related to the legislation, I would say that I believethat a specific amount for each fiscal year should be used for directcredit activities. The bill actually talks about combining credit andinstitutional development. I personally feel that credit is so important, while not to belittle institutional development, because I alsobelieve that is important, but credit should be singled out, and we 
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should be able to see specifically how much money is going to 
credit, and at what levels. I think that is terribly important. 

I would like to conclude my remarks by stating that some indi
viduals have wanted to divide this development field, microenter
prise development, into two camps; those who are doing so-called
"poverty lending," and those who are doing so-called "microenter
prise lending." I have to tell you that I personally find this division 
to be artificial, misleading, and wholly detrimental to the dialogue. 

It seems to me that a great amount of energy and resources over 
the past several years has been spent on splitting hairs on this 
issue, with the $300 loan cap presented as some magical dividing 
point between the two. 

But I would submit to you that those of us and I think that it 
includes everybody in this room, those of us who believe in mi
croenterprise development as a truly effective development strate
gy for reaching the poor, should be joining forces and not arguing 
over loan limit size as some litmus test for determining who is 
working with the poor and who is not working with the poor. I 
think that we are hair splitting. 

I believe that the poor majority in the developing world will be 
better served through our collective will to greatly increase the 
overall amount of money available. 

Based on the successful experience which A.I.D. has had in this 
field I would encourage and challenge A.I.D. to commit a level of 
resources which is well above the suggested amount in this draft 
bill. It can be done. 

And if A.I.D. is serious about this, hopefully we might be sitting 
here two y-ars from now feeling that there is no need for any other 
earmarks or for specific legislation, because in fact A.I.D. is com
mitting an amount of money that you think is appropriate. 

From my point of view, the know-how for effectively lending to 
the self-employed poor has been clearly demonstrated in many set
tings around the world. And you have heard from a number of 
people who have been involved in it. 

The true challenge from my point of view that we all face in the 
1990s is how to scale up our efforts to reach truly significant num
bers of those men, women, and childrea who are living in dire pov
erty in the developing world. 

Thank you very much. 
[The statement of Mr. Burrus follows:] 
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ACCION INTERNATIONAL
 
Mr. Chairman, as 
the Executive Director of ACCION International,
I would like to express my appreciation for the opportunity to
testify at this hearing on the Agency for International
Development's Microenterprise Development Program.
 
ACCION International is 
a US-based Private Voluntary Organization
which this year celebrates its 30th year of service In support of
the economic initiatives of the poor throughout the Americas.
ACCION has developed a network of over 50 local affiliate
organizations in 13 countries. 
As private non-profit entities,
these affiliates serve as financial intermediaries, providing
credit and other services to the self-employed poor. 
During the
past five years, these organizations have loaned out $100 m llior
to over 100,000 of the self-employed poor.
during this period has been just under $300.

Average loan size
 
More than 50% of
ACCION'. borrowers are women.
 

I should point out that while a common philosophy as well an
general principles and methodologies of lending are strongly
shared by ACCION's affiliates, each is independent. 
 Therefore a
rich diversity of experience in microenterprive lending exists
within the network. 
We have experience in lending
poorest of to the very
self-employed women, such as in Guatemala, where our
affiliate, Genesis Fmpresarial, lends the equivalent of $SO to a
female street vendor of fruits and vegetables; or 
in the
Dominican Republic, where our affiliate, ADEMI, provides a $1500
loan to a shoemaker with two employees who needs capital for
purchasing leather, small tools and other materials. 
While some
ACCION affiliates make individual loans, we have come to be best
known for pioneering the solidarity group lending technique In
Latin America in which 4-6 borrowers form a group to cross
guarantee each others' loans.
 

tne . d.d, Howevr.Subcommittee I am awar th .has on previous occasions received the tetimony of
other witnesses znd by 
this point Is well informed 
 t the
broader issues implicit in this discussion. 
I should also add that ACCION is a member of SEEP (SmallEnterprise Education and Promotion Network) and is
a participant

In GEMINI, an AID financed technical assistance, training and
 
research effort for organizations' at al~lmicroenterpris, levels working Indevelopment around the world. Finally, I am a 
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member of the Advisory Committee on Microenterprise Development
 
appointed by the AID Administrator at the suggestion of Congress.
 
My remarks today, however, only reflect the views of ACCION
 
International and may or may not coincide with those of the
 
members of the Advisory Committee or SEEP.
 

AIDIS MICROENTERPRISE PROGRAM: STRENGTHS, WEAKNESSES AND
 
IMPROVEMENTS
 

The first question raised by the Subcommittee for consideration
 
in the testimony relates to the strengths, weaknesses and areas
 
for improvement in the mioroenterprise program of AID.
 

STRENGTHS
 

It is my view that the most notable strengths of the AID program
 
are.
 

1. Diversity in its portfolio of projects
 

If there is one lesson learned by ACCION over its many years of
 

experience, it is that the microenterprise sector is extremely
 
diverse and dynamic and that programs to assist the sector must
 
be demand driven to reflect this diversity. AID has most
 
appropriately, I think, taken the position that it should support
 
a broad range of efforts designed to assist the self-employed
 
poor. This range includes programs which assist all types of
 
businesses, including those of petty trading, services such as
 
bicycle repair, and those involved in production, such as a wood
 
furniture maker. 
It also includes different sizes of businesses,
 
from the single person who prepares food in a street kiosk up to
 

an auto repair shop where as many as ten individuals may be
 
employed. What ties all these diverse businesses together and
 
makes them eligible for AID assistance is that they are owned and
 
run by low-income individuals who do not have access to formal
 
bank credit or other services. They are microanterprises of the
 
informal sector.
 

deliver credit and other services is a cornerstone of a
 

eiceasful strategy for asssting the self-employed poor.
 
Upgrading of personnel skills, developing better management 
infornation systems and improving management capabilities are 
examples of the kind of institutional support that AID provides. 

3. Em;;,asis on the creation of sustaipabiiity and self-sustaining
 
financial intermediaries
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Much to its credit, AID has recognized that over the long term
the poor in developing countries will best be served through thecreation of self-sustaining financial Intermediaries. indelivering credit, mobilizing savings and providing other
services, these intermediaries must be managed so as 
to at least
reach the financial breakeven point. 
Providing credit to the
poor can only be done on a massive scale if the institutions
charged with doing so 
follow appropriate lending principles,
including charging a positive rate of interest. 
AID's policy
papers on financial markets development and on microenterprise
development are clear in their intent to promote and assist those
institutions which can become self-sustaining.
 

4. Decentralization of programming decisions
 

While some others have testified before this Subcommittee that
the decentralized nature of AID is a weakness, I see it as a
strength in so far as it allows for program financing decisions
to be made at the Mission level. 
 Being close to the action and
the realities of each country enable the Missions to respond
effectively to real needs. 
 I would quickly add, however, that
decentralization only works if there are clear guidelines and a
coherent program of microenterprise development which are shared
by the entire Agency.
 

5. Active component of applied research
 
During the 1980s AID established its leadership role among
international donors by supporting pioneering, practical research
in the microenterprise field. 
 Here I am referring to the PISCES,
ARIES and the current GEMINI projects which have and will
continue to shaed light on what works and what doesn't, and
sharing the lessons learned with the broad development community.
ACCION itself has greatly benefitted from this research. 
I can
honestly say that- the design of our microenterprise programs was
radically altered in the early 1980s as a result of the PISCES
research. 
For examkle, the use of eolidarity groups as a means
of cross-guaranteeing loans made to the self-employed poor became
an integral part of the ACCION methodology as a direct result of
learning about the effectiveness of this technique from the
PISCES research project.
 

? ipp' is; 'ona- -t In *!hT 7.! . r 

deli-ti'e .t * AID$s *urnorourn'aiirelatively m. "~i issho.t and streamlined compared to those of themultilateral lenders such as the InterAmerican Development Bank
and the World Bank. 
 This flexibility gives it a comiparatLveadvantage in supporting new initiatives whichwith often .e(perImentinnovations and advance the state of the art in the field.Many such innovations come from grassroots organizations, USprivate voluntary organizations and others which AID can sup rt
directly without necessarily channeling its resources throughthe

host country governments. 
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WZAKEBUES 

Z believe the major weaknesses of -the AID program aret 

1. Lack of a clear mandate to support microenterpriie developmer 

M view, from an outside perspective, is that there is not a 
clear mandate from the Administrator and Bureau Assistant 
Administrators that AID is serious about continuing and expandir 
its work in microenterprise development. While decisions, about 
specific projects should emanate from the field Miesion., Missic
 
Directors ahoud feel that microenterpris. is high on the 
priority list of the Agency and the Administrator. I hope and 

assume that this commitment is present but I don't believe that 

it is being communicated. Those within the Agency, particularl) 
in Washington in the newly-organized Office of Microenterprise
 
Development, do not have the power or support to effectively
 
influence the Bureaus and Missions in matters related to
 

microenterprise.
 

2. Lack of a clear well-defined microenterprise program
 

in the past few years AID has often found itself in a defensive
 
or reactive posture. In part this is because it has not
 
articulated a well-defined action plan. The Advisory Committee
 
has urged AID to develop such a plan, with particular reference
 
to how it plans to increase its commitment to lend and provide
 
assistance to the poorest of the self-employed.
 

3. Lack of a monitoring system
 

AID has not yet developed a simple system for monitoring progrei 
in microenterpris and for reporting that progress to Congress 

and other interested parties. Part of the difficulty stems fror 
the fact that AID must depend on the financial intermediaries ii 

v.: 7,,.
In.n'"tutine : , ,y do ., ., .;' : • 

tho forma;. requewjte* by h': 

I believe important improvements in the AID microenterpri.. 
program can be achieved by 

1. veveloping and implementing an ongoing action planiwhich 
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integrates the work of the Agency in this field.
 

2. The Administrator issuing a clear statement to the Milssion

Directors and other personnel that microenterprise development is

and will continue to be a high priority for the Agency.
 

3. The Agency holding regional workshops each year in Asia,

Africa, and Latin America to increase mission personnel'.s

knowledge of microenterprise an an effective development strategy
and taking advantage of other opportunities for upgrading the
 
knowledge and skills of Mission personnel in this area. These
specific actions were recommendations made to AID by the Advisory
Committee.
 

4. The Agency developing a simple, low cost monitoring system to
 
accurately determine the present and future status and impact of
 
Its programs.
 

SMALL DOLLAR MICROENERPRISE LENDING PROGRAMS ($300 OR LESS) 

The Subcommittee has also requested that I testify oan the rolethat small dollar lending ($300 or less) can have on the 
alleviation of poverty.
 

It is the collective experience of the network of ACCION's
affiliates in Latin America that very small loans 
 including

those under $300, can make a significant contribution to the

alleviation of poverty. From the impact evaluations that have

been done in our programs, it is clear that a very small loan can
result in the increase of a borrower's income, even if that
increase is from a daily net income of $3 to $5. This increase

in income often derives from the ability to buy more raw.

materials or merchandise and therefore to sell more. 
 It may also

result from cost savings through the bulk purchase of raw
materials or from paying less interest on the loan as compared to

the traditional rates charged by loan sharks onwhich many small
 
scale borrowers depend.
 

If implemented on a large scale in any given country, r believe

such loans can Lave a significant impact on that country's

development. Many studies around the world such as those of

'- - in 9oto .n Peru ha,., d onstft...4 ;b the Y2 p, . 

--. ' t;:1 informa. sect.r *'en,- r-t' : ynait!r: , ?z: 
.,* .. onoi. Thiti Ls wnere most of the .' and services are

created and provided it is here where iuva-; of the new jobs are
created. It is also true that most of the tiny enterprises of
the informal sector are capital starved, or often have to rely onthose who charge usurious rates of interest. Providing loans tothis sector, particularly if done on a large scale, reaching
hundreds of thousands or even millions of people, will have a
 
significant impact on a country's development.
 

Is this sustainable development? I believe sustainaple
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to the extentdevelopment with this type of lending will occur 
that, In the procees, viable financial institutions are created. 

be capable of reaching massive numbersThese institutions should 

of borrowers, of offering increased amounts of credit to the
 

borrowers as they grow and need additional capital, and of
 

encouraging savings among the borrowers as well.
 

With this testimony, however, I am not recommending that AID
 

should target all its microenterprise lending to loans under
 

The strength of AID's program is the diversity it
$300. 

displays, in which many loans need to be well over $300 to beat
 
assist the self-employed poor. My view is that the $300 loan
 

cap, the subject of much debate among those interested in the
 
too artificial and
ongoing microenterprife legislation, is 


restrictive and too indirect to determine if the programs are'
 

actually reaching the poorest of the economically active. It may
 

a guide to the Missions and the financial
be useful a 

intermediaries, but only along with other measures such as the
 

number of employees in a business, its level of assets, lack of
 

access to credit, and other guidelines related to the target
 

group.
 

In the absence of a $300 loan cap, I would recommend that the
 

Subcommittee follow the recommendations of the Advisory Committee
 

which advise that the AID Mission personnel establish relevant
 
criteria to judge the eligibility of program borrowers
 

considering various measures includings
 

i. 1-10 employees
 
2. lack of collateral
 
3. no access to formal financial sector resources
 
4. limited fixed assets
 
S. landless rural laborers
 
6. informal sector enterprises
 

of the population7. individuals in the poorest 50 

8. Individuals whose income fall below the country specific 

average per capita measure 
9. High percentage of women
 

Z want to reiterate that I believe AID is currently supporting
 

programs which lend to the poorest of the self-employee and
 

hou ,o! i' -ngl-" encotiraged to inerase its ommit iw'. t, thic
 
4, " v,-r , bel, 'sve t t In reas:nable tn reqt'p4- .'u. AID,
 
eai or,. 5t5sr* p,an, estimate how much its vx,:" ito
 
spend in microenterprise development each fiscal yea, 4ad of that 
amount, what percentage will be used to support the ver, poorest
 

of the self-employed.
 

ON THE DRAFT BILL AUTHORIZING THE MICROENTERPRISE
 
PROGRAM WITHIN AID
 

OliHENTS 

I strongly support the general thrust afthis draft bill. It
 

recognizes the diversity of the m.iroenterprise sector and 
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roviden AIDw~th the necessary flexibility to effeotively carry'to program out. 	 ".
 

I would make the following specific obervations
 

1. While it recognizes the importance of credit in asuiuting the
 
self-employed poor, it also notes that other activities such an
 
training, policy reform and technical assistance may be
 
appropriate activities.
 

2. The bill emphasizes the critical role of institutional
 
development of the financial intermediaries if mieroenterprise
 
development Is to be sustainable.
 

3. The bill most rightly focuses on the financial intermediaries
 
through which AID works and establishes appropriate criteria for
 
determining which will be eligible for assistance. Several of
 
these criteria, particularly points 16 and 47, need further
 
clarification.
 

4. An emphasis is placed on reaching women, which to the extent
 
that this is accomplished, will help ensure that the program is 
reaching the poorest of the self-employed. 

5. While I agree that a monitoring system needs to be put in 
Klaoe, from direct ACCION experience I urge that this system be 
opt as simple as possible. The expectations for such a system
should be realistics it will be more a monitoring and reporting 
system than an evaluation system. Such a system, for example,
wll not be able to measure the "overall impact on economic 
development in each developing country" of AID's program. 

6. I believe that a specific amount for each fiscal year should 
be used for direct credit activities, not credit and 
institutional development. The amounts stated in the draft 
bill - $20 million for fiscal year 1992 and $30 million for 
fiscal year 1993 are minimal amounts and should be raised to
 
reflect the central role that credit itself plays in assisting
 
the poor.
 

Mr. 	Chairman, I wish to conclude my remarks by stating that somei. 	 :,lals ,, Te? " y4dll tMh de,,e.opment fie l tnto two 
14hose wl- v'--1.1e "Povertv~ leneing" nnd tlinm%-, doing fu-calieo ,uuLr) euitrpriae lending". I rind this 

division artificial, ijlead~nq and wiolly detrimental to the 
dialogue. A great amount of energy and resources has been spent
the past several years splitting hairs on this issue, with the 
8300 loan cap presented as some magical dividing point between 
the two. But I would pose the question: If a market vendor in 
Bolivia has received several short term loans beginning with $100 
and because of good payback and increased sales over a yearts
period now needs more than $300, is sheno longer eligible for a 
"poverty alleviation" loan? Or similarly, if a woman in Peru who 

46-816 0 - 91 - 3 
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originally borrowed $250 for her dress making business now needs
 a loan of $325 because of an increase in the price of cloth, are
 
we no longer alleviating poverty by giving her that loan?
 

Those of us who believe in microenterprise credit as a truly
effective development strategy for reaching the poor should be
joining forces, not arguing over loan limit size as some litmus
 
test for determining who is working with the poor. I believe the
 poor majority in the developing world will be better served

through our collective will to greatly increase the overall
 
amount of money available. Based on its succesaful experience in
this field, I encourage and challenge AID to commit a level of
 resources which is above the suggested amount in the draft bill.

The know-how for effectively lending to the self-employed poor
has been clearly demonstrated in many settings around the world.

The true challenge before all of us now is to scale-up our
efforts to reach truly significant numbers of those men, women 
and children living in poverty. 
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Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you, Mr. Burrus. And I want to thank all of 
the panel members. This was an exceptionally helpful panel.

Let me just take a minute here for some ministerial functions. 
First, to offer the regrets of the Chairman of the subcommittee, 
Sam Gejdenson. As you know, the subcommittee had been sched
uled to commence at 10:00, and was preempted by a full committee 
meeting. And Sam was here earlier, but unfortunately was not able 
to offer the statement that he wanted to. So it will without objec
tion be included in the record of today's hearing.

[The statement of Mr. Gejdenson follows:] 
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STATEMENT OF CONGRESSMAN SAN GEJDWSON 

'CHAIRMAN 
sUCOMMTTE ON INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC POLICY AND TRAD
 

FEBRUARY 28, 1991
 

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF GOVERNMENTS, ESPECIALLY WEALTHY 
GOVERNMENTS LIKE THE UNITED STATES, TO TRY TO EXTEND THE RIGHTS 
OF THE PRIVILEGED TO THOSE MUCH LESS FORTUNATE THAN OURSELVES. TO 
UNDERSTAND THE LEGISLATION BEFORE US TODAY, ONE MUST RECOGNIZE 

THAT A FUNDAMENTAL RIGHT HAS BEEN HISTORICALLY DENIED TO THE 
POOREST AMONG US: ACCESS TO CREDIT. ACCESS TO CREDIT SIGNIFIES SO 
MUCH MORE TO THE POOR THAN A DIRECT LOAN. IT PROVIDES DIGNITY. IT-
PROVIDES HOPE FOR A BETTER FUTURE. IT PROVIDES A CONCRETE ROAD 
OUT OF WHAT ONCE WAS AN ENDLESS PATH OF POVERTY. 

TODAY WE WILL BE REVIEWING A DRAFT BILL WHICH WILL AUTHORIZE
 

THE HICROENTERPRISE-POVERTY LENDING PROGRAM WITHIN THE AGENCY FOR 
INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT (A.I.D.). THE ISSUE OF WHETHER OR NOT 
A.I.D CAN RUN AN EFFECTIVE MICROENTERPRISE PROGRAM HAS BEEN HOTLY
 
DEBATED IN THE RECENT PAST. IN SEPTEMBER OF 1990, THIS 
SUBCOMMITTEE HELD A HEARING WHICH BROUGHT TOGETHER ALL PARTIES 
INVOLVED IN THE DISCUSSION, NAMELY A.I.D., PRIVATE VOLUNTARY ' 
ORGANIZATIONS JPVOs) AND NON-GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS (NGOS). 

THE GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE, WHICH PROVIDED THE, 
SUBCOMMITTEE WITH A PRELIMINARY REPORT IN SEPTEMBER, CONCLUDED 
THE FOLLOWING:
 

* CONTRARY TO CONGRESSIONAL INTENT, THE A.I.D. OVERSEAS 

MISSIONS INVESTIGATED BY THE GAO DID NOT SPECIFICALLY TARGET 
THEIR MICROENTERPRISE PROJECTS TO THE POOREST OF THE POOR OR 
EMPHASIZE CREDIT ASSISTANCE TO WOMEN.
 

* THE GAO ALSO DETERMINED THAT LOANS FREQUENTLY EXCEEDED $300. 

THIS ALSO VIOLATES THE CLEARLY .STATED INTENT OF CONGRESS. 
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* FINALLY, THE GAO FOUND A.I.D. DID NOT HAVE A SYSTEM TO 

TRACK DETAILED INFORMATION REGARDING ITS MICROENTERPRISE CREDIT 

ACTIVITIES. 

THE DRAFT BILL BEFORE US TODAY RELIED HEAVILY ON THE 

PRELIMINARY REPORT FROM THE GAO AND IS THE RESULT OF EXTENSIVE 

COOPERATION BETWEEN THE CONGRESS, THE AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT AND THE MANY PRIVATE ORGANIZATIONS WHICH IMPLEMENT 

MICROENTERPRISE AND POVERTY LENDING PROGRAMS. IT IS, THEREFORE, A 

CONSENSUS BILL. BY PLACING THE MICROENTERPRISE/POVERTY LENDING 

PROGRAM WITHIN A.I.D. ON A TWO-YEAR AUTHORIZATION TRACK, CONGRESS 

IS SENDING A CLEAR SIGNAL TO THE EXECUTIVE BRANCH THAT WE ARE 

COMMITTED TO THIS PROGRAM AND PLAN TO REVISIT THIS ISSUE DURING 

THE NEXT CONGRESS. FURTHERMORE, IT IS MY HOPE THAT WITH THIS 

LEGISLATION WE CAN FINALLY END THE DEBATE ON LOAN SIZE AND MOVE 

ON TO THE SOCIAL, POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC EFFECTS OF THE GROWING 

INFORMAL SECTOR WITHIN DEVELOPING COUNTRIES. 

I WANT TO COMMEND MY TWO COLLEAGUES, CONGRESSMEN FEIGHAN AND 

GILMAN FOR DRAFTING SUCH A THOROUGH, THOUGHTFUL PIECE OF
 

LEGISLATION. I ALSO WANT TO THANK THOSE FROM A.I.D. AND THE MANY 

PVOs WHO SPENT COUNTLESS FRIDAY AFTERNOONS TRYING TO HAMMER OUT 

THEIR DIFFERENCES.
 

AS I SAID IN SEPTEMBER, IT IS THE INTENTION OF THIS 

SUBCOMMITTEE TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO CREDIT TO THE POOREST OF THE 

POOR. I BELIEVE THIS BILL CAN ACCOMPLISH THAT GOAL. I LOOK 

FORWARD TO HEARING THE TESTIMONY OF ALL THE WITNESSES. 
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Mr. FEIGHAN. Also I wanted to ask Mr. Farbman if he would be
willing to submit to additional questions submitted by the Chair to
the agency, questions which we were not able to address today. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. In addition to that, my colleague, Congressman
Gilman, who all of you know has spent a tremendous amount of
time and energy on these issues, has a statement that will be en
tered for the record. And he has questions that he would like to
submit to all of the panelists, the A.I.D. representatives as well as 
our second panel as well. So if you would be willing to respond to 
those, we would appreciate it. 

[The statement of Mr. Gilman follows:] 



65
 

STATEMENT BY THE HONORABLE'BENJAMIN A.'GILNAN
 
SUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL.ECONOMIC POLICY
 
AND TRADE
 

FEBRUARY 28, 1991
 

MR. GILMAN: I want'to thank the Chairman for holding this
 

hearing at this appropriate time." I'regret that I am" unable to
 

attend due to personal reasons.
 

AID has been aoleader: in small and:micro-enterprise
 

development over the past twenty years, but-has shown a
 

reluctance to complement that work with an aggressive "poverty
 

lending" strategy. We want to encourage the poverty lending
 

strategy without seeming to disparage the work in small and
 

micro-enterprise development. This hearing hopefully will
 

enable us to look more closely at such possibilities.
 

President Bush has commented favorably on pursuing a
 

"poverty lending" strategy, stating in a 1988 campaign speech
 

concerning the Grameen Bank, one of the most successful poverty
 

lending programs, "[this approach] represents an encouraging
 

development,...and I am very interested In and supportive of
 

this concept, I will carefully reexamine proposals for similar
 

programs.'
 

I understand that a draft of AID's "action plan" for its
 

micro-enterprise development program circulated in December had
 

little or no mention of the importance of targeting resources
 

to the poorest people. This is a subject of great concern for
 

me.
 

While I am encouraged by AID's assistance to FINCA's
 

village banking program in-El Salvador and similar projects. 


would hope that In the future more resources are made available
 

to "poverty lending"., My colleague the gentleman from Ohio,
 

Mr.'Feghan, will be introducing legislation'to ensure such an
 

approach and I join with him in his. initiativ.
 

I look forward to reading the transcript of-the hearing-at
 

a later date.
 

I 



"INSATIABLE" DEMAND FOR CREDIT
 

Mr. Gilman: 	 In a September 8, 1990 article in the National
 
Journa, Bill Burrus of ACCION International, who
 
will be testifying shortly, said that the market
 
for credit among the poor is "insatiable". He
 
added, "There are millions upon millions of people

who need money. It's the largest untapped credit
 
market in the world." Do you agree with this
 
assessment, and how do you see A.I.D. working with
 
indigenous non-governmental organizations such as
 
the Self-Employed Women's Association in India and
 
the Grameen Bank in Bangladesh during the next
 
five years to assure that some of this
 
"insatiable" 	demand is met?
 

Answer: 	 A.I.D. experience supports Mr. Burrus' observation
 

that the market for credit among the poor is
 

"insatiable", with the help of viable local
 

institutions. A.I.D. is committed to helping to
 

meet some portion of this demand, even where high

interest rates, weak markets and hyper-inflation
 

may mitigate development efforts. In fact, the
 

essence of A.I.D.'s microenterprise program is to
 

identify and strengthen indigenous institutions of
 

all types in 	the developing world that can become.
 

effective and efficient channels for the provision
 

of financial services to the poor. A.I.D. will
 

continue to work for the next five years and
 

beyond with such organizations as the Bank Rakyat
 

and Badan Kredit Kecamatsn in Indonesia', the
 

myriad national development foundations and
 

grass-roots organizations found throughoui'Latlih 

America, the 	growing numbers ofC
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indigenous microenterprise credit programs in
 

Africa, and the affiliates of the dozens of U.S.
 

private and voluntary organizations that have been
 

so instrumental in pushing out the frontiers of
 

what is feasible in this difficult assistance area.
 

A list of over a hundred such Agency-funded
 

indigenous private and voluntary organizations
 

doing microenterprise development was provided to
 

the Subcommittee on International Economic Policy
 

and Trade in our' letter of December 17, 1990.
 

Strong local institutions are essential to'meet
 

the high demand for credit for the poor.
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SUPPORT FOR"POVERTY LENDING" BY THE AMERICAN PEOPLE
 

Mr. Gilman: 	 As you know, there is some degree of cynicism
 
about foreign aid among the American people. I
 
have long supported aid programs, but I have a
 
desire to see them better appreciated and
 
understood by the American people.
 

Do you share 	my opinion that the outpouring of
 *support for "poverty lending" programs -- as
 
evidenced by hundreds of newspaper editorials and
 
articles, or the television coverage on "60
 
Minutes" and 	PBS -- provides an opportunity for
 
A.I.D. to respond to the Legislation
 
enthusiastically and, as a result, have our
 
foreign aid program be better appreciated by the
 
public?
 

Answer: 	 The attention given to "poverty lending" in the
 

media presents an excellent opportunity for the
 
".
 

American public to see an important aspect of


foreign aid in a positive light. Americans
 

generously endorse programs that.help people help
 

themselves. 	Programs such as microenterprise
 

development -- in which entrepreneurs gain access
 

to and benefit from small loans -- do just this., 

We have found that many Americans who say they
 

oppose "foreign aid" -- in the abstract -- support 

many of the very operations (development of very
 

small businesses;:child survival; promotion of
 

democratic institutions, protection of tropical
 

forests) in which we are active. We share a
 

responsibilitylto introduce and explain our
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:program to the American people. Furthermore,
 

stronger business development in foreign lands -

brought about by U.S. aid dollars -- can increase 

markets for U.S. business products., The American 

publicneeds to know that careful management of 

our foreign aid resources in these ways represents
 

a good investment for American orowth and sacurilv.
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•A. . ilTARGETING OF 'THE POOREST OF THE POOR 

Mr. Gilman: In your March 30, 1990 Report to Congress, the
 
target group you identified was "the poorest of
 
the economically active population." I know that
 

in some circles, that definition has been
 
interpreted to exclude the poorest of the poor who
 

may not be "economically active" by our
 
definition. Elsewhere the report says, "A.I.D.
 
assists [the] poor, but not the poorest people."
 
And the General Accounting Office, in testimony
 
before this Committee last Fall said, "None of the
 

three countries we visited targeted their
 
microenterprise projects to the poorest of the
 
poor." What can you say to reassure me that
 

A.I.D.'s working definition of its target groups
 
now includes the "poorest of the poor"?
 

Answer: The General Accounting Office (GAO), in its
 

written submission to the Subcommittee in
 

September 1990, stated that although "...None of
 

the three countries.. .visited targeted...
 

microenterprise projects to the poorest of the
 

poor," that "...according to some PVO officials,
 

these people [women or the poorest 20 percent of
 

the population] were benefiting from their
 

grokects..." .(emphasis added). Though untargeted,
 

the poor ware being reached.
 

What is important to note is that A.I.D. is
 

dependent in large part on choices made by private
 

and voluntary organizatios (PVOs) and local
 

non-governmental organizations that implem-nt
 

A.I.D. hasno central
activities in the field. 
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control over a myriad.of local decisns;i; can
 

only set the framework and provide the guidelines.
 

.I'.D. does not target, oar as, any particular
 

sub-stratum of the poor. Rather, it acts in the
 

role of financier of these organizations. Some
 

local groups focus on remote rural areas; some
 

prefer urban squatter settlements; some deal 

predominantly with women; and others focus 

particularly on small-scale credit, or training, 

or technical assistance. Virtually all, however, 

deal nearly exclusively with the poor, and A.I.D. 

knows -- as the GAO also recognizes -- that many 

of those poor who benefit are the so-called 

"Poorest of the poor".
 

In our testimony at the February 28 hearing,
 

A.I.D. pointed out that it is providing increasing
 

levels of support to advocates of "village.
 

banking" -- such'as U.S. private and-voluntary
 

organizations FINCA, Save the Children, Catholic
 

Relief Services, Fteeddm from Hunger Foundation,
 

http:myriad.of


72
 

Katalysis Foundation and others -- which claim to
 

f'olude the so-called "destitute poor" among theii
 

beneficiaries. The existence of this support.
 

indicates that a significant portion of A.I.D.'s
 

program indeed benefits "the poorest of the poor"
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39 PM 0',911253VA 86R*+1-301-234-2992 CRS BFLT!M 

Suboommittee on international Economic Policy and Trade 
comittee on Foreign Affairs 
u.s. House of Representatives 

Hearing on Microentorprise Programs 
February 28, 1991 

Response to questions from Congressman Gilman:
 

1. Catholic Relief Services strongly supports both poverty 
lending and microenterprise programs. Indeed, we agree with your
 
assessment that vast amounts of resources are needed to reach the
 
world's I billion poor people. 
 CRS would advocate a strategy by
 
the US government which seeks to use its limited resources in a
 

the US government can build institutional
catalytic manner: 

capacity to program poverty lending monies which can then attract
 
resources from local communities, other foreign donors, and US
 
private constituencies. We believe that the US government can take
 
the lead in this because it has a long tradition of foreign
 
assistance and its US microenterprise intermediaries are among the
 
most innovative in the international community. The road to
 
building such institutional capacity can not happen overnight and
 
it will take a strategic commitment on the part of USAID in
 
addition to financial resources.
 

2. We do not believe that the PVO community will have difficulty
 
absorbing the $50 milllion because the legislation allows for
 
monies to be used for both the credit capital and the institutional
 
support to deliver it. Although the current institutional capacity
 
for poverty lending is limited, this legislation can strengthen
 
that capacity in the next two years and build a foundation for an 
exponential growth in poverty lending institutions. It is our 
belief that inthe next eight years hundreds of millions of dollars 
can be effectively channeled to meet the needs of the expanding 
numbers of self-employed poor which curently total over 400 million 
in the developing world. 
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Mr. FEIGHAN. Let me ask a few questions of the panelists, and 
starting with this issue of monitoring. Because I find it still painful
that after a couple of years now that we are still debating whether 
or not it is possible for institutions in the field to do the monitoring 
that is necessary and the reporting that is necessary for what I 
think are fairly simple categories.

And Dr. Lassen responded to this. But I wonder if other panelists 
could respond to the issue of the difficulties that they see in a mon
itoring system, or the pitfalls that there might be in mandating a 
monitoring system. I do not see them on the surface. And if there 
are some out there, I sure would like to be aware of them. 

Ms. LASSEN. The pitfall comes when you are not talking about 
credit assistance. I think that credit assistance is very direct. It can 
be monitored, the dollar amounts of it, the number amounts of it, 
et cetera. Once you get beyond that and talk about other kinds of 
assistance, the indicators are by no means as direct, and the impact
is much more subtle. And there is where I think that a lot of diffi
culty arises. 

Mr. RONDOS. I would echo two comments. One is let us not over
complicate the issue. Secondly, really any contract that A.I.D. gives
funds to-and let us not forget that A.I.D. is not implementing 
these programs, that it is a whole network of agencies, two of 
which are represented here-are under obligation to A.I.D. to be 
monitoring.

So it strikes me that the point is moot. A.I.D. is not doing the 
work, but we are. Their business is then to do a scissors and paste
job. And I do not mean in any way to be frivolous about that. We 
are the ones who have to expend that energy

Mr. FEIGHAN. And based on your knowledge for the operations of 
those institutions, how difficult is it to arrive at least the gross 
data on how many loans are under $300? how many women? 

Mr. RONDOS. It is very simple. We have to be able to account for 
every single loan whether it is $10 or $1000. It is a simple matter of 
monitoring. Our staff has to do it in working with the indigenous
organizations with which we work. 

I think sometimes, and the point that I think is very significant,
is the one that Dr. Lassen raised. That if we are looking for bene
fits, an impact that is beyond the purely economic, then you get
into slightly more complicated aspects of monitoring.-But insofar as 
credit and how much money goes to people and what levels are 
given, it strikes us really fairly simple. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. Mr. Burrus. 
Mr. BURRUS. Congressman, I would like to talk about the moni

toring system. I think that one of the pitfalls, and I saw an early
version of the monitoring system in its infancy, I think that one of 
the pitfalls is that there is a tendency on the part of everyone to 
want to collect a lot of data. And I think that there would be a 
tendency to set up a system, while it may be worldwide, that would 
be so complex and so costly that people will not end up being able 
to do it. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. We do not want to do that, right, really we do not. 
Mr. BURRUS. And I am really referring more to the consultants 

and to A.I.D. itself who want to set up the system. I have urged on 
the advisory council that this system not be thought of as an eval
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uation system. I think that it is properly named a monitoringsystem. And it needs just to collect some very, very simple specificdata. I think that is the most that we should hope for at this point.If we go beyond that, we are going to have major problems, and wewill be sitting here a year from now without this system being putin place.

In answer to your question can we track existing loans and loansizes, I fully agree with the other testimony, absolutely. And if wecannot, something is wrong, weproperly. Now 
are not running our programsone of the problems may be that the data that isbeing generated for day to day management of the programs maynot readily say how many loans quantifiably are below $300, if thatis the cutoff, and which are above. But that information is certainly available, and it means just taking a somewhat different cut at

it.
Mr. FEIGHAN. Let me ask about refjponding to at least the presence of the letter that the Administrator referred to that 19 PVOshad signed, I do not see exactly whore it is, but saying that thereshould not be a $300 loan cap.Are you familiar with that, are you familiar with the participants who signed that letter, to what extent it is reflective of themajority view if it is, how do I explain that?
Ms. LASSEN. 
 I very much agree with Bill Burrus when he saidthat it is totally counterproductive to be thinking of camps. It istotally counterproductive. In fact, how we should better think ofthis I believe is as tracks. Some agencies have a track where theydeal primarily with microentrepreneurs. And they may haveother kind anof loan, a slightly different process, with which theydeal with solidarity, groups of borrowers, et cetera.
So within the same large agency and programs, there can be 
actually be tracks. It should not be thought of as two opposing things,a zero sum or something like that.I believe that when that letter came out or that kind of responsecame out, agencies were talking from what they predominantlyknew how to do. And we have seen from the 1980s that what wepredominantly know how to do is microenterprise lending. Weknow much less how to mount large scale programs outside ofurban areas addressing some of these inequities with the very des

titute.
So to me, a lot of what that letter was saying, that letter was inreaction of one camp versus another camp. Many of those agencies
who in fact were 
reacting saw this as a zero sum, that allocationswould be made either to this or to that.Mr. FEIGHAN. I wonder if either Mr. Rondos or Mr. Burrus could
respond to an area that Dr. Lassen had discussed, and that is the
growth targets that A.I.D. had set. And we heard in the testimony
this morning, particularly the testimony to reach a ten percentannual increase in the number of microenterprise loans.I had the same reaction that Dr. Lassen did. That 10 percent iseven far short of the increase that the agency points to in previousyears. But if it was 20 or if it was 50 percent, it seems to me giventhe nature of the demands for this type of credit system, that it isjust far short of the vision that we should have. 
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Let me wrap into that question, because it is probably going to 
be my last question. I have to go vote, and it is not possible for me 
to come back. That first question about are those goals of increases 
of 10 percent in overall loans, I think that it was 10 percent in 
loans to women, to what extent is that realistic? 

In Ms. Fore's testimony, she stated that the factor of limiting ex
pansion of microenterprise activities most severely is the shortage 

numof effective institutions that can serve the poor in growing 
bers. I think that those are related questions. And I would like it if 
either one of you can speak to that. 

Dr. Lassen, you had spoken to it I think rather extensively in 
your testimony. Mr. Rondos. 

Mr. RONDOS. Yes. We would agree, I think. We cart get into all 
sorts of statistical games here in discussing certain percentages of 
percentages. And quite frankly, I and my colleagues get rather lost 
in that. The fact is that there are far more people who are poor 
and even more who risk becoming poorer in the days, months, and 
years to come in absolute numbers. And we know that we have 
efore us methods by which we can reach them and help them, and 

create a decisive turnaround in their condition. 
That is a simple and rather obvious fact. But we need to be re

minded of it. AID, I suspect and I think, can and should be contrib
uting far more in that direction. In fact, it would make a serious 
mistake in locking itself into specific percentages. 

What we know is that there is a method now or there are meth
ods that can reach lots of very poor people. In fact, they are not 
that complicated, either. So why not give those methods the vote of 
confidence. 

Could you remind me of your second question? 
Mr. FEIGHAN. Well, the second question was on the Administra

tor's observation that the fact that they are limiting expansion of 
microenterprise is really the shortage of effective institutions. 

Mr. RONDOS. Yes. That is a double-edged sword. Yes, there is an 
issue of what people refer to as the absorbative capacity. If you 
throw too much money at any organization when it is not ready, it 
will kill that organization straight-away. And that we all have to 
be careful of. 

But we then have to ask ourselves-let me give the example of 
CRS. At any one time, we are funding over 2000 projects around 
the world. CRS does not implement its own projects. It works 
through indigenous counterparts. Arguably, there are 2000 organi
zations which admittedly range from a small little parish to a large 
cooperative, all of which could potentially be using credit savings 
schemes and introducing them as part of their daily activities. 

So yes, do not look at the institution, but look at the whole array 
globally of these civic initiatives for want of a better way of putting 
it, the cannon fodder of democracy of the future of these countries, 
which at the moment are being left out. So much more money 
could be put into those. Do not put too nmuch too soon. Help them 
build up their managerial capacity. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you. 
Mr. Burrus, rather than asking for your response now, I am 

going to apologize, and conclude the hearing. I want to thank this 
panel very much. Each one of you I think has been enormously 
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helpful today. And I appreciate the thoughtfulness of your testimo
ny and the obvious time and effort that you put into its prepara
tion. And it is going to be very helpful to us as we continue on ourmarch on making this microenterprise program so much better 
over the course of time.

I will look forward to talking to all of you again very soon. And Ithank again the Administrator's office for being present this morn
ing. And that concludes today's hearing. Thank you.

[Whereupon, at 12:20 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.] 
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Finally, there seems to be a lack of coordination between TDP 
and other agencies within the executive branch. This committee 
has seen a number of proposals which essentially duplicate the 
work of TDP, and today I hope we can discuss the levels of coopera
tion within the various executive agencies which promote trade 
and/or development. 

Frankly, in Congress, as I said earlier, there's great support for 
the work done, especially under our witness today, Ms. Rabb, and 
we hope that we can take a hard look at your opening statement 
and then later in questioning regarding the place and the coopera
tion you get from the rest of the administration. Go ahead. 

STATEMENT OF PRISCILLA RABB AYRES, DIRECTOR, TRADE AND 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
 

Ms. AYRES. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate 
this opportunity to testify on behalf of the Trade and Development 
Program, and I would like to thank you, Mr. Gejdenson, and the 
members of this subcommittee for their tremendous support for 
TDP.
 

In the past 21/2 years that I've been the director of TDP I've trav
elled extensively throughout the United States, and I have been 
most impressed with the vigor and success of U.S. exporters. How
ever, the lion's share of U.S. exports-approximately 65 percent
are sold to the developed world-particularly the UK, Canada, 
Japan and Germany. This means that the U.S. sold an average of 
35 percent of its exports to the developing world. 

These figures indicate there is a vast potential for export mar
kets as yet untapped. I am speaking of the markets of the develop
ing and middle income world. In 1989, U.S. merchandise exports to 
developing countries totaled $118 billion, and while this figure does 
not include services exports, the U.S. share of these markets can 
and should be expanded tremendously. U.S. goods and services are 
highly valued in the developing and middle income world, and the 
U.S. has a significant role to play in assisting economic develop
ment and supporting emerging democracies. 

Admittedly, these markets can be difficult to access. Distance, 
lack of familiarity, unstable economies and fierce foreign competi
tion are daunting to private enterprise. 

But there is an effective network of interrelated programs in the 
U.S. government that's designed to encourage U.S. companies to do 
business in the developing world and which offer assistance to help 
overcome the obstacles to market penetration. My agency, the 
Trade and Development Program, provides one of those programs. 

The TDP is an independent federal agency that operates under a 
commercial foreign assistance mandate. That is, TDP promotes 
U.S. trade in international development through funding U.S. tech
nical assistance in the planning stages of projects that are impor
tant to the development of the recipient countries and that also 
represent significant U.S. export and investment opportunities. 

More specifically, TDP provides grants to support U.S. private 
sector participation in major projects. These grants fund feasibility 
studies and other planning services deemed crucial by the host gov
ernment to move a developmental project to implementation. TDP
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funded studies must be adone by U.S. company or consortium.This U.S. imprint in the early stages of a major project enhancesthe opportunities for U.S. companies to compete successfully inproject implementation.

The TDP is an extremely small agency. We have a ceiling of 28people, and we're all based in Washington. Our budget request forFY '92 is $35 million. With operate around the world, workingthrough our embassies abroad-specifically through the ForeignCommercial Service of the Department of Commerce. And we alsobenefit greatly from the industry and country expertise availablefrom other federal agencies, and, of course, the U.S. private sector.The TDP is uniquely suited to respond quickly to project opportunities, and, acting in the role of a catalyst, to introduce U.S. interests in the early planning stages of important projects.The TDP supports projects that are identified by the host governments as being high developmental priorities. Typically, theseprojects are related to infrastructure development, such as telecommunications, energy and environmental projects. These projectsmust also be in sectors where U.S. industry is strong and competitive and for which international competitive bidding is expected forimplementation.
U.S. companies compete for TDP-funded studies, and the selection of the company is made by the host government. The companyselected operates under a contract negotiated between the companyand the host government. Thus, while the grant is provided by theU.S. government, the true working relationship is between the U.S.company and the host government. The host government approvesthe scope of work prior to signing the grant agreement with TDP,and the study is monitored by the host government to insure thatthe study will meet the host country needs.This process is designed to encourage a strong working relationship between the host government and the U.S. company. It is alsodesigned to provide the host government with a useful product thatshould encourage project implementation and, of course, U.S. pro

curement.
Now, TDP does not require that U.S. goods and services be procured in project implementation. Rather, we help to position U.S.companies to bid successfully on the project and to encourage themto pursue additional business opportunities in that country.look upon Weour grants as investments, with the return being the
dollar volume of U.S. exports associated with project implementa

tion.

The effectiveness of this approach is apparent in the fact that
through fiscal 1989 TDP obligated a total of $138 million for project
planning in developing and middle income cor ntries. To date, inexcess of $3.2 billion of U.S. exports have been associated withprojects supported by TDP- funded studies. These same projects areexpected to yield an additional 7 to $8 billion in the next ten years.This return is even more significant when thesecond and third ripple effect ofgeneration equipment purchases and spin-offprojects are factored into the equation.I think the best way to describe this process is by providing

example. an 
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In 1987, TDP provided a grant of $350,000 to the Electric Gener
ating Authority of Thailand, or EGAT, for a power plant study in 
Bang Pakong. Black & Veatch International of Kansas City, Mis
souri, was selected to conduct the study in 1988. As a result of the 
excellent working relationship developed with EGAT during the 
study, Black & Veatch Engineering won a follow-on engineering 
services contract worth $30 million. 

In addition, because the Black & Veatch study ultimately set 
procurement specifications which strongly favored U.S. generator 
and gas turbine technologies, General Electric won the tender for 
two 300 megawatt gas turbine combined-cycle power plants valued 
at $64.6 million. This also put G.E. in a favorable position to supply 
a similar project in Rayong, in Thailand's ongoing Eastern Sea
board Project. 

Total exports from this project to date are valued at $210 million. 
A potential of $180 million in additional exports in expected in the 
future from this project. 

This example also illustrates the fact that many companies, large 
and small, can benefit from a single TDP grant. G.E.'s subcontrac
tors for this project numbered 28. These 28 subcontractors operate 
out of 35 facilities located in 20 states. In addition, because of the 
relationship Black & Veatch had established in the TDP-funded 
study, the company subsequently was selected as the project man
agement consultant for the first integrated pulp and paper mill in 
Thailand. The project is funded at over $200 million. This is an ex
ample of the spin-off benefits that I mentioned earlier. 

The TDP can also intervene at other critical times in the life 
cycle of a project to encourage U.S. procurement. For instance, we 
may fund the travel of procurement officials to the United States 
to meet with U.S. companies and visit U.S. plants and project sites. 

An excellent example of the effectiveness of such reverse trade 
missions is the following: 

In 1988, TDP learned that the World Bank was funding a $30 
million project in Togo for new telephone switching equipment. 
With the hope of encouraging U.S. companies to take advantage of 
this excellent export opportunity, TDP provided $21,000 to fund an 
official visit to the United States by Togolese officials from the 
Office of Posts and Telecommunications. 

The Togolese were introduced to U.S. telecommunications equip
ment and technology, and U.S. companies had the opportunity to 
establish business relationships with officials from a country they 
had never considered exporting to before. As of this date, U.S. 
firms have sold $600,000 of U.S. telecommunications equipment to 
Togo, with potential additional exports of $4 million. 

In fiscal year 1990, TDP sponsored two such orientation visits by 
Turkish officials to expose them to American advanced educational 
technology and introduce them to U.S. companies that can provide 
equipment or services in that sector. The visits were dF igned to 
address Turkish education needs financed by four World Bank 
loans. As a result of these visits, U.S. firms located in I cw Jersey, 
Massachusetts, and Ohio have already sold $28 million of equip
ment and services. Another $170 million in educational equipment, 
computer software, and consulting services are expected to flow 
from these "reverse trade missions.' 
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Another very recent example is a trip for the Greek Ministry ofHealth officials that was funded by TDP in January of 1991. Visiting several U.S. cities, the delegates were able to familiarize themselves with modern health care facilities, computer systems and applications, medical equipment, and a modern hospital administra

tion system.
As a result of this trip, in February of 1991 Digital of Boston received a contract from the ministry for $3 million for computer systems to be installed in five hospitals. The firm believes that itcould obtain another $10 million, which couldment to bring itq "involvemore than half of the total $21 million procurement forthe project.
We may also invite foreign officials to attend conferences andtechnological symposia where U.S. technology, expertise and goodsand services are presented. These conferences also provide an onportunity for state participation in TDP program opportunities andbenefit state exports.For example, in November, 189, TDP funded the Conference onAsia-Pacific Petrochemical and Refinery Integration, or CAPPRI,in Houston. CAPPRI was organized by the state of Texas, the East-West Center in Hawaii, and the University of Houston's SmallBusiness Development Center. The purpose of CAPPRI was tobring together senior and government decision-makers from theU.S. and Asia to discuss regional petrochemical markets and development prospects for the 1990s.An integral feature of the conference was the opportunity forU.S. companies to learn about Asian oil and gas processing capability and to promote U.S. planning and technical services and products. CAPPRI opened an avenue for interregional exchange of information and trade between the U.S. and Asia-Pacific in theenergy and petrochemical fields. The potential investment opportunities identified during this conference have been estimated at $2022 billion.The TDP also works closely with state development agencies as aprime mechanisn. to disseminate information on export opportuni

ties to U.S. firms.Large businesses frequently win the contracts for the businessand then use small and medium-sized businesses as sub-suppliers.However, one area where small businesses benefit directly is TDPdefinitional missions. which are teams of U.S. experts who get information that TDP needs in order to make a determination 
as towhether or not to offer a grant for a project. Definitional missionstudies are performed by small and minority-owned businesses.Thirty-nine percent of all TDP activities in 1990 were definitional
missions.The TDP also funds training, which consists largely of offeringde minimis mixed credits in the area of training. The term de minimis refers to OECD guidelines which require prior notification of amixed credit unless it is less than 3 percent of the contract price of$1 million, whichever is less.These grants are offered for training packages in support of aU.S. supplier's bid on international contracts and provide important encouragement to U.S. industry in international market
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places. The export return is immediate, since the grant does not go 
forward unless the U.S. company is awarded the contract. 

For example, the Chilean Telephone Company, or CTC, an
nounced an award of a $29 million contract for the construction of 

earth satellite stations to the United States from Scientific Atlanta 
after TDP was able to offer a $750,000 training grant to CTC to 
make Scientific Atlanta's bid more competitive. The grant, in con
junction with conventional Ex/Im financing and the strong support 
of the U.S. ambassador in Chile, neutralized strong competition 
from NEC of Japan and Alcatel of France, and Scientific Atlanta 
was awarded the largest single international contract in the histo
ry of that company. TDP currently offers these grants as its core 
budget permits. 

Over 579 companies in 42 states, Puerto Rico, and the District of 
Columbia have benefitted from activities supported by TDP. Many 
of these are small and medium-sized firms. In addition, there are 
other sub-suppliers associated with these projects, but it's impossi
ble to identify them all. 

This concludes my oral testimony, and I'd be very happy to 
answer any questions you may have. 

[The statement of Ms. Ayres follows:] 



I appreciate this opportunity to testify onbehalf of the Trade and Development Program, andI would like to thank Mr. Gejdenson and themembers of this, Subcommittee for their years of
support for TDP. 

In the past 2-1/2 years that I have been theDirector of TDP, I have travelled extensivelythroughout the United States, and I have beenmost impresseu with the vigor and success of U.S*exporters. However, the lions share of U.S. exports-- approximately 65%.- are sold to the developedworld..-particularly the UK, Canada, Japan andGermany. This means that the U.S. sold an averageof ,5 percent of its exports "o the developing world. 

These figures indicate that there is a vastpotential for export markets as yet untapped. I amspeaking of the markets of the developing andmiddle income world. In 1989, U.S. merchandiseexports to developing countries totaled $118 billion.And while this figure does not include servicesexports, the U.S. share of these markets can, andshould be, expanded tremenuslya. U.S. goods andservices are highly valued in the developing andmiddle income world and the U.S. has a significantrole to play in assisting economic development andsupporting emerging democracies.
 

Admittedly, these 
 markets can be difficult toaccess. Distqnce, lack of familiarity, unstable.economies and fierce foreign competition aredaunting to private enterprise.
 

But there Is an effective network of
-Interrelated programs. in the U.S. governmen t 
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designed to 	 encourage U.S. companies to do 

business in the developing world, and which offer 
overcome the obstacles to marketassistance to help 

penetration. My agency, the Trade and 

Development Program provides one of those 

programs. 

TDP Is an 	 Independent federal agency that 

a commercial foreign assistanceoperates under 
mandate. That is, TDP promotes U.S. trade in 

through funding U.S.international development 
stages oftechnical assistance in the planning 

projects that are important to the development of 

and that also representthe recipient countries 
U.S. export and investmentsignificant 

opportunities. 

grants toMore specifically, TDP provides 
sector participation in majorsupport U.S. private 

projects. These grants fund feasibility studies and 

deemed crucial by the hostother planning services 

government to move a developmental project to
 

inplementaf.iOn. TDP-funded studies must be done 

by a U.S. company or consortium. This U.S. imprint 

in the early stages of a major project enhances the 

for U.S. companies to competeopportunities 

successfully in project implementation.
 

TDP is an extremely small agency ---- we have 
in Washington. Oura ceiling of 28 people, all based 


FY 1992 is $35 million. We
budget request for 

around the world, working through our
operate 

embassies abroad ..... specifically through the 

FCS of the DOC, and we also benefit greatly from the 

industry and country exlpertise available in other 
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federal agencles, and, ofcourse, the U.S.: private
sector. 

TDP is uniquely suited to respond quickly to 
project opportunities, and, acting In the role of a 
catalyst, to introduce U.S. interests in the early
planning stages of Important projects. 

TDP supports projects that are identified by.
the host governments as being high developmental
priorities. Typically, these projects are related to 
infrastructure development, such as 
telecommunications, energy, environment. These 
projects must also be in sectors where U.S. 
industry is strongly competitive, and for which 
international competitive bidding is expected for 
implementation. U.S. companies compete for TDP
funded studies, and the selection of the company Is 
made by the host government. The company
selected operates under a contract negotiated
between the company and the host government.
Thus, while the grant is provided by the U.S. 
Government, the true working relationship is 
between the host government and the U.S. 
company. The host government approves the scope
of work prior to signing the grant agreement, and 
the study Is monitored by the host government to 
insure that the study will meet host country needs. 

This process Is designed to encourage a strong
working relationship between the host government
and the U.S. company. It is also designed to provide
the host government with a useful product that 
should encourage project Implementation and. of 
course, U.S. procurement. 
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TDP does not reire that U.S. goods: and 
in project implementation.services be procured 

we help to position U.S. companies to bidRather 
and encourage them tosuccessfully on the project, 

pursue addditional business opportunities in that 

We look upon our grants as investmentscountry. 
the dollar volume of U.S.with the return being 

exports sold in project implementation. The 
is apparent in theeffectiveness of this approach 

fact that through FY 1989, TDP obligated a total of 

for project planning in developing and$138 million 
middle income countries. To date, in excess of $3.2 

exports have been associated withbillion of U.S. 
projects supported by TDP-funded studies. These
 

to yield an additional
samie projects are expected 

$7-$8 billion in the next ten years. This return is
 

even more significant when the ripple effect of
 

second- and third- generation equipment
 
and spin-off projects are factored intopurchases 


the equation.
 

I think the best way to describe this process Is 

by providing an example. 

In 1987, TDP provided a grant of $350,000 to 

the Electric Generating Authority of Thailand 
plant study in Bang Pakong.(EGAT) for a power 


Black & Veatch International of Kansas Chj,
 

Missouri was selected to conduct the study in FY 
a result of the excellent working1988. As 

during the study,relationship developed with EGAT 

Black & Veatch Engineering won a follow-on
 

$30engineering services contract with EGAT worth 
& Veatchmillion. In addition, because the Black 

study ultimately set procurement specifications
 

which strongly favored U.S. generator and gas
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turbine technologies, General Electric won thetender for two 300 MW gas turbine combined-cycle 
power plants valued at $64.6 million. This put G.E.in a favorable position to supply a similar project inRayong at Thailand's on-going Eastern Seaboard
 
project.
 

Total exports from this project to date arevaled at $210 million. A potential of $180 millionin additional exports is expected in the future fromthis project. This example also illustrates the factthat many companies, large and small, can benefit
from a single TDP grant. GE's subcontractors for
this project numbered 28, operating out of 35
facilities located in 20 states. In addition, becauseo' the relationships Black & Veatch had established
in the TDP-funded study, they were subsequently
selected as the project management consultant for
the first integrated 
 pulp and paper mill in Thailand.Trhe project is funded at over $200 million. This isan example of the spin-off benefits that derive from 
TDP projects. 

TDP can also intervene at other critical times i,
the lifecycle 
 of a project to encourage U.S.procurement. For Instance, we may fund the travelof procurement officials to the U.S. to meet with U.S.companies and visit U.S. plants and project sites.
An excellent example of the effectiveness ofsuch reverse trade missions Is the following: 

In 1988, TDP learned- that the World Bank wasfunding a $30 million project in Togo for newtelephone, switching equipment. With the hope ofencouraging U.S. companies to take advantage ofthis excellent export opportunity, TDP provided 
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Statesan official visit to the United$21,000 to fund 
by Togolese .officials from the Office of Posts and 

The Togolese were in!roducedTelecommunications. 
equipment P.'adto U.S. telecommunications 

technology, and U.S. companies had nie 
business relationshipsopportunity to establish 

they had neverwith officials from a country 
of this date, U.S.

considered exporting to before. As 

firms have sold $600,000 of U.S. 
equipment to Togo, withtelecommunications 


potential additional exports of $4 million.
 

In FY 1990, TDP sponsored two such 
officials to exposeorientation visits by Turkish 

advanced education technologythem to American 

them to U.S. companies that
and introduce can
 

provide equipment or services in this sector. The
 
Turkish educationvisits were designed to address 


by four World Bank loans. As a

needs financed 

result of these visits, U.S. firms located in New
 

Ohio have already sold

Jersey, Massachusetts, and 

Another$28 million of equipment and services. 

computer
$170 million in educational equipment, 


services are expected to

software, and consulting 

flow from these "reverse trade missions."
 

Another very recent example is a trip for 

Greek Ministry of Health officials funded by TDP in 
cities, the

January 1991. Visiting several U.S. 

to familiarize themselves
delegates were able with 

modern health care facilities, computer systems 
and modernand applications, medical equipment, 

of this
hospital administration systems. As a result 

Digital of Boston received a
trip, in. February 1991 


from the Ministry for $3 million for

contract 

in five hospitals.to be..installedcomputer systems 



.'m, hIieves tMat It could obtain another $10 
... a.un wdC,, which would bring its involvement to 

;jsorc than hulf of the total $21 million procurement 
for the project. 

We may also invite foreign officials to attend 
conferences and technological symposia where U.S. 
technology, expertise and goods and services are 
presented. These conferences also provide an 
opportunity for state participation in TDP program 
opportunities and benefit state exports. For 
example, in November 1989, TDP funded the 
Conference on Asia-Pacific Petrochemical and 
Refinery Integration (CAPPRI) in Houston. CAPPRI 
was organized by the state of Texas, the East-West 
Center in Hawaii, and the University of Houston's 
Small Business Development Center. The purpose 
of CAPPRI was to bring together senior industry 
and government decision-makers from the U.S. and 
Asia to discuss regional petrochemical markets and 
development prospects for the 1990s. An integral
feature of the conference was the opportunity for 
U.S. companies to learn about Asian oil and gas
processing capability and to promote U.S. planning 
and technical services and products. CAPPRI 
opened an avenue for interregional exchange of 
information and trade between the U.S. and the 
Asia-Pacific in the energy and petrochemical fields. 
The potential investment opportunities identified 
during this conference have been estimated at $20
22 billion. TDP also works closely with state 
development agencies as a prime mechanism to 
disseminate information on export opportunities to 
U.S. firms. 

46-816 -091.7-4
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Large businesses frequently. win the contracts 
for the business, and then use small and medium
sized businesses as sub-suppliers. However, .one 
area where small businesses benefit directly is TDP 
definitional missions, which are teams of U.S. 
experts who compile Information critical to TDP's 
internal selection process. DM studies are 
performed by small and minority-owned. 
businesses. Thirty-nine percent of all TDP activites 
in FY 1990 were DMs. 

TDP also funds training, which consists largely 
or offering de minimis mixed credits in the area of 
training. The term de minimis refers to OECD 
guidelines which require prior notification of a 
mixed credit unless it is less than 3% of the 
contract price or $1,000,000, whichever is less. 
These grants are offered for training packages In 
support of a U.S. supplier's bid on international 
contracts and provide important encouragement to 
U.S. industry In the international marketplace. The 
export return is immediate, since the grant does 
not go forward unless the U.S. company is awarded 
the contract in question. For example, the Chilean 
Telephone Company (CTC) announced an award of a 
$29 million contract for the construction o, earth 
satellite stations to the U.S. firm of Scientific 
Atlanta (SA) after TDP was able to offer a $750,000 
training grant to CTC to make SA's bid more 
competitive. The grant, in conjunction with 
conventional Eximbank financing and the U.S. 
Ambassador'. support, neutralized strong 
competition from NEC of Japan and Alcatel of 
France, and SA was awarded the largest single 
International contract 'In the history of the 
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company. TDP currently offers these grants as its 
core budget permits. 

Over 579 companies in 42 states, Puerto Rico,
ond the District of Columbia have benefitted from 
activities supported by TDP. Many of these are
small and medium-sized firms. In addition, there 
are other sub-suppliers associated with these 
projects but it is impossible to identify with them 
all. 

This concludes my oral testimony. I would be glad 
to take your questions. 
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Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you. Let me commend you, again, on the 
job you've done here. There's only one mistake. Only two of these 
charts have Connecticut listed as beneficiaries, and you've brought 
four charts. You probably only should have brought two charts. 

Let me ask you. Is this project in Thailand completed already? 
Do you want to identify yourself if you've got the details? 

Ms. AYRES. Mr. Chairman, the study is completed. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And what happens now as a result of-we have 

a cessation of all AID assistance to Thailand, don't we, because of 
the coup? That's in law. What happens to this? I'm not-how our 
process works more than anything else. 

Ms. AYRES. This is a project that is likely to be funded with 
untied money from either the World Bank, perhaps commercial fi
nancing. The--

Mr. GEJDENSON. Do you know what the World Bank does in this 
kind of situation? Do they stop for awhile? I'm curious to find out. 
We can find that out. I just--

Ms. AYRES. That's an excellent question. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. No, I'm not expecting necessarily that it's in 

your area of responsibility, but what happens with other interna
tional organization and what other countries do. I agree with cut
ting off the programs when there's a coup. We ought to have disin
centives for coups. 

Let me start this. I've just given myself six hours. [Laughter.] 
In 1988, the Trade Development Program-the Act-the Trade 

Development Program should serve as the primary federal agency 
to provide information to persons in the private sector concerning 
trade development and export promotion related to bilateral devrel
opment projects.

In the TDP congressional presentation for 1992 it states the key 
objective for the fiscal year 1992 is to implement an effective and 
comprehensive strategy for distributing project informat!.n and 
export leads to the U.S. business community. 

Are we to assume, then, that TDP has no formal means of distri
bution at this point? There's no kind of set process where either 
the Eric Atwaters, who's the Commerce guy in Hertford, Connecti
cut-does he normally get things from TDP and does he try to dis
tribute-how do you make yourself known, I guess? 

Ms. AYRES. Well, Mr. Chairman, we send our project information 
to major projects in the Department of Commerce, and that infor
mation, as I understand it, would then get to Mr. Atwater, and-

Mr. GEJDENSON. Do you send it out to like the 50 state commerce 
departments? I mean, would that make sense? Would it be an addi
tional burden? I don't have an answer, so-

Ms. AYRES. We have a grant outstanding now to NASDA, and 
NASDA is--

Mr. GEJDENSON. NASDA is? 
Ms. AYRES. The National Association of State Development Au

thorities. And NASDA is determining the most effective means of 
disseminating the information so that it goes to the state develop
ment authorities as well as through the U.S. district offices in the 
Department of Commerce. 

And part of this study is also to determine exactly what kind of 
information is important and useful to the states to disseminate. 
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Mr. GEJDENSON. Because my sense-you know, it's not just on
this issue. I was just back on the weekend in the district working
with people on economic development, and the most frustrating
thing is not just TDP but state programs or local-that good entre
preneurs who are used to being self-reliant and don't like to think 
of themselves as ever having friendly contact with government
don't know the programs that can help make us competitive as a 
nation like this one. 

And, you know, you can't just bury them with mail, because
that's not going to do it, either. You've got to get it to the right
people out there that it's going to make it work. 

Section 2204 of the Trade Act of 1988 requires the Director of
TDP to submit an annual report to the Committee on Foreign Af
fairs by December 31st of each year. Has TDP complied with the 
law? 

Ms. AYRES. TDP is in the process of complying. We do have an 
annual report. I apologize that it is late. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. You are not the only one. We have never found 
an executive agency that was on -time. We are impressed when 
they actually do one. 

Have you done previous years' reports, or have your predecessors
done reports?

Ms. RABB A :e;s. I am embarrassed to say that apparently we 
overlooked our annual report for last year; however, we do have 
one for 1988. 

MIr. GEJDENSON. Can we get a copy of that? 
Ms. AYERS. Yes.'
Mr. GEJDENSON. Is TDP a member of the Trade Policy Coordinat

ing Committee? 
Ms. AYERS. Yes. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And has the committee met? 
Ms. AYERS. The committee is actually not a single committee. It

is a very complex interaction of working groups. TDP is very active 
on most of the working groups, and I have participated in the two 
TPCC conferences sponsored by the Department of Commerce. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Who is the primary person in Commerce respon
sible? 

Ms. AYERS. Secretary Mosbacher.
Mr. GEJDENSON. So it goes right from his office? 
Ms. AYERS. Yes, and he participates in those coatferences. There

have been two conferences so far, one in St. Louis, and the kickoff 
was in Minneapolis.

Within the next two weeks, there is going to be one in Hartford,
as well as Cincinnati, and I am glad that you have brought up the
TPCC, in that this is also a very, very useful and very important 
means of getting information to the exporting community as far as 
what government agencies are available and how we work togeth
er. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. And does that apply to inside the Government 
as well, like for instance with the Expert/Import Bank and AID? 

Ms. AYERS. Yes. We are all participating. 

I Information on rile at subcommittee. 
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Mr. GEJDENSON. So when the Export/Import Bank met with 
USAID on May 15th and announced they were creating a $500 mil
lion U.S. mixed credit pool to leverage financing for development 
projects, did they contact you? 

Ms. AYERS. Well, this was prior to the TPCC. 
Mr. GJDENSON. May 15, 1990 was before the TPCC? 
Ms. AYERS. Yes. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. But did we not say that you should be included 

as of the 1988 Act where it said-the 1988 Trade Act that allowed 
mixed credits to be part of TDP's portfolio? 

Ms. AYERS. Yes. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. So is there somebody I can call at the AID or 

the Export/Import Bank to convince them you should play a more 
prominent role in this program? 

Ms. AYERS. TDP is aware of the activities of the Ex/Im Bank-
AID mixed credit fund. We are available to assist with project iden
tification. We are called from time to time for information and as
sistance. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. But shouldn't you just run it? I mean, I do not 
want to give you a territory grab here without the other folks, but 
should that not be in your bailiwick, or am I wrong there? 

Ms. AYERS. Well, TDP does have the authority under the Trade 
Act of 1988 to administer a program of mixed credits in conjunc
tion--

Mr. GEJDENSON. Pardon?
 
Ms. AYERS. TDP does have the authority under the Trade Act of
 

1988 to administer a program of mixed credits. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. But you are not administering this program? 
Ms. AYERS. No, sir. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And did somebody feel they were exempt from 

the law? 
Ms. AYERS. I can only speak for the other agencies to say that 

the administration determined that the most effective means of ad
ministering a mixed credit program would be to combine the exper
tise and resources of Ex/Im Bank with those of AID, and we cer
tainly are a third party.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Miller. 
Mr. MILLER. Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you, Ms. 

Rabb, for your testimony. 
I have been reading these fantastic ratios, one dollar in and

what is it-how many dollars back? 
Mr. GEJDENSON. 75. 
Mr. MILLER. $75 back. How do you calculate this? How do you 

decide how many dollars benefit is due to a study of yours, for ex
ample? 

Ms. AYERS. Well, initially when we learn of a project, we try to 
find out the potential for U.S. exports, and this determination is 
made by an expert who carries out the definitional mission, as I 
mentioned earlier. That is a ballpark figure, obviously, since we 
are talking about the very early stages of a project. 

We also get in touch with the U.S. business community and 
make an assessment as to whether or riot they feel competitive, if 
they are likely to bid on the project, and if they have a strong in
terest. 
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We have documented so far $2.1 billion in direct exports fromthe feasibility studies alone, and since 1981, TDP has spent $121
million to fund 411 studies.

Mr. MILLER. I guess what I am getting at, and this is not beingcritical, I am just trying to figure out how exact this science is,when you document X billion dollars of exports from these studies,
how do you relate cause and effect?

Can you be sure that all these exports flow from your study, or can you not be sure that they would not have-some of them would 
not have happened in any event? I am just--

Ms. AYERS. Well, the answer is, we cannot take direct credit forthe exports that ensure in the procurement on a project. Since TDP
is involved in the early stages, we facilitate that procurement, but we do not have project finance, and our typical feasibility study is
in the very early stages.

Mr. MILLER. So you are talking about, you have played a positive
role in promoting these exports.

Ms. AYERS. Yes. 
Mr. MILLER. Directly or indirectly. And it could be either. Okay.My next question, and I confess to not being as knowledgeable

about TDP as I should be, and after this session, I will be more-Mr. GaJDENSON. Well, we are holding this hearing to help you
out. 

Mr. MILLER. That is right. That is why we have these hearings,
and I thank you for doing that. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. My pleasure.
Mr. MILLER. Eastern Europe. We hear a lot about American companies being discouraged in Eastern Europe, not feeling they can

compete with Western European companies, Japanese or whatever.Is that your experience" And iVso, do you have any theories onwhy that is true, or have you done any studies on that?
Ms. AYERS. TDP has a very strong program in Eastern Europe,

and Hungary and Poland and Czechoslovakia in particular, at this
time. 

We have foi,-d that early on there were a number of companiesthat were taken up with the excitement and the thrill of the process in Eastern Europe, and these companies just flooded into East
ern Europe with very, very high c'pectations.

A number of these companies either were not in a position totake advantage of the opportunities, or probably more likely thecounties in Eastern Europe really were not prepared to be able totake advantage of what the U.S. companies had to offer.Be that as it may, we have also discovered that there is a very,very strong core of U.S. companies that are presently very active,that are very interested in continuing to work in Eastern Europe,and I must say that our experience is that there is a very strong
enthusiasm for operating in Eastern Europe.

Mr. MILLER. You are not discouraged?
Ms.AYERS. Not at all. No, we are not.
Mr. MILLER. Buy American programs, some of the countries, particularly Asian countries, have these Buy American programs.Do you have any of studies or projects had any interaction with

those Buy American programs?
Ms. AYERS. Yes. 
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Mr. MILLER. Could you give me your assessment of how valid 
these programs are. I mean, is it just puffery, or do you find they 
are meaningful?

I mean, I ask the question because I am considering having a 
conference in Seattle with several Asian nations that have Buy
American programs with companies in my area, who, you know, do 
not seem to be particularly aware of them, have not, you know
but what advice do you give American companies about Buy Amer
ican programs with Asian or other nations. Japan, South Korea, 
Taiwan all have these programs. 

Ms. AYERS. TDP has had limited experience with Buy America 
programs, especially in Taiwan. I am not an expert on the effec
tiveness of such programs, but one important point as to Buy
America programs is that there is a fundamental question that has 
yet to be answered, and that is what constitutes a U.S. product.

Does this mean this is a product that is merely assembled in the 
United States? If AT&T source is out of the Netherlands and 60 
percent of their phone equipment is out of the Netherlands, is this 
a U.S. source, the software? Does that constitute a U.S. product or 
not? 

Ms. AYERS. I think that there are going to be problems, and this 
is my personal opinion, I think there are going to be problems with 
these programs until we can deal with the issue of a definition of 
what really does constitute U.S. sourcing.

Mr. MILLER. So beyond that, you cannot asess how real or valid 
these programs are? 

Ms. AYERS. I do not believe that I have the information. 
Mr. MILLER. Well, I thank you. I think I have used up my time, 

Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And then some. Mr. Orton. 
Mr. ORTON. You were doing so well. I was enjoying it. 
Thank you again for coming. It is apparent that TDP is achiev

ing success. I have questions as to how we measure that success 
and how we accurately determine whether or not these countries 
would have bought American goods anyway. Also, how do we deter
mine the involvement of TDP simply from the feasibility study 
aspet?I am probably not as familiar as Mr. Miller with the operations 

of TDP, having just arrived in town recently-but I understand 
that your main focuR is feasibility studies, is that right? 

Ms. AYERS. Yes. 
Mr. ORTON. As opposed to conceptual and design and so on. 
Ms. AYERS. Yes. 
Mr. ORTON. Is there any way that we can be sure that, in fact, 

the increased American exports are a result of TOP promotion?
Would we be more effective if we expanded TDP's operations
beyond feasibility studies into concept and design, as well as just 
feasibility?

Would that help us in increasing U.S. exports? How can we 
make this work better? 

Ms. AYERS. Well, Mr. Orton, I thinkyou correctly recognize that 
there is not a, 'ear, direct line from a TDP study to the actual pro
curement. However, the nature of the process that TDP follows,
which is to speak to the host government and have the host gov



99
 
enmient identify important developmental projects, is the first stepto introducing U.S. goods and services in the implementation of the
project, because these are also typically the projects where there is very, very strong foreign competition, and these are also typicallythe projects where foreign governments support their industries.

And at least in the very first step, it is helpful that the U.S. Government shows its support for the project and for U.S. expertise by
offering to fund a feasibility study.

We purposely do not require U.S. procurement in project implementation, but we want this to be a study that is really going tomeet the needs of the host government. This is an aspect of TDPthat is very highly valued by the host countries where we operate,
and that helps to put U.S. companies on something of a more equalfooting, and they are working cooperatively with the host govern
ments. 

So the U.S. companies, then, are selected by the host country, sothe host country, then, has its choice of the qualifications of the 
company that it wants to work with, and that really does help to 
set the process.

Clearly, the closer you can get to the actual drawing or draftingof the specifications for the projects and selection of equipmentwould help to ensure that U.S. goods and services would be likely
to be procured in project implementation.

Mr. ORTON. Going beyond feasibility to assisting in conceptual
design and detail design of the project. Is this idea sound in that itwould give us a more reasonable expectation of U.S. exports in that 
particular project?

Ms. AYERS. Yes, absolutely, especially since once the typical TDPstudy ends in the very early stages, it is possible that a French 
company will come in and take up the conceptual design, and atthat point, whatever benefit is being done for U.S. businesses will
certainly be diluted to some extent.


Mr. ORTON. 
 Do you have any idea what costs would be incurredand how much more funding you would require to expand beyond
the feasibility stage?

Ms. AYERS. I do not have any exact numbers, and, in fact, fortunately there are two experts on the private sector panel who might
be able to be more specific than I can be.It is my understanding that generally conceptual design costs approximately 2 percent of the project cost, and the detail design issomewhere around 6 percent of the project cost. So it would depend
on a project-by-project basis as to how much it might cost. 

Mr. ORTON. Are there any studies to tell us if we expanded intoconceptual and detail design what amount of increased exports wewould get? I am trying to figure out where we get the highest
return for the amount of money invested.

You have done very well at $35 million. If we increase that manyfold, will we get a manyfold increase of the benefit? That is the 
question.

Ms. AYERS. And that is a very good question. I think it dependson the project. I think we can say that the return will be 
sure, although if we 

more 
put more money into a project, then it wouldtake an incremental amount of exports proportionate to the increase in the TDP funding to show relative benefit. 
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But I would like to point out also that we are, in fact, on some 
projects, getting into conceptual design, as it is deemed important, 
as we can fund-

Mr. GEJDENSON. That comes out of-if the gentleman would 
yield-it comes out of your $35 million? 

Ms. AYERS. Yes, yes, absolutely. In fact, there is one project in 
Poland for modernization of the power sector that is a $2 million 
project, but it was important to get into the feasibility study, which 
also gets into conceptual design to ensure the fact that German 
technology and equipment was not used to modernize this sector, 
and it is also a technology that is appropriate for other countries in 
that region. 

So in that case, we did make a commitment for $2 million to 
fund the study, and, of course, we are hopeful for a tremendous 
return on that. 

Mr. ORTON. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have used my
time, and I have another committee meeting on the Subcommittee 
on International Development in the Banking Committee that I 
have to leave for. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Well, we will miss you. 
Mr. ORTON. Excuse me. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Engel. 
Mr. ENGEL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The $35 million-
Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Engel, if you would speak into the mike. 

The other one is for the reporter. Keep that one close to you.
Mr. ENGEL. Oh, okay. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. We need both versions of your statements. 
Mr. ENGEL. The $35 million budget which was mentioned, when 

you consider the Mexican Free Trade Agreement and the rebuild
ing of Kuwait and possibly Iraq, and you mentioned Eastern 
Europe as I was coming in, in response to Mr. Miller's questions, 
how can TDP perform well in all these areas with a budget of only 
$35 million? 

Mr. GEJDENSON. A great manager of the program. [Laughter.] 
Ms. AYERS. Maybe I should just leave it at that. [Laughter.] 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Do you need more? 
Ms. AYERS. I'd be happy to. We find that TDP is structured in a 

way to be very adaptable. That is adaptable to a sudden drop-off in 
demand, such as happened in China and now in Thailand, as well 
as adaptable to an increase, such as the opening of Eastern Europe, 
with a set budget for the year. 

What is important to us is that we operate very well on a project 
basis and that we are able to balance our resources, so that we can 
operate in the most effective way around the world. 

We like to think that we do an excellent job. I know that the 
TDP staff does an excellent job, regardless of Lhe amount of fund
ing. It is a matter of how many projects and the degree to which 
we can do these projects, if we can go intr conceptual design, for 
example, or if we should spend $21,000 on an orientation visit in
stead. 

Mr. ENGEL. Because of the war in the Gulf, are you anticipating 
increased demand on your resources as a result? 
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Ms. AYRES. Well, as it happens, I am not sure if there will be ademand as far as the restructuring of Kuwait is concerned. I'mnot-it is not clear yet whether or not there would be an important

role for TDP to play in a country where they do have a great dealof money and they seem to have these resources available to them.President Bush has already stated that no U.S. money will beused to rebuild Iraq and so I have no reason to expect that TDPwill be involved in Iraq. However, countries such as Turkey havebeen affected and disadvantaged as a result of the war in the Gulfand we have already experienced an increase in requests fromTurkey. So I do expect that, maybe it is a bit more indirect, but Ido expect that we will have a somewhat increased demand.Mr. ENGEL. Some of our friendly competitors, foreign competitors, particularly Japan, some of the others, France, Canada, Italy,they have similar programs, is that not true? But their budgets are 
much larger?

Ms. AYRES. Well, this is an issue that we have been strugglingwith probably since TDP was started. There really is no single program or agency that is directly comparable to TDP, although Ithink that it is fair to say that the overall foreign assistance effortsof the countries that you mentioned are very much more trade oriented and they certainly have a great deal more money behindthem. So, I think that the logical conclusion is that of course whatever aspects of those overall assistance programs are comparable toTDP, they certainly are bound to be better funded.
Mr. ENGEL. Would that be the major difference, the fact thatthey are more trade oriented in their programs than ours?Ms. AYRES. The major difference I think probably rests in thephilosophy behind the program and of course the funding, and I 

am not sure which comes first.
Mr. ENGEL. What do you mean by philosophy? How would youclassify their philosophy as being different and how do their programs vis-a-vis the way our program works?
Ms. AYRES. The basic philosophy that I am referring to is thestrong feeling that it is appropriate for Government-for theFrench Government, the Japanese Government-to assist their industry by offering subsidies, concessional financing, by promotingtrade both in the developed world, but particularly in the developing world. The U.S. Government believes that the U.S. privatesector is competitive and it is important for the U.S. companies to 

compete for these projects.
And I would like to add here that in my experience at TDP Ihave been extremely impressed with how competitive U.S. companies are. But the difference I think is probably in the area of fi

nancing in terms of support.
Mr. ENGEL. So would you say if you compare our programs toTtheir programs how would you rateworking? the way their programs areMs. AYRES. Well, this is a personal opinion of mine. Certainly in 

terms of buying up projects, there are other programs that are more effective in buying the projects. In terms of really establishing a foothold in those countries and offering a valuable service, Ihave my doubts as to whether or not the results or what has been
purchased is really worth the price. 
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I have travelled extensively to developing countries in my cur
rent position and I n.ast say I have seen a number of white ele
phants that have been gifts of different governments, not of the 
U.S. Government. Take for one example, an air traffic control 
system in Harare that I learned was not operative after I had 
landed, fortunately, and I was told not to worry about it on the 
way out, but it had been a gift of the Italian Government, but it sat 
there, it was not working, it never had worked, but it was there. 

And meanwhile, some U.S. companies were competing to put in 
an operating air traffic control system, and we did what we could 
to help. 

Mr. ENGEL. So are we actually, if I might, just one final question,
•Mr. Chairman. Are we actually helping the private sector with our 
attitude or would we be better off in offering these subsidies and 
doing the other things that some of the other countries are doing? 

Ms. AYRES. Well, again, my personal opinion, I think there is 
probably a happy medium. It is probably best to ask the private 
sector as to whether or not they are being helped. But I think that 
as the Chairman mentioned, the private sector would like to think 
that it can operate without government assistance except in those 
times when it would like some government assistance. 

So I think that-I think that we are working together very very 
effectively and I am very much heartened by the attitude that is 
particularly apparent during the current administration, where the 
State Department has let the ambassadors know that it strongly 
encouraged the U.S. ambassadors that they are the senior commer
cial officers at their posts, where all of the agencies, all federal 
agencies are very interested in supporting trade and doing what 
they can to encourage U.S. trade. 

Mr. ENGEL. Okay. Thank you very much. 
Chairman GEJDENSON. Thank you. Just a couple of quick ques

tions before I let you go. According to your presentation, you obli
gated more funds than were appropriated in 1992? 

Ms. AYRES. Yes. 
Chairman GEJDENSON. How much more did you obligate? I do it 

all the time. [Laughter.] 
Chairman GEJDENSON. Master Card calls. 
Ms. AYRES. In 1990 TDP obligated $600,000 over our appropria

tion for that year. We did that because we had funding that came 
from no year funding. In 1982, 1983 and 1984 TDP had no year 
funding and since that time there were projects where funding had 
been obligated that did not happen, other projects where not all of 
the money was spent, so we were able to reobligate those funds and 
we had husbanded those resources and had those available for 
urgent projects for 1990. 

Chairman GEJDENSON. The efficiency and effectiveness of your 
organization is often attributed to your leadership and to the size 
of the organization. If we were to increase your authorization to 50 
or $75 million could you-would you need an additional increase in 
your staff size or could you absorb that? 

Ms. AYRES. Well, TDP has been-has grown ever since it was 
started in 1980 and in its first fiscal year the funding was some
where under $5 million. I believe it was approximately $4 million. 
The process of growing in terms of budget and organization growth 
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is ongoing, and in fact we have recently evolved our organizational
structure so that I believe that we can very efficiently and effec
tively administer a program with the $35 million budget and with 
very few increases in staff, probably in the administrative area,
and then also I think in the project support. We have five new
hires selected to-these are project officers to work with the region
al directors, and it might be necessary to add one or two more
project officers, but I believe that we have a structure now that can
accommodate increased funding in the future and allow us to main
tain the-maintain a small organization and one that can respond
quickly and remain flexible. I think it is important to recognize
that most of the time-consuming activities that TDP is involved
with are done by the experts, by the private sector. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. And expanding into including engineering and
design, would that create tremendous burdens on the organization?
Or, again, is that primarily contract work in the private sector?

Ms. AYRES. It is my belief that that is a logical extension of what 
we are doing. The process would not change. The process would be
the same with host country contracts and using the expertise in 
the private sector. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. We are going to have a talk With AID and the
Ex/Imbank about I think the failure of your inclusion in a serious 
way and some of the programs they have initiated, but I had hoped
that you would stand up for your organization and fight a little
from the inside, as I think it will make a necessary improvement
in how we do business. We thank you for coming and we hope to 
see more of those maps with stars back to Connecticut on tnem.

Ms. AYRES. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you. Our next panel includes Mr. Jim

Andrew, Vice President of Government Affairs with the M.W. Kel
logg Company and Mr. William Trammell, Vice President, Project
Finance, Fluor Corporation.
 

[Asides.]
 
Mr. GEJDENSON. No cereal here, hey?

Mr. ANDREWS. No, absolutely not. No corn flakes.
 
Mr. GEJDENSON. No corn flakes.
 
Mr. TRAMMELL. No fluorocarbons either.

Mr. GEJDENSON. No. Well, folks, why don't we start? We have 

Mr. Andrews first alphabetically; he can start. 
Mr. ANDREWS. Sure, thank you.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Your entire statements will be placed in the

record. Please feel free to proceed as you are most comfortable. 
STATEMENT OF JIM ANDREWS, VICE PRESIDENT, GOVERNMENT 

AFFAIRS, THE M.W. KELLOGG COMPANY 
Mr. ANDREWS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My company is a wholly-owned subsidi&ry of Dresser Industries. 

Kellogg provides design, procurement, construction, plant operations, and maintenance for plants that are chemical processing fa
cilities that take oil and natural gas and transform them into
value-added products. Of our 1990 revenues of about a billion fourhundred million, over 50 percent of those were derived from ex
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ports, primarily to developing countries. Foreign competition is be-
coming more intense in the overseas markets that we are in today. 

We appreciate your past support of TDP. This program, although 
relatively small by U.S. Government agency standards, presents a 
unique resource to assist us in winning export work overseas. 

The nature of our business requires extensive project develop
ment. To avoid exacerbating the debt problem existing in many de
veloping countries, a thorough project development plan must 
serve as the foundation for capital investment. The most important 
components of the project plan are the feasibility study and concep
tual design, which provide both the client and the lender, as well 
as potential contractors, a common basis to approach the work. 
Having a U.S.-backed feasibility study adds credibility to the effort 
and provides a professional avenue for U.S. firms to demonstrate to 
the client an understanding of the technical requirements and es
tablish a commercial relationship that will assist us in winning the 
follow-on work. 

TDP is agile, adaptable, and very responsive to a variety of cir
cumstances to assure U.S. firms have access to increasingly diffi
cult markets. Our experience in dealing with this organization is 
quite good. The staff, although small in number, is technically pro
ficient and very professional. Their approach to business is non-bu
reaucratic; they understand simplicity in contracting and allow 
business to be done quickly while fully conforming to U.S. procure
ment law. 

Their programs could be of more assistance to the exporter if ex
panded to include conceptual and detailed design. As I have stated 
earlier, the review required for financial decision-making is exten
sive. Lending institutions as well as the client's own hierarchy re
quire detailed information on cost and feasibility. Further, TDP 
support of design for major infrastructure projects would put the 
U.S. on the same footing as other nations, particularly Japan. Our 
industry has experienced instances where the Japanese, for exam
ple, have received government support to accomplish detailed 
design. This enables specification of Japanese equipment or compo
nents, thus virtually assuring their sourcing from Japan. There
fore, by expanding the TDP's charter to include these services, we 
think we will enhance U.S. ability to export. 

Two recent examples of TDP's adaptability involving my compa
ny are illustrative of TDP's effectiveness. The first is a feasibility 
effort we conducted for Petrogal, the Portuguese Oil Company. The 
study evajuated the actions that Petrogal must take to have their 
refinery products competitive in the EC-92 environment. This 
state-run oil company was being privatized and the client-Petro
gal-was in a state of organizational change. A French company 
had an inside position to win this work. Our company believed that 
if we could do the feasibility study we would ba positioned to com
pete strongly for the follow-on work, valued at over $300 million. 
TDP, with the help of our commercial attache in Lisbon, made the 
offer to support the study, the offer was accepted and we did in fact 
conduct the feasibility study. Unfortunately, we did not win the 
follow-on work, but another U.S. firm did. So for the purposes of 
TDP's mission, I think it was accomplished. 
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In Emother area, TDP supported a feasibility effort in Yugoslavia

for a liquefied natural gas terminal. This project would receiveLNG from Algeria and provide distribution to three other countries: Hungary, Czechoslovakia, and Austria. The project would
provide an alternate source of energy for these countries, making
them less dependent on the Soviet gas. Notwithstanding the uncertain situation in Yugoslavia, we believe the project will move for
ward. TDP, along with the commercial attaches and ambassadors
of the countries I just mentioned, assisted us in winning the work.

After being selected, a French firm came along and made theoffer to do the study for nothing. TDP responded immediately to
alter the financial administrative arrangements for the grant sothat we in fact had the same footing as our French competitor, and 
we won the work. An additional feature of this study provides for
consortium staff to visit the United States and see LNG terminals
similar to the one propose I for Yugoslavia. The visit, which would
cost $25,000, will put the staff not only in contact with our engineering people, but also with equipment manufacturers here in the
United States and obviously enhance our ability to win follow-on 
work. 

The Coalition for Employment through Exports, a key advocacy
group of U.S. companies on trade finance issues, supports a twoyear reauthorization level of $120 million for the Trade and Devel
opment Program, $50 million for 1992 and $70 million for 1993.This represents an increase over the administration's request of
$35 million. These levels of funding would enable the Trade Development Program to meet anticipated requests for pre-investment
feasibility studies, engineering design services and training.


With the proliferation of market economies, the increasing effort

by developing countries to reduce debt, and the move 
to privatize
many government parastatal activities, the United States exporter
has an excellent opportunity to contribute to the success of these
initiatives. With the help of TDP, we can assure that the key ingredient of economic growth, that of prudent capital investment, is
made with solid U.S. know-how. TDP's programs can provide the 
means to add more credibility to a developing country's decision
making process while directly improving U.S. export opportunities.
Eastern Europe, Central and South America, Africa, and Asia allhave examples of sound ideas that, with rational development,
could provide wise capital investment and in turn could accelerate
the development of their economies. TDP's capabilities provide the 
cornerstone of capital project development that if adequately re
sourced would assist U.S. firms to increase their own exports.I thank you for the opportunity to testify and would be happy to 
take your questions.

[The statement of Mr. Andrews follows:] 



106
 

PREPARED STATEMNT OF JAMES 1. IDREWS
 
VICE PRESIDENT, GOVERNMENT AFFAIRU
 

TUB N. W. KELLOGG COMPANY
 

before the
 

SUBCOMMZTTEE ON INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC POLICY AND TRADE
 
COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS
 
U.S. HOUSE OF REPREBENTATIVES
 

WABSINOTON, D.C.
 

TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 1991 

.Thankyou, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to testify in
 

support of the reauthorization of the Trade and Development Program
 

(TDP). My company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dresser Industries.
 

Kellogg provides design, procurement, construction, plant operations,
 

and maintenance services for oil and chemical processing facilities
 

that transform oil and natural gas resources into useful value added
 

"products. Of our total 1990 revenues of $1.4 billion, over 50 percen
 

are derived from exports primarily to developing countries. Foreign
 

competition is intense in our international markets.
 

Mr. Chairman, we appreciate your past support of TDP. This
 

program, although relatively small by U.S. Government agency
 

standards, presents a unique resource to assist us in winning export
 

work.
 

The nature of our business requires extensive project
 

development. To avoid exacerbating the debt problem in many
 

developing countries, a thorough project development plan must serve
 

as the foundation for capital-projects. Thamostimportant components
 

of the project plan are the feasibility study and conceptual design
 

which provide the client, the lender, and potential contractors a
 

common basis to approach the work. Having a U.S.-backed'feasibility
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study adds credibility to the effort and.provides a professional
 

'avenue for U.S. firms to demonstrate to the client an understanding of
 

the technical requirements and establish a commerjial relationship
 

that will assist them in their attempt to win the follow-on work.
 

. TOP is agile and adaptable to a variety of circumstances to
 

assure U.S. firms have access to difficult markets, Our experience in
 

dealing with this organization is quite good. The staff, although
 

small in number, is technically proficient and professional. Their
 

approach to business is non-bureaucratic; they understand simplicity,
 

in contracting thus allowing business to be done quickly while
 

conforming to U.S. procurement law.
 

Their programs could be of more assistance to the exporter if
 

expanded to include conceptual and detailed design. 
As I have stated
 

the review required for financial decision making is extensive.
 

I.ending institutions as well as the client's own hierarchy require
 

detailed information on cost arnd feaslility.. Further, TDP support of
 

detailed design for major infrastructure projects would put the U.S.
 

on the same footing as other nations, particularly Japan. Our
 

industry has experienced instances where the Japanese, for example,
 

have received government support to accomplish the detailed design.
 

This enables specification of Japanese equipment or components thus
 

virtually assuring their sourcing from Japan. 
Therefore, by expanding
 

TDP's charter to include these services, U.S. exports will be
 

enhanced.
 

TOP is working well to coordinate their interface with the 

Export-Import Bank of the U.S. and the.Overseas Private Investment 

corporation (OPIC). Both of:these agencies' progrms are in 

complement with TP... TOP has participated in a number of OPIC trade 
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missions. On last year's mission toPoland, I saw how the U.S.
 

Polish
Tommercial Attache, the TDP ataff, and OPIC teamed to educate 

As a businessmanauthorities on U.S. export assistance programs. 


involved on that mission, I saw business opportunities that intime
 

will result inU.S. exports and make use of both TDP and OPIC's
 

programs.
 

Two recent examples of TDP's adaptability involving my company
 

are illustrative of ToP's effectiveness. The first isa feasibility
 

effort we conducted for Petrogal, the Portugese Oil Company. This
 

study evaluated the actions that Petrogal must take to have their
 

refinery products competitive inthe EC-92 environment. This state
 

run oil company was being privatized and the client -- Petrogal -- was
 

in a state of organizational change. A French company had an inside
 

position to win this work. Our company believed ifwe could do the
 

'easibility study we would be positioned to compete strongly for the
 

TDP, with the help of our
follow-on work valued at $300 million. 


commercial Attache inLisbon, made the offer to support the study.
 

The offer was accepted, and we conducted the feasibility study.
 

Unfortunately, we did not win the follow-on work, but a U.S. company
 

So for purposes of U.S. exports, the TOP involvement led to a
did. 


successful result.
 

Inanother area, TOP supported a feasibility effort inYugoslavia 

for a Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) terminal. This project would 

receive LNG from Algeria and provide distribution to three other 

countries:; Hungary, Czechoslovakia, and Austria.- The project:-would 

provide an alternate source of energy for these cduntries making them 

.ess dependent on Soviet gas. Notwithstanding the uncertain situation
 

TDP, along
in Yugoslavia, we believe this project will move forward. 
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with the Commercial At"acyes and/Ambassadors, assisted us In winning 

this work. After being/selected, a French firm made an offer to do
 

the study for free. TDP,'responded immediately to alter the financial
 

administrative arrangements to make our use of the grant comparable t
 

the French firmIs approach. An additional feature of this study
 

provides for four consortium staff to visit the;U.S. to look at LNG
 

terminals similar to the one proposed for Yugoslavia. The visit,
 

costing $25,000, will put the staff in contact 4ith our engineering
 

staff and also equipment manufacturers during their brief stay in the
 

U.S. This trip will further enhance the U.S. competitive posture to
 

win the follow-on work.
 

our two studies cost $1.4 million. While TOP's funds were
 

increased in FY'91 to $35 million,,'clearly a further increase is, in
 

my judgment, justified particularly if this Committee concludes that
 

the program merits expansion.
 

The coalition for Employment through Exports (CEE), a key
 

advocacy group for U.S. companies on trade finance issues, supports a
 

two year authorization level of $120 million for the Trade and
 

Development Program - $50 million for FY'92 and $70 million for FY'93.
 

This represents an increase over the Administration's proposed level
 

of $35 million for FY'92. These levels of funding would enable TOP to
 

meet anticipated requests for preo-investment feasibility studies,
 

engineering design services, and training.
 

The higher funding levels will be critical to meet the increased
 

demand for TOP funds and to support export growth needed to lead the
 

recovery of the U.S. economy. As this Comaittee will remember, the
 

business community has been on record for a number of years
 

ecommending the higher authorizations for TDP. There are few
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; T D

- P is onethat work,well together Government/industry partnerships 

that works very well.-


With proliferation of market economiew, the increasing efforts by
 

developing countries to reduce debt, and the move to privatize many
 

government parastatal activities, the United States exporter has an
 

opportunity to contribute to the success of these initiatives. With
 

of TDP, we can assure that a key ingredient of economic 

growth -- prudent capital investment -- is made with solid U.S. know-

TDP's programs can provide the means to add more credibility to 

the help 

how. 


a developing country's decision making process while directly
 

improving U.S. export opportunities. Eastern Europe, Central and
 

South America, Africa, and Asia all have examples of sound ideas that,
 

with rational development, could provide wise capital investment that
 

in turn could accelerate the development of their economies. 
TDP's
 

:apabilities provide the cornerstone of capital project development
 

that if adequately resourced will assist.U.S. firms increase exports.
 

I thank you for the opportunity to testify and would be happy to take
 

your questions.
 



111 

Mr. GJD'ENSON. Thank you. Mr. Trammell. 

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM TRAMMELL, VICE PRESIDENT,
PROJECT FINANCE, FLUOR CORPORATION 

Mr. TRAMMELL. Mr. Chairman, my name is Bill Trammell. I amVice President of Project Financing for Fluor Daniel, Inc. That isthe engineering construction subsidiary for Fluor Corporation and
the major profit earner of the corporation.

Fluor Daniel provides a very broad range of services on a broad
scale and world wide. We do everything from airports to electric 
power plants to the--

Mr. GEJDENSON. Are you in Kuwait, yet?

Mr. TRAMMELL. I suspect that if we 
are not there, we are about one step over tlhe border. As it happens, I believe there are some

people here in town working on that this week.
In the interest of time I am going to deviate from written re"

marks and first of all agree in principle with everything Mr. Andrews has said. There is no point in repeating it. Let me just summarize, though, by saying TDP does a heck of a job for a small organization with a limited budget. One of the best things that could
happen to our trade program is to give these people a little more 
money and a little more scope.

I would like to focus on some questions that have already beenraisel this afternoon and use some experience to shed some light 
on them.

Mr. Miller asked how do we know what is the multiplier effect?
TDP's goal is to get $75 of exports for every dollar of grant. At theCAPPRI conference, which TDP sponsored out of their 1990 budget,we were able to come together with TDP and a potential client, thenational oil company of Indonesia, define a study and with the helpof a $350,000 grant move that study into an award of a project thatwill generate over $200 million of U.S. exports, and we know what
those exports--

Mr. GEJDENSON. How much was the study?
Mr. TRAMMELL. The study was $350,000. The U.S. content will be over 200 million. It is a lump sum job and we know where we are 

buying what. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And how much of that is to your company?

Mr. TRAMMELL. A significant portion of it. All of it, of course; it


is a lump sum job.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Right. Because you are buying, but I mean howmuch are you actually-I guess what the challengers and what Mr.Miller would have asked you if he was here is, well, if you aregoing to get $200 million worth of work, why do you not just spend

350,000 yourself?
Mr. TRAMMELL. It is an interesting question, Mr. Chairman. Wehave a hard-headed manager of proposal expenses, and we couldnot convince him to spend that first $350,000. As it happens, wehave spent that much or more perfecting the lump sum bid so that we could win the job. But that initial amount of money, whennobody was sure whether there was really a project here or not,

was critical. It was very, very important to us to receive that grant.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Continue, please. 
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Mr. rRAMMELL. By the way, I just looked at a list of vendors, po
tential vendors for that project and I am chagrined to notice there 
are none from Connecticut. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Well, as I was sitting here listening to you, I was 
thinking of a list of people who might be helpful to you and we will 
send them along. [Laughter.] 

Mr. TRAMMELL. I am sure that there is room for discussion here. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. As a matter of fact I just took your name off 

this list so I could send it to some of my people who are interested 
in doing business in Kuwait, but go ahead. 

Mr. TRAMMELL. Please do. We will be glad to have them. 
Anyway, that was a heck of a return for a $350,000 grant. Two 

hundred million, $250 million, whatever it comes out to be, because 
we will be awarding some work to non-U.S. vendors. That is exact
ly what TDP was created to do. 

Mr. Orton asked the question about achieving success by being 
able to do more than feasibility studies. In TDP's 1990 budget, 
there was a grant to the government of Thailand for a study, which 
we were successful in winning, that plans the production, transpor
tation and utilization of all of Thailand's gas reserves for the next 
10 years. We have successfully completed that study and could 
have gone right on to win the conceptual engineering of the first 
piece of work to be done, a particular undersea gas pipeline. 

Because we had no grant funding for that work, it has now been 
lost to a Canadian competitor. Had we been able to go on and do 
the conceptual engineering, which would have taken us through 
specifying U.S. equipment, we would have been able to not only 
avoid a slowdown in the Thai program, but we would have cap
tured a great deal of export value for the United States. 

We have not given up hope. There are a number of additional 
projects to be awarded in this program, and I promise you we are 
going to more than accomplish TDP's goals. I simply use this as an 
illustration of why conceptual engineering is a follow-on that is so 
important. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Do you agree with that? 
Mr. ANDREWS. Yes, I do, and I would like to go back to one of the 

questions about the grant and why you would not spend the 
$350,000 to win the $200 million worth of work. 

The TDP offers the full faith and credit of the United States, and 
the initial arrangement is backed by the United States Govern
ment, and it is really not contractor-specific right at the beginning. 
A country that is going to embark on a major capital investment 
do not want to be married up with one contractor right at the be
ginning. So the grant enables, if you will, the matchmaking process 
to take place in a better environment. 

So that the grant itself is the seed money for us to begin to estab
lish that commercial and technical relationship which then carries 
us forward to win the work. And if we were able to have more of 
the engineering done under the aegis of the TDP, we could get 
closer to the spec that my colleague here has said that is the end
game. 

Mr. TRAMMELL. To continue, the size of TDP's grants is a little 
limiting in our business. Feasibility studies in our business often 
run to a million dollars, and TDP's restriction of $350 to $400,000 
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in general often requires additional sources of funding from somewhere else, either a co-grant from somewhere else or a bit of headscratching and fundraising, which is my job and I guess I should behappy about it or maybe I would not be so well employed. If theyhad more budget, I would like to see them able to support slightly
larger studies. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. How high would you go?Mr. TRAMMELL. A million, in general. Not every study needs to
be that.

The question also came up about the relative size of conceptualengineering. And by the way, I would like to stop here and for deftnitional purposes tell you what we consider to be conceptual engineering and what we consider to be detailed engineering. Thereseems to be a little confusion about these terms and there probablyare, company to company, different definitions.Conceptual engineering to us is the first six months or so ofwork, which identifies the major parts of the project and selectsthose vendors to be approached for procurement. It is at that pointwhere we have done the specification of what the equipment is andwhat vendors are on the procurement list. That costs probablyabout 2 percent as Director Ayres mentioned, and it is money very,very well spent, because then you have the vendor list.To get into detailed engineering is very expensive and time-consuming. That could take a year and a half. It could take-I thinkDirector Ayres mentioned 6 percent. It could go up to 10 percent ofa job. Often, we might want to do some of that work in the client'shost country. These countries like to have detailed engineering,drafting board time if you will, done with their own people, tosponsor both employment and technology transfer.So following those examples, I would be much more in favor ofgiving TDP some slack on conceptual design; less inclined to sup
port detail design.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Do you agree with that?
Mr. ANDREWS. 
 In general, I agree. Specific strategic marketswhere we are in real need of making a penetration for strategicmarket purpose, telecommunications or power sector-
Mr. GEJDENSON. You would go further?
Mr. ANDREWS. I would go further. And 
 the first applicationmight give us the opportunity for replication that we want byvirtue of the initial market penetration.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Do our competitors generally go further? This is
not just once in a while that you are generally faced with?
Mr. TRAMMELL. Yes, quite often. On the question of who are yourcompetitors, how are they funded, how do they behave came up, Iwould point out to you that in the United Kingdom the Aid toTrade Program, which is budgeted about $500 million a year, goesin with a complete package of engineering and equipment, and it'scompletely closed. The team has already been pre-selected. Thissize grant is given and then export credits modified.Mr. GEJDENSON. And TDP, there is no connection necessarilywith any other Ex-Im Bank loan. But if you walk up to the Ex/Imwindow and you say, this is a TDP project, do they say, well, comeup here a little closer? I mean, do you get any advantage in the 

process here? 
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Mr. TRAMMELL. Not as much as I would like. 
Mr. ANDREWS. No. As a matter of fact, there are some instances 

where there is disconnect between TDP being on cover in a particu
lar place and the Ex-Im being off cover long term to match-

Mr. GEJDENSON. What do you mean "off cover"? They just do not 
want to go in that country? 

Mr. ANDREWS. Well, take, for example, Poland. It is my under
standing that as of this morning the Ex-Im Bank was on for a lim
ited medium and short-term cover, but not long-term cover, and 
that is not Ex-Im's fault because of the debt problem that Poland 
has that prohibits the Ex/Im Bank from making a long-term cover 
decision. 

But the TDP program is operating in Poland. If I were to go and 
try to match a feasibility study with a lending commitment from 
Ex-Im, I do not think I could get one in Poland today. 

Mr. TRAMMELL. To elaborate on that-
Mr. GEJDENSON. And our competitors offer detailed design? 
Mr. TRAMMELL. Yes. 
Mr. ANDREWS. Yes. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Go ahead, Mr. Trammell. 
Mr. TRAMMELL. To elaborate on the point of TDP and Ex-Im, 

and I guesd we are not here to talk about Ex/Im today, but in the 
case of the refinery expansion in Indonesia, we brought Ex/Im into 
the picture and they are trying very hard to find it in their capa
bility to support the project. But since it is not government guaran
teed, it is a privatization project owned by the national oil company 
of the government, it is not business as usual and they are having 
to strain to find a way to continue the good work TDP has already 
done. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Any additional comments? 
Mr. TRAMMELL. I have virtually no additional comments. 
On the question of staff, however, I think these people are doing 

an excellent job, but they have to be overachievers to get as much 
done with as few people as they have. If you were to substantially 
increase their budget, I think you should expect some small in
crease in staff, but certainly not one for one. 

[The statement of Mr. Trammell follows:] 
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TETIMONY or 

WILLIAM D. TRAMMML 

VICE PRESIDENT, PROJECT FINANCE 
FLUOR DANIEL INCORPORATED 

MR. CHAIRlMAN AND DISTINGUISHED KEN OF THE SUUMCOIOMITTE, 

GOOD AFTERNOON. NY NAME 18 WILLIM D.TRANIaLL. I a=RVE AS VICE 

PRESIDENT FOR PROJZCT FINANCE OF FLUOR DANIEL, THE PRINCIPAL
 

OPERATING ENGINZERING AND CONSTRUCTION NWSINESS OF FLUOR
 

CORPORATION.
 

FOR THE PAST THREE CONUZCt U E'ARSNW 

BE= HAS NAMED FIWOR DANIEL THE NUMBER On U.S. ENGINEERING AND 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY. 

FUOR DANIEL PROVIDES A BROADER RANGE OF TECHNICAL sERVICs 

TO MORE CLIENTS AND NORE INDUSTRIES AND GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS THaN 

ANY GLOBAL COMPETITOR. OUR DIVERSIFICATION is DEEP AND WIDE. WE 

HAVE BUILT INDUSTRIAL PLANTS, ELECTRIC POWER AND HYDROCARBON 

FACILITIES, CHEMICAL PLANTS, AIRPORTS, TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

FACILITIES, AND ,ANY OTHER TYPES OF PROJECTS WORLDWIDE FOR 

GOVERNPUMS AND PRIVATE SECTOR CLIENTS. 

IT 1S INDEE A PLEASURE To APPEAR BZFO YOU To UPPORT TnE 

REAUTHORIZATION,-OF A 'PIVOTAL U.S- COMPETITIVE ?oowON TnE-GOAzr 

MARKETPLACE, THE TRADE DEVELOPmTAND PROGRAM. 
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ALow N8 To BAY AT THE. Oo ET, c.1AXIMM, TEAT FLUOR 

DarL HSENJOYED A szaFIcaNT LONG TEREPROuIONAX, 

RELATIONSHIP WITH TOP. DIRECTOR PRlSCILLA RABD-AYRES AND HER ABLE 

STAFF DESS NuOUs ACCOLADES FOR THEIR ImUABIz SzREz TO 

U.s. COMPANIES MUHLE CHEATINO JOBS HERE AT HOE. 

OUR OWN EXPERIENCE WITH TDP DATES 3ACK TO THE EARLY 1980'S 

WHEN WE CONDUCTED THO TDP FINANCED STUDIES ON THE GASIFICATION O 

W VALUE COAL TO PROVIDE CU.M ENERGY FUEL FOR THE GOVERNMENT OF 

BRAZIL. ALSO DURING THIS PERIOD, WE WORKED ON A JOINT TDP/ EXPORT 

IMPORT BANK PROPOSAL TO THE ALGERIAN GOVERNMENT FOR TUB PANNING 

AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN OF ITS PETROLEUM PRODUCTION FACILITIES. 

WHIL WE COULDN'T HATCH THE FINANCIAL PACKAGE OFFERED BY A 

JAPAM4ESE COMPETITOR, IT WAS AN INVALUABLE EXPERIENCE. IN 1969, 

TpANKS TO TOPS HELP, FLUOR DANIEL AS ABLE TO OVERCOME STIFF 

COMPETITION FROM BOTH JAPAN AND THE UNITED KINGDOM AND WAS 

AWARDED THE INITIAL STUDY FOR A SIMILAR NEED IN THAILAND. 

DURING FISCAL 1990, FLOR DANIEL RECEIVED THRE" STUDY 

CONTRACTS FUNDED BY TDP GRANTS. I AM PLEASED TO REPORT TO THE 

SUBCOMMITTEE THAT ONE OF-THESE STUDIES HAS ALREADY'B EE CONVERTEb 

INTO AN OIL REFINERY MODERNIZATION PROJECT IN INDONESIA. 2= 

MODERNIZATION WILL LIKELY GONZHTR OVER $200 MILLtON IN U.S GOODS 
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AMO SERVICES zmmT* 

NOT BAD FOR A $350,000 GRANT ZNVISTUNT 

THE OTHER TWO STUDIES, WHICH ARE BEING C6wwnDUT FOR, 

AGENCIES OF THE VENZZSAM GOVERNMENT, ARE orODUIMLAR SIZE AND 

WILL LIKELY LEAD TO EVEN LARGER U.S@ EXPORTS'FOR THE BUILDING OF 

A NEW OIL REFINERY AND A NEW PETROCHEMICAL CINTER. 

A BRIEF EXAMINATION OF OUR OWN EXPERIENCE DEMONSTRATES THE 

MULTZPLIER EFFECT OF TDP GRAM ON THE U.8.ICOHOKY. 

IN ADDITION TO THE UTILIZATION OF OUR ENGINEERING, 

PROCUREMENT AND iANAGEMENT FLUOR DANLLISPROJECT SERVICES, 

CONCEPTUAL ENGINEERING WORK GENERALLY SPECIFIES U.S. EQUIPMENT 

TO BE USED IN PROJECT CONSTRUCTION. THE SALE OF THIS EQUIPMENT, 

IN TURN, GENERATES ADDITIONAL U.S. SERVICES INCLUDING INSURANCE 

AND SHIPPING. FOR EXAMPLE, THE INDONESIAN REFINERY PROJECT I 

PREVIOUSLY MENTIONED, MR. CHAIRMAN, WILL LIKELY GENERATE OVER 

mg_fiT.LN.oF U.S. ORIGIN EQUIPMENT ALONE. 

BASED UPON My NEARLY THIRTY YEARS OF EXPERIENCE IN THE 7BID 

OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCE, MR. CHAIRMAN,. I CAN .STATE UNEQUIVOCALLY 

THAT TDP HAS BEEN AND CONTINUES TO BE AN .INVALUABLE TOOL FOR U.S. 

http:fiT.LN.oF
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COMPANIES WORKING TO GAIN AN INTERNATIONAL
 

COMPETITIVE 2DGE.
 

AS DEMONSTRATED BY FLUOR DANIEL'S INDONESIAN PROXZCT, U.S. 

CONTRACTORS THAT RECEIVE STUDY WORK FUNDED DY TDP GRANTS HAVE AN 

ENORMOUS ADVANTAGE IN SECURING ONGOING CONCEPTUAL DESIGN AND 

DESIGN LEADS. WITH TDP'B HELP, WE ARE NOW DEMONSTRATING THAT THE 

U. S. CAN EFFECTIVELY MEET THE INTERNATIONAL COMPETITIVE
 

CHALLENGE. HOWEVER, THIS DOES NOT MEAN WE HAVE ALL THE HELP WE
 

CAN USE.
 

MR. CHAIRMAN, STUDIES IN OUR INDUSTRY OFTEN COST OVER $1
 

MILLION . HOWEVER, TDPI5 USUAL GRANTS FALLS WITHIN THE $350,000
 

'TO $400,000 RANGE. AN INCREASE IN TDP'S BUDGET WOULD ALLON THE 

AGENCY TO SUPPORT LARGER STUDIES WHICH, IN TURN, WOULD PROVIDE 

MORE OPPORTUNITIES TO INCREASE U.S. EXPORTS. MOREOVER, TDP 

FUNDING OF CONCEPTUAL ENGINEERING STUDIES WILL REALLY "LOCK IN" 

U.S. EXPORTS. SUCH ENGINEERING TYPICALLY COST TWO TO THRPER 

CENT OF TOTAL PROJECT VALUE AND REQUIRES SIX MONTHS TO COMPLETE. 

THIS SINLE EXPANSION OF TDPIS MANDATE WILL DO MORE TO MEET AND 

BEAT FOREIGN COMPETITION THAN ANY OTHER INITIATIVE. 

A CASE IN POINT IS THE STUDY FOR THE GOVERNMENT. OF THAILAND 

I MENTIONED EARLIER. IF TDP'S SUPPORT HAD BEEN AVAILABLE,-IT 

WOULD HAVE CONTINUED INTO CONCEPTUAL DESIGN WITHOUT INTVZ UION. 
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V TE AmCEo ms PRT, TH IPZmUm"ATZM Or TumILAND's 
NATURAL GAS GATHERING, TRANSPORTATIOH AND UTILIZATION PROGRAM 18 
NOW ON HOLD. OUR IN22RNATIONAL COMN ITORS NOW HAVE A CACE TO 
BREAM INTO TIlS PROGRAM WITH MNIHD CRDITO AND OTHER INDUCENINTs 
TO LURE EXPORTS AWAY FROM TIE UNITED STATES. 

CONVERZELY, A DECREASE IN THR TOP BUDGET WILL DIINISH TR 
ABILITY OF U.S, INDUSTRY TO COMPETE WORLDWIDE. TDP TEC ICAL 
CONFERENCES, FOR INSTANCE, PROVIDE INVALUABLE CONTACTS. A TDP
 
CONFERENCE HELD 
 IN HOUSTON PROVIDED AN OPPORTUNITY FOR FLUOR
 
DANIEL AND OUR INDONESIAN CLIENT, PERTAXINA, TO SIT DOWN 
 AND 
AGREE TO A SCOPE AND BUDGET FOR A TOP STUDY WHICH SET THE STAGE 
FOR OUR ONGOING PRO3ECT* 

IN CONCLUSION, MR. CHAIRKAN, ALLOW ME TO JUST ADD A WORD 
ABOUT TOP'S STAFF. THESE DEDICATED PUBLIC SERVANTS AR 
OUTSTANDING EXAMPLES OF A LEAN ORGANIZATION DOING A GREAT JOB. 
BUT, IT IS CLEAR TO ME THAT THEY CERTAINLY COULD USE BONN HELP, 
SHOULD THE SUBCOMMITTEE APPROVE AN INCREASE IN THE TOP BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR, 1992, 1 WOULD ALSO URGE THE SUBCONNITTEE TO APPROVE 
A CORRESPONDING INCREASE IN TOP PROFESSIONAL STAYF. 

AINj, MR. CVAIRMAN, THANK YOU FOR TB OPPORTUNZTY TO APPzAR 
BEFoRE THE osUcoIIJ(TTn To aE MY VIEWS on TH TRADE AND 
DEVEL0PMWN PROGRAM. 
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Mr. GEJDENSON. Why, Mr. Trammell, are you not as committed, 
it seems, to the detail design stage if our competitors are for it? I 
mean, you seem to be more, well, once in awhile. 

Mr. TRAMMELL. Mr. Chairman, it is a question of utilization of 
budget. I think we can get the most bang for the buck carrying it 
through conceptual design and not have to use up tremendous 
amounts of money to carry it through detail design. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. And are our major industrial competitors just 
cleaning up the situation out there with the systems they have in 
place? I mean, do they beat you most of the time? 

Mr. TRAMMELL. With respect, they are often beating the pants off 
of us. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. And places that you are bidding, not just places 
you have looked at and said, well, we are not going to do that? 

Mr. TRAMMELL. That is correct. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And is there any quantification in that? Is there 

any place I can get how often these kinds of proposals-I do not 
know, you probably do not want to give away private individual 
companies, but do you have an association that has any review of 
how we are doing in these kinds of programs worldwide? 

Mr. ANDREWS. There was a fairly comprehensive study on mixed 
credits which Ambassador Preeg updated. I do not know whether it 
was for this committee. But in the area of mixed credits there were 
some 4 to $6 billion worth of U.S. exports lost a year by virtue of 
tied aid mixed credit offerings. We are trying to match that pro
gram, but certainly not doing a very good job so far. 

Mr. TRAMMELL. There are numerous studies available around 
town, Mr. Chairman. The U.S.-China Business Council did an excel
lent study on what has happened in China. Now, that may not be 
the most--

Mr. GEJDENSON. Popular--
Mr. TRAMMELL [continuing]. Popular country, but the results of 

the study are valid. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Yes. 
Mr. TRAMMELL. Coalition for Employment 'Through Exports 

could also furnish you data. / 
Mr. GEJDENSON. We thank both of you for coming, and we may 

ask you additional questions by mail after the hearing. You have 
both been very helpful in your formal statements and in your pres
entation. 

Without objection, at this point we will include a statement by 
Mr. Roth in the record. 

[The statement of Mr. Roth follows:] 
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OPENING STATEMENT -T66'RA4tHEARING ON TRADE;AND-DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
 
March 5. 1991
 

I join inwelcomlng our witnesses this afternoon.
 

The concept:behind the Trade and'Development Program -- to plant
 

the Seeds for American exports --
is'one that I strongly
 

support,
 

TDP contends that'.some Whbillon in U.S. exports have flowed
 

from its work. 

If that is true,:then this agencyis certainly doing a good job in 

leveraging their appropriated funds Into benefits for it

economy.,
 

Exports are crucial for our future economic growth.
 

While exports now account for one-third of our GNP, In the last
 

year or so they have provided up to 80 percent of the new
 

growth.
 

That means it is absolutely crucial that our trade policies assist 

American exporters in competinglin the real World. 

Other nations have program with the same Iurpose as TDP 

And not surprisingly, the Japanese ln recent years have put 8 to 10 



times more than our funding levels into their project 

development assistance -- to give their exporters a leg up. 

I look forward to Director Ayres V11 testimony, but I 

especially want to hear from Mr. Andrews and Mr. Trammell about 

their assessment of this program.
 



123
 

Mr. GEJDENSON. We thank you gentlemen foryour testimony.
The hearing is adjourned.

Mr. TRAMMELL. Thank you.

[Whereupon, at 2:45 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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FOREIGN ASSISTANCE LEGISLATION FOR
 
FISCAL YEARS 1992'93
 

Reauthorization of Programs Within AID'S Bureau 
of Asia and Private Enterprise and Oversight of. 
OPIC'S Programs 

TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 1991 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS, 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL 
ECONOMIC POLICY AND TRADE, 

Washington, DC. 
The subcommittee met at 1:47 p.m., in room 2255, Rayburn

House Office Building, Hon. Sam Gejdenson, presiding.
Mr. GEJDENSON. The Subcommittee on International Economic

Policy and Trade meets today to review the programs of two offices 
which seek to promote development in lesser developed countries. 

With our operating budgets continually shrinking, it is the re
sponsibility of Congress to review all government programs to see
where we can get the most bank for the buck. Nowhere is that 
more important than in our foreign assistance accounts. Although
Americans have always extended their hearts and pocket books to 
the truly destitute, it is difficult to rationale additional spending 
overseas when we have a rising number of homeless and unem
ployed citizens at home. 

The purpose of todays's hearing is to assess the efficiency and ef
fectiveness of the programs within the Foreign Assistance Act
which fall under this subcommittee's jurisdiction.

Our first witness, Henrietta Holsman Fore, is the Assistant Ad
ministrator for the Bureau for Asia and Private Enterprise within
the Agency for International Development. Ms. Fore has already
testified twice before this subcommittee on the microenterprise de
velopment program.

Today we will focus on other programs within her Bureau's port
folio which include the private sector revolving fund, the housing
and urban development program, the private enterprise develop
ment support program, and the International Executive Service 
Corps, which just happens to be based in Connecticut. 

The subcommittee also welcomes Mr. James Berg, Executive 
Vice President of the Overseas Private Investment Corporation or
OPIC. OPIC also operates under a development mandate. OPIC fa
cilitates the economic development of lesser and middle income 
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countries through the provision of insurance and financing for U.S. 
private investment. Although OPIC is not headquartered in Con
necticut, it remains a popular program with this subcommittee as 
it has been self-sustaining since 1981. 

I look forward to hearing our witnesses today. But before that, if 
Mr. Roth has an opening statement. 

Mr. ROTH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
If it is not located in Connecticut, is it located in Wisconsin? 
Mr. GEJDENSON. No, I do not think it is there either. 
Mr. ROTH. That goes to show you how broad minded we really 

are. 
Mr. Chairman, I wont to compliment you for not only the work 

here this afternoon, but also the markup this morning in full com
mittee. I want you to know that I appreciate what you did this 
morning. And it again shows me that you are a real diplomat. And 
I want to thank you. 

I come to this hearing again with a lot of questions. This Bureau 
of Private Enterprise reminds me of one of those South Seas Is
lands. You know it is enveloped in constant fog. You know it is 
there, but you cannot really see it clearly. 

The AID congressional presentation sometimes does not help too 
much. It is long on rhetoric about helping the private sector, but 
woefully short on specifics. Certainly, no one can argue with the 
goal of helping the private sector to develop, and therefore 
strengthen the indigenous economy. But before we move ahead to 
authorize another $234 million in guarantees, loans, grants, and 
contracts, I think that we need more detailed specific information 
on who is getting this assistance, what it is used for, and exactly 
how these programs are fulfilling the goal of privatization. 

For instance, we have some $2 billion guaranteeing housing over
seas. Why are we guaranteeing small business loans abroad when 
we have a credit crunch here at home? These are some of the ques
tions that come up to us. Why are we providing grants and con
tracts for technical assistance in other countries when this assist
ance is not available to our own citizens? 

We have to ask ourselves these questions before we move ahead 
and reauthorize this program I feel. And even if we get satisfactory 
answers to those questions, then we have to ask whether the pro
grams here at hand have any effectiveness in meeting the goal of 
the private sector development. 

So we have a lot of work to do before we can move ahead on this 
legislation. And I appreciate the Chairman having this hearing. So 
maybe we can get all of these questions answered and move ahead 
in a positive way. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you. 
Mr. Miller. 
Mr. MILLER. I am eager to hear the responses of the witness to 

all of those questions posed by my colleague, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Orton, do you have an opening statement? 
Mr. ORTON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I would just like to echo the thanks of the committee for your 

attendance, and I am looking forward to hearing your testimony. 
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I would also like to echo the Chairman's statement with regard
to the fiscal problems that we are having here in our own country, 
as well as the credit problems, and the massive budget deficit 
spending.

We are concerned that we spend only appropriate amounts of 
money in our projects overseas. I appreciate the opportunity and 
look forward to the testimony.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you.
Well, can you answer Mr. Roth?
Ms. FORE. Yes. We will try to clear away some of that fog that 

Mr. Roth sees. 

STATEMENT OF HENRIETTA HOLSMAN FORE, ASSISTANT ADMIN-
ISTRATOR, BUREAU FOR ASIA AND PRIVATE ENTERPRISE,
AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
Ms. FORE. Let me turn to our program's investment in housing

and in private enterprise. I will not include microenterprise at this
hearing but if there are any questions, we would be glad to answer
them. Let me describe how these programs work as well as the
actual impact that the programs have.

A real understanding has emerged that it is people seeking " ir 
own economic and social improvement that drives the most success
ful and sustainable development. It is true of Eastern Europe,
South America, Africa, and Asia.

Appreciation and respect for the role of everyday people in the
development process and an understanding of the need to set gov
ernment policy and intervention in its proper place in the develop
ing world is the focus of the private enterprise programs.

We are requesting $214 million in guaranty authority and $22.3
million in development assistance to support programs which we

believe will help developing countries create an environment which
 
supports private sectorled economic growth.

$114 million of the guaranty authority is to continue operation of
the Private Sector Revolving Fund, which makes credit available
primarily to small businesses in developing countries, a market
often overlooked by traditional financial institutions. This is the 
same level as provided in 1991. 

The remaining $100 million in guaranty authority is to continue 
support of shelter and urban infrastructure programs in developing
countries under Housing Guarantee program. The $22.3 million we 
are requesting in development assistance, $2 million of which is for
microenterprise, will be used for technical support to developingcountries to help them create the environment in which dynamic
private sectors can flourish. 

The Private Sector Revolving Fund-which we are renaming Pri
vate Sector Investment Program-focuses on financing private en
terprise development. Entrepreneurial drive and ideas are in abun
dance in the developing world. But the key constraint to putting
these ideas into action is the shortage of available credit and train
ing. Our programs help overcome this market shortcoming.

The Private Sector Investment Program makes credit available
primarily through the use of loan guarantees to local financial in
stitutions that lend to small enterprises. Over the past year, in a 
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few cases for environmental projects, the program has also made 
direct project loans. We know from our experience the value of 
small businesses in creating and sustaining employment. The origi
nal objective of the program was to encourage access and participa
tion by small and medium sized businesses in building free market 
economies in their countries. 

I am pleased to say that we are meeting that objective, and the 
results are encouraging. Here is a sampling. Our loan guarantee 
program has leveraged A.I.D. funds almost four times with funds 
from the local credit market. In seventeen evaluated projects, the 
result was 5252 jobs being created with almost 40 percent going to 
women. Sales of borrowers increased by an average of almost 36 
percent as a result of the loans made from our facilities. 

The investment program has alro proved to be exceptionally cost 
effective. Costs from the progra2a are almost entirely offset by 
transaction fees generated on the facilities. And when interest 
income is added, the program generates a substantial profit of 14 
percent on utilized facilities. 

Our evaluation system also informs us that local financial insti
tutions have benefited from our program in the following ways in
creased lending to small and medium sized enterprises, increased 
lending in rural areas, reduced collateral requirements, and techni
cal training in cash flow versus collateral based lending.

Sub-borrowers, the local small business people, have benefited by 
increased gross revenue and new income, increased export earn
ings, increased employment, increased female employment, in
creased salaries, and reduced collateral requirements. 

We are excited about the role that the Private Sector Revolving
Fund has played in the 1980s. And in the 1990s, Eastern Europe, 
Panama, Nicaragua, Sri Lanka, and Nepal are all countries which 
will need the type of help that this program can provide. We are 
positioned to meet these challenges by building on our experience 
and developing new financing strategies. 

Now let me turn to our Housing Guarantee program for which 
we are requesting $100 million in guaranty authority. In FY 1991, 
A.I.D. plans to authorize $550 million in housing guarantee loans 
to finance new shelter initiatives for the urban poor in Israel, 
Chile, Portugal, Morocco, Tunisia, the Philippines, Indonesia, and 
India. $400 million will go to assist Israel in provding housing for 
Soviet emigres. The Israelis estimate that refugees will arrive at an 
annual rate of 100,000 people, and that approximately 30,000 new 
units will be needed every year for the next three years. 

Through this program, the U.S. private sector provides long term 
financing for low income shelter and neighborhood upgrading pro
grams in developing countries. The U.S. government provides a 
guarantee of repayment of the loans, and lenders charge interest at 
favorable commercial rates. 

Addressing the shelter and urbanization needs of developing 
countries, this program deals with a broad spectrum of urban 
issues including municipal management and finance, water and 
sanitation, infrastructure and services, and land tenure and em
ployment generation. In recent years, we have emphasized urban 
environmental protection, disaster planning, and public participa
tion through local governments. 
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Let me now turn to a third group of programs, our private sector
activities for which we are requesting $22.3 million. A.I.D.'s field
missions use these projects to access the kind of help that is needed 
as countries open their economies and begin to turn to market sys
tems as an alternative to centrally controlled economic manage
ment. 

Included in this portfolio are programs such as the International
Executive Service Corps, based in Connecticut, which provides
hands-on help to more than one thousand private businesses each 
year by sending retired U.S. businessmen to developing countries 
to share what they have learned throughout their careers. These
shirt sleeved ambassadors have become a mainstay of our help for
private enterprise development.

Similarly, the Financial Services Volunteer Corps provides top
notch volunteers from banks and law firms to advise developing
countries on economic and free market policies. In May of 1990,
former Secretary of State Cyrus Vance led an eight-day Financial
Services Volunteer Corps mission to Poland to examine the issues,
regulations, and laws related to banking, capital markets, and pri
vatization. Subsequent missions have gone to Hungary, Yugoslavia,
and Czechoslovakia. 

Our Private Enterprise Development Support or PEDS program
provides broad assistance to our missions in country assessments
and strategy development, trade and investment missions, training
programs, and evaluation and design. Also in this program is the
Institutiona Reform in the Informal Sector project, which pro
motes improved laws, regulations, and decision-making processes in
developing countries and Eastern Europe. It was motivated by the
path-breaking work of Hernando de Soto, who documented how in
adequate laws restricted growth and opportunities in Peru.

We have just completed a session in Mongolia where more than 
a hundred newly elected government officials participated in a
three-day work shop on private property, price deregulation, cap
ital markets, taxation, foreign investment, and privatization.

Taken together, A.I.D.'s investments in housing and private
sector programs are dealing with key development problems of the
1990s. All of these facilities strive to help people and governments
improve their environments and forge free market economies in 
their countries. 

At this moment in history, there is a perfect match between
American ideas, enterprise, and expertise with the needs of devel
oping countries. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

[The statement of Ms. Fore follows:] 
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HENRIETTA HOLSMAN'FORE
 

Mr. Chairman, I am pleased to have this opportunity to
 
present to the subcommittee an overview of the programs managed
 
by the Private Enterprise and Housing portions of A.I.D.'s
 
Bureau for Asia and Private Enterprise. I have not included
 
our very successful Microenterprise program in this
 
presentation because that was the subject of my last appearance
 
before this subcommittee. Today let me return to our Private
 
Enterprise, Investment and Housing Program.
 

While I will spend some time describing how each of these
 
programs work, I will concentrate on their results, so that you
 
can see what effect we are having.
 

What Drives Good Development?
 

One of our startling rediscoveries over the last fifteen
 
years is that real development is a bottom up process. Central
 
planned economies, top down elitist systems just do not work.
 
In the place of directed development has emerged a real
 
understanding that it is people seeking their own economic and
 
social improvement that drives the most successful and
 
sustainable development. It's true of Eastern Europe, South
 
America, Africa and Asia.
 

Keith Marsden of the Wall Street Journal put it in clear
 
perspective in his article "Why Asia Boomed and Africa Busted"
 
when he wrote:
 

"Why has Africa stagnated while East Asia has boomed
 
over the past two decades? This question is at the
 
heart of the current development debate. Some argue
 
that the private sector is a more efficient engine of
 
growth than the government. East Asian countries have
 
few resources other than the enterprise of their
 
people. But through low taxes and free markets they
 
have stimulated private saving and personal
 
initiative. In contrast, African governments have
 
overextended themselves, especially by direct
 
management of industry and agricultural marketing. The
 
consequent inefficiencies and excessive demand for
 
credit have been principal causes of the present
 
crisis."
 



-2-

The 1992 Request 

A renewed appreciation for the role of the everyday people

in the development process and an understanding of the need to
 set government policy and intervention in its proper place in

the developing world is the reason we are here today. 
We are
 
requesting from the Congress $22.310 million in development

assistance and $214 million in Guaranty Authority to support

programs which we believe will help developing countries create
 
an enabling environment which supports private sector led
 
economic growth.
 

$114.0 million of the Guaranty Authority is to continue

the operation of the Private Sector Revolving Fund, which makes
credit available to small business, entrepreneurs and people in

developing countries --
a market often overlooked by

traditional financial institutions.
 

The remaining $100.0 million is Guaranty Authority to

continue support of shelter and urban infrastructure programs

in developing countries.
 

Of the $22.310 million we are requesting in development

assistance, $2 million will be part of our worldwide support

for Microenterprise and is not dealt with here. 
Today I will
 concentrate on programs and projects which total $20.310

million. 
These programs and projects provide technical support

through our field missions to developing countries to help them
 
create the environment in which dynamic private sectors
 
flourish.
 

The Private Sector Revolving Fund
 

We have operated a very successful"Investment program that

focuses on financing private enterprise development.
 

We know that many business people in the countries where
 we work lack access to adequate financial resources. Their
 
difficulty in obtaining financing is often due to excessively
conservative practices of lending institutions and the lack of

alternative sources of credit in the financial markets.
Entrepreneurial drive and ideas 
are often in abundance. One of

the primary obstacles to putting these ideas to work, however,
is the lack of available credit and training. Our programs

help overcome this market shortcoming. The development of

local lending institutions and the mobilization of credit for.
small and medium enterprises have a strong multiplier effect on

employment, income, education and related socio-economic
 
benefits.
 

To help meet this need, A.I.D. has operated the Private
 
Sector Revolving Fund (or PSRF). 
 This fund was created by
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Congress in 1983 to promote private sector development in:Less
 
Developed Countries primarily through the strengthening of
 
small private sector enterprises.
 

The Fund aims to facilitate development that-is
 
sustainable over the long-term and does not require continuous
 
reliance on outside assistance. It is designed to:
 

o 	 stimulate growth and expansion of private enterprises
 
in LDC's by facilitating access to credit;
 

o 	 create innovative financing mechanisms to serve as
 
models for the private sector development efforts of
 
local USAID Missions;
 

o 	 strengthen local, private financial institutions by
 
helping them develop new markets and learn new lending
 
techniques; and
 

o 	 involve the United States private sector in Third
 
World development.
 

Due to the Fund's operating and developmental success and
 
the growing need for the services that it provides, Congress,
 
under the Omnibus Trade and Competitiveness Act of 1988, added
 
Loan Guarantee Authority to the dollar lending authority of the
 
Fund. The Fund now provides Loan Guarantees and Direct Project
 
Loans which are supported by an outstanding Training program
 
for bank lending officers and small business owners. These
 
loans and guarantees:
 

o 	 strengthen existing credit institutions, and expand
 
credit to small and medium sized enterprises; and
 

o 	 develop new financial entities such as venture capital
 
firms, equipment leasing companies, and other targeted
 
developmental projects.
 

A review of the Financial Profile of the Fund shows the basic
 
soundness of its operations. (See enclosed table.)
 

The Fund makes credit available primarily through the use
 
of Loan Guarantees and participating loans to intermediate
 
financial institutions (IFl's) that on-lend to target
 
enterprises. In select cases involving projects with the
 
potential to produce exceptional development benefits, the Fund
 
has morale direct project loans to individual firms.
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CUMULATIVE PORTFOLIO DISTRIBUTION %BY AMOUNT OBLIGATED 

owlns (&26%) 
Project Loans (6.37) 

Guarantees (91) 

We know from our experience the value of small businesses
 
in creating and sustaining employment. The original objective

of the Fund was to encourage access and participation by small
 
and medium sized businesses in building free market economies
 
in the countries we serve. I am pleased to say that we have
 
done so and the results are encouraging.
 

As part of our on-going evaluation of this program, we

recently completed a review of 17 of the Fund's Loan Guarantee
 
projects. The results give you a good picture of the impact a
 
program like this can have when it is carefully and creatively

managed. The Fund has obligated in excess of $32 million for
 
these 17 projects and has stimulated over $125 million in local

private sector financing to this target business community.

Our Loan Guarantee program has leveraged A.I.D.'s inputs almost
 
four times with funds from the local credit market. This
 
initial leveraging process has been recycled, in some cases
 
through IFI turnover of applicable loans up to four times.
 

Employment: The 17 projects evaluated have resulted in
 
over 5,500 jobs being created, with many -- 1,764, or 37%
 
-- going to women.
 

We estimate that, on average, the program created one'job

for every $5,800 of Loan Guarantee provided.
 

Sales: Sales of borrowers increased by an average of

almost 36% as a result of the loans made from our
 
facilities.
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ESTIMATED DEVELOPMENT IMPACTS OF APRE/I PRIVATE SECTOR REVOLVING FUN
 
LOAN GUARANTEES AND DIRECT LOANS'
 

$32.4 APR lI 

$126.9 Local Funds Leveraged 

40 804 6-0 100 120 140, 
Million 

LOAN GUARANTEES AND DIRECT LOANS:
 
APREdI Loan Guarantees andDirect Loans $32.4 illion'
 
Funds Leveraged by Loan Guarantees S126.9 milUions
 
Leverage Ratio 3.4 sI I
 
Average Turnover or Funds 42.5.7 times'
 

EMPLOYMENT GENERATION: 
I lob created for every $5.862 of AID resouces 
Jobs Created 5.5211 
Jobs Created for Women 1,7646 

SALES INCREASE. 

Average Increase inSales of Borrowe 35.8% 

'Source: APREII Revolving Fund Potfolio, Summary of Action FacUlitin as of December 31, 1990 (daled 

1/14)91). 

'Based on nine projects. 

'4.2 represents overall average of nine MIeojcu. 5.7 Is weighted averagebaed o0 die size of these 
guamty facilites. 

'Based on 13 projects -- (AID's contingent liability associated with total job creation) + al"lobs 
generated. 

*Value of active loan guarantees anddirect loans + 5A5.862 

'(Value of Ktive loan guarantees and direct loans)+ (AID's contingent liability assoiated widi female b 
creation) + Z female jobs generated. 

"Weighted average based on 60 observations of sales change infour projects 
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The following chart- shows,the sectors in which
 
subborrowers are engage, as well as, the production uses f'or
 
which loans were made.
 

Borrowers by tector 

24%Manufackftug 32% 

Construclio 4% ........
Food Processing 19% 
Handcraft 5% 

Serv4ces 6% 
Agricuture 10% 

Use of Funds By Borrowers* 

Workn CapMJ 40% 

Business Expansion 6% 

Materials Purchases 18% 

EBusemen Purchass5%
Consbuwton 11% =u

'Basdon 60 oans. 
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Through our on-going evaluation program and by using
 
special evaluations, we have learned that intermediary
 
financial institutions have benefited in the following ways:
 

o increased lending to small and medium-size enterprises;.
 

o increased lending in rural areas;
 

o reduced collateral requirements; and
 

o training in "cash flow" vs. "collateral-based" lending.
 

Sub-borrowers, the local small buisness people, have also
 
experienced significant developmental benefits, such as:
 

o increased gross revenue-and-new income;
 

o increased export earnings;
 

o increased employment;
 

o increased female employment;
 

o increased salaries; and
 

o reduced collateral requirements.
 

While achieving significant developmental impact, the
 
investment program has also proved to be exceptionally cost
 
effective. Costs of the program are almost entirely offset by
 
transaction fees generated on the facilities. When interest
 
income is added, the program generates a substantial profit.
 
Such results clearly establish that over its seven year
 
history, the Fund has been essentially financially
 
self-supporting.
 

In terms of operational results, Fiscal Year 1990 was
 
another record year for the Private Sector Revolving Fund.
 
Fund management committed $45.9 million in Guarantee Authority
 
(contingent liability) and obligated $3.4 million in direct
 
project lending.
 

By December 31, 1990, the total value of the cumulative
 
(active and completed) portfolio equaled $127 million in
 
obligations and commitments. From the $41 million in projects
 
utilized to date, A.I.D. has made over $8.5 million in fee and
 
interest income against $1.4 million'in claims and write-offs,
 
representing a net gain of $7.1 million, or 17% profit on
 
utilized facilities.
 



189 

-8-

By December 31, 1990, 
the cumulative (active and
completed) portfolio consisted of 87 projects distributed on a
regional basis around the world in A.I.D. assisted countries.
The Fund's cumulative portfolio consists of 64 
Loan Guaratees
(Loan-Backed Guarantees and Loan Portfolio Guarantees), 
6 Lease
Guarantee projects, 3 Forfait Guarantee projects, 8 Project

Loan projects, and 6 Grants.
 

We are excited about the role the Private Sector Revolving
Fund has played in the 1980's. It is strategically poised to
quickly and effectively meet the challenges and take advantage
of the opportunities that have sprung up with global political
and economic changes. 
Eastern Europe, Panama, Nicaragua, Sri
Lanka and Nepal are countries which will need the type of help
the Fund can provide. We are positioned to meet these
challenges by building on our experience, developing new
programs and refining existing ones. 
 Moreover, we remain
committed to 
helping small businesses, strengthening local
capital markets, and creating private enterprises that are
economicaly pro-active and commercially viable. 
For these
reasons, we are requesting $114 million in Guarantee Authority

for 1992.
 

The Housino Guaranty Program
 

Urbanization has clearly emerged as a key development
issue for the 1990's. 
 All major studies of foreign assistance
point to the need to consider urbanization in the design of new
development programs in all sectors. 
Cities in the developing
world are expected to grow by 140,000 people a day for the
foreseeable future, and by the year 2000, approximately
2 billion people 
or one half of the world's population will bg
living in urban areas. 
 If A.I.D. is to 
respond effectively to
the challenges of urbanization, we must balance our
understanding of 
its adverse impacts with an equally good
understanding of how urbanization can contribute to economic
and social progress in developing countries. Although rapid
urban growth in developing countries creates problems due to
lack of infrastructure, insufficient revenue-generating

capacity and a general lack of urban management skills, these
very same cities and towns contain the potential for strong
economic growth and social development. Cities 
are the loci of
off-farm employment opportunities; they provide markets for
agricultural goods and inputs for increased agricultural
production. 
Economic specialization and diversification in
manufacturing and commerce, the forces that fuel economic
growth, occur most efficiently in cities. 
Half of the gross
domestic product in developing countries is generated in
cities, and this proportion is expected to 
rise over the next
 
decade.
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Part of my request today is for $100 million in housing
 
guaranty authority. Through this program, A.I.D.Is primary
 

capital resource for implementing shelter programs and related
 

urban support activities, the U.S. private sector provides
 

long-term financing for low-income shelter and neighborhood
 

upgrading programs in developing countries. The U.S.
 

Government provides a guaranty of repayment of the loans, and
 

lenders charge interest at fa rable commercial rates
 
reflecting the security of the U.S. guaranty commitment.
 

In addressing the shelter and urbanization needs of
 

developing countries, this program deals with a broad spectrum
 

of urban issues, including municipal management and finance,
 

water and sanitation infrastructure and services, and land
 

tenure and employment generation. In recent years we have
 

emphasized urban environmental protection, disaster planning
 

and assistance and Public Participation through assistance to
 
local government.
 

In FY 1991 A.I.D. plans to authorize $550 million in
 

Housing Guaranty loans to finance new shelter initiatives for
 

the urban poor in about eight countries.
 

Four hundred million dollars ($400 million) will go to
 

assist Israel in providing housing for Soviet emigres. The
 

Israelis estimate that refugees will arrive at an annual rate
 

of 100,000 and that approximately 30,000 new units will be
 
needed every year for the next three years. Our current
 
project design and monitoring plans are based largely on our
 

prior experience in Israel. A series of Housing Guaranty loans
 

were made to Israel in the 1970's, totalling $200 million.
 

A.I.D. became knowledgeable about both the overall housing
 
sector in Israel and the specific uses to which the Housing
 

Guaranty funds were applied. A.I.D. review, comments and
 

discussions became a positive element of the program; the
 

Israelis made important changes in the sector based at least in
 

part on these discussions. Our monitoring should now be
 

designed to assure that construction proceeds in an orderly
 

fashion, that policy constraints in the sector are identified
 

and that we provide our best advice to the GOI on how to
 

minimize these distortions. We do not expect to establish
 
policy conditions under the program, but we do expect to
 

evaluate GOI policy and program performance and to establish a
 

forum to exchange opinions with them. No A.I.D. guarantied
 

funds will -a used outside of the 1967 borders (green line).
 

We are working on programs for the remaining $150 million
 

in the following countries: Chile, Portugal, Morocco, Tunisia,
 

Philippines, Indonesia, and India. 
All Hqusing Guaranty
 

programs are designed with a policy-based lending approach.
 

This approach calls for tangible progress in policy reforms
 

http:A.I.D.Is
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which facilitate access by low-income families 
to shelter and
related urban services like water, sewerage, roads in addition
to the actual construction of these services with the financing
provided. 
A.I.D. operates with the conviction that adequate,
if minimal, shelter for all can be produced if 
the right
policies are pursued. 
The key is to rely on individual
initiative, market forces, and the private sector to produce
housing. 
The public sector needs to establish the policy
framework and serve as 
a facilitator of shelter delivery.
Governments can stimulate and enhance the efficiency of private
initiative by supporting the energy of the private sector, both
formal and informal.
 

A.I.D. and the State Department have also concluded that
the housing sector should be 
one of the priority areas for
assistance in Eastern Europe. 
Stimulating production of
housing and urban infrastructure will contribute significantly.
to the economic restructuring of Eastern European economies.
The role of housing in the economy is so great that it 
can help
control inflation, free up resources currently used as
subsidies, stimulate private sector activity in construction,
increase the amount of savings which flow through financial
institutions, and allow workers to move where there are jobs.
A.I.D. can mobilize expertise in the following areas:
 

o legal and regulatory framework for housing; 

municipal management focused on infrastructure 
planning and revenue generation; 

" incentives for private sector production of housing; 
" short and long-term housing finance; 

" construction management; 

.conversion of public sector housing to private
ownership. 

The WorldwideSunort Prorams
 

For the last 10 years, A.I.D. has been at the forefront of
promoting fundamental change in the way developing countries and
other donors view economic development. This change is clearly
seen through the results of the Private-Enterprise and Urban
Development portfolio, for which we are requesting $20.310
 
million.
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itl A (Thousands)
 
International Executive Service Corps 
 5,000
 

Financial Sector Development 1,000
 
Privatization and Development 
 2,000
 

Financial Services Volunteer Corps 200
 
Private Enterprise Development Support 800
 

2,546
Institutional Reform and the Informal Sector 

Market and Technology Access 1,154
 
Trade and Investment Services 1,400
 
Project Development and Support 1,210
 
Investment and Guarantee Services 
 1,500
 
Housing and Urban Programs 3500


$20,310
 

These projects and programs principally provide technical
 

assistance to developing countries. Our field missions use
 

these projects to access the kind of help that is needed as
 

countries open their economies and begin to turn to market
 
systems as an alternative to centrally controlled economic
 
management. This process encourages
 
economic production and growth. It leads to development for
 

the country and its people. The correlation between
 
sustainable, private sector productive activity and the
 
achievement of economic development for individuals is clear
 
and indisbutable. Sustainable productivity generates
 
employment: jobs that workers can count upon jobs that
 
generate the dignity and responsibility that comes from making
 

a useful contribution to society. Workers with such jobs also
 

acquire a steady income -- one that allows them save and plan
 

for their own future. As disposble income, such savings are
 
available to workers and their families to address personal
 
priorities for improvements in their own standards of living.
 
Through the democratic process conferred by economic freedom,
 
they are able to realize their own basic human needs.
 

Now, let me briefly describe each of the individual
 
project activities to help you understand how they relate to
 

.one another, as a coherent program.
 

The International Executive Service Corps (IESC)
 

IESC provides hands-on shop floor help to more than one
 

thousand private businesses each year through this exciting
 
volunteer program. It sends retired U.S. businessmen to
 
developing countries to share what they have learned throughout
 
their careers. While each individual volunteer's program is
 

different, the cost is shared by the volunteer (his or her
 

time), IESC, AID and the business people who use the service in
 

the developing countries. These shirt-sleeve ambassadors have
 

become a mainstay of our help for private enterprise
 
development.
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Mr. V. J. Parks is a good example of the type of help
and lasting relationship that results from IESC
 
programs. Following his return home from an
assignment with an Egyptian industrial chemicals
 
manufacturer, his client told him he needed help with
 
upgrading his plant. 
Mr. 	Parks designed the

configuration, researched price and models of several
 
U.S. suppliers, and assisted his client in reviewing

suppliers, bids. 
 The client felt assured of top

quality at the most reasonable price, IESC
 
successfully promoted an export, and 
an Egyptian

businessman made a real investment in his and Egypt's

future.
 

Financial Sector Development
 

This program provides active support throughout the

developing world for the development of capital markets, and
promotes reform in the financial sector. 
The 	program:
 

0 
 provides technical help to central banks and other
 
financial institutions in developing countries;
 

o 
 conducts financial sector assessments and develops
 
strategies for implementing changes;
 

0 
 supports research on reform issues; and
 

" 	 undertakes conferences and seminars which put
 
developing country financial managers in touch with
 
U.S. experts.
 

* 	 In mid-December, a team supported by this program

conducted a review and made recommendations on the
issuance of Treasury bills in Egypt. They studied
 
methods for developing a secondary market. The Central

Bank of Egypt launched its first auction of

Treasury bills on January 3, 1991. The issue was very

successful and was oversubscribed, with both public

and private financial institutions.
 

This is the type of assistance that occurs 
about 25 times each
 
year through this program.
 

Privatization and Development
 

Here, with a new contractor and modified program, we are
continuing an effort which started in 1985 
to help developing

countries transfer state-owned and state-controlled enterprises

to the private sector. 
Again, like many of our programs, this
 one 	provides technical help about.25 times a year to our
Missions and the countries they serve. The type of help

provided includes:
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educating decision makers in developing countries
 

about.the economic, social and political benefits of
 
privatization;
 

o 	 helping to formulate policy which will encourage the 

transfer of state-owned enterprises to private hands; 

o 	 doing feasibility studies on specific enterprises; 

o 	 helping countries to implement broad programs of 
privatization in a sustainable way. 

A.I.D. was one of the first and remains one of the leading
 
donors that provides this kind of help.
 

The highly successful Tunisian privatization program
 
Experts,
has received support from A.I.D. since 1987. 


funded by A.I.D., participated in the first and second
 
Tunis Conference on Privatization, which addressed the
 
political, economic and technical issues inherent in
 
implementing a privatization program.
 
In December 1988, two consultants arrived in Tunis to
 
take up long-term assignments in the Prime Ministry
 
and the Bourse/Stock exchange as the principal
 
advisors to the GOT in its program of privatizing
 

The two member team carried out a diversified
SOEs. 

program of technical assistance in privatization. The
 
team made signifcant progress in its first one year of
 
operation.
 

In 1989, 19 state enterprises worth over $62 million had
 

been sold to the private sector.
 

The 	Financial Services Volunteer Corps
 

This Corps provided top notch financial volunteers from
 
banks and law firms to advise developing countries on economic
 
and free market policies. It is helping transform economies
 
and societies from centralized planning markets to economic
 
democracies. Broad-based economic growth is the goal of every
 
emerging democracy. Transforming their economic systems to
 
ones that are privately owned, free and open is the highest
 
priority. The Financial Services Volunteer Corps is providing
 
this type of help.
 

--	 In May of 1990, former Secretary of State, Cyrus 
Vance, led an eight-day FSVC mission to Poland to 
examine issues, regulation and laws related to 
banking, capital markets, and privatization. The
 
teams presented the Government with a-draft securities
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.law. Specific recommendations and offers of
assistance, from the U.S. private sector particularly

in the area of training, were formally conveyed to
Deputy Premier and Minister of Finance, Leszek

Balcerowicz. Subsequent Missions have gone to

Hungary, Yugoslavia and Czechoslovakia.
 

Private Enterprise Development and Suport
 

This program provides broad support to our Missions as
they seek to promote local private initiative in their
countries. 
Helping to make private enterprise an important
force for growth in developing countries is an important part
of what A.I.D. is doing today through:
 

° assessments and strategy development;
 

* trade and investment promotion missions;
 

o training programs; 

" evaluation and design studies.
 

This project is pushing the frontiers of what we know about
making the private sector work in developing countries.

Indonesia Commercial Law and Procurement Reform:
 
While Indonesia has experienced rapid private

sector growth during the past two years, a major
impediment to current and future growth is it's
antiquated commercial laws. 
 They have seriously

constrained further growth of commercial

agriculture, industry and services. 
 With

assistance from this project, USAID/Jakarta is
developing a major project to 
reform Indonesia's

commercial law and government procurement system.
 

Institutional Reform and the Informal Sector
 

This program promotes improved laws, regulations,
organizational structure, and decision-making process as
developing countries and Eastern Europe. 
in
 

It was motivated
by the pathbreaking work of Hernando de Soto, who documented
how inadequate laws restricted opportunities for growth in
Peru. 
Through this program, we provide technical help to
strengthen overseas institutions by:
 

o 
 helping them identify constraints to growth and

developing growth-promoting development strategies;
 

o 
 training people to build the capacity to undertake

legal and regulatory reform;
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ndertaking research on institutional,structures
 
thatadvance or constrain economic development; and


o 


o 	 disseminating information on these topics.
 

While new. the program has already had some remarkable
 

success.
 
More than 100 officials from the newly-elected
 

Mongolian Government and Parliament participated in
 

a.three-day workshop on the transition to a market
 

economy in Ulan Bataar. The workshop is one part
 

of.the assistance committed by Secretary Baker
 

during his August visit to Mongolia.
 
Mongolia has a new government which is in the midst
 

of drafting a new constitution and dozens of new
 

laws to effect a transition from a centrally
 
planned economic system to a free market. While
 
there is significant commitment to accomplishing
 
the transition, Mongolian policymakers have little
 
experience with the institutions which support free
 
private markets. Questions for the technical
 
assistance team covered a wide range of economic
 
and legal issues and indicated intense interest in
 
learning about specific laws and policies.
 
Workshop sessions covered macroeconomic concerns
 
during the transition, development of private
 
property, price deregulation, capital markets,
 
taxation, foreign investment and privatization.
 

Market and Technology Access Project
 

The Market and Technology Access Project identifes mutually
 
beneficial trade and investment opportunities between developing
 
countries and U.S. businesses. It works through our Missions to
 
promote the growth of private enterprise and supports trade,
 
investment, technology development and commercialization projects.
 

--	 The program's "governor/ambassador business 
development initiative" mobilizes U.S. Ambassadors, 
federal agencies and private organizations to 
support governors and state development agencies by 
providing services for U.S. firms interested in 
doing business in developing countries. Recently, 
trade missions from Iowa and Mississippi to 
Southeast Asia resulted in immediate sales of $3 
million, with projected sales of $30 million to $50 
million in the coming months. 

Trade and Investment Services Proram
 

This program is a collaborative effort between A.I.D. and the
 
It was established to
International Executive Service Corps. 


respond to growing trade and investment opportunities -- linking,
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firms in developing countries with companies in the U.S. to improve
the competitiveness of both. 
It utilizes the resources of IESC-s
netwoik of more 
than 12,000 volunteer industry experts, supporting
companies and foundations, business advisory councils and its
professional staff to operate targeted trade and investment
promotion programs 
to develop joint ventures between U.S. and hosL
 
country firms.
 

--	 An investment promotion group from the Union of
Chambers and Commodity Exchanges of Turkey visitedthe Bridgeport, Connecticut Foreign Trade Zone
(FTZ) earlier this month. They will organize a
delegation of Turkish businessmen who are
 
interested in using the FTZ for import/export and
 
joint venture operations.

We have been working with the Bridgeport FTZ to
develop business linkages between Turkish firms and
 
Connecticut enterprises. 
The 	FTZ will act as a
one-stop center for import/export, warehousing, and
manufacturing operations, identifying Connecticut
 
firms that have an interest in linking up with
 
Turkish counterparts.
 

Project Development and Sugnort 
are 	the funds we use to design
new 	programs for our worldwide support effort.
 

Investment and Guarantee Services is 
an activity through which
we provide technical help to our Missions, developing countries and
their financial institutions as 
they prepare projects for
implementing through the Private Sector Revolving Fund, which is
described later in this presentation.
 

Houstnand Urban Programs 
is a project that funds our
worldwide efforts to support the development of urban infrastructure
and shelter programs which receive support from the Housing
Guarantee program, 
We also work with our Missions and local
institutions on urban programs and their role in achieving
broad-based sustainable economic growth.
 

It is 
through these programs that we communiate with the
developing countries about the vital 
role that private enterprise
plays in broad-based sustainable economic growth.
 

In every core, we deliver high quality assistance, technical
advice, training and general support.. With this request of $20.310

million, we will continue this support.
 

In conclusion, I would like to reiterate our request. 
 We
are seeking $20.310 million to support our worldwide programs,
$114 
million in Guaranty Authority to continue to expand the
operation of the Private Sector Revolving Fund.
 

Taken together, these programs will be dealing with the
 



148 

-17

main development problems of the 90's. If the U.S. is to
 
remain an important donor, we must continue to take on this
 
challenge. Widely spread sustainable economic growth will not
 
occur without the active driving participation of private
 
individuals and businesses in developing countries. Starting
 
with individuals, and small business, these people can be a
 
strong force to affect what happens in the society as a whole.
 
As the character of the developing world becomes increasingly
 
urban, we must address the needs of the urban poor as well as
 
the rural poor. All these facilities try to help people and
 
governments improved their environments and well being to join
 
the free, developed world.
 

Thank you.
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MS. FORE. I would be happy to take any questions. And with metoday is Mr. Peter Kimm from our Office of Housing and SteveEastham from our Office of Investments.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Bring both of them up. So if we have any questions, we can get them to respond.Your know, the frustrating thing is I like basically most if not allof what you do, and I think that you do a great job at it. But Ithink that my friend Mr. Roth, who is on a somewhat differentspot on the political spectrum than I am, agrees that what is incongruous here is that these programs do not exist in the UnitedStates. People in my district cannot get credit, and there seems tobe no response from the Federal Government. We have virtually nofederal housing program.
This is not really the hearing that can really resolve those. Weprobably ought to be at the Budget Committee or at the Appropriations Committee to resolve those. But I think that as people whoare involved in foreign assistance who are not isolationists, youhave got to bring the message back to the Administration that it isgoing to become increasingly more difficult to convince the American people and the Congress to support these kinds of programswhen they themselves feel abandoned.
What I get in eastern Connecticut is that the Administration isready to help revive and convert the economies of Eastern Europe,but that the Administration does not give a damn about the economy in eastern Connecticut. The businesses in eastern Connecticutthat need money cannot get loans. People who want housing do nothave any federal housing programs, as the last ten years have rav

aged those.I think that we will get it through the Foreign Affairs Committee, because the people here recognize it is a small portion of thebudget and does all of these wonderful things. And it is easier thansending 500,000 troops to every spot in the world which has trouble. But Mr. Roth is not alone in the frustration when we have tocontinuously turn to our constituents and say there is no housingprogram here, there is no educational assistance program, and
there is no loan program here, and the Administration fights us in
Congress every time that we try to do that.
I have got $200 million bottled up in the Administration for conversion. And rather than trying to get that paltry amount ofmoney out to the United States and its citizens who are going
through significant economic disruption, the Administration seems
to be putting blockades in the way of getting the money to thepeople here.So I think that you better get ready for what will be. This committee is going to be light. Because in this committee, there hasbeen years of education of the need for these programs and thebenefit. And you do a great job in presenting yourself on these programs. But the frustration is building in our constituency and inthe Congress. And this is a democracy. It is going to come home toroost here in spades very quicdy.Mr. Roth does not speak just for a small group of dairy farmersinhis state. He speaks in this sense for all of us who feel very frustrated about the inabilit to get the Administration to focus onsome of the domestic ne of the country. 
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Let me ask a few questions in my remaining time now that I 
have finished lecturing. 

What is the unobligated balance of funds in the private sector re
volving fund? 

Ms. FORE. As of December 30th of 1990, the unobligated balance 
was $46.1 million. And that represents unobligated balances in all 
accounts including Treasury bills. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. And does that figure include reflows and the 
amount appropriated to the fund by the Congress for 1991? 

Ms. FORE. It does. 
[The information follows:] 

APPROPRIATIONS VERSUS GUARANTEE AUTHORITY 

It is important to distinguish between "appropriations" by Congress and Guaran
tee Authority approved by Congress for the Private Sector Revolving Fund. For 
Fiscal Year 1991 there were no new budget appropriations for the Fund but Con
gress approved $114 million in Guarantee Authority. The unobligated balance of 
$46.1 million is the resource we use to fund the reserve set aside for the guarantees 
we issue. The unobligated galance is made up of cumulative reflows to date and un
obligated balances in our account with Treasury from prior years. 

Mr. GEDJDENSON. So you have $46 million on hand. 
How much of that is reflows? 
Ms. FORE. For fiscal year 1989 and 1990, it was $16,851,000. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And how much of the money was appropriated 

for 1991 by the Congress? 
Ms. FORE. There was no money appropriated in 1991. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. You do not have any of the money for 1991 yet. 
How much additional funding is A.I.D. requesting for 1992, is 

that $114 million? 
Ms. FORE. It is $114 million for FY 1992. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And there was no money for 1991? Maybe I am 

in the wrong fiscal year here. 
Ms. FORE. The $114 is Guaranty Authority. It is not the balance 

in this account. And the $114 million is actually the capital mobi
lized for the small business sector. One half of that $114 million, or 
$57 million, is the amount of our contingent liability. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. The purpose of the private sector revolving fund 
has provided loans and guarantees to those individuals in business
es that would normally not qualify, and therefore receive a loan 
from a formal sector bank. It is also supposed to eventually reduce 
the high level of collateral 150 percent or higher, is that correct? 

Ms. FORE. That is correct. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Any intermediary financial institution using 

your guarantee is not required to provide a loan to a new recipient 
however, is that correct; that the loan can end up going to some
body that they are already giving loans to? 

Ms. FORE. It could. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And what is the average direct loan under this 

program? 
Ms. FORE. You mean under the direct loan program or under the 

guarantee program? 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Under the direct loan program. 
Ms. FORE. Under our primary financial assistance facility, the 

Loan Guarantee Program, the average loan size that we guarantee 
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is $75,000. Under the direct loan program$1.8 million for a average project loanstypical project. We do very few direct projectloans, and reserve those funds to support environmentally orientedprojects, or other projects where the potential development benefitis particularly high.Mr. GEJDENSON. Most of these have been environmental rescueprograms, is that it?

Ms. FORE. No. In the last year, we felt that the area where wecould best utilize our direct loan funds was to support environmental projects. And so we used the direct loan facility for three ofthese projects in the past year.Mr. GEJDENSON. But your average is about $1.8 million, not justthese last three?
 
Ms. FORE. That is correct.
Mr. GEJDENSON. So if the bank does not have to provide a loan ora guarantee to a new borrower, and we agree that the average loanis about $1.8 w±illion, and that borrowers have to show up to 150percent collateral, those that were already getting loans, the recipients of loans would be people who have at least $2.5 million ormore to qualify for the loan.Ms. FORE. No. There are two parts to this program. One is directloans, and the other one is loan guarantees. The guarantees go tothe intermediate financial institutions, who then in turn on-lendtheir own funds to the small business borrower. That on-lendingdoes not average $1.8 million. The average loan size there is closerto $75,000. And the loans go to small businesses, typically with 15to 50 employees. So they are very small.


Mr. GEJDENSON. So the $1.8 figure.
Ms. FORE. Is only for direct project loans, not for our 
primaryLoan Guarantee Program.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Goes to the bank.

Ms. FORE. Well, that might go to-
Mr. GEJDENSON. Wait. Am I wrong? I am wrong. So explain it to me again.
The $1.8 million actually gets lent to individual companies?

Ms. FORE. Correct.
Mr. GEJDENSON. And most of these were doing business with thebanks beforehand?
Ms. FORE. You can either have a private bank involved in thattransaction for the direct loan or not. There may not even be a private bank involved, because 
 they may have been unable to getcredit.Mr. GEJDENSON. But you cannot tell me today, we had this problem before I think, what percentage of these loans go to people who
could not get credit, and what percentage go to people who already


had credit?
Ms. FORE. Well, almost all of them go to people who could not getcredit.
Mr. GEJDENSON. You could quantify that somehow, they are notexisting customers of the bank?Mr. EASTHAM. That is right. Congressman, under our guaranteeprogram, the loan guarantee program, we have a policy that theloans go primarily to new customers of the bank. For existing clients, it must be for an expansion of credit beyond the level the 
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bank has previously been willing to provide. The direct loans are 
different. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Do you have data that we can see on that? 
Mr. EASTHAM. Yes, we do. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And explain the difference of the direct loan to 

me again. 
Mr. EASTHAM. To put it in perspective, we have about 87 active 

facilities right now, and only eight of those are direct project loans. 
Seventy-three are guarantee facilities. The remainder are grants. 
The project loans are the exception to what we do. Again, to see 
this in perspective, we have $15 million of direct loan authority 
this year, and we have $114 million of guaranty authority. If fully 
utilized, that would create $57 million of contingent liability. 

The direct loan program is a relatively small part of our pro
gram. They are usually projects that we finance perhaps with one 
other private sector participant. But the guarantee program is the 
major part of the program. And those loans average $75,000 or so. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Roth. 
Mr. ROTH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
According to this chart, to this financial profile, under utilized 

we have 33 percent. We have 33 percent utilized. 
What is the justification for asking for another $114 million? 
Mr. EASTHAM. I will be glad to answer that. First, let me note 

that each year we have successfully obligated all of the guarantee 
and direct loan authority approved by Congress. This program has 
grown fairly fast in the last couple of years. Out of the total issued 
here of about $127 million, $46 million were completed and placed 
on the books during last September of 1990, near the end of the 
last fiscal year. So it takes awhile once these are issued, for the 
client banks to translate that into new loans to small businesses. 
Frequently, such participating banks have to develop new training 
manuals and organizational structures, because these represent 
new major programs for them. 

Often it takes a year or so sometimes for the banks to start issu
ing loans to small business customers. Before the most recent batch 
of guarantees were completed in September, the utilization was 
about 60 percent. But it is true that we do not have full utilization. 
However, we have to get annual re-authorization, because all of 
our Guaranty Authority for FY 1990 was committed. All of the 
Guaranty Authority we have received in the past has been commit
ted. It is just that in some cases the banks do not fully utilize it. 
We are working closely with these banks to encourage their in
creased utilization and expansion of credit to the small business 
sector. 

Mr. ROTH. How do you make sure that these funds are used for 
the program that it is intended for? 

Mr. EASTHAM. We regularly do project evaluations. Also, our in
vestment officers are out in the field on a fairly regular basis, two 
to three times a year at each institution. We do evaluations after 
the program has been in place a year or so. Additionally, we do an 
annual financial review or audit, not a full-fledged audit but a good 
financial review to determine compliance. In such audits, we have 
somebody out there looking at their financial records and talking 
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to borrowers in certain cases and reviewing the performance. I believe we have established a fairly active ongoing program.We also have a training program which I think you would be interested in. Such training is a major part that complements theloan guarantee facility. The training is a very important factor,and many of the banks sign up for the program almost as much toreceive training for their bank officers as they do to have availablethe financial guarantee for risk sharing, which covers only fiftypercent and is not always the biggest attraction.Mr. RoTH. Suppose onewe had of these in Indonesia or someplace like this, what percentage of the bank's money would go into

this loan?
Mr. EASTHAM. The banks lend 100 percent of the money. SinceA.I.D. provides only a guarantee facility, we give them no moneyfor the actual loans. In fact, as I am sure you realize, we chargethem a fee for our guarantee. We charge anywhere from one to oneand a half percent fee to provide the guarantee coverage.those fees so Andfar have almost offset our losses from claims on the 

program.
Mr. RoTH. The next question, of course, is what is the default

rate?
Mr. EASTHAM. We noted that in the exhibit included in our written testimony. On the guarantee program, it has averaged abouttwo percent. We have provided a reserve for that each year, and ithas been two percent. When you offset fees against it-Mr. GEJDENSON. You said fees are about two percent?Mr. EASTHAM. Fees are one to two percent, yes. But the defaultshave also been one to two percent. So the fees have basically offsetour claims. It has been essentially self-sustaining.Mr. ROTH. Except in direct loans it is nine percent, why is thatdifference?

Mr. EASTHAM. That is right, Mr. Roth. The direct loans, are inherently more risky. They are for larger projects, and in areaswhere we are looking for a greater development impact, but theyare more risky. So when you have a loss, it can be a big one. Itcould be $500,000 or more. Most of the direct loans themselves arelarger.
In the guarantee program, we are fairly diversified, and the
lender base is spread out. So even if we have a number of losses, it
is a portfolio of loans that we guarantee and those individual loans
 average about $75,000.

Mr. ROTH. How long have we had these programs going?

Mr. EASTHAM. Since 1983.
Mr. ROTH. Since 1983. I serve on the banking committee and we
had problems with our S&Ls and banks and everything here. Sosince 1983, you cannot get too much of a case study from that, because of the ugly head that is only going to start rearing in a few years possibly.
Do you have people out there with these direct loans who are appraising properties or businesses? What I am really asking is howare you regulating this, so that we do not have the problems overseas that we have here at home? If we have problems here athome, my God what would happen overseas. 
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Mr. EASrHAM. I think that it is an important area, and we are 
constantly looking at that. We have an active program of due dili
gence prior to Committing these guarantee facilities, Generally, the 
intermediate financial institutions that we deal with are among 
the better banks in the country. We have independent evaluations 
prior to signing up a bank. We evaluate them prior to committing 
our resources, and then we monitor its use during the life of the 
program. 

It is not perfect. We are going to have losses. We are a develop
ment institution. But we think that the steps that we take inter
nally to manage this program are very sound. And so far, I think 
that the results speak for themselves. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. If I could just ask the gentleman to yield on 
that. 

Mr. RoTH. Yes. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. In 1988, GAO said that you needed a substantial 

data base to be able to review your program. You do not have that 
yet. 

Mr. EASTHAM. I think that it has been much improved. I have 
only been in this office for two years,-but during much of that time 
I have seen the changes that have come about. A lot more empha
sis has been placed on collecting data. I think that the reports that 
I provided to some of your staff are head and shoulders above what 
they were a year ago. And we now have an active program both in 
operational data tracking and in results tracking on the develop
mental impact side. So both are much improved, and again we 
have shared that information with your staff. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. But you are a long way from where GAO 
wanted you to be as far as data? 

Mr. EASTHAM. I think in operational accounting, no. In managing 
the accounts of the operating funds, I would say that we are where 
we need to be. In terms of assessing the development impact of this 
program, there is more work that could be done. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. I thought that we were told that it would take 
two more years to get hard data on the program. 

Mr. EASTHAM. I think that may refer to collecting data on the 
developmental impact side-that is, collecting information indicat
ing what the beneficial results have been. That process, however, is 
also much improved since the GAO review. We certainly need 
more time. This is still a relatively new program. 

Mr. ROTH. In fact, it is just getting off the ground when you start 
considering 1983 on loans and so on. 

Mr. EAATHAM. That is right. 
Mr. RiyrH. You do not have a track record. 
Mr. EAFTHAM. Congressman Roth, in terms of the project loans, 

you are correct. Many are five- or seven-year loans. These are not 
long term loans like some of the programs that I am sure you have 
looked at. But in the small business area, most of the loans, many 
of them are 90 days loans or 180 day loans. Very few of them are 
much over a year. 

So there has been a history. We have had a lot of facilities turn 
over. So I believe there actually is a fairly good track record on the 
guarantee program. 
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Mr. ROm. Well, my time is up. I just want to say this, Mr. Chairman. I commend you for holding these hearings. Because there isgoing to be trouble in this area, there is no doubt about it. I mean 
a blind man in my opinion can see that there is going to be trouble.Because this program now has about a ten percent default rate.
And we have to ask ourselves who defaulted.

And it is another case of the Government, the U.S. Government 
not knowing what one agency is doing. For example, we have had some defaults because of debt restructuring by our own government. And there has -got to be something wrong when that hap
pens. There is no coordination here.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Do you want to answer that?Ms. FORE. Well, I might just mention that these are guarantees
that are going through private banks. They are not official debts.So the default rate that we are showing of one to two percent is onthe sub-borrowers, and the default goes half on to the local bank,the private bank, and then half on to the U.S. Government.

Mr. ROTH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate it.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you.
Mr. Orton. 
Mr. ORTON. Thank you.
In order to follow up on the line of questioning that our Chairman began with, I want to talk first about direct loans and thenthe guarantee program second. Under the direct loan program, apparently those eligible to receive loans are individuals or entitieswhich supposedly cannot receive credit from a private bank, cor

rect?
The collateral that is typically required is 150 percent of theloan, and the banks do not have to issue loans to someone without a credit history. So, the chairman was making the point that if youare requiring someone to have a credit history and show 150 percent collateral foe the loan, and the average amount of the loan is$1.8 million, then what you are doing is you are loaning money toindividuals or entities who have $3 million of assets, have a pastcredit history, but cannot get a loan from a commercial bank.

There is a problem there somewhere. 
How are we encouraging development through these direct loansif we are going into foreign countries and providing this money toloan to individuals or entities who have at least $3 million inassets? That is the average if you are talking about $1.8 million in

loan. What is happening?
Mr. EASTHAM. Congressman, I think there is some what of a misunderstanding between the project loans and the guarantees. Iknow you are referring to the project loans. But specifically, theproject loans many times do not involve a bank, or they might involve a bank as an investor, or as a co-investor. So, if you'll permit,

let me provide you a specific example.
Mr. ORTON. Okay, leave the bank out of it.
 
Mr. EASTHAM. Okay.

Mr. ORTON. Let us say we are making a direct loan to them.

Mr. EASTHAM. Okay.

Mr. ORTON. But we are putting up all this money to loan to individuals or entities who already have at least $3 million in assets.
Mr. EASTHAM. No, not necessarily. 

46-816 0 - 91 - 6 
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Mr. ORTON. No? 
Mr. EAETHAM. Not necessarily, no. 
Mr. ORTON. Okay, the average. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. But it does happen.
Mr. EASTHAM. I am not aware of it in our program.
If I could give you a couple of examples. There are only eight

direct loans in the facilities that are active. One of these loans rep
resents a project for which A.I.D. and the United States have re
ceived significant positive credit for helping to start the first ven
ture capital fund in Thailand. This was started with a $3 million 
direct loan from A.I.D. A group of six banks, which we recruited,
and put up an additional $3 million themselves, this work helped
to create a new venture capital entity in Thailand, which was the 
first one in that country and was followed by eight more within the 
next three years. We were successful in being a catalyst to getting
the venture capital industry started there. 

But there was no additional collateral or there was not anyone
else in it. The banks certainly had deep pockets, but they put their 
own money into this as a more risky financial institution than they
had been used o doing. 

Mr. ORTON. Okay.
Mr. EASTHAM. It has been relatively successful particularly in 

terms of demonstration effect. 
Mr. ORTON. All right. Let me just indicate that if we are trying

to create a venture capital industry, I have some concerns over 
what happened as a result of our own venture capital industry in 
the 1980s and the S&L crisis right now. All of which gets us to the 
next part of the program, the guarantee program.

Are we funding the guarantees right now, or are we just backing 
up loans with future credit? I mean, you are asking for $114 mil
lion this year, but only eight direct loans are made. Apparently the 
bulk of the money is for guarantees.

Where does the money go? To whom does this $114 million go? Is 
it 100 percent guaranteed, or are we sending it to banks? What is 
happening?

Mr. EASTHAM. If I could explain that. The $114 million is the au
thority that you give this office, to extend guarantees.

Now, the contingent liability to the United States is $57 million,
one-half of that. Our rules require us under the Presidential budget 
process to state in our request the total amount of loans, any part
of which are guaranteed. So, our actual contingent liability or 
guarantee program that we are working with is $57 million. Again, 
we guarantee only 50% of the Loan. 

Under our internal policies internally, only can constitutes one
half of loans that are made by a group of banks. So we are mobiliz
ing at least $114 million of credit. We are doing it with $57 million 
of contingent liability and that is funded by a reserve account out 
of the "unobligated balance" that we went through earlier. We put
aside 25 percent or roughly $15 million, against potential losses
even though right now we are only incurring losses in the 2 to 4 
percent range. Hopefully, you will see that as a fairly conservative 
approach.
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Mr. ORTON. Okay, but where is the money going? Are we actually transferring money out of the treasury and sending it some

where? 
Mr. EASTHAM. No.
Mr. ORTON. Or is it just an amount of guarantees which we can

subject the treasury to in the future?
Mr. EASTHAM. It is the latter. It is exactly as you stated it.
Mr. ORTON. And the total amount of guarantees is the $114 million or that is 25 percent of the total amount?
Mr. EASTHAM. The total guarantee that we could ever potentiallybe liable for under this year's program is $57 million. The $114 million of Guarantee Authority represents the loans that are actuallymobilized collectively by the group of banks that actually make theloans to the small business borrowers.
Mr. GEJDENSON. So, our liability is $57 million. 
Mr. EASTHAM. Worst case.
Ms. FORE. Yes. That is if all of them defaulted, and what we presently have is a 25 percent set aside as a reserve.
Mr. ORTON. That is one branch of a small bank in Texas. [Laugh

ter.]
Mr. ORTON. I have other questions on housing, but go ahead. We

will come back. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Miller.
Mr. MILLER. Yes, I would like to turn to the housing guaranteeprogram in Israel. This is a chance for some of us who have not gone through the question and answer with you to learn about the program. Let me go through some of the basics.
We now have this guarantee program that has just been announced this year in Israel. Four hundred million? 
Ms. FORE. Right.
Mr. MILLER. And then you are expecting 400 million next year

and 400 million the year after?
Ms. FORE. No, it is just a one time 400 million this year.
Mr. MILLER. It is a one time 400 million.Well, where did I get the idea that this was a billion, multi-bil

lion dollar guarantee program.
Mr. KIMM. Well, we have not received a request for anythingmore than the 400 million. We read in the papers that there might

be more.
Mr. MILLER. I have been reading in the papers too. I assumed it 

was billions and billions. 
Mr. KIMM. So far 400 million. 
Mr. MILLER. It is 400 million of guarantees, but you are expecting next-you know, given the amount of Soviet Jews immigratingto Israel, you are expecting it is going to be continued next year

and the year after. 
Mr. KiMM. It is hard to tell what to expect, Congressmen. Whether they would ask for additional housing guarantee authority, orwhether they will ask the U.S. Government to give them moneywith no strings attached, it is likely that there will be additional 

requests from Israel but we do not know.
Mr. MILLER. But this is right now 400 million in guarantees.
Mr. KIMM. Yes.
 
Mr. MILLER. No money.
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Mr. KiMM. It's a guarantee.
Mr. MILLER. But you have guaranteed the loans so that what? So 

that the Israeli government can borrow the money?
Mr. KIMM. Yes, with our guarantees, the Israelis will soon 

borrow $400 million on the U.S. capital market. 
Mr. MILLER. It will borrow from U.S. banks to put up housing for. 

Jews fleeing the Soviet Union? 
Mr. KIMM. Right.
Mr. MILLER. Well, now, this was asked of me by a constituent the 

other day, and I did not have an answer for it as one who is sympa
thetic to this program.

I understand the virtue of the guarantee. He asked why could 
not the Israeli government guarantee. I mean, why do we have to 
guarantee?

Mr. KIMM. Because this type of credit, a 30-year credit, is not 
available to the Government of Israel for a private lender. A pri
vate lender would not make such a loan to the Government of 
Israel. 

Mr. MILLER. So a private lender would make that loan to the 
United States. Therefore, we can guarantee it, but the private
lender would not make it to the government of Israel? 

Mr. KIMM. That is right.
Mr. MILLER. Is this common in other countries, private lenders 

will not make 30-year loans to governments?
Mr. KiMM. Yes, the whole basis of the housing guarantee pro

gram is it is a way of making loans available to countries which 
would not otherwise be able to get the loan. 

Mr. MILLER. So just speaking generally, looking around the 
world, how many countries have sufficiently good financial stand
ing that they can make guarantees, or they can get 30-year loans 
from the private sector? 

Mr. KIMM. By and large, they are not A.I.D. recipients. By and 
large, the countries who could do so are not the countries that 
A.I.D. does business with. 

Mr. MILLER. But I assume countries like Britain, France, Germa
ny, Japan can borrow money--

Mr. KIMM. Can lend money and borrow money on those terms. 
Mr. MILLER. Okay. But that is one of the criteria you look at, 

whether the government of the recipient country needs a guaran
tee. 

Mr. KIMM. Yes. 
Mr. MILLER. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Ms. FORE. I might add, Mr. Congressman, virtually all of the 65 

countries that we deal with in A.I.D., it is very difficult to get that 
kind of credit. 

Mr. MILLER. It is unusual. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. We may find ourselves in that position shortly if 

we are not careful. People may not want to make long-term loans 
to this country.

With your reflows, what do you anticipate your balance of the 
fund to be on December 1991, December 30, 1991? 

Ms. FORE. Well, we are anticipating the unobligated fund balance 
as of December 31st to be approximately $40 million. 

[The information follows:] 
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1991 UNOBLIGATED BALANCE 
Under credit reform, the inobligated balance at the start of FY 1992 for the FY

1992 portfolio account will be zero. This is the result of the required isolation of all 
cash flows associated with the "old" (pre FY 1992) pre-credit reform, portfolio from 
the new portfolio for FY 1992 and beyond. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. 1991? 
Ms. FORE. 1991. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. All right. And how are you reducing the collat

eral requirements for loans? Do you know or does A.I.D. know, now 
have an accurate data system that shows you are getting money to 
places where it would not go before? 

Ms. FORE. Well, we have got a couple of ways to get at that. One 
is by the type of borrower, and in many of these banks they had 
never opened a window to small business, or they had not opened 
up a window for rural lending, or they had not looked at cash flow 
lending. So that we know it is new in all of those areas.

Mr. GEJDENSON. So you do not know that those are new custom
ers. 

Ms. FORE. We know they are primarily new customers. 
Mr. EASTHAM. Or expansion of existing customers lines, either 

one. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Yes, the concern that people may have is that 

are you really just giving more credit to the same people, because 
now the person who got the collateralized loan from the bank gets
that loan for part.of his business, and then comes over to this other
window and gets a loan based on his cash flow, and that that is 
where all the money ends up going and you are really not getting
it to new people.

Mr. EASTHAM. That type of abuse is certainly possible, but from 
my experience, having been out to a lot of these banks, particularly
in the Asia region which I used to handle, that is not really hap
pening. Most of the banks are really very responsibin, have high
integrity, and we select them on that basis. 

Generally, we are seeing good results and many of the borrowers 
are new customers for a bank. But we also allow the guarantee to 
be used for expansion of credit to existing customers. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. In A.I.D.'s congressional presentation ibr fiscal 
year 1992, on page 101 under operating expense allocations, $96 
million spent on direct hires, full-time A.I.D. staff for salaries and 
benefits. And A.I.D. spent $52 million, or more than half of that, on 
contractors. 

In the material the subcommittee received from your staff, the 
description of PEDs reads as follows: 

TEDs offers high quality technical expertise in many aspects of the private 
sector, development through the services of 13 separate firms." 

Is this program entirely staffed by contractors? 
Ms. FORE. The work done overseas is primarily done'by contrac

tors. 
[The information follows:] 

A.I.D's USE OF CONTRACTORS 
We have two U.S. direct hires who manage the PEDs project here in the APRE

Bureau. Experience has shown that it is less expensive to use contractors for over
seas assignments than to pay all the ancillary support costs associated with having 
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direct hire personnel overseas. Examples of such costs are housing and education 
allowances. There are two other major benefits to using contractors for overseas 
tasks. The response time, which is critical to much of the business we do, is much 
reduced by the contracting mechanisms. It is a great deal faster to send a contractor 
to do a specific job that it would be to put direct hire staff in place. Secondly, a 
single contractor with specific expertise can address similar problems in a number 
of countries which is more efficient than placing direct hire employees in each of a 
number of countries. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. And how did these 13 firms get selected? 
Ms. FORE. It is all competitively bid. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Is it 13 because you have 13 programs going on, 

or is that just an accident of time? 
Ms. FORE. That was an accident of time. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Can we get a list of those firms and the projects

that they have been involved in over the last five years, what they 
have been doing?

Ms. FORE. Yes. 
[The information follows:] 
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TiZIITERPRSEI T DVIOPUN1T SUPPORT PROWZCT 

The Private Enterprise Development Support Project (PEDS)
 
was designed to help A.I.D.'s overseas missions integrate private

enterprise development into their programs. Since the technical
 
assistance needed to do this is multi-faceted, it requires access
 
to expertise in a number of different areas. The current PEDS
 
contract was awarded to a consortium of firms that could provide

the broad range of expertise needed by developing countries.
 
Each of the finrs was selected on the basis of its expertise in a
 
particular niche of private sector development.
 

ERNST & YON is the prime contractor for the PEDS Project,

and as such is responsible for overall management and
 
implementation of the project. In addition, Ernst & Young

provides substantive technical assistance to A.I.D. missions and
 
developing countries to promote private sector development in
 
certain fields. Some of the types of assistance Ernst & Young

has provided include the following:
 

The development of a major trade and investment project

design for ASEAN.
 

Assessments of the training needs of private enterprise in
 
Tunisia, Morocco, and Thailand.
 

An analysis of the opportunities for agribusiness

development in Poland from a private sector perspective.
 

Development of an agribusiness project design'for the A.I.D.
 
mission in Morocco.
 

The development of a manual to assist A.I.D. officers
 
address gender issues in private sector development.
 

A major conference to launch the private sector component of
 
the PL-480 program.
 

SRI INTERNATIONAL specializes in addressing policy issues
 
related to private sector development. At the request of many

missions, particularly in Asia, SRI has provided assistance to
 
examine trade and investment policies in developing countries.
 
To synthesize expertise developed under the project, SRI recently

completed a guidebook on trade and investment promotion

initiatives in developing countries.
 

THE SERVICES GROUP was selected as a member of the PEDS team
 
because of its expertise in free trade zone development and
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management. The Services Group has prepared strategies for free
 
trade zones in numerous developing countries through the PEDS
 
Project. Some of the countries include El Salvador, Togo,
 
Cameroon, Mauritius, Uruguay, Cape Verde, and Zimbabwe.
 

MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL specializes in
 
entrepreneur-ship training and in private sector impact
 
assessments. MSI has recently completed workshops on
 
entrepreneurship in Chile and Mauritius. It also has undertaken
 
impact assessments in the Dominican Republic and Kenya.
 

J.E. AUSTIN ASSOCIATES was selected to participate on the
 
PEDS Project because of its expertise in developing the "MAPS
 
methodology." MAPS (Manual for Action in the Private Sector) is
 
a five-step process for analyzing private sector opportunities
 
and constraints in a particular country and developing private
 
sector strategies for the USAID mission. Through PEDS, MAPS has
 
been applied in Kenya, the Dominican Republic, Cameroon, South
 
Africa, and Ghana.
 

RONCO specializes in agribusiness promotion under the PEDS
 
project. For example, RONCO assessed the opportunities for
 
private sector involvement in a Food Technology Institute in
 
Senegal.
 

TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT INTERNATIONAL has provided assistance
 
in enterprise development to a number of A.I.D. Missions,
 
including Haiti and Botswana, through the PEDS Project.
 

ROBERT CARLSON ASSOCIATES. INC. is an industrial engineering
 
firm; the company provided assistance to USAID/Guatemala to
 
conduct an assessment of the local manufacturing industry.
 

The firms described above have provided most of the
 
technical assistance under the project. The PEDS project also
 
has access to several other firms, which provide expertise on
 
select projects. For example, Ferris. Baker & Watts provided
 
assistance in the establishment of a stock market in Kenya.
 
Multinational Strategies provided assistance to examine
 
opportunities to promote environmental protection via the private
 
sector. MetaMetrics analyzed the small and medium-enterprise
 
sector in Liberia.
 

The services of three of the original set of the PEDS
 
contractors have not been accessed. Reilly. Curtis is a law
 
firm; thus far, no legal assistance of the type it has available
 
has been requested under PEDS. Elliot Berg Associates was
 
selected as a PEDS team member firm because of its expertise in
 
policy issues in Africa; the firm has since joined a larger firm.
 
Lastly, Dimpex, a small firm with expertise in private sector
 
development in Africa, is no longer in business.
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Mr. GEJDENSON. Now, are we in the danger-you know, it seems 
to me we did this domestically. We got rid of the marines at themilitary bases and we hired contract security guards who
paid $5.57 an hour. I am 

were 
not sure we got the same level or qualityof security as we did when we had a marine. It seems to me one ofthe things we have done here is that as we have squeezed theA.I.D. budgets and the rest of the State Department budget, we

have tried to find ways to do more with less, and that is nice if itworks but sometimes I am fearful that we have pushed these
things out of shop and then we lose control. And when you rely so
heavily on contractors, you lose your ability to have a consistent
policy and get the message to the host countries, that it is one 
more enterprise that has got profit, as it should, at the bottom linerather than development and all the other things that we have.

How do you get adequate control, and why not just bring thisback into A.I.D. and have A.I.D. officials do the work instead of 
contractors? 

We have got to do what you have done with your people and justadd 20 percent for profit, plus taxes. You know, the government
ends up paying maybe more for less.

Ms. FORE. Well, I share your concern about it. With the budgets
that we have in our operating expenses for travel as well as fordirect hires, we just do not have enough in there for traveling ade
quately to look after the programs if we are to do it with our own
direct hires. There just is not enough funding.

[The information follows:] 
We are, however, able to maintain a high degree of quality control over our contractors. Field mission personnel are always actively involved in on-site oversight.In addition, centrally located Washington D.C. direct hire staff provide worldwide 

contract guidance and management. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. So isn't there a danger that we are not gettingdone what we want, that the programs do not achieve the goals

that we set out? 
Ms. FORE. There is a danger, but one of the assets we have is ourmissions. We really have good, strong missions in the countries, so

that any contractor who goes out is overseen by the mission, andthe missions really know everything that is going on in their coun
try.

Mr. GEJDENSON. But how is it cheaper to send a contractor outthere rather than an A.I.D. professional foreign service person?
You know, a young lady used to work for me. Her husband

worked for the Defense Department. They contracted out his section. He never moved from his desk. They just raised his salary
and he went to work for this private company that now did everything he used to do as a government employee.

A couple of years later he figured out this was a pretty good
deal, and he bid against the company he was working for. He never]eft his desk, made a lot more money, which I was happy to see
him make, and provided the same service for the Federal Government. We lost control. It cost us more money. After a couple of years, there was no government comparison. If you are going toprovide the same service, if they have to put people in the field, if
they have to fly people over, the products, the cost is the same, is it 
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not, and maybe more? Because somebody wants to profit at the end 
of the day. So what is the advantage to this system?

Ms. FORE. Well, I mean it is a reality of just where our budgets 
are coming from. There are other costs overseas with direct hire 
people, with education' and children and travel allowances and 

ousing. So putting someone overseas is also expensive, and you 
want to be sure that they can travel from country to country be
cause there might not just be one country that they need to do 
work in. 

We are mindful of the fact that it must be cost-effective. So I 
think the best insurance that we have is our good project manag
ers. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Roth. 
Mr. ROTH. Well, Mr. Chairman, I hope I am not getting too cyni

cal as I am getting older, but I just do not feel that you can police
these programs. After my experience with the S&Ls, and we have 
that right here and we were close to them and we had all those 
problems, I do not know how we are going to be able to police these 
programs.

Mr. GEJDENSON. If I did not have Ms. Holsman here watching.
Mr. ROTH. Well, I have all the faith in the three people that are 

in front of us, Ms. Holsman. But I do not care. They can be Solo
mon. There is no way they are going to be able to, I think, police
these programs.

You have 11 programs now for technical assistance, about $20 
million, right?

Ms. FORE. That is correct. 
Mr. ROTH. The chairman asked about the contractors and so on, 

and you are going to provide the subcommittee with who the recipi
ents are, the contractors, and amount? 

Ms. FORE. And what they do, yes.
Mr. ROTH. Great. 
Ms. FORE. I have some examples.
Mr. ROTH. I think that would be one way before we markup that 

we could take a look at this and see, you know, try to get some 
objectivity into this to see how effective these progr ams are, and I 
guess that is about the best we can do on that. 

Ms. FORE. We would also be glad to go through our programs
thoroughly with any of your staff that would like to. 

Mr. ROTH. Okay, good. Thank you.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Orton. 
Mr. ORTON. Thank you again.
Let us return to the housing guarantee program for a second. On 

page 9 of your written testimony, in the middle of the page, it says,
"In fiscal year 1991, A.I.D. plans to authorize $550 million in guar

antee loans to finance new shelter initiatives for the urban poor in 
about eight countries." 

This may be an unfair question, but do you have any idea how 
much the Federal Government is providing to guarantee shelter for 
the urban poor in the United States? 

Ms. FORE. I do not know that number. 
Mr. ORTON. Okay. Of this 550 million, 400 million of it is going to 

Israel and 150 million to seven other countries. Is that right?
Ms. FORE. That is correct. 
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Mr. ORTON. Again, these are guarantee amounts, right?
Ms. FORE. Correct.
Mr. ORTON. Now, this money must be going somewhere. I am a 

tax attorney. I used to work for the IRS. I like to trace the dollar, 
you know. 

Whose pocket is it coming out of? Whose pocket is it going into?
Obviously, there is money generated at some level, because that money is being paid to build housing. All right, let us track backthrough. Where does the money actually come from? Is it localbanks in that country who are going to be providing the capital to

build the shelters? Is it governments? Where does the physical 
money come from? 

Mr. KiMM. Okay. We started to answer the question in the caseof Israel, and where Israel is non-typical in that it is so large and 
was not something that the Executive Branch requested, butrather, something that somehow or another got through the Con
gress without such a request.

First of all, A.I.D. works with a client, a developing country, and we identify an activity that they would like financed and we wouldlike to finance. The statute requires that the products produced be
affordable by people who are below the median income in the country, and in most of our countries the median income is very low.

Much of the financing does not provide a completed house, butrather, provides water connections into a slum neighborhood, orthe line of credit with which someone could add a room to a house, 
very low-cost stuff. 

Anyway, once we have identified a project we would like to finance and the client would like us to finance, we give them a letterwhich says that the U.S. Government will guarantee repayment to 
any U.S. lender who will finance that project. And with that letter,the borrower enters the U.S. capital market and borrows the 
money from whatever lender will offer that borrower the best 
terms and conditions. 

That loan then is made to the developing country.
Mr. ORTON. Okay. Now, we have identified the lender. 
Mr. KiMM. Right.
Mr. ORTON. Is the loan made to the developing country or to de

velopers in the developing country, or the individuals?
Mr. KiMM. It varies from loan to loan, but most typically it is

made to the government, to the central government.
Mr. GEJDENSON. If the gentleman would yield.
What happens here is that the Israeli government owes the U.S.

lender the money. 
Mr. KIMm. Right.
Mr. GEJDENSON. And the American government says that it will

guarantee that the Israeli government will pay it back over the 30 
years or the taxpayers will pick up the tab. 

Mr. KIMm. That is right.
Mr. GEJDENSON. But it is not as if we are lending money to 

company in Israel that could disappear and we would get stuck
a 

with the tab. 
Mr. KIMM. That is right. And to continue to use the Israel example, what the Government of Israel will do, it will agree to discountrmortgages made by the privately-owned mortgage banks in Israel. 
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The privately-owned mortgage banks in Israel will make loans for 
housing that will be occupied by Jewish immigrants from the 
Soviet Union. 

Those mortgages can then be brought to the central bank and 
the central bank vill replenish-

Mr. GEJDENSON. Dole them out. Just like B. F. Saul. 
Mr. Kimm. That is your flow of funds in the Israel deal, and that 

is one of several models. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. The same way that a bank discount house oper

ates here basically.
Mr. I(MM. That is right.
Mr. GEJDENSON. They do the mortgage, then they pass it off some 

place else. 
Mr. KIMM. The mortgage is sold to another party. In this case it

is the central bank of the country, and it is using proceeds that 
come. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Now, if the gentleman would yield for one 
moment? 

In the history of this, how old is this program?
Mr. KiMM. Twenty-five years.
Mr. GEJDENSON. And how much money have we lost in 25 years?
Mr. KiMM. Well, we have paid claims. We have made loans of 

about $2 billion. We have paid claims for $172 million. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And how did we get stuck with $172 million? 
Mr. KIMM. Those claims stem almost entirely, not from any prob

lem related to the housing project itself or from the person living
in the housing project refusing or failing to make the payment, but 
rather, due to the international debt problem. That is, where the 
country in question is not paying its dollar debt or not paying its 
dollar debt in a timely fashion. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Any examples of countries? 
Mr. KIMM. Well, the worst-there are a group of countries which 

have rescheduled their debt. The example just quoted by Congress
man Roth. That is where all of the donor nations meeting in what 
is called the Paris Club agree that a country can reschedule its 
debt, that it does not have to pay its official debt or does not have 
to pay all of its official debt on time. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Most of those countries are in Latin America at 
this point?

Mr. KIMhi. Many of them are in Latin America. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. I yield back to the gentleman.
Mr. ORTON. You are doing very well. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you. It's very nice of you to say that. 
Mr. ORTON. You are asking all the right questions.
I do not have much more. I have been sitting in banking commit

tee meetings ever since I got to this Congress, and we have been 
going over the RTC funding of $30 billion and we are talking about 
restructuring the FDIC and many other federal guarantee pro
grams. I just have to tell you that the people in my district are 
starting to cringe every time we talk about federal guarantee pro
grams, whether it is guaranteeing depositors in our own country or 
whether it is guaranteeing lenders in foreign countries. 

I do not know if it is accurate, but I read one report indicating
the total sum of United States Government guarantee programs is 
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reaching $8 trillion. That is a staggering amount for the United
States taxpayer to be holding the bill for. I guess we are all afraid 
of the house of cards. I am seeking some kind of assurance that
continuing to fund these types of guarantee programs, even inside 
our own country let alone outside the country, is good public
policy.

Mr. ROTH. Will the gentleman yield?

Mr. ORTON. Yes.
 
Mr. ROTH. I want to join and say that the gentleman has elo

quently stated my feelings also. I would add this. If we had total
control, which we did over our regulators and we had all the reins
in our hands and we have this huge problem with S&Ls and who
knows what is going to be staring us in the face with the banks
and so on, can you imagine what kind of problem this is going to be 
at some point? 

Mr. ORTON. We may as well call it foreign aid and give it to
them, I think, rather than fooling the taxpayers and say we are 
guaranteeing loans. 

Ms. FORE. Well, there are two comments here. I think that is one
of the points about these programs that are a bit different. Ninety
percent of our foreign aid does go out in grants. We have here 
some loans and some guarantees for small businesses and a differ
ent type of guarantee for shelter and housing. So that if they were 
to all completely default, it would be as if they had been grants.
But the repayment ratios have really been very good. I mean a de
fault rate of 1 or 2 percent to my left, and default rate to my right
of maybe 12 percent. That is very low when you think that we are
getting a lot more money back, bang for our buck than we would if
it was just straight grant programs. So, I think that is one thing to 
keep in mind. 

And, Peter, I think you wanted to add.
 
Mr. ORTON. Of course, the default 
rate in S&Ls and banks his

torically was fairly low too.
 
Mr. GEJDENSON. So we deregulated.

Mr. ROTH. It is only when the roof caves in when you see how

bad the problem is. And as I see it, if the gentleman would yield.
Mr. ORTON. Actually, I am out of time.
 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Go right ahead.
 
Mr. ROTH. Thank you.

As I see it, you know, in some of these countries there is so much


corruption. I mean, I have been to the Philippines. I love the Phil
ippine people. They are wonderful. You cannot find nicer people
that the Filipinos. But the government, it is so damn corrupt, and
if we are going to have problems with our own financial institu
tions on our loans here, can you imagine what we are going to be 
facing over there?

Ms. FORE. That makes one prefer to have more of the loans going
out to the private sector. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. One of the other obvious things that comes into
play here is that there is a cost to no action. We just spent tens of
billions of dollars in the Persian Gulf. They were not in housing
loan programs and they were not in economic development pro
grams, and they will not be paid back most likely for most of it. 
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So, sitting back and watching the world disintegrate does not
lend to help a great power either. But I bring you back to where 
we started and I just have a couple of quick questions left. 

When you go back there and sit with your folks in the adminis
tration, the frustration developing here, and this is just a mild re
flection of the country. The country is much more intense about 
this. They see a government where the President of the United 
States is ready to help Central Europe, Central America, the 
Middle East, and some people say, well, that is not terrible. We are 
not against all of that. But when it comes to helping people in this 
country, there are no programs anymore. They want to pass the re
sponsibilities back to the states and not the dough to take care of 
the job.

If that continues, we are going to find it impossible to sustain 
these programs that you operate, that I think have been very effec
tive in achieving their goals.

I have a few questions and then we will submit some in writing
to you, if you get back to us in 10 or 12 days. I always feel like I do 
not ask you though enough questions over there, that you have got 
a wealth of information. If I could get the right key to get out of 
one of these hearings, we will get you.

Mr. ORTON. Perhaps we ought to ask is there anything we need 
to know. [Laughter.] 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Yes, but the problem is he will say no. 
How will credit reform affect the housing investment guarantee

program?
Ms. FORE. Of these programs we have been talking about today,

it is the only one that really will be affected, and for the first time 
it will go on budget and there will be a 2.5 percent subsidy calcula
tion. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Which goes to our friend, Mr. Orton's question
that up to now these things have not been calculated, but the 
reform in the housing guarantee program states that from now on 
at least the estimated budget impact will be considered as part of 
the cost of the program. In a sense, reducing the surprise. If Mr. 
Orton had only been with us in earlier Congresses, we might have 
had less surprises.

Are you seeking any changes to the authorization for HIG this 
year?

Mr. KiMM. We will need an increase in the ceiling.
Mr. GEJDENSON. How Tig?
Mr. KIMM. One hundred million, the amount that is being re

quested. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Understanding that you chair one of the three

task forces for A.I.D. as it undertakes a thorough reorganization.
When did A.I.D. first hire the firm, what is it, Deloitte, Touche to 
conduct the study of A.I.D.'s programs?

Mb. FORE. Since our committees were set up after that report 
came out, I am not sure of the exact date. I would presume that it 
was some tim-) in the early fall. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. The study cost about $140,000? 
Ms. FORE. I do not know. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Yes, I think that is it. 
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Last year the Appropriations Committee expressed its concern 
regarding the lack of focus, duplication of effort and overall man
agement of A.I.D. In Section 557 of P.L. 101-513, the Appropriation
Act of 1991, the commission calls for the establishment of a com
mission on management for A.I.D. The commission is to be com
posed of the members of the private sector, representatives from
this committee and other relevant committees within Congress.
The Appropriation Committee provides $500,000 for this purpose.

Does A.I.D. plan to comply with the law? 
Ms. FORE. Yes, and the nominees for that committee, I think,

have mostly gone in and we hope to have them appointed soon.
Mr. GEJDENSON. And the $140,000 spent for this other firm, was 

that a waste of money? I mean, is it duplicative of this task? 
Ms. FORE. Well, their report is already out, and it is a very inter

esting and thoughtful report.
The advisory committee, to my understanding, was to advise

A.I.D. on its management. So, I presume it will do so and we will 
look forward to being sure that it is very effective.
 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Can you get us a copy of that report?

Thank you.

Wefl, we thank you for coming. The crack staff here will get you

some more questions, and we will see if we can pry out some more
information from you. We think you are generally doing a great
job, and we are going to try to convince Mr. Roth to go easy on you.

Ms. FORE. Thank you.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you.
Our next witness is Mr. James Berg, Executive Vice President,

Overseas Private Investment Program.
Mr. GEJDENSON. I don't know if we will get to these people, Mr.

Berg, but they are all leaving. Your entire statement will be placed
in the record, after which we will try to abuse you as possible.
Please proceed as you are most comfortable. 

STATEMENT OF JAMES BERG, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,

OVERSEAS PRIVATE INVESTMENT PROGRAM
 

Mr. BERG. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I will just read four or five
paragraphs in summary of the statement, things that I think de
serve some special attention and then we can proceed to questions.

We at OPIC are very interested in participating in what we feel 
to be a new era of American assistance to less developed countries, 
one that is based in private sector activity and which is founded on
the idea that the non-governmental links that American citizens
and American companies can make with persons and companies in
less developed countries will be the best and longest term way to 
serve our foreign policy interests. 

We have developed a set of performance criteria and accomplish
ments in OPIC that we are trying to use to serve this new era of
foreign assistance. 1990 was probably OPIC's very best year in its
20 years of existence as a separate agency.

During that period we led investment missions of American busi
ness persons to Benin, Bolivia, Cameroon, Guyana, Hungary, Ja
maica, Morocco, Nicaragua, Panama, Poland and Togo. This is the 
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largest number of investment missions that we have ever taken out 
in one period.

Mr. GEJDENSON. What did you do in Bolivia? 
Mr. BERG. In Bolivia, that was in October of last year and we 

took some 13 companies to Bolivia and as a result of that particu
lar mission, I believe 11 of them-it was a very high come-back 
rate-11 of them have either proceeded with investments or are 
working on investments. We also have a couple of large projects
coming forward in Bolivia that got their start with that mission,
including a large gas project. 1990 was also a record year for us in 
terms of the amount of overseas private investment that OPIC in 
one manner or other participated in. Over $7 billion of overseas 
private investment across 127 different investment projects.

This will lead to the creation of nearly 17,000 jobs within the 
host countries and over 18,000 person years of employment here in 
the U.S. during the first five years of the existence of those 
projects. 

Although OPIC is not by statute an export promotion agency, it 
is in fact a development agency, a great amount of U.S. exports, in 
fact, about a third of U.S. exports traditionally have gone from 
parent companies here in the United States to their foreign sub
sidiaries. So the amount of private investment done by American 
companies overseas has a direct link with the amount of exports
that we provide and, thus, the amount of jobs that we have in this 
country.

I would go on by way of summary to mention that the areas 
where our activities have been very large are in the least devel
oped countries, the LLDCs or poorest countries. We operate under 
a per capita definition of countries in that regard who have $984 or 
less in per capita income in 1986 dollars. And in fiscal year 1990, 
48 percent of the projects that we did were in less, the less devel
oped countries, the ones in the lowest income category.

That is an area that requires I think special attention from OPIC 
because the investment climates in those countries and the busi
ness infrastructure in those countries is rudimentary in many 
cases at best. Although I think in 1990 we saw the first full pro
gram year where OPIC activities also expanded into countries of a 
different development regime, but which were for the first time 
moving into the democratic form of government and particularly
Eastern Europe. Central Europe would be involved here. 

During the period of fiscal year 1990, OPIC supported some $270 
million worth of investment in the Eastern European countries. 
And here, too, the challenges were great because of the lack of an 
investment climate or a business infrastructure typical of the kinds 
that American businesses like to operate in. 

My final point, Mr. Chairman, by way of summary is to mention 
the importance to OPIC and we believe to the country of President 
Bush's initiative, the Enterprise for America', initiative. It is tied 
in, of course, as you know, with the number of hemispheric foreign
policy initiatives. It is based primarily on trade, investment and 
debt management. There will be a major role that we anticipate for 
OPIC to play in this regard as we marshal additional resources to 
bring U.S. private investment into the Caribbean, Central America 
and South America, which have traditionally been the largest 
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areas for OPIC business, both in dollar terms and by way of numbers of projects. And even with the dramatic changes that are
taking place in Eastern Europe, improved investment climates in
Africa, great economic development in Asia, we expect that ourlargest business by volume will continue to be in this hemisphere.

So with that, I would simply thank you for printing the state
ment in full and be available to answer any questions that you 
may have. 

[The statement of Mr. Berg follows:] 



172
 

JANES D.- BERG 

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT 

OVERAWSPRIVATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION. 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee: 

.I am honored to appear before this Subcommittee on behalf,
 

of the Overseas Private Investment Corporation ("OPIC"),'to
 

review with you OPIC as activities and the prominent role we 

have been privileged to play during the past year.
 

By any measure, 1990 was an extraordinary time in the
 

history of the world. Perhaps in no other period has OPIC's
 

mission b'een more vital.
 

Based on OPIC's record for leveraging private capital into
 

developing nations, the President and Congress, with the
 

leadership of this Subcommittee, reached a bipartisan consensus 

In 1989 that OPIC should play an important role in promoting 

market-based economic reforms in former Eastern Bloc countries 

eligible for assistance under the SEED Act. In fiscal year
 

1990 we produced over $270 million of investment in the SEED 

quarterscountries, and that was in just the last three fiscal 

subsequent to receiving authorization. Even more remarkable is 

the-fact that these investments vent .forward with OPIC support 

at'a time when foreign investment, privatization and tax laws 
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were still being debated in the new,demoratic-legislature. 
1991 and 1992 promiise-even better results, eand we at OPIC do
 

not share the view that U.S. investor interest in the SEED
 
countries is diminishing. 
Some of the euphoria is over, but
 

there is business to be-done there, and OPIC will be providing
 

risk-management-assistance to those with'the entrepreneurial
 

sense to find good investments.
 

In keeping with the assurances we gave to Congress last
 

year, OPIC has not allowed our mission under the SEED Act to 
detract from our commitment to Latin America' the CBI
 
countries, Asia and Africa. 
If anything, the confidence and
 
trust placed in OPIC by the President and Congress in the SEED
 
program inspired OPIC's,work forceto make even greater
 
contributions in each of the 118.countries where we-now assist
 
U.S. investment-in support,of economic develonment.
 

Now OPIC faces a further challenge -- to assist in the
 
economic revitalization of the war torn Persian Gulf region.
 
This task evokes memories of the period following World War II,
 
when political risk programs later incorporated in OPIC's
 
charter were initiated as part of the Marshall Plan. 
Now, as
 
then, American business, with appropriate support from relevant
 
U.S. government agencies, will be called upon to help rebuild
 

an economic infrastructure destroyed by war.
 

OPICis up to the.challenge. *Faced-with-thedemands of a
 
continually evolvinq world nolftical and economic order, OPIC
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is responding rapidly and creatively to,fulfill more
 

effectively its basic mission to promote.economicgrowth,'
 

jobs, and thereby to foster democracy, through U.S.,create 

private investment. I would like to describe these,
 

initiatives, and review for the Subcommittee the range of 

OPIC's investment program. I will also aummarize OPIC's

accomplishments of the past year. 

1. OVERVIEW
 

For the benefit-of the new members of the Subcommittee, let 

me review brieflyOPIC.Ishistory and purpose. OPIC began 

operations in 1971 as a self-sustaining agency charged with a 

statutory mandate to:mobilize and facilitate the participation
 

of united States private capital and skills in the economic and
 

social development of less developed, friendly countries. To
 

this end, OPIC provides political risk insurance and project
 

financing in 118 countries worldwide.
 

Each private investment project must meet strict qualifying
 

criteria before it receives OPIC support. In linewith
 

statutory restrictions and the longstanding policy of its Board
 

of Directors, OPIC supports only those projectl that will have
 

no significant adverse effect on U.S..employment, and only
 

projects that promise to benefit the social and economic
 

development of the host country. OPIC is also very sensitive
 

to host country ccncerns and other project impacts. For,
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example, OPIC Will not support any project Which will: pose an
 

unreasonabl or'major environmental, health, or safety hazard,
 
or will result in the significant degradation of tropical
 

forests, national parks, or similar proteoted arnas. 

New Era of Assistance 

The notion of development assistarice has changed
 

significantly in recent years. 
The era when U.S. foreign
 

assistance consisted primarily of foreign aid loans to the
 
governments of developing nations is giving way to a new era of
 

emphasis on privatization and private sector-led development.
 

In addition to the traditional focus on the less-developed
 

countries of the world, there is now an equally urgent and
 

deserving need for foreign assistance -- namely, to help
 

rebuild the weakened economies of countries ravaged by
 

excessive centralization of political and economic
 

decision-making. 
Not just in formerly Marxist nations, but all
 

over Latin America, Africa and Asia there is 
a consensus
 
emerging that market-based economies go hand-in-hand with
 
democracy, and that a new balance between private sector market
 
'Toes 
and government policy must be established.
 

For example, in Central and South America, a continuing and 
unmistakable trend toward privatization is emerging as new, 

democratic governments have announced programs to stimulate 

private enterprise, reduce government involvement in,.the
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economy, and:.eliminate:protectionist polioies... In Asa,. 

increased U.S. private investment can be.a positive forcein 

And inthose industrialized, rapidly developing economies. 


sub-Saharan Africa, a region that has historically experienced 

serious problems attracting investment capital, a number of 

events set the stage for OPIC to become even more active in4 

encouraging investment.
 

OPIC's Sound Financial Condition
 

OPIC carries out its programs as a government corporation,. 

prudently managed as a sound business. Begun in 1971 with'seed 

,funding of,$106 million, all of which has been returned to the 

Treasury,)our capital-and reserves now stand at more than $1.6 

billion, representing an excellent return on the taxpayers' 

original investment while providing OPIC with a strong 

financial base from which to expand its activities. 

OPIC's stable financial position is consistently
 

impressive. Its gross revenues for fiscal year 1990 grew over
 

ten percent to reach a record $167.7 million. Similarly, net
 

income increased by 17 percent, or $21 million, to an all-time
 

high of $143 million. Please refer to.Charts 1 and 2 on the
 

following pages.
 

Finally, by way of-introuctioni let me;share with you that
 

Ambassador.Zeder has made innovation, .growth and,teamwork the
 



177
 

CHART, 1 
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6

three complementary themes for,OPIC in 1991. 
 I will explain 
later.some of the new programs which will make opIc an even 
more'effective instrumentaof U.S. development policyin the 

years ahead.
 

11.*,FY 1990 PERFORANCE/ACCOMPLISHHETS
 

By every measure, 1990 was one of OPIC's best years. 
I
 
have already cited the financial successes of the past year.
 
in addition, a record eleven OPIC-led investment missions were
 
conducted: to Benin, Bolivia, Cameroon, Guyana, Hungary,
 
Jamaica, Morocco,:klicaragua, Panama, Poland and Togo.
 

A record volume of investment supported by OPIC in FY 1990
 
over $7 billion in 127 projects worldwide -- will lead to
 

the creation of nearly 17,000 jobs within host countries-and
 
over 18,000 person-years of U.S. employment (during the first
 ,
 
five years of project operations). Small U.S. businesses.,
 

participated in 28 percent of OPIC-supported projects during
 

the year.
 

One of the primary reasons for ouresccess today is that 
OPIC has responded quickly to the-.revoiutionary changes that 

have taken place around the world.. Let-me briefly summarize 
highlights of OPIC programs and iiitiatiaes for you on a 

regional basis. 
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Central and Eastern Europe
 

In April 1989, President Bush announced a new framework for 

' 
American foreign policy towards the emerging democracies of 

must do
Central'and Eastern Europe. He stressed that the U.S. 

its utmost to encourage these governments in their evolution 

Aftertowardwdemocracy, free enterprise, and market economies. 

decades of communism, the economies of Central and Eastern 

Europe were near collapse, with stifling government control of 

production and distribution, a lack of commercial and financial 

infrastructure, primitive communications systems, and an 

agricultural system rich in promise but undermined by state 

control.
 

with its focus on the
'PresidentBush believed that'OPIC, 

role of privat4 enterprie, was ideally suited to play an 

important rolein the U.S. Government's efforts to assist'n 

OPICthereconstruction of Central and Eastern Europe. 

promptly took up the challenge and in the fall of 1989 signed 

the necessary agreements with the governments of Poland and 

Hungary. During the year, it led four investment missions to 

central and Eastern Europe (two to Poland, one to Hungary, and 

oneto eastern Germany). Representatives from more than 100' 

U.S.companies participated in the missions, demonstrating the 

intense interest on the part of U.S. business in these emerging 

-democracies. In addition, representatives from organized labor
 

participated and actively contributed to-OPICs-mission to
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Poland. 
In the summer of 1990, OPIC signed a similar agreement 

with the government of the German Democratic Republic, and in 

the fall it signed an. agreemen, witn the government of 

Czechoslovakia.
 

In fiscal year 1990, OPIC supported 20 projects in Central
 

and Eastern Europe, and facilitated$100million of new project
 

investment in Poland alone by committing $16.5 million in
 
direct loans and loan guaranties.. In addition, OPIC backed 

$240 million of investment in Poland, Hungary and Yugoslavia
 

with investment insurance.
 

One of the most significant financings in the region was
 

OPIC's $50 million loan guaranty to the privately owned and
 

managed Central and Eastern European Growth Fund, which will 
invest in productive business enterprises in the region. 
The
 
Fund will acquire securities of new and established companies
 
that plan to expand, as well as state-owned enterprises that
 
are being acquired by private investors. The Fund's
 
investments will generate vital new economic activity in 
Central and Eastern Europe by encouraging private sector growth 

and generating employment. 

Northern Ireland
 

In fiscal year 1990, OPIC' supported iAs first project in 

Northern.Ireland by providing a.$6.5 million loan auaranty, as
 



182 

-9 

vell as investment-insurance, to Lummus Mackie:Ltd.,.the newly 

acquired subsidiary,of a small business: in Georgia, to 

revitalize its production facilities for.-flax and wool 

This will generateprocessing machinery in West Belfast. 


considerable exports for Northern Ireland and, in an area which
 

has an unemployment rate of 40 percent, secure 
existing jobs.
 

This project also represents OPIC's first cooperative 
financing
 

effort with the Industrial Development Board 
("IDB") for
 

Northern Ireland, which hosted OPIC's 1988 investment 
mission
 

to
 
to that country. Initial disburnement under this project, 

support the construction of expanded manufacturing 
facilities, 

occurred in February 1991.
 

The Americas
 

The past few years have seen dramatic changes 
in many
 

Caribbean, Central and South American countries 
as new,
 

democratic governments have announced programs 
to stimulate
 

economic reforms. These changes provided the regional
 

framework for President Bush's "Enterprise for 
the Americas
 

The three pillars which define this vision of,
Initiative." 


regional economic cooperation are private investment 
-increased
 

trade, and reduction of debt.
 

OPIC has played an important role in many of these 
nations'
 

economies through its finance, insurance 
and investment
 

In fiscal year.1990, OPC provided over
 promotion programs. 
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$137 million,in'direct loans and loan guaranties to projects in
 

the region and'iIssued over $1.6 billion of insurance. 
In
 

addition, OPIC concluded a new agreement-with the government of 

Venezuela:allowing the operation of OPIC progras in that
 

country, and in October 
OPIC programs were reinstated in Chile 

following restoration of GSP there.
 

in response to Bush Administration initiatives, during
 

fiscal year 1990 OPIC organized "rapid deployment" investment 

missions to Panama and Nicaragua,'each within weeks of those 

countries' return to democratic rule. Investment missions to
 

Guyana and Bolivia were also conducted during the year.
 

Among the projects which OPIC supported in fiscal year 1990 

were several hotel projects in Jamaica, a major liquid natural
 

gas facility in'Trinidad, and a fruit processing plant in the
 

Dominican Republic;
 

Africa
 

As one of'OPICs most urgent development priorities, the
 

corporation has consistently sought to increase U.S. private. 

investment In Africa, despite the difficulties inherent in 
doing business in the region. During fiscal year 1990

significant progress was made toward this goal. 
OPIC
 
agreements were signed with the governments 'f Algeria, Namibia
 
and Zimbabwe, allowing the commencement-of OPIC operations in
 

those countries.
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now actively involved.in theestablishment of
OPiC is 


privately owned or operated export processing 
zonea("EPZ'S")
 

" 
 are
 
in the sub-Saharan-contries of Togo and 

Cameroon., EPZ
 

areas designated by host governments to 
provide tax incentives
 

and other benefits to-export manufacturers. 
. Across the world 

these-zones account for more than 1.2 
million jobs and have
 

contributed substantially to the success 
of export industries
 

As a result of the prerfeasibilitY
in Asia and the Caribbean. 


work jointly funded by OPIC and the Agency 
for International
 

Development (A.I.D.), a major U.S. private industrial 
park
 

developer is now in the process of conducting 
a feasibility
 

study for the proposed privately owned 
EPZ in Togo, which will
 

A similar
 
be-the first ever established in sub-Saharan Africa. 


project is-also proceeding in Cameroon.
 

From a development policy-perspective, OPIC and-A.I.D. 
are
 

especially interested in these projects because 
of their
 

implications for the process of investment policy 
reform in
 

both the nations involved. In order to make the zones
 

competitive on the world market, the Government 
of Togo and
 

Cameroon, with technical assistance provided by OPIC 
and
 

A.I.D., have had to reexamine carefully the existing 
investment
 

constraints prevailing in both countries, and enact 
laws and
 

resolutions (as well as change administrative procedures) 
which
 

hindered foreign investment.
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The Africa Growth Fund ("the Fund"), a.:privately owned and

managed investment company that was initiated by OPIC in 1987 

to take equity positions in-new and'expanding businessesin
 

sub-Saharan Africa, also made significant progress during
 

fiscal.year 1990. The Fund contributed a portion of the equity
 
capital for the construction of an international class hotel in
 
Botswana. 
This OPIC-insured project will also be financed by
 

OPIC and a consortium of international development institutions
 

including the U.K. Commonwealth Development Corporation, the
 
European Investment Bank, and the Netherlands* FMO. In fiscal
 

year 1991, the Fund expects to invest in several other projects
 

that are currently under review.
 

To assist in these projects, and as evidence-of OPIC's 

intention to utilize all of its.existing resources (including 

scarce personLl resources) to promote and facilitate investment 

in the region, the Corporation for the first time in its 

history assigned two OPIC officers to Africa to assist in
 

carrying out these projects. 
An OPIC insurance department
 

officer was detailed.to Togo to net up an investment promotion
 

agency and administrative office for the zone, and an OPIC
 

finance separtment officer is now on-temporary assignment to 

the Fund's branch office in Nairobi Kenya,,to.asist in 

identifying and preparing investment jrojects for-Fund 

financing.
 

http:detailed.to
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Asia and the PaCific Islands
 

New horizons opened in-Asia and the,Pacific Islands'as OPIC
 

finalized agreements with the governments of Mongolia and
 

Kiribati allowing thecommencement of OPIC programs in those
 

countries.
 

In much of Asia, the tremendous pressure of population*
 

growth demands the creation of new jobs to employ the growing
 

numbers of new entrants into the labor force. Young people
 

with hopes for a brighter economic future are looking to the
 

private sector as the route to economic security. Foreign
 

investment, which brings with it new technologies, training,
 

and the prospect of better wages, is often the key to creating
 

desperately needed employment opportunities. During fiscal
 

year 1990, OPIC-supported investments will create significant
 

numbers of new jobs in areas with critical population
 

pressures, including Bangladesh and the remote Indonesian
 

province of Irian Java.
 

Another investment vehicle currently being developed by
 

OPIC for-the region is the Asia Pacific Growth Fund, which is
 

designed to provide much-needed equity capital to new and
 

growing companies there. It will rekindle U.S. financial and
 

business involvement in this increasingly important market, and
 

will support the region's continuing economic development.
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III. DEVELOPMEN ANDU.S. EFFECTS 

Of special concern to OPIC and the Congress are the
 

developmental and U.S. economic effects of OPXC-assisted
 

projects. Zn fiscal year 1990, OPC-assisted projects, and
 

private investment in general, made significant contributions
 

to growth in developing countries at a time when overall
 

economic growth rates have been declining. According to the
 

International Finance Corporation, the growth rate in 1989 for
 

the developing countries as a group was 3.5 percent, down from
 

5.5 percent in 1988 and the lowest rate of growth since 1983.
 

Most of the slowdown occurred in Asia -- often considered the
 

most dynamic region of the world -- but growth rates also
 

declined in the emerging democracies of Central and Eastern 

Europe, due to the commencement of a painful but necessary 

economic transformation. Latin American growth remained steady 

but at a low level, while sub-Saharan Africa showed some 

improvement over previous years. Many developing countries 

continue to struggle with inflation, public seu..or deficits and 

other factors which discourage foreign investment. 

In those countries, however, where the investment climate
 

is strong enough to attract new capital, a shift to private
 

sector growth is occurring, often through the privatization of
 

government-owned businesses. Reflecting this greater private
 

sector involvement, OPIC insurance'and finance were involved in
 

a record $7.1 billion of total project investment in fiscal
 

46-816 0, 91f,-!7
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year 1990. Of this total the largest:amount ($2.9 billion) 

represented investment by U.S. companies, followed by
 

investment of $2.3 billion from third countries and $1.5
 

billionrfrom developing host countries. Another $300million
 

was financed by multilateral development institutions (see
 

Figure 1, Appendix A).
 

OPIC'. statutory charter requires the Corporation to give 

"preferential consideration" to the least developed countries. 

As Figure 2 of Appendix A illustrates, forty-eight percent of
 

the projects OPIC assisted in fiscal year 1990, 1 am pleased to
 

report,uare located in these nations, which are defined as
 

having per capita incomes of $984 or less in terms of.1986
 

dollars.
 

MostOPIC-supported investments were located in Latin
 

America and the Caribbean (51 projects), followed by thelNear.
 

East and Asia (35), Central and Eastern Europe and Northern 

Ireland (27), and Africa (13) (see Figure 3, Appendix A). 

Banking and finance emerged as the leading sector for
 

OPIC-assisted investment in fiscal year 1990, accounting for 37
 

projects. The manufacturing sector occupied the second largest
 

category (29), followed by services (28), agribusiness (18),
 

tourism (11), and mineralsand energy.(4)(see Figure 4 of
 

Appendix A).
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Host Country Developmental Effects 

In addition to a recordvolume of inv~stment, the 127 

provide, inprojects assisted by OPIC in fiscal year 1990 will 


the aggregate, significant economic and social benefits for
 

developing host countries. These projects will directly
 

generate an estimated 16,903 jobs in the developing host
 

countries. Initial expenditure of more than $4.6 billion on
 

local goods and services will result in many additional 
jobs
 

and opportunities for host country entrepreneurs. More than
 

$1.1 billion in annual exports from the host countries 
will
 

result from these'projects, and host governments will 
obtair
 

$219 million in annual revenues.
 

The following project example, taken from OPICes fiscal
 

year,1990 portfolio, illustrates such benefits to the-host
 

country:
 

Project: Insulated Refrigeration Panels
 

Country: Poland
 

OPIC insured an investment in, and provided a $1.5
 

million direct loan to, a joint venture in Poland
 

which will produce insulated refrigeration panels.
 
The panels will significantly increase the effici
ency of Poland's food processing infrastructure by
 
helping to preserve the fresh produce supply, which
 
historically had a high spoilage rate due to a lack
 
of refrigerated transportation. The venture will
 
create approximately 50 new jobs and transfer
 

Initial disbursemodern technology to the region. 

ment of $1.2 million was effected in February 1991.
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U.S. Economi6,EffOct,
 

The U.Moleconoic'effects of the projects assisted by-OPIC
 

in fiscal year 1990 are'also expected to be quite favorable.
 

Initial procurement of U.S. goods and services valued'at $961
 

million, plus'operational procurement from U.S. sources valued
 

at $1.2-billion during the first five years of project
 

operations, is expected to result in $2.1 billion in U.S.
 

exports over a five-year period. Taking into account $1.1
 

billion in U.S. imports from the projects, as well as $12.9
 

million in US. exports potentially displaced by the projects,
 

the U.S. will show a net five-year trade benefit of-$1.5
 

billion. This net U.S. trade benefit wilI directly support
 

18,434 person-years of U.S. employment during this period.
 

When all financial flows are taken into account, the projects
 

will, we estimate, result in.a net favorable U.S. balance of
 

payments effect of more than $1.5 billion. Please refer:to
 

'Chart 3 on the following page.
 

The following example of a fiscal year 1990 investment 

guaranty illustrates the positive U.S. effects of OPIC Drolects: 
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CHARr 3 

ESTIMATED U.S. ECONOMIC BENEFITS
 
OF PROJECTS ASSISTED BY OPIC
 

INFISCAL YEAR 1990
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Project: Establishment of mobile cellular telephone systR
 
Country: Uruguay
 

In OPIC's first finance project in Uruguay, a $5
 
million investment guaranty will assist in the
 
construction of a full-service cellular telephone
 
system along the coastal region. A strong project
 
management team includes two U.S. telecommunications
 
companies. The project supports their efforts to
 
compete globally, and strengthens their positions as
 
leading suppliers of cellular infrastructure
 
equipment. Approximately $10 million in goods and
 
services will be purchased from the U.S., and over
 
the first five years of operation the project will
 
generate a positive U.S. balance of payment effect of
 
nearly $9 million.
 

Of course, not all foreign direct investment has a
 

favorable impact on the U.S. economy. OPIC, following
 

statutory directives, is very selective about the investments
 

it assists, consistently rejecting those having potentially
 

significant detrimental impacts on the U.S. economy or U.S.
 

employment.
 

IV. NEW INITIATIVES
 

In addition to its traditional-programs, OPIC is:developing
 

:several new initiatives which respond to current global
 

priorities.
 

Growth Funds
 

OPIC's:concept of a'"family" of privately financed and
 

managed'investment funds has become a reality. This
 

programestablishes a series of.regional or sectoral funas
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designed to complement OPIC's finance ,programs by attracting 

uupplemntal U.S. venture capital for targeted fund 

investments. Growth'funds are a valuable tool in leveraging 

OPIC'. resources for development, while at the same time 

helping to fill.a void in-the availability of capital caused by 

the withdrawal of U.S. commercial banks. To date, OPIC has 

committed guaranties for a portion of the financing of three 

funds.- The Africa Growth Fund, begun with OPIC seed money of 

$20 million in 1987, is the first such investment vehicle.
 

Last year, two important additions were made to this
 

"family, of funds.. The Central and East European GrowthFund
 

will provide up to $200 million to stimulate vital now economic
 

-activity in the region -by encouraging private sector growth.
 

ThIefund will acquire securities of new and established 

'companies that plan to expand, as well as state-owned 

enterprises that are being acquired by private investors. This
 

initiative has been lauded by President Bush, who called the
 

fund "a magnet for... self-sustaining growth and responsible
 

development."
 

The Environmental Investment Fund was also launched in 

fiscal year 1990. Through this fund, which is worldwide in 

scope, up to $100 million in equity financing will be provided 

to support a wide range of business enterprises in developing 

countries and emerging economies that use natural resources on 

a sustainable basis. The fund .Will invest in five broadly 
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defined sectors: sustainable agriculture, forest management,
 
ecotourism, renewable and alternative energy, and'pollution
 

prevention and abatement technologies.
 

Two new growth funds are expected to be committed by OPIC 
in fiscal year 1991. The Asia Pacific Growth Fund-will be a
 
newly organized investment company with a target capitalization
 

of $150 million. The fund's principal objective will be to
 
provide equity capital to a wide range of business ventures in
 
the Asia Paci.fic region. 
Several of the countries within this
 
region -- Malaysia and Indonesia, for example 
-- are
 

characterized by rapidly growing, industrialIzed economies and
 
consumer-driven mar!:ets. 
 By making equity investments in
 
innovative and growing companies in the region, this fund will
 

further encourage these developments.
 

Also being developed by OPIC at this time is the Americas
 

Growth Fund, which will be a privately owned and managed
 

company with an estimated target capitalization of $250
 

million. 
With its focus on the developing countries of Central
 

and South America, the fund will offer a source of capital for
 
new U.S. investment, expansions, and entrepreneurial activity
 

in throughout the region.
 

(Information about these funds is provided solely for the
purpose of informing the Subcommittee with regard to OPIC's
operations, and is not intended to assist in any solicitations
 
of investments in the funds.]
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Post-Gulf Conflict Activity. 

In the aftermath of the war to liberate Kuwait, OPIC ass 

already begun to formulate its response to the critical need
 

for economic revitulization in that region. Drawing on its
 

strengths, OPIC currently envisions a "rapid deployment"
 

mission of high-level government and business representatives,
 

a contractor's mission, the provision of insurance for
 

contractors and exporters, direct and guaranteed loans for
 

investment-related U.S. procurement, financing and insurance
 

for natural resources and energy projects, and feasibility
 

studies and small business counseling. We are already handling
 

hundreds of inquiries for information on OPICtu programs in
 

Kuwait and standy ready to assist U.S. business rebuild this
 

war-torn country.
 

Equity Program
 

Although not a new program, I am pleased to report to .you
 

the Administration's FY 1992 budget includes a $5 million
 

allocation to the OPIC Equity Investment.Program.
 

The equity program was authorized as a four-year pilot 

program in 1988 to help facilitate private investment in two 

areas most in need of productive economic and social 

development projects: sub-Saharan Africa and the Caribbean 

Basin. The program was to be funded by a $10 million transfer
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.fromOPIC's:income and revenues, later made subleot to advance
 

approval in appropriations aots. While to date, due to budget
 

constraints, no such transfer has been approved for the pilot
 

equity program, the need to provide seed money to projects
 

sponsored by small businesses in these two regions remains
 

compelling.
 

Given the continuing retrenchment by U.S. commercial banks
 

and the generally tight credit conditions in Third World
 

markets, small business firms continue to experience difficulty
 

in mobilizing adequate amounts of equity capital. We urge your
 

support for favorable consideration in the appeopriation
 

process of a transfer of funding for the pilot equity program.
 

V. OTHER ISSUES
 

In your invitation letter of March 7, 1991, Mr. Chaixman,
 

you asked .for OPIC's comments on credit reform. Because of its
 

own strong financial record as a self-sustaining agency, which
 

I mentioned earlier, OPIC welcomes the new credit reform
 

measures. The "pay as you go" concept is not new to OPIC,
 

which has, since its inception, operated responsibly and
 

profitably under the framework of accountability embodied in
 

our enabling statute.
 

The Credit Reform Act of 1990 mandates certain changes in
 

OPICrU budget'request for FY 1992,.to ensurea consistent and
 

comparable basis of measuring the costs of credit programs to
 

http:1992,.to
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the federal government. We believe this provides an
 

opportunity to demonstrate OPICs.prudentlending record and
 

the overall strength of its portfolio. Credit reform measures
 

almo require, however, that Congress act on more than just a
 

limitation on the credit activities traditionally funded out of
 

OPIC's well-capitalized revolving fund. consequently, OPIC
 

seeks Congressional approval through the appropriations process
 

not only on its traditional lending limitations, but also on
 

its relevant subsidy budget authority and credit-related
 

administrative expenses.
 

The overall high quality of OPIC's credit portfolio-is
 

evidenced by the zero subsidy cost computed for OPIC's
 

investment guaranty program. This did not happen by chance. 

Over the years OPIC has initiated and implemented sound credit 

management procedures, and the success of these efforts is 

reflected in remarkably low losses and delinquencies.
 

Specifically, as of September 30, 1990, OPIC's total finance 

portfolio was more than $1 billion, of which $534 million was 

outstanding. Less than two percent of the principal was past 

due; Few government or private lending sources possess such an 

enviable record for conscientious and prudent money 

management. When coupled with the effective development role 

we are playing, the OPIC story is one of.which we can all be 

proud. 

In fact, to support the increasing-,momentum of its 

investment guaranty program as OPIC implements new financing 



198
 

-24

techniques in response to the"foreign aisietancet.needs of the
 

developing world, the:Administration has requested for F¥ 199;
 

a $375 million limitation for this program, with zero subsidy
 

budget authority. 
In addition to providing OPIC additional
 

capacity to operate in Eastern Europe, this significant
 

increase in IG authority for FY 1992 will also allow OPIC to
 

take an active role in the Enterprise for the Americas
 

Initiative ("EAI"). 
 The EAI will promote alternative
 

investments in Andean nations affected by the drug trade and
 

will help address the economic burden resulting from the debt
 

crisis in Latin America. OPIC will devote a significant
 

portion of its increased authority to support this important
 

new initiative, thereby providing a new source of capital to
 

U.S. investors undertaking commercially sound ventures in this
 

region.
 

Getting back to credit reform, for its small buciness
 

direct loan program, OPIC requests a limitation in FY 1992 of
 

$25 million and subsidy budget authority of $2,399,000.
 

Although the inherent risks in DIF and IG projects are
 

comparable, the resources available to small businesses are
 

sometimes insufficient to weather the extremely difficult
 

environments in which OPIC-supported projects operate. 
A
 

subsidy is required for this program because though still very
 

respectable when compared with commercial institutions,
 

particularly given the difficult economic environments
 

involved, OPIC's DIF portfolio is less favorable than the 1G.
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Finally, the FY 1992 budget contains a request for OPIC's 

credit-related administrative expenses for the first time. As 

required by the credit reform legislation, OPIC seeks 

$8.25 million to support the requested level of credit
 

activity. This figure is 50 percent of OPIC's total 

administrative budget for FY 1992, and represents a modest 

increase over historical budget levels despite the tremendous
 

growth in OPIC's finance program.
 

Also, Mr. Chairman, you asked in your invitation letter for
 

this hearing that we address new authorizing language which
 

OPIC may be requesting in FY 1992. We appreciate your interest
 

in this regard.
 

We would welcome consideration of proposals which would
 

simplify administration of our program and nake OPIC a more
 

effective instrument of U.S. foreign policy. Revision of
 

OPIC's statute to implement credit reform and extension of
 

OPIC's pilot equity program to Central and Eastern European
 

countries are among such issues.
 

In accordance with established procedure, OPIC is'actively
 

involved within the Administration in the process of developing
 

a legislative proposal which would amend the Foreign Assistance
 

Act of 1961 in its entirety. While this process is being
 

expedited, the Administration has not yet completed ito
 

review. As soon as it is completed we would hope to have the
 

opportunity to review it with you.
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VI. CONCLUSION
 

The United States is basking-in the euphoria of a world
 

described by President Bush as "blessed by the promise of
 

peace" following the war in the Persian Gulf. We are mindful
 

that OPIC has perhaps never had a more vital role to play than
 

at the present time.
 

As OPIC begins its third decade of operations, it must
 

continue to broaden its focus in response to the evolving
 

developmental imperatives of this changing world. OPIC's
 

activities of the past year prove that we are Capable of doing
 

this, and we look forward to continuing success as a key
 

ingredient in the U.S. effort to foster economic development
 

for the sake of worldwide peace and progress.
 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would be pleased to reqpond to
 

your questions.
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Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you. How will credit reform affect OPIC?
Mr. BERG. Credit reform will affect OPIC in a number of ways.

Most primarily, it will bring about a situation where for the first 
time at least a portion of OPIC's administrative expenses will be
appropriated by Congress. Up to this point, we have operated on
the basis of using funding from our own reserves and operated on 
an apportionment schedule with OMB. But the credit-related ad
ministrative expenses of OPIC will not be appropriated.

Mr. GEJDENSON. This will leave you more money for actually
doing the job, will it not? 

Mr. BERG. 1 do not think so. It will just simply mean that Con
gress will be involved of the Appropriations Committee, that is, in
the appropriation of that portion of it. Secondly, there will need to
be a subsidy calculated with regard to OPIC's loan and loan guar
antee programs. And that subsidy, if a positive number, will need 
to be also appropriated by Congress.

Mr. GEJDENSON. How much did you spend on your missions last 
year like the one you took to Bolivia? 

Mr. BERG. OPIC missions run about-I think the best way to say
it is approximately $2,000 a person. And we took 13 persons and
that covers all the costs attributable to the care and feeding of the 
mission people while they are in the country.

Mr. GEJDENSON. That is per each trip?
Mr. BERG. Yes. We in other words charge the mission partici

pants. OPIC does not subsidize these missions. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. So there is no cost to OPIC for these missions? 
Mr. BERG. That is correct. We have a zero operating budget in 

OPIC for the running of missions. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Their own staff and what have you-
Mr. BERG. We have staff who go along and who do reconnais

sance work, but the proportional amount of their--
Mr. GEJDENSON. Comes out of the 2000? 
Mr. BERG. That is right. That is right. It is a self-supporting pro

gram.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Not a bad deal. In your annual report, you state

that OPIC has created 16,903 jobs, a very precise number, in host 
countries; 18,434 jobs in the United States. 

Mr. BERG. Right.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Where do you get the data? We could not get

Ms. Holsman to give us even rough data. You have gone on some of
her programs. You have got the exact number of jobs created in 
this country.

Mr. BERG. We do and we get the data primarily from the analy
sis that we do for each project before we do the project. We look at
the size of the pro ect, the anticipated employment levels, the kind
of product that is being created, where it is going to be sold. We do
what would normally be the due diligence that a bank might do or
should do when it is making a loan or providing a guarantee. And
then we aggregate that data with respect to what we think the em
ployment effects will be in the United States as well as overseas.

Mr. GEiDENSON. And then do you count at the end of the game to 
see if it actually happened!

Mr. BERG. We have a double monitoring program. It is a very
large expense to OPIC that we pay for, but it is, we think, absolute
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ly necessary. We monitor projects not only from their financial performance-are they making money, are they accomplishing thebusiness and commercial ends that they were anticipated to accomplish, but are they also meeting the developmental goals, includingthe employment creation and employment maintenance goals overseas and in the U.S. So, the monitoring we do might well be to aproject in Nicaragua, but also to the parent company in Texas orConnecticut or whatever other state hosts the parent company tosee that the information that w. have received at the beginning isin fact borne out in truth. We do not do projects that at the beginning we believe will delete jobs---


Mr. GEJDENSON. How do you 
 make sure you do not displaceAmerican workers with what you are doing? If that companymoves to Bolivia, how do you figure out in advance that they arenot just going to be moving American jobs to a country where theannual wage is under $1000?
Mr. BERG. Essentially the same way that I just described for theother, that I just answered for the other question. We work withthe company at the beginning and analyze the project in detail. Wedetermine, ourselves, by making project site visits before we approve a project to the plant in question in the United States. Wetalk to the workers. We talk to the management. We understandwhat their plans are and then if we assume, if we can concludethat they are not going to displace jobs, that is one positive checkmark we can put on our grid. Then we monitor afterwards. As Isaid, both in the U.S. as well as overseas.Mr. GEJDENSON. You have got two people in Africa, one in Nair

obi and one in Togo.
Mr. BERG. Right.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Is that working out? Are you planning to putsimilar staff people around the globe?Mr. BERG. It has worked out very well. The individual who wasin Togo has since returned to the United States and he is with us
back in OPIC now and our finance officer in Nairobi is still there.
It has worked out well for us, although their missions were different. We were able to provide a great amount of technical assistance
to the Togolese Government in establishing an investment promo

tion center there.

Mr. GEJDENSON. What did the FCS's offices do? Why could they


not do the job?

Mr. BERG. In the case of Togo, the reason that FCS was not involved is because OPIC has entered into a program with Togo andCameroon to provide technical assistance and ultimately supportfor American companies to oettle in export processing zones whichwe are working on building up there. And the assignment of thisindividual to his position on Lome for the period was part of that 

program.
I want to say that we similarly with regard to Nairobi, a greatpart of what our finance officer is doing there is working on projectidentification and business development for our Africa growth fundand whenever possible, with FCS people. I think that as much asState Department officers and embassies or A.I.D. missions, theForeign Commercial Service people who we deal with in the coun
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tries wliere they are assigned art, our very best and most produc
tive counterparts. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. The subcommittee authorized a four-year pilot 
equity program in 1988. Where does that stand now? 

Mr. BERG. It remains authorized and it is within our current au
thorization cycle which needs to be re-upped starting in 1992. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Do you plan to implement it? 
Mr. BERG. We have not received any ability to fund it, but this 

year's appropriation request, that is for fiscal year 1992, asks for $5 
million. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. In your written testimony, you describe OPIC's 
growth funds which consist of a $20 million fund in Africa, a $200 
million fund in Eastern Europe, a $100 million fund for the envi
ronment, a $150 million fund for Asia and a new fund at $250 million 
for the Americas. Since you also state in your testimony that Africa 
was the only region that showed an increase in economic activity, 
does it make sense to keep africa at 20 million. 

Mr. BERG. That 20 million is the amount of investment guaran
tee authority that OPIC itself provided. There has been another 5 
million raised in limited partnership private sector shares. That 
fund is making investments now and is drawing down this capital. 
If there is a necessity for increased capital, the company that we 
are working with has every ability to raise additional shares. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. What company are you working with? 
Mr. BERG. The name of the company who is working with us now 

is Prior McLennon & Counts. It is a U.S. company out of Philadel
phia that is working with us on raising the limited partnership 
share funds for the Africa Growth Fund. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Roth? 
Mr. ROTH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
The question I would pose is this. A number of years ago I re

member people at OPIC were not very happy because I had an 
amendment to deny OPIC to Hungary, but we have changed since 
that time, about four years ago, I believe. Something like that. 

Mr. BERG. Right. 
Mr. ROTH. What is the rationale for building Schwinn bicycles in 

Hungary rather than, say, inner core of D.C. where we have so 
much unemployment and where we have such economic hard 
times? Why not build the Schwinns right here in D.C.? 

Mr. BERG. Congressman, I do not think there is any problem at 
all with building Schwinns in D.C. 

Mr. ROTH. The question I am getting at is we are giving incen
tives. We are asking businesses to build here in this country and 
that country. We have got people like right here in D.C. where we 
have so many unemployed and where we have all kinds of other 
problems. Why should someone like myself be working and voting 
with OPIC when we have the problems right here in our own Na
tion's Capital, I guess, is what I am asking. 

Mr. BERG. Well, I think if you are talking about OPIC's support 
for American companies who might go overseas versus invest here 
in the United States, perhaps generally that is the question there. I 
would say that you can accomplish the goals that you are presum
ably in favor of for the growth in domestic jobs and in our domestic 

one means is through overseas prieconomy by many means. And 
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vate investment by U.S. firms. That overseas private investmentcreates opportunities for sales of American goods and for creationand support of jobs here in this country as well as overseas. Additionally, overseas private investment from the U.S. we believe atleast that's supported by OPIC has strong developmental effects.Part of our foreign policy in this country is created out of ourdemocratic system is to have a foreign policy and a foreign economic policy for growth of jobs and economic development in some ofthese countries.
 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. ROTH. Yes.
Mr. GEJDENSON. I think what Mr. Roth is trying to get across toyou is not that he thinks it is a bad idea to help Hungary orCzechoslovakia, that that does not have some down the line benefit,it is the frustration that every program that has provided SEEDcapital, education, training, housing, that has affected the citizensof this country has been cut and eliminated. And that if you are inHartford, Connecticut and try to get money for a small business,there is no program like the ones we have discussed for foreigncountries to help countries-people in my area cannot get loansfrom the banks. The banks do not have any money. The regulatorshave frightened them away from doing it and maybe theyfrightened areon their own; but what is frustrating people and wheregood programs like yours and the ones we talked about previouslyare going to get in trouble and it is going to cover the politicalspectrum is that you cannot keep going back to the folks backhome and saying,

do 
'Oh, no, you do not need a senior program. Younot need educatioA. You do not need health care. You do notneed job enhancing programs. We want to get rid of EDA." Andthen say, "Oh, but these are good programs for overseas." Becausewhat happens is people say, "You know, overseas is great. Youknow, we would love to help overseas; but first you have got tohelp here." And you are going to have a harder and harder timeselling programs that everybody supports because we have had 10years now anof administration that sent Secretary Shultz andHaig up here to ask me and Roth to help out on all these good programs and sent your budget chiefs up to destroy the domestic

equivalent.
 
VyIeld back.
r. ROTH. Thank you. I think that is eloquently stated. I thinkthere is another problem here that dovetails into that. You know
for people like yourself and other people here in Washington, it is
one thing because you are well educated, you can use high technology and so on. There are a lot of people in this country who arehigh school graduates. You know, a fourth of the people in ourcountry do not ev3n graduate from high school. What kind of jobsare they going to have? It comes under the theory of what I call,"Make something."

See, people like yourself, people in Washington and people whoare well educated do not 1:ive to make anything, because they arein this new information age. But you still have to make something.Some people still have to make something. That is why I broughtup the example of Schwinn bicycle. You know, people here in innercore are not going to take computers and work with computers for 
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information, but they can build Schwinn bicycles and so on. So I 
think that is the problem we have with this fast track with Mexico. 
I mean the untold story basically is that we are looking for jobs for 
people who are high school graduates or who have not graduated 
from high school. You have got to give them some sort of employ
ment and it comes under "make something". And OPIC, as I see it, 
is a real competitor for these "make something" jobs because it 
gives incentive for people to make these overseas. 

Mr. BERG. May I? 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Sure. We give you not an equal chance here, but 

we will give you a chance. [Laughter.] 
Mr. BERG. Okay. Just light up the light. 
Last week, one of our senior officers from OPIC was in fact in 

Hartford with the TPCC group headed by Commerce Secretary 
Mosbacher and a number of other people. And I think tha message 
that you gentlemen are talking about is valid and I also think it is 
getting through because the greatest amount of travel and, shall 
we say business promotion, that OPIC does is not in Africa or 
South America or the other places. It is here. There are American 
companies who even, no matter how many programs our govern
ment might have to help create jobs or maintain jobs here, there 
are American companles who are at a stage in their own develop
ment that they need to expand to overseas markets and invest. We 
have to admit the existence of those companies. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Nobody argues that. 
Mr. BERG. And what we are trying to do is-our programs are 

provided to Americans. They are not provided to others. To Ameri
can companies and American citizens. And when we go to a place 
like Hartford or Cincinnati or St. Louis or Milwaukee or Louisville 
or whatever city it might be in this country, what we are talking 
about is in fact making loans to American companies, particularly 
those who have come to a point where they can invest overseas. 
That is not all of them, but it is in fact some of them. And we be
lieve that we can run our programs in a way that their activities 
beyond our shores also helps us and certainly does not help us at 
the margin inside our country. But I do not offer those statements 
to either one of you as a way to deny the validity or the impor
tance of what you are saying, it is just that in the matrix-

Mr. ROTH. It is another viewpoint. 
Mr. BERG. Right. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. When you have got Gejdenson and Roth togeth

er on an issue, you know there is a broad base out there. 
Mr. BERG. It is awesome. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. We thank you for your testimony. We will get 

additional questions to you and hope you can get answers to us 
within the week. We will leave the record open for five days. 

The hearing is adjourned. 
[Whereupon, at 3:15 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned.] 
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THURSDAY, APRIL 18, 1991 

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
COMMITTEE ON FOREIGN AFFAIRS, 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL 
ECONOMIC POLICY AND TRADE, 

Washington, DC.The subcommittee met in open markup session at 1:00 p.m., inroom 2255, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Sam Gejdenson,
presiding.

Mr. GEJDENSON. The subcommittee will come to order.We meet today to consider three pieces of legislation: the Microenterprise Development Act, the trade and aid recommendations to the Foreign Assistance Act, and the Enterprise for the 
Americas bill.

We will first consider 1608, the Microenterprise Development Actof 1991. This bill, crafted by Mr. Feighan, formally authorizes theimplementation of the Agency for International Development's microenterprise program. It is the result of extensive consultationwith AID and the PVO community. The subcommittee has heldtwo hearings in the last year the subject,on one of whi'-. was
based on Mr. Feighan's draft.

Mr. Feighan is on his way. Why don't we go to the next provisionuntil Mr. Feighan comes. We will consider our foreign aid assistance recommendations to the full committee. The subcommittee
had held hearings at which all affected agencies have testified.

Will the staff director please read the bill.
Mr. BRADY. Section 661 of the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961 is
amended and to read as follows.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Without objection, will suspend the readingwe

of the bill. The bill will be considered as read.'
Mr. GEJDENSON. The subcommittee makes a number of legislative changes in the so-called trade and aid portions of the ForeignAssistance Act. The legislation would rename the Trade and Development Program the Trade and Development Agency, which wouldbe an independent agency under the foreign policy guidance of the 

'See appendix 1. 
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State Department. It would also expand the agency's mandate to 
cover preliminary stages of engineering design. We would propose 
an authorization of $58 million for fiscal year 1992, and $70 million 
for fiscal year 1993. 

Despite the fact that TDP now generates $70 of exports for every 
dollar it spends on feasibility studies, the administration had pro
posed only $35 million for fiscal 1992. The House Budget Commit
tee has authorized $58 million for this program for 1991. 

With respect to the private sector, the subcommittee has yet to 
find a development mandate with an AID program. And we pro
pose to terminate its authority to furnish assistance, loans or guar
antees, as of September 30, 1991. This will result in a saving within 
the foreign assistance account of the same portion of the $57 mil
lion which AID requested in the testimony before the committee. 

The administration has requested $100 million in guarantee au
thority for the Housing Investment Guarantee Program. The sub
committee proposes to keep HIG at its current $150 million level, 
and to broaden its mandate to include assistance in urban infra
structure where possible. We have used the language from H.R. 
2655, which was passed by the House in 1989. And any other 
changes are reflections of credit for them. 

We propose to make a number of changes to the Overseas Pri
vate Investment Corp. First, we would keep the language passed by 
the House in H.R. 2655, which essentially updates OPIC's original 
legislation and eliminates outdated programs. We would also elimi
nate the language restricting OPIC's programs in the PRC, since 
there is already language in the bill restricting OPIC's activities in 
human and/or labor rights violations where they exist in Public 
Law 101-246, the PRC Sanctions Act. 

The remaining changes reflect compliance with the Credit 
Reform Act. The Credit Reform Act requires OPIC to place its 
credit programs on budget. And it separates OPIC's assets into two 
accounts, credit and non-credit. The credit accounts are controlled 
by the Treasury, while the non-credit accounts remain under 
OPIC's control. Both accounts are physically held in Treasury, 
since there is over one billion dollars in assets in the non-credit ac
count. 

The subcommittee has authorized OPIC to use funds in the non
credit account revolving fund to cover all of its programs and ad
ministrative costs, approximately $18.3 million. The interest alone 
on this account will more than pay for these programs in 1990. The 
interest on the reserve account totaled $149.4 million, eight times 
the amount that we would utilize. 

Legislation enables OPIC to continue to operate without appro
priated funds, and therefore frees up funds in the Foreign Assist
ance Act of about $18.3 million for other purposes. This would also 
enable OPIC to maintain its status as a self-sustaining agency 
within the government. 

Are there any amendments? 
[No response.] 
Mr. GEJDENSON. There are no amendments. 
Mr. ROTH. Mr. Chairman, I would just like to add to that, if I 

may. First, I appreciate the spirit of cooperation that you and your 
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staff have shown in this mark-up. It has been a delight to work 
with you.

I want to say that there are a couple of areas where I have 
strong philosophical differences, such as the housing guarantees
and the microenterprise loans. After I have seen what happened
with FSLIC and FDIC, for us in these housing guarantees is some
thing that is going to come back and bite this Congress, I feel.

In 1993, Mr. Chairman, we are going to have housing guarantees
to Chile. Now I know we are great friends of the Chileans, I realize
that. But when we start having housing guarantees all over theworld, this is something that I must in all candor say, Mr. Chair
man, you and I have to take a look at this.

On the microenterprise loans, for our people to walk around theworld throwing $300 to everyone who starts a small business, I 
mean, this is bordering on the unconscionable.

So these are two areas where I have strong philosophical differences. But I think that we have developed some good provisionswhich will improve our export and save our taxpayers millions, Mr.
Chairman. And you are responsible for saving those millions, and Iwant to say thank you. These provisions have resulted from our
working together I think in a bipartisan manner.

And particularly expanding the trade and development program
will strengthen our ability to penetrate emerging export markets,and to win more contracts for U.S. companies. And increasingly,
our competitors are moving in this direction. And Mr. Chairman, Iwant to say that I congratulate you in taking a page out of their 
book. 

On OPIC, we have a workable solution to the problem of how toprotect the strengths of a well run agency. OPIC generates a surplus. It is self-sustaining, and it has not needed any appropriated
funds for years. I wish other agencies would have a record of this 
type.

If we do not adopt our provision on OPIC, then last year's creditreform law will cause OPIC to fall into the category ofjust another
appropriated program for no good reason. And our provisions re
solve this particular problem.

And this package also marks the first time in my memory that
 we have actually shut down a foreign aid program. This should

make the wire service, Mr. Chairman.
 

The private sector revolving fund has not made a case that itshould be continued. There is simply no public support for foreignaid. And I doubt if any of my constituent&would support making
these small business type loans overseas when our own small businesses are struggling with today's economic problems. And for me
and the people that I represent, it is a matter of priorities.

Let me make one final point. Preparation for this mark-up hasbeen underway for many weeks. The administration's bill which runs 182 pages single spaced was received by the subcommittee on
Monday. Let me say to the administration's representatives that 1 agree with many of your proposals, particularly in the area ofeliminating inappropriate micromanagement. I want to exploreways to incorporate as many of your bill's provisions as possible. 
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And with that again, Mr. Chairman, I say thank you very much 
for your spirit of cooperation. Really I think that we have done a 
remarkable job here thanks to your leadership. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. I thank the gentleman from Wisconsin. And 
frankly, all of our colleagues on both sides of the aisle for the effort 
and the time that they all put into these issues, and particularly of 
course the ranking member for the work that he has done, and the 
ease with which the two sides can work together on so many issues. 

Without any further comments on this bill, all those in favor say 
aye. 

[Chorus of ayes.] 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Opposed, nay. 
[No response.] 
Mr. GEJDENSON. The ayes have it. The bill is carried, and report

ed to the full committee. 
The chief of i.taff would read the bill. 
Mr. BRADY. "Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Repre

sentatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled. 
This Act may be cited as the Microenterprise Development Act of 
1991." 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Without objection, the reading will be suspend
ed, and the bill will be considered as read.1 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Feighan, would you like to go over the pro
visions of the bill, to which you have made such an extensive con
tribution. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. And let me 
thank you for bringing this legislation to the subcommittee for ex
pediting its consideration. I also want to thank very much my col
league who is not here right now, Congressman Gilman, who was 
of tremendous help in formulating the legislation before us. 

And as a matter of fact, what I am hoping that we can do if we 
move this out of the subcommittee would be to have the measure 
adopted by the full committee in the form of a Gilman amendment 
to whatever foreign aid vehicle that the committee might eventual
ly settle on. Let me just make a few comments if I can, Mr. Chair
man, about the bill before us. The bill essentially does three things. 

First, it lays out goals for AID's microenterprise program to con
tinue and to expand its emphasis on microenterprise. It calls for 
AID to increase its effort to reach the poor and particularly 
women. 

Secondly, it creates a permanent general authority for the Presi
dent through AID to carry out this program. And it recognizes the 
need for an umbrella approach that addresses the full range of 
needs faced by microenterprises. That umbrella approach would in
clude credit programs, institutional development, training, techni
cal assistance, and policy reform. 

And then finally, it establishes an overall earmark of $85 million 
for each of the next two fiscal years with a sub-earmark for special 
attention on reaching the poorest sections o! the developing world. 
That lower tier would receive $20 million in 1992, and $30 million 
in 1993. Our effort there is simply to try and direct a reasonable 

ISee Appendix 1. 
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amount of money into microenterprise programs for the genuinelypoor, the poorest of the poor, and particularly women.The bill is really a culmination of about four years of discussionand debate that this committee has had with AID about how wecan best promote the potential of microenterprise as a successfuldevelopment strategy. The bill includes provisions to ensure a poverty lending element. But it does so in a way that maintains AID'sbroader programs, so that the agency will be able to respond withflexibility to different circumstances and different economies in dif
ferent countries.

Over the past eight months, we have intensified our discussionsin regular meetings with AID, with PVO officials, and with members of the Advisory Committee on Microenterprise. Prior to thosediscussions, we had a GAO report which has been prepared andpresented to members of the subcommittee.
In addition, we have held two hearings on the microenterpriseprogram including one on the legislation that is before us. Thefinal version was introduced last month. And I was pleased to havenearly unanimous cosponsorship of the legislation by members of

the subcommittee.
I hope that we can pass the legislation today, and clear the wayfor my colleague, Mr. Gilman, to offer it as an amendment to the

full foreign aid bill.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate it.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you.

Are there any further comments?
 
Mr. ROTH. Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Roth.
Mr. ROTH. I am constrained just to reply and to give my viewpoint. In 1992, according to this bill, we will be giving $20 millionin the form of this type of $300 loans, and $30 million in 1993.Golly, we are suffering right here at home with our small business.
And how does this serve our foreign policy goals? I do not know.
April 15th was tax day when everybody last Monday were paying
their taxes. And that means that many of the people, for example
in my district, were paying their taxes. And $20 million in 1992
and $30 million in 1993 would be going to this sort of an initiative.s
I have got the greatest respect for the authors of this legislation,
Mr. Feighan, and Mr. Gilman, and the rest. But to me, this is likea relic of the past, when America went all over the world justthrowing money here and there. This is money that we have toborrow, money that our children will have to pay interest on. If wehad surplus money, I would say well, let us do it. But when we arefacing a $320 billion deficit, we are going to be throwing millionsoverseas in the form of $300 to this guy, or $300 to this other guywho wants to set up a fruit stand and so on.I do not know. This is in my opinion not a wise step for us totake. And if the President has any control over this, I think thatthe President would be well-advised to take a look at a programlike this. This is neither fish nor fowl, neither rhyme or reason.I do not know. Again, I think that this is a relic of the past. Iadmire very much the people who introduced this legislation. Butthis is 1991 and not 1946. We have 1992 dollars here. Again, I am 
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going to have to vote against this legislation. This is in my opinion 
not the best of policy. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Bereuter from Nebraska. 
Mr. BEREUTER. Mr. Chairman, I would just like to comment/on 

one aspect of the earmarking of the $85 million. As mentioned by 
the gentleman from Ohio I believe, $20 million is earmarked for 
loans of $300 or less for fiscal year 1992 and $30 million for fiscal 
year 1993. 

I know that based upon information that we received from hear
ings and from field trips that this is an important element. In my 
judgment, it is an important element. There has been I think a re
luctance or a lack of understanding about the importance of focus
ing on the truly microenterprise, on the families and the one 
person who needs just a very small amount of operating capital to 
get underway. 

I have seen how it has worked on the NGOs' efforts in parts of 
Latin America. I think that there is just a failure to scale down 
one's thought about the size of the operations that we are trying to 
help. We really do need to focus on the micro very small kind of 
loans that are necessary. I think that has not come across, and the 
earmark is to ensure that indeed a very significant part of this 
money does go for these very small loans. 

It can have a real impact. It gets to the people who really need 
it. The repayment of these loans often comes in the first six 
months. So I think that this is an appropriate earmark, and I just 
wanted to say this in terms of legislative intent. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. The gentleman from New York. 
Mr. HOUGHTON. I understand what you say about your people 

paying the taxes, and the question of whether this is another lay
on program. I guess that I have the same situation. I come from a 
rural part of the country. Here many times people question the 
whole foreign affairs and foreign relations type of expenditure 
when there are so many problems at home. 

But I think that that can be worked out. I tell you, I just had an 
experience in Zimbabwe in which the Ambassador was giving out 
these small micro bits to small enterprises. And I will tell you 
something, it made more sense and it showed more character for 
the United States than any of the huge mega loans that we have 
given to countries directly or indirectly.

To me, if you have a budget for foreign affairs, this is a very in
teresting new development, not something that is a relic of the 
past. 

Mr. FEIGHAN. Mr. Chairman, if I could just take a moment. I ap
preciate the comments of all of my colleagues on the legislation. 
We have spent last year $83 million in microenterprise, and I think 
that it is likely that we would be spending about that amount this 
year and in the next fiscal year. So the purpose of having the sub
earmark is to make sure that we are taking at least a realistic por
tion of that and putting it into a credit program that is really tar
geted to the poorest of the poor.

Most of our development dollars have always operated really on 
a trickle down theory that if we invested in large massive economic 
development projects in various countries, particularly the Third 
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World, the benefits of that would eventually trickle down to theothers. Well, there is some truth to that clearly.But what the credit programs of microenterprise attempt to do isto provide credit access to those who historically have been completely denied any credit opportunity of the smallest amounts. Andto improve the economy at that level in the hopes that eventuallyit will trickle up.I think that it is a natural blend with the other developmentprojects that this committee has aggressively supported over therecent years. And I would hope that members would vote favorablyfor the legislation. Thank you.Mr. GEJDENSON. Without any further discussion, all those infavor will say aye.
[Chorus of ayes.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. Opposed will say nay.
[Chorus of nays.]Mr. GEJDENSON. The ayes have it. The provisions are passed.Next, Mr. Miller has a proposal that he will present to the committee. Mr. Miller.
[The amendment of Mr. Miller follows:] 
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CHINA
 

AHENDMENT TO;
 

OFFERED By MR. MILLER OF WASHINGTON
 

Insert in.the appropriate place the following:
 

1 TITLE -- INDSTRIAL COOPERATION PRO3ECTS IN CHINAAND TIBET 

2 SECTION 01. STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES. 

3 (a) PURPOSE.--It is the purpose of this title to create 

4 principles governing the conduct of industrial,cooperation. 

5 projects of United States nationals in the People's Republic 

6 of China and Tibet. 

7 (b) PRINCIPLES.--It is the sense of-the Congress that any 

8 United States national conducting an industrial cooperation 

9 project in the People's Republic of China or Tibet should 

10 adhere to the following principles:. 

11 (1) Suspend the use of all goods, wares, articles, 

12 and merchandise that are mined, produced, or 

13 manufactured, in whole or in part, by convict labor or 

14 forced labor if there is reason to believe that the 

15 material or product is produced or manufactured by forced 

16 labor, and refuse to use forced labor in the industrial 

17 cooperation project. 

18 (2) Seek to ensure that political or religious views, 

19 sex, ethnicor national background, involvement in 

20 political activLtLes or nonviolent demonstrations, or 
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CHINA
 

2
 

1 association with suspected or known dissidents will not
 

2 prohibithiring;,lead to harassment, demotion, or
 

3 dismissal; or in any way affect the status or terms of
 

4 employment in the industrial cooperation project.;The
 

5 UnIted States national should not discriminate-in terms
 

6 or conditions of employment in the industrial cooperation
 

7 project against persons with past~records of arrests or
 

8 internal exile for nonviolent protest or membership in
 

9 unofficial organizations committed to nonviolence.
 

10 (3)Ensure that methods of production used in the
 

11 industrial cooperation project do not pose an unnecessary
 

12 physical danger to workers and neighboring populations
 

13 and property and that the industrial cooperation project
 

14 does not unnecessarily risk harm to the surrounding
 

15 environment, and consult with community leaders regarding
 

16 environmental protection with respect to the industrial
 

17 cooperation project.
 

18 (4)Strive to use business enterprises that are not
 

19 controlled by the People's Republic of China or its
 

20 authorized agents and departments as potential partners
 

21 in the industrial cooperation project.
 

22 (5)Prohibit any military presence on the premises of
 

23 the industrial cooperation project.
 

24 (6)Undertake to promote freedom of association and
 

25 assembly among the employees of the United States;
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3
 

1 national. The United States national should protest any
 

2 infringement by the Chinese Government of these freedoms
 

to the appropriate authorities of that government and to
3 


4 the International Labor Organization, which has an office
 

5 in Beijing.
 

(7)Use 	every possible channel of communication with
6 


the Chinese Government to urge that government to
7 


8 disclose publicly a complete list of all those
 

arch1989i to end
9 individuals arrested since 


10 incommunicado detention and torture, and.to provide
 

11 international observers access to all places:of detention
 

in the People's Republic-of China and TLbetand to trials
 

13 of prisoners arrested in connection with the,
 

12 


14 	 pro-democracy events of April through June of 1989 and
 

the pro-democracy demonstrations which have taken place
15 


16 in Tibet since 1987.
 

(8) Discourage or undertake to-prevent compulsory
17 


18 political indoctrination programs from taking place on
 

19 the premises of the operations of the industrial
 

20 	 cooperation project.
 

(9)Promote freedom of expression, including the
21 


freedom to seek, receive, and impart information and
22 


ideas of all kinds, regardless of frontiers, either
23 


24 orally, in writing or ip print, in the form of art, or
 

25 through any media. To this end, the United States
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CHINA 

4 
1 
 national shouldraisewith;approprlate authorities of tho
 

2 Chinese Government concerns about restrictions on
 

3 "importation of foreign publications.
 

4 (c) PROMOTION OF PRINCIPLES BY OTHER NATIONS.--The
 

5 
Secretary of State shall forward a copy of the principles set
 

6 forth in subsection (b) 
to the member nations of,the
 

7 Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development and
 

8 encourage them to promote principles similar to these
 

9 principles.
 

10 SEC. _02. REGISTRATION REQUIREMENT.
 

11 (a) IN GENERAL.--Each United States national conducting
 
12 
an industrial cooperation project in the People's Republic of
 
13 
 China or Tibet shall register with the Secretary of State and
 

14 
 indicate whether the United States national agrees to
 
15 
 implement the principles set forth in section _01(b). No fee
 
16 shall be required for registration under this subsection.
 

17 
 (b) EFFECTIVE DATE.--The registration requirement of
 
18 subsection (a) shall take effect 6 months after the date of
 

19 the enactment of this Act.
 

20 SEC. _03. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. 

21 (a) REPORT.--Each United States national conducting an 
22 industrial cooperation project in the People's Republic of
 
23 China or 
Tibet shall report to the Department of State
 

24 
 describing the United States national's adherence to the
 
25 principles set forth in section _01(b). Such national shal.
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5 

1 submit a completed reporting' for n furnishedby the Department 

2 of State.,The first-report shall be submitted not 
later than
 

1 year after the date on which the United States national
3 


02 and not later than the end of
4 registers under section 


5 each 1-year period occurring'thereafter.
 

(b)REVIEW OF REPORT.--The Secretary of State shall
 

review each report submitted under subsection (a)
and
 

6 


7 


8 determine whether the United States national submitting 
the
 

9 report isadhering to the principles. The Secretary 
may
 

request additional information from the United 
States


10 


national and other sources to verify the information
11 


12 submitted.
 

(c)ANNUAL REPORT.--The Secretary of State shall 
submit a
 

report'to the Congress and to the Secretariat of 
the
 

13 


14 


15 organization for Economic Cooperation and Development.
 

describing the level of adherence to the principles 
by United
 

16 


States nationals subject to the reporting requirement 
of
 

17 


18 subsection (a). Such report shall be submitted not later than
 

2 years after the 4ate of the enactment of this Act 
and not
 

19 


later than the end of each 1-year period occurring
20 


21 thereafter.
 

SEC. _04. EZPORT MARKETING SUPPORT.
22 


23 (a)SUPPORT.--Departmentb and agencies of the United
 

States may only intercede with a foreign government 
or


24 


foreign national regarding export marketing activity 
in the
 

25 




219
 

CHINA
 

1 People's Republic of China or Tibet on behalf of a-United
 

2 States national .subject to the reporting requirements of
 

3 section _03(a) if that United States national adheres to the
 

4 principles set forth in section _01(b).
 

5 (b) TYPE OF CONTACT.--For purposes of this section, the
 

6 term "intercede with a foreign government or foreign
 

7 national" includes any contact by an officer or employee of
 

8 the United States with officials of any foreign government or.
 

9 foreign national Involving or contemplating any effort to
 

10 assist in selling a good, service, or technology in the
 

11 People's Republic of China or Tibet. Such term does not
 

12 include multilateral or bilateral.government-to-government
 

13 trade negotiations intended to resolve trade issues which may
 

14 affect United States nationals who do not adhere to the
 

15 principles set forth in section _01(b).
 

16 (c)EFFECTIVE DATE.--Subsection (a) shall take effect 2
 

17 years after the date of the enactment of this Act.
 

18 SEC. 05. DEFINITIONS. 

19 For purposes of this title-

20 (1) the terms "adhere to the principles , 

21 "adhering to the principles', and 'adherence to the 

22 principles" mean-

23 (A) agreeing to implement the principles set 

24 forth In section .01(b); 

25 (B) implementinq those principles by taking good 

46-816 0 - 91 - 8
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7.
 

1 faith measures with-respect-toeach suchiprinciple,
 

2 and
 

3 (C) reporting accurately to.the.Department of
 

State on the measures taken to implement those
4 


5 principlesi
 

6 (2) the term'industrial cooperation project"
 

7 refers to a for-profit activity the business operations
 

8 of whichemploy more than 25 individuals or have assets
 

9 greater than $25,000 in values and
 

10 (3) the term "United States national- means-

11 (A) a citizen or national of the United States or
 

12 a permanent resident of the United Statesi and
 

13 :. (B) a corporation, partnership, and other 

14 business association organized under the laws of the
 

15 United States, any State of the United States, the
 

16 District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto
 

17 Rico, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
 

18 Islands, or any other territory or possession of the
 

19 United States.
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Mr. MIUER. I do not know if the amendment has been passedout. But this is basically an amendment that incorporates what theHouse passed by an overwhelming vote last year, when we weretaking up the issue of MFN to China. The amendment is a sense ofCongress resolution encouraging American businesses to follow certain human rights principles when doing business in China, notfiring people for political reasons, not allowing political indoctrination classes, encouraging them to take up human rights cases, andrequiring a State Department report, and things of that nature.As I said, it was passed overwhelmingly by the House. Everybodyon this committee voted for it. I think that in a small way that itwould send a signal to our businesses doing business in China thatthey can play a positive role in promoting human rights.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you. The gentleman puts forward a provision that makes a lot of sense. I think that this side has had a lookat it. I certainly commend him for his actions.
Without any further discussion, all those in favor say aye.
[Chorus of ayes.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. Those opposed say nay.

[No response.]

Mr. GEJDENSON. The ayes have it. The provision is passed to thefull committee. That was excellent work, Mr. Miller. You are get

ting briefer.
The Enterprise Initiative as proposed by the President last September seeks to provide relief of official bilateral debt owed to theUnited States by Latin American and Caribbean countries. Toqualify for debt relief under the Enterprise Initiative, countrieshave to meet certain eligibility criteria, and have to agree to applyinterest payments to environmental projects in their country.Four types of debt are addressed in the initiative, Public Law480, foreign aid, CCC, and the Exim Bank loans. Congress approvedlegislation to implement the Public Law 480 provisions of the Enterprise Initiative last year during the consideration of the 1990

farm bill.
The House last year also passed legislation implementing the foreign aid provisions of the Enterprise Initiative. That legislationwas identical in structure to the Public Law 480 debt relief language in the farm bill. The bill died in conference, but it has been
reintroduiced in the Congress as H.R. 964.Before we begin marking up H.R. 964, let me give a brief title bytitle explanation. Title I establishes the purpose of the initiative.Title I establishes the eligibility criteria for countries participatingin this program. And countries must have or be making significantprogress towards an IMF agreement, a World Bank loan, investment reform, and a commercial bank financing program.Title II authorizes the President to reduce debt. Principal on theloan is to be paid in U.S. dollars. Interest on the remaining debt isto be paid in local currency at a concessional rate, and depositedinto an environmental fund.Title III authorizes the Secretary of State to enter into environmental framework agreements. Title III also establishes local administering bodies to be responsible for the management of the environmental funds. Title III sets up the Environment for the Amer



icas Board to be composed of U.S. government and non-governmen
tal agencies. Title IV requires an annual report be submitted to 
Congress.

I will be offering amendments to make some minor changes to 
H.R. 964. But let me first recognize the ranking minority of the 
subcommittee, Mr. Roth, for any statements that he may have. Mr. 
Roth. 

Mr. ROTH. I do not have any statements at this time, Mr. Chair
man. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Are there other statements before we get to 
amendments? 

[No response.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. The staff director will read the bill. 
Mr. BRADY. "This Act may be cited as the Enterprise for the 

Americas Initiative Act of 1991." 
Mr. GEJDENSON. I move that the bill be considered as read and 

suspend the reading.I
Mr. GEJDENSON. I have an amendment. Would the Clerk please

distribute the amendment. And the staff director will report the 
amendment. 

Mr. BRADY. An amendment to H.R. 964, page 3, line 6-
Mr. GEJDENSON. Without objection, any further reading of the 

amendment will be dispensed with, and it will be printed in the 
record. 

[The amendment of Mr. Gejdenson follows:] 

'See appendix 1. 
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(April-17I.1911.
 
AMENDMENT TO HR, 964 OFFERED:BY Mn. GEJ.ENSON
 

Page 4, strike out linea 9 through 11 and insert.in lieu
 

thereof.the followigs 

1 (2)FEDERAL CREDIT REFORM ACTAND AUTHORIZATION 

2 REQUIREMENTS.--(A) The authority of this section may be 

3 exercised only to the extent that the budgetauthority 

4 for the resulting additional coat (within.theme inng of 

5 the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990) has.been,povided 

6 in advance in appropriations Acts, except that an !,euch 

7 budget authority so provided shall be available for 

8 payment from the appropriate credit program account'lnto 

9 the financing account only to the extent that the
 

10 enactment of such budget authority has ban authorized in
 

11 an authorization Act.
 

12 (B)The enactment of the following amounts of budget
 

13 authority described in subparagraph (A)ishereby
 

14 authorimeds $285,000,000 for fiscal year 1992 and 

15 $ / O c for fiscal year 1993, 

http:insert.in
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HR964A06
 

(April 16", 1991: PHI
 

J4ENDHENTS TO HR. 964 

Page 3, 1iL 6, after:.equivalent'" insert the 

following: 

1 , unless the President determines (after consultation 

2 with the Environment for the Americas Board)-that 

3 such an arrangement or program (or-its equivalent) 

4 could reasonably be expected to havesignificant 

5 -adverse social or environmental effects 

Page 3#,line-10i,after !'/AsocLation. insertthe
 

following:
 

6 runless the President determines (after consultation
 

7 with the Environment for the Americas Board) that the
 

8 resulting adjustment requirements could reasonably be,
 

9 expected to have significant adverse social or
 

10 environmental effects
 

Page 10, strike out lines 6 and 7 andinsert in lieu
 

thereof the following:
 

(C) shall be'subjectl on ah annual.basis, to an
 



225
 

RR964A06
 

2 

audit oftfinancLal.statements.,conducted .in--accordance
 

wit generaLLY acceptedL.audLting standards by an
 

inaepenaent.audltor;
 

Page l0, strike out the'ciua in line 19 and all:that
 

follows through, 1989) in line 22.
 

Page 11, line 15, strike out "99 and insert'in lieu
 

thereof r 1l";.line 17, strikeout 
'5, and insert in lieu
 

thereof "6"; and line 19, strike out 
 4 and 'insert in
 

lieu thereof "S".
 

Page 12, after line 18, add the following:
 

1 (d) SUPPLENENTAL VIEWS IN ANNUAL REPORT ON THE
 

2 FAcILiTY.--Zach member of the Board shall be entitled to
 

3 receive a copy of any report to be transmitted to the
 

4 Congress pursuant to section 401 at least 14 days before the
 

5 report is to be so transmitted* to have 14 days within which
 

6 to prepare and submit supplemental views for inclusion in
 

7 such report, and to have those views included in the report
 

a when it is so transmitted. 
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Mr. GEJDENSON. Let me briefly explain my amendment. It modi
fies the IMF and World Bank eligibility criteria to state that they 
shall not apply in cases in which the President determines that 
they would have a detrimental social and environmental impact. It 
expands the membership of the Enterprise for the Americas Board 
to eleven from nine. It allows the members of the Environment for 
the Americas Board to offer supplementing views to the annual 
report. It also places a spending cap of $285 million in fiscal year 
1992, and $182 million in fiscal year 1993. 

offer this modest amendment out of concern that IMF pro
grams, in particular, have a negative social and environmental 
impact on countries that we are trying to assist. The President has 
said that the Enterprise for the Americas is an environmental pro
gram. It does not make sense, then, to compel countries to accept 
IMF loans that have a negative environmental impact as a crite
rion for participating in this program. 

The amendment presumes that the participation in IMF and 
World Bank programs are requirements unless the President in 
consultation with the Board determines that such programs would 
have a negative environmental consequence. The Board would be 
consulted only on whether IMF programs have a negative environ
mental impact, not on whether or which eligibility criteria should 
be applied. That authority remains with the President of the 
United States. 

I intended to modify the eligibility criteria to permit the Treas
ury to accept macroeconomic reforms and eligibility requirement in 
lieu of IMF or World Bank programs. Treasury, however, says that 
it does not want this flexibility, which is somewhat surprising to 
me. Such flexibility is already provided in H.R. 964's wording that 
countries can be making significant progress towards an IMF pro
gram or its equivalent to be eligible for debt relief. 

The Treasury says that it interprets that language to mean that 
a country does not necessarily need an IMF or World Bank pro
gram, and that it may have an economic reform program equiva
lent to an IMF or World Bank program to be eligible. 

Perhaps I could call Treasury to the table to confirm this part of 
their position. Please identify yourself for the record. 

Mr. FoLsoM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is George 
Folsom, and I am the Deputy Secretary for International Develop
ment and Debt Policy at the Treasury Department. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Let me ask you some questions now. 
Does Treasury's interpretation of the law implementing the 

Public Law 480 provisions of EAI allow it to consider countries' eli
gibility if they do not have an IMF or World Bank program if they 
do have economic reform programs that are equivalent to IMF or 
World Bank programs?

Mr. FOiSOM. Yes, it does, Mr. Chairman, for countries which are 
pursuing macroeconomic reforms consistent with the types of pro
grams that are equivalent to the IMF program. This could include 
countries who have successfully completed a series of IMF pro
grams, and are continuing sound economic policy. It would also in
clude countries which are pursuing sound economic policies which 
have not experienced the balance of payments difficulties which 
might otherwise necessitate assistance from the IMF. 
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Mr. BEREUTER. Mr. Chairman, may I ask a :question on this

point?
Mr. GEJDENSON. Sure. 
Mr. BEREUTER. Thank you.Are you saying that the Chairman's amendment, the firstamendment, provides the President the flexibility to consider othermacroeconomic programs that would be the beneficial equivalent ofthe IMF or the World Bank?
Mr. GEJDENSON. We dropped that provision, the reference to

macroeconomic because of objections.Mr. BEREUTER. But your first amendment is to give the President
the flexibility?

Mr. GEJDENSON. The flexibility, but we do not reference macroeconomic. That is just on environmental impact. We dropped it, ifyou have got the right provision before you. Although we wantedwhat you are talking about, they are arguing that they already
have that flexibility.

Is that correct?
Mr. FoisoM. I think that answer is yes, if they are making signif

icant progress.
Mr. GEJDENSON. That is in the original language though. Theysay that they have got the flexibility, and they do not want what I 

was going to give them. 
Mr. BEREUTER. So the first part of yours-Mr. GEJDENSON. Only the environmental, that they could use 

that.
 
Mr. BEREUTER. Thank you.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Can you give us an example of a country thathas a very good economic reform program, but does not have and

has never had a IMF program?
Mr. FOLSOM. Colombia would be an example in this regard.Mr. GEJDENSON. Are you willing to entertain the notion

making such a country eligible for EAI debt relief? 
of 

Mr. FoLSoM. Yes, we are.
Mr. GEJDENSON. And tell us in specific terms what an IMF equiv

alent program is?
Mr. FOLSOM. Well, I will give you an example. Colombia is really
the example. Their policy has been constrained on their fiscal defi

cits.

Mr. GEJDENSON. Who will make the determination that a country's economic reform program is equivalent?Mr. FOLSOM. Generally, it would be the National Advisory Coun

cil. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Thank you.The staff will prepare report language on this issue which shouldmake clear Congress' intent in this regard. I, along with the Chairman of the Western Hemisphere Subcommittee had also intendedto offer language to provide debt relief to the extent that it willresult in real reductions of the total payment made by the indebted 

countries.
In testimony before our two subcommittees, Under SecretaryMulford was unclear as to whether such an up front debt relief ispossible on the Treasury scenario for the Enterprise for the Americas. According to Secretary Mulford, countries would actually end 
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paying more under the Enterprise Initiative, since they would have 
to continue to pay the principal. To date they have been paying for 
principal and interest. 

Interest on the outstanding debt would still be charged, resulting
in a net increase in the country's outlays. Treasury has said, infor
mally, to staff that real reductions in debt payments are possible, 
and that it is Treasury's intention to stretch out the payments of 
some countries to allow each payment to be smaller. 

I would like to ask a representative of Treasury who is still at 
the table, to confirm that for the record. 

Mr. FOLSOM. Yes, Mr. Chairman, we are willing to consider that 
on a case by case basis. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. Given the structure that has been developed for 
the implementation of Public Law 480 and foreign aid provisions of 
the Enterprise for the Americas Initiative, does Treasury intend to 
provide up front debt relief? Do you intend to provide actual cash 
flow relief to all countries? 

Mr. FoLsoM. Depending on the circumstances of the countries. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Does the present structure for the Enterprise

permit you to stretch out debt ielief so as to reduce each year's 
payment?

Mr. FoisoM. Yes, Mr. Chairman, it does. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Are there any questions or comments from my 

colleagues?
Mr. BEREUTER. Yes, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Mr. Bereuter. 
Mr. BEREUTER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I would ask the gentleman from Treasury, do you have a copy of 

the Chairman's amendments to H.R. 964 in front of you? 
Mr. FOLSOM. Yes, Mr. Bereuter, I do. 
Mr. BEREUTER. Could you comment, if you have any comments 

from Treasury, on the first two items. Could you address the 
amendments to line 6 and line 10, and what the views of Treasury 
are on those two items? 

Mr. FolsoM. It is the view of Treasury that the Enterprise for 
the Americas Initiative program is not only an environmental pro
gram, but it is also an investment program. And we would that the 
rationale for the requirement for an IMF program is that they
should achieve the economic reforms of the program. Therefore, 
the amendment would undermine the purposes of the IMF pro
gram. It would be examining whether or not an IMF program
would have significant adverse social and environmental effects. 

Mr. BEREUTER. Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, I must say to my colleagues that is something of 

a disadvantage, in that points of opposition by the administration 
to various parts of the EAI are raised, but only at this moment. I 
really am not prepared to cope with them. I may have to abstain 
on it, and do it at full committee. 

But I would have one question of the Chairman at this point does 
the legislation as now amended, or do you have any knowledge of 
amendments that will today cap the funding for the Enterprise 
over the next two years?

Mr. GEJDENSON. We capped it to $285 million in 1992, and $182 
million in 1993. 
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Mr. BEREUTER. Would this require the administration to seek 

new authorization for the Enterprise Initiative in two years?

Mr. GEJDENSON. 
After two years, there would be new authoriza

tion. 
Mr. BEREUTER. Here is a question that is raised by the adminis

tration. The concern that Latin countries that might become eligible in two year's time such as Brazil and Argentina might be dissuaded from taking the necessary economic adjustment measuresby their assumption that the program that we are authorizing
today will be terminated in two years.


How would you react to that?

Mi. GEJDENSON. Well, I guess basically what are saying iswe 

one, it is a sunset provision without any question. And it is a program that we have got a lot of questions on how it is going to beimplemented. And we want to have Congress get another bite at
this apple. I do not think that you are going to find countries with a real opportunity for debt relief saying no, you have made it somewhat inconvenient by reauthorizing it in two years, so we are not
going to take advantage of any kind of debt relief.


Mr. BEREUTER. 
 It is a little hard to believe.

But is there some way of providing greater assurance?

Mr. GEJDENSON. I would just say to my friend that it is something that maybe we ought to talk about between now and fullcommittee. And if there is a way that we can raise my friend's

comfort level, I would be happyr to try to do it.
Mr. BEREUTER. It is not just mine. I am 
seeing this question forthe first time. Two years is hardly a long enough time to see if this program is going to work. I am in favor of a longer authorization if 
we are going to do this.
 

Mr. G&JDENSON. Let 
us sit down and talk between now and full 
committee.
 

The gentleman from New York.

Mr. HOUGHTON. 
 Yes. I do not know who to address this question
to, Mr. Chairman, whether it is to you or to the gentleman from
the Treasury. But let me just sort of throw it out. Obviously we'reconcerned about the environment within the country in which the

investment is made. 
So therefore, I assume that those countries have requested theamendment as suggested by the Chairman, is that right?
Mr. FOLSOM. No. I am not aware of that.
Mr. HOUGHTON. Are the customers demanding this?
Mr. GEJDENSON. Our basic goal is to try to write good legislationfrom the perspective of the American citizens interest and thecountry's interest, and what we think makes sense for the regionas well. I am not sure that we solicited the people with debt. Iguess that if we gave them their preference, that they would just

want to get rid of it all all at once without any strings.
We tried to do something to achieve several goals simultaneous

ly. We all sit up here as North Americans hoping that they do notburn down the Amazon and other important environmental resources, and this is some way just to help leverage saving some ofthat, and helping their economies in doing debt relief. 
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I am not sure that our goal ought to be simply just to figure out 
what they want. It is a combination of what they want and what 
we want. And we represent the American citizens and taxpayers. 

Mr. HOUGHTON. I understand that. And obviously, this is the 
United States Congress and not the Congress of the World. Yet at 
the same time, I guess that I have always been a little bit reluctant 
to try to superimpose our own views on others, unless it coexists 
with some of the demands which they have in their society. Clear
ly, if you do not have an environmental hurdle to overcome, then it 
is easier to get the money and to compete elsewhere in the world. 

However, the thrust of this is to help those countries. And there
fore, there has to be some animus there. There has to be some feel
ing that this is what is needed by the countries in which the invest
ment will be made. 

Mr. FOLSOM. Clearly, the environmental aspect of the program is 
something that almost every state in the region has especially en
dorsed. And I think that the President spoke to that last fall. 

Mr. HOUGHTON. Let me just ask one other question. The monies 
that go someplace, to the XYZ country, will come partly from this 
government, partly from IMF, and partly from the World Bank. 
We do not necessarily have any control over the policies of the 
World Bank and the IMF. 

How is that going to work through this legislative process here? 
Mr. FOLSOM. The specific issue of the environment? 
Mr. HOUGHTON. Yes. 
Mr. FoLsoM. Well, we will be working with the institutions on 

the EAT- as to the concerns of the individual countries. 
Mr. HOUGHTON. Well, Mr. Chairman, just a final word. I do not 

want to get sort of tangled up in my sort of quasi-legalistic scab
bard, because I am not sure of the language here. And again I feel 
a little bit in the position of Mr. Bereuter. 

Is this something that you want to have a vote on today? 
Mr. GEJDENSON. We need to get it out today to the full commit

tee. And maybe between now and then, we can sit down with staff 
and go over some of these things with you. 

Without any further objection, all those in favor of the amend
ment say aye? 

[Chorus of ayes.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. Those opposed say nay. 
[No response.] 
Mr. GEJDENSON. The ayes have it. 
All those in sup port of the bill as amended will say aye. 
Mr. JOHNSTON. I have another amendment. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. I am sorry. The gentleman from Florida has an 

amendment. The Chief of Staff will read the amendment. 
Mr. HOUGHTON. Mr. Chairman, can I make another comment. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. Anything you like. 
Mr. HOUGHTON. You are so gracious. I think that I would like to 

be recorded as no on the other vote. Not that I disagree with the 
thrust of it, but in order to keep my options open. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. I suggest that maybe tomorrow or Monday that 
we sit down with staff and go over some of those details. 

Mr. HOUGHTON. Yes. 
Mr. BEREUTER. Mr. Chairman, may I be recorded as abstaining? 
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Mr. GEJDENSON. All right. The staff has got that.

The Chief of Staff will read the amendment.
 
Mr. BRADY. Page 13, line 6--

Mr. GEJDENSON. I move 
that the amendment be considered as

read and printed in the record. 
[The amendment of Mr. Johnston follows:] 
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BR964A05
 

1AprLIi5,,19911
 

AENDMENT TO H.R'896 1' 

OFFERED BY MR, JOHNSTON OF.FLORIDA
 

Page 13, line 6, strike out "REPORTS" and insert in ,
 

lieu thereof OTHER PROVISIONS'; and after line 1ii, add the 

following: 

1 SEC. 402. AUTHORITy To FORGIVE ECONOMIC ASSISTANCE DEBT OWED 

2 BY NONGOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATIONS. 

3 (a) AUTHORIZATION.--If the President determines that to 

4 do so would further the development assistance policies of 

5 chapter 1 of part I of the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961, 

6 the President may, on a case-by-case basis, release any 

7 nongovernmental organization from its obligation to make such 

8 payments to the United States Government as the President may 

9 determine on account of loans made to that organization under 

10 part I of that Act (22 U.S.C. 2151 and following) or 

11 predecessor economic assistance legislation, subject to 

12 subsection (b) of this section. 

13 (b)FEDERAL CREDIT REFORM ACT REQUIREMENTS.--The 

14 authority of subsection (a) may be exercised only to the 

15 extent that the budget authority for the resulting additional 

16 cost (within the meaning of the Federal Credit Reform Act of 

17 1990) has been provided in advance in appropriations Acts. 
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Mr. GEJDENSON. The gentleman from Florida is recognized to ex
plain his amendment. 

Mr. JOHNSTON. Mr. Chairman, the provisions of this amendment were passed under the AID bill last year. It was cosponsoredmyself, Congressman Goss, and Congressman Houghton. I hope
that he remembers it. 

Mr. HOUGHTON. I hope so, too.
Mr. GEJDENSON. Just because he has got white hair, do not pickon him. I think that ad hominem that this sounds like a good

amendment. 
Mr. JOHNSTON. Just very quickly. This class of loans madeback in the 1960s under the Alliance for Progress went to non-governmental units, to a lot of universities and colleges in CentralAmerica. And all this does, if you read it very closely, under theauthorization is if the President determines that this serves thesame purpose as under Part 1, Chapter 1 of the principal bill, then

he can forgive these debts.
And they are'principally universities, one of which that-I havepersonal knowledge is.called INCAE. It is in Costa Rica and Nicaragua. It has produced a lot of the leaders for the Central American .countries, and several of chamarro's cabinet members are grad

uates. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. If the gentleman would yield.
Mr. JOHNSTON. Certainly.
Mr..GEJDENSON. We have reviewed the amendment, and it seemsto make a lot of.sense. And especially when you look-at the twoauthors who are members of. the committee. It is obviously a good

amendment. 
And if there is no further discussion, all of those in favor of the

amendment say aye.
[Chorus of ayes.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. All those opposed say nay.
[No response.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. The ayes have it. 
Now are there any further amendments? 
[No response.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. Without any further amendments, itis on final 

passage.
All those in favor say aye.
[Chorus of ayes.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. All those opposed say nay.
[Chorus of nays.]
Mr. GEJDENSON. The ayes have it.
Mr. BEREUTER. Mr. Chairman, if I could be recorded as abstain

ing.
Mr. GLJDENSON. We have one abstention. And one no, Mr.

Houghton. The amendment is agreed to.I would just like to say before we close this hearing that I amstill left with concerns about this program, as I think others here are. Treasury has only indicated that two or three counhies are inthe verge of becoming eligible for debt relief in 1991, and that isnot good. And it certainly falls far short of expectations.
Whether the problem lies with eligibilit, criteria, or the country's economic performance, or Treasury's own difficulties in get
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ting the program started, I am not sure yet at this point. Because 
Treasury has been slow to provide the appropriate information to 
the committee and its staff. Treasury tells us that maybe four addi
tional countries will become eligible for foreign aid debt relief in 
1992. 

They have requested $285 million for this purpose. $285 million 
is a lot of money for this committee to set aside and hope that a 
few countries will become eligible for modest debt relief. 

We have many other more pressing concerns. And at this time, 
we have difficulty justifying that expenditure. Unfortunately, I 
cannot ask Treasury to justify the numbers for us, because they
have classified the information. 

The amendment that we just passed did alter the eligibility crite
ria in the interest of moving this legislation on to the full commit
tee. I have to say, however, that while we are giving Treasury the 
benefit of the doubt one more time, I and the Chairman of the 
Western Hemisphere Committee remain extremely concerned 
about the restrictive nature of the eligibility criteria. 

The administration requested this program, and it is up to the 
administration to defend it and justify why we should spend almost 
$300 million for a program that to date has produced almost noth
ing but a vague hope of debt relief for two countries. 

Before the full committee mark-up, Treasury should tell the com
mittee in very specific terms why only two countries may be eligi
ble for debt relief in fiscal year 1991, what specifically prevents
other countries from being judged eligible by Treasury, and what 
countries are being considered for fiscal year 1992 that enables the 
President to request $285 million. In addition, what IMF equivalent 
program means to Treasury, and whether Treasury interprets that 
language to mean that a country that does not have an IMF or 
World Bank program can become eligible for debt relief. 

So a lot of us are going to be looking at this before now and full 
committee, and I hope that we can get some more answers. And I 
thank the members for their time. 

Mr. BEREUTER. Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. And Mr. Feighan cannot change his vote, but 

Mr. Bereuter is recognized.
Mr. BEREUTER. Mr. Chairman, on the list of information that we 

need, would it not be possible for us to receive the information on 
the countries that might be considered for debt next year as a pri
vate communication to the members? That is information that we 
would not want to share in public. It would be disadvantageous for 
the results that would come. And the rest of it, it seems could 
come. 

Mr. GEJDENSON. That, I think is helpful, without any question.
But also, we have got to justify this before the American taxpayers
who are sitting there watching defense plants and bases closed 
around their own states to save money, and yet there are no pro
grams to help those defense workers. 

Mr. BEREUTER. I think that the members should have it. 
Mr. GEJDENSON. I agree with that completely. But I think that 

we need to go that extra step to convince the American people why 
we are involved in these programs and not a lot of programs to 
affect people at home. 
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With that, the committee is adjourned. We thank the members 

for their time. 
[Whereupon, at 1:47 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.] 



AFPENDIX 1
 
On April 18, 1991, the House Foreign Affairs
 

subcommittee on International Economic Policy and Trade
 
marked up and ordered to be reported the Subcommittee's

recommendations for amendments to the Foreign Assistance Act.
 
The following is the report language to accompany those
 
amendments.
 

Private Sector Revolving Fund
 

Section 108(j) states that A.I.D. is prohibited from issuing
 
new loans or guarantees through the Private Sector Revolving

Fund after September 30, 1991. This provision reflects the
 
conclusion of the Subcommittee on International Economic
 
Policy and Trade that A.I.D. has failed, despite repeated

expressions of concern by the Subcommittee, to substantially

address the issues presented to this subcommittee in a 1988
 
General Accounting Office Report. That report concluded the
 
following: the Fund (1) did not have a data base that
 
accurately projected cash flows; (2) lacked adequate

financial statements; (3) lacked a loss reserve account; and
 
(4) had inadequate procedures for converting loan reflows
 
into U.S. securities. While A.I.D. has made some improvements

in these areas, the Agency has not implemented an accurate
 
data base, thereby making any assessment of this program all
 
the more difficult. A.I.D. estimated that it would take
 
another two years to obtain hard data.
 

In addition, the G.A.O. made a number of suggestions to

improve the program including, (1) increasing the involvement
 
of field missions; (2) establishing a policy of maximum
 
collateral requirements as a condition for PSRF loans and
 
guarantees; and (3) identifying options for encouraging bank

lending based on project performance (vs. collateral).

Currently, none of these suggestions have been adopted by

A.I.D. In addition, participating banks are not required to
 
provide a loan or guarantee to a new client.
 

The Subcommittee fails to see how this program, as it is

currently administered, enhances development. The
 
Subcommittee, therefore, recommends that the authority to
 
distribute future loans,.guarantees or technical assistance
 
be terminated.
 

Previous Page Plk-nk
 



238 

Housing and Urban Development Guarantee Program
 

Section 221(a), which sets forth findings and policy, is
 
virtually identical to section 221 in current law, except
 
that the concept of "shelter" has been broadened to "urban
 
services". This language reflects the Subcommittee's
 
awareness that human settlements may require urban services
 
such as sewage and irrigation systems for safe habitation.
 

Section 221(b) authorizes the President to issue guarantees,
 
and section 221(c) authorizes the issuance of regulations
 
related to eligible lenders and terms of the guarantees.
 
These two sections repeat the language of 222(a) of current
 
law, with the addition of the codification of the current
 
practise that guarantees shall cover one hundred percent of
 
principal and interest.
 

Section 221(d) outlines the specific types of shelter and
 
urban services authorized to be provided under this
 
legislation. This language is virtually identical to 222(b)
 
of current law, except that the focus on "shelter" has been
 
expanded to include "urban services." Again, this language
 
reflects the Subcommittee's awareness that human settlements
 
may require urban services such as sewage and irrigation
 
systems for safe habitation.
 

Section 221(e) instructs the President to prescribe the
 
maximum interest rate to the eligible investor. This section
 
is similar to 223(f) of current law.
 

Section 221(f) raises to $50 million the face value of
 
guarantees issued in any fiscal year to any one country. This
 
s an increase from $25 million set in section 223(j) of
 

current law.
 

Section 221(g) raises the average face value of guarantees
 
issued under this section in any fiscal year to $25 million.
 
This is an increase from $15 million set in section 223(j) of
 
current law.
 

Section 221(h) raises to $3.4 billion the maximum total
 
principal of guarantees outstanding at any one time from the
 
$2.558 billion set in section 222(a) of current law.
 

Section 221(i) states that the total principal amount of
 
Vuarantees issued for any fiscal year shall be comparable to
 
the amount issued in 1984 ($150 million). This language is
 
similar to 222(k).of current law.
 

Section 221(j) states that new guarantees shall be issued
 
only to the amount covered by an appropriation act.
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Section 221(k) prohibits the payment of any claim arising due
to fraud or misrepresentation. This language is virtually
identical to section 223(h) of current law.
 

Section 221(1) authorizes the Administrator to charge fees
for guarantees. This language is similar to section 223(a) of 
current law. 

Section 221(m) permits the administering agency to use the
fees collected under this section to be used to partially
offset the cost of guarantee cIligations. Fees were formally
used to offset the cost of admisistering the guarantee
 
program.
 

Section 221(n) directs that fees collected, earnings on those
fees, and other income be placed in a finance account to be
maintained by the Treasury, which may be used for the
purposes specified in section 221(m). 
The finance account
replaces the revolving fund in section 223(b) in current law.
This reflects compliance with the Federal Credit Reform Act
of 1990 which eliminates all revolving funds maintained by

the Treasury.
 

Section 221(o) establishes the order to draw upon funds to
discharge liabilities under this section. This language is
similar to section 223(c) of current law.
 

Section 221(p) pledges the full faith and credit of the
United States for guarantees issued under this section and is
virtually identical to section 223(d) of current law.
 
Section 221(q)(1) authorizes the appropriation of $2 million
in fiscal year 1992 and $8.1 million in fiscal year 1993 to
pay for the cost of guarantee obligations under this section
with a face value of $150 million for each fiscal year. The
rather large increase to $8.1 million for fiscal year 1993
reflects the fact that the Agency will be operating in
countries which are a greater credit risk. Through
consultations with A.I.D., 
it is expected that the Agency
shall distribute guarantees as follows: 
for fiscal year 1992,
$10 million for Portugal, $1 million for Morocco, $9 million
for Tunisia, $25 million for Pakistan, $25 million for
Indonesia, $25 million for India, $5 million for Paraguay,
$25 million for Czechoslovakia and $25 million for Turkey;
for fiscal year 1993, $10 million for Portugal, $10 million
for Morocco, $10 million for Tunisia, $25 million for India,
$10 million for Paraguay, $10 million for Chile, $25 million
for Hungary, $25 million for Thailand and an additioial $25
million for either India or Indonesia.
 

Section 221(q)(2) authorizes the appropriation of
administration expenses of $8.5 million for each fiscal year

1992 and 1993.
 
Section 221(r) states that the term eligible investor has the
same meaning that term is given in section 238 of current
 
law.
 

Section 221(s) extends the operating authority of thissection to September 30, 1993.
 

Section 221(t) states that guarantees issued under previous
guarantee authority shall continue subject tO the provisionsof law applicable to those guarantees. This language issimilar to 223 (g)of current law.
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The OverseasPrivate Investment Corvoration
 

Although in a new, reorganized format, the policy
 
provisions for the Overseas Private Investment Corporation
 
(OPIC) are left largely unchanged.
 

To comply with the Federal Credit Reform Act, the
 
Overseas Private Investment Corporation must receive
 
appropriated funds to cover the estimated subsidy cost of its
 
credit programs. This legislation reflects the Subcommittee's
 
concern that the integrity of the Overseas Private Investment
 
Corporation as a self-sustaining agency would be
 
unnecessarily undermined had it placed OPIC on budget.
 
Further, the Subcommittee does not believe that the Congress
 
should appropriate scarce foreign assistance resources to an
 
Agency with over $1.4 billion in assets. Therefore, wherever
 
appropriate, the Subcommittee has authorized OPIC to use
 
funds available in its non-credit revolving fund account to
 
cover estimated subsidy costs of its credit programs and its
 
administrative expenses.
 

Section 231, which establishes the Overseas Private
 
Investment Corporation and outlines the general
 
administrative guidelines for OPIC operations, is virtually
 
identical to this section in current law. These guidelines
 
include provisions which require that OPIC consider the
 
development impact of each project; give preferential
 
treatment to investment in countries with per capita income
 
of $1091 or less in 1989; and restrict its activities in
 
countries with per capita incomes of $4,734 or more in 1989.
 

Section 232(a) states that the Treasury will hold OPIC's
 
stock. This language updates language in this section of
 
current law by striking the reference to OPIC's start-up
 
capital and initial issuance of stock.
 

Section 232(b),(c),(d) and (e) establishes the structure of
 
the organization including a Board of Directors, a President,
 
an Executive Vice President and the hiring of staff. The
 
language is similar to section 233 of current law.
 

Section 233(a) authorizes OPIC to issue investment insurance
 
against inconvertibility, expropriation, civil strife, and
 
business interruption; authorizes OPIC to share liabilities
 
with foreign governments and multilateral organizations;
 
prohibits OPIC from issuing insurance to a single investor
 
for more than 10% of its maximum contingent liability; and
 
requires OPIC to submit a report to Congress each time it
 
proposes to expand the type of risk insured under "civil
 
strife" or "business interruption" coverage. This section is
 
virtually identical to section 234 (a) of current law.
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Section 233(b) authorizes OPIC.to issue investment, guaranteesand sets criteria under which the guaranteescan be issued.It is virtually identical to section 234(b) of current law.
 

Section 233(c) authorizes OPIC's direct loan program and
eliminates some language referring to restrictions on loans
for mineral extraction. This section is similar to language

found in section 234(c) of current law.
 

Section 233(d) authorizes OPIC to engage in various
investment encouragement activities and eliminates some
language limiting expenditures financed by OPIC during any
fiscal year on surveys for nonfuel mineral resources. The
section retains language restricting OPIC in the financing of
surveys to ascertain the existence, location, quality or
quantity of oil or gas resources. The language is similar to

section 234(d) of current law.
 

Section 233(e) authorizes OPIC to administer special
assistance programs. it is virtually identical to section
 
234(e) of current law.
 

Section 233(f) authorizes the Corporation to contract withinsurance companies or financial institutions, to enter intorisk sharing agreements, and to issue reinsurance. This Isection is virtually identical to section 234(f) of current
 
law.
 

Section 233(g) authorizes OPIC to administer an oquity
finance program under which the Corporation may invest in or
otherwise acquire up to 30% equity in an entity for the
purpose of providing capital for any project which is
consistent with the provisions of this title. OPIC must
dispose of any equity interest it may acquire within a 10
year period. This section eliminates the language in section
234(g) of current law labeling this program a "pilot"
program, and also deletes language restricting the
Corporation to acquiring equity in only Sub-Saharan Africa
 
and the Caribbean.
 

Section 233A(a) authorizes OPIC to enter into cooperative
programs with the private political risk industry and is
virtually identical to section 234A(a) of current law.
Section 233A(b) mandates the establishment of a private
sector advisory group to provide assistance in implementing
the cooperative programs under this section. This provision
is similar to language found in section 234A(b) of current
 
law.
 

Section 234(a), directing the Corporation to prepare a
development impact profile for each project it insures,
finances or reinsures, is virtually identical to section
 
239(h) of current law.
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Section 234(b) directs OPIC to give preferential treatment to
 
projects involving U.S. small business. This section is
 
virtually identical to section 240 and section 231(e) of
 
current law.
 

Section 234(c) prohibits the Corporation from insuring,
 
reinsuring or financing any project deemed to pose an
 

environmental health or safety hazard, or to threaten a
 

national park or other environmentally protected areas. It
 

also requires that OPIC's projects be consistent with the
 
objective of resource sustainable development outlined in
 
sections 117, 118 and 119 of the Act, that OPIC prepare
 
environmental impact statelLents for each project, and that
 
OPIC notify foreign government officials of applicable World
 
Bank and U.S. standards and guidelines relating to any
 
project. This section is virtually identical to sections
 
231(n), 237(m) and 239(g) of current law.
 

Section 234(d) restricts OPIC's activities to countries
 
taking steps to adopt laws protecting the rights of workers.
 
This language is similar to section 231A of current law.
 
The Subcommittee eliminates language restricting OPIC's
 
activities in the People's Republic of China since there is
 
similar language already in the Act and in P.L. 101-246
 
(Title IX, sections 901 and 902 of the Foreign Relations
 
Authorization Act, Fiscal Years 1990 and 1991) restricting
 
OPIC's activities if human and/or labor rights violations
 
exist.
 

Section 234(e) retains section 231(i) of current law which
 
prohibits OPIC from involvement in a country deemed to be a
 
gross violator of human rights, unless the President
 
determines that such involvement is in the national interest.
 

Section 234(f) prohibits OPIC from insuring, reinsuring or
 
financing an investment that would cause an investor to
 
reduce his workforce in the United States or that would cause
 
a reduction in overall U.S. employment. This section is
 
virtually identical to section 231(k) and (1) of current law.
 

Section 234(g) prohibits OPIC from involvement in any
 
investment subject to performance requirements. This language
 
is identical to section 231(m) of current law.
 

Section 234(h) prohibits the payment of any claims to, and
 
bars from OPIC eligibility for 5 years, any investor found
 
guilty under the Securities Exchange Act or the Foreign
 
Corrupt Practices Act in connection with an ePIC-supported
 
Investment. This language is similar to language found in
 
section 237(1) of current law.
 

Section 234(1) prohibits OPIC from making any-payment for
 
losses incurred due to fraud or misrepresentation. The
 
language is identical to section 237(g) of current law.
 



243 

Section 234(j) mandates that OPIC will hold an annual public

hearing to for individuals to present views as to whether or
 
not the Corporation is carrying out its activities in

accordance to this Act. It is identical to section 231A(b) of
 
current law.
 

Section 235(a) sets a maximum contingent liability of $7.5

billion for insurance and of $2.5 billion for guarantees.

This section also authorJizes OPIC to draw up to $1.5 million

from its non-credit account revolving fund to pay for the

estimated subsidy cost of a $375 loan program for fiscal year

1992. This enables OPIC to retain its integrity as a

self-sustaining entity while at the same time freeing up

funds in the foreign assistance account.
 

Section 235(b) authorizes OPIC to draw up to $4.8 million

from its non-credit revolving fund to pay for the estimated

subsidy cost for a $50 million direct loan program. This

enables OPIC to retain its integrity as a self-sustaining

entity while at the same time freeing up funds in the foreign

assistance account.
 

Section 235(c) establishes a revolving fund for the equity

finance program authorized by section 233(g) and allows a one

time transfer of funds from the Corporations's non credit

revolving fund account of $35 million to finance this
 
program.
 

Section 235(d) directs OPIC to maintain appropriate reserves

against possible insurance liabilities. This language

eliminates the language in section 235(c) of current law
 
which directs OPIC to maintain guarantee reserves. The
 
guarantee reserves are maintained by the Treasury pursuant to
 
the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990.
 

Section 235(e) outlines the payments of funds to discharge

liabilities and is similar to section 235(d) of current law.

This section adds new language that states that any payments

made to cover liabilities from the guarantee program shall be
 
drawn from the Treasury, pursuant to the Federal Credit
 
Reform Act of 1990.
 

Section 235(f) authorizes the appropriation of funds to

replenish the insurance reserves. This language eliminates
 
the language authorizing appropriations to replenish the
 
guarantee reserves in section 235(f) of current law. This

section reflects compliance with-the Federal Credit Reform
 
Act of 1990.
 

Section 235(g) authorizes OPIC to issue obligations for

purchase by the Secretary of the Treasury to discharge its
 
liabilities when necessary. This language is similar to

language in section 235(f) of current law.
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Section'235(h) authorizes OPIC to draw up to $12 million from
 
its non-credit account revolving fund to cover its
 
administrative costs of its direct loan and loan guarantee
 
program for fiscal year 1992.
 

Section 236 amends the section in current law to reflect
 
compliance with the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990. This
 
new language authorizes OPIC to maintain revenues and income
 
transferred to OPIC from its non-credit activities only.
 

Section 237(a) authorizes OPIC to support projects in any
 
less developed friendly country which has signed a bilateral
 
trade agreement with respect to OPIC activity. It is
 
virtually'identical.this same section in current law.
 

Section 237(b) directs OPIC to ensure that the interests of
 
the Corporation are adequately protected. This language is
 
virtually identical to the same section in current law.
 

Section 237(c) pledges the full faith and credit of the
 
United States for OPIC guarantees and is virtually identical
 
to the same section in current law.
 

Section 237(d)(1) permits the charging of fees for OPIC
 
services. This-language is identical to language contained in
 
this same section in current law.
 

Section 237(d)(2) states that fees paid for project specific
 
transactions relating to credit programs shall be paid out of
 
the appropriate financing account maintained by the Treasury
 
pursuant to the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990.
 

Section 237(d)(3) states that fees paid for project specific
 
transactions associated with non-credit programs shall be
 
available for obligation for the purposes for which they were
 
collected.
 

Section 237(e) limits OPIC insurance, reinsurance and
 
guarantees to 20 years and is virtually identical to the
 
language contained in this same section of current law.
 

Section 237(f) outlines the amount-of compensation OPIC may
 
pay on its insurance, reinsurance or guarantees. This
 
language is virtually identical to language contained in this
 
same section of current law.
 

Section 237(g) limits the extent of OPIC insurance,
 
reinsurance or guarantees of investments in foreign banks or
 
financial institutions. This language is identical to the
 
language contained in section 237(h) of.current law.
 

Section 237(h) authorizes the Corporation to arbitrate claims
 
arising from its programs and is virtually identical to
 
section 237(i) of current law.
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Section 237(1) states that each OPIC contract shall be

presumed to be in compliance with statue and is virtually

identical to section 237(j) of current law.
 

Section 237(j) permits OPIC to support projects in

Yugoslavia, Poland and Hungary. This provision eliminates

language in section 239(f) of current law permitting OPlC to
operate in the People's Republic of China notwithstanding any

other legislation.
 

Section 238(a) establishes the Corporation in the District of
Columbia and is virtually identical to section 239(a) of
 
current law.
 

Section 238(b) provides for an annual independent audit of
OPIC and for audits by the Comptroller General when necessary

or by Congressional request. This language is similar to

language contained in section 239(c) of current law.
 
Section 238(c) delineates OPIC's corporate powers and is
virtually identical to section 239(d) of current law.
 

Section 238(d) authorizes investigations by the Inspector
General and is similar to section 239(e) of current law.
 

Section 238(e) extends tax exempt status to OPIC and is
virtually identical to section 239(j) of current law.
 
Section 238(f) directs OPIC to publish its guidelines and is

similar to section 239(k) of current law.
 

Section 239(a) directs OPIC to submit an annual report to
Congress and is similar to section 240A(a) of current law.
 
Section 239(b) mandates that each annual report (pursuant to
section 239(a)) shall contain a projection of the aggregate
U.S. employment effects of all OPIC projects. This language
is similar to language found in section 240A(b) of current
 
law.
 

Section 239(c) requires OPIC to maintain information on its
projects and their employment and development effects. This
section is virtually identical to section 240A(d) of current
 
law.
 

Section 239(d) directs OPIC to include in each annual report
a review of its cooperative programs with the private
political risk insurance industry and is virtually identical
to language contained in section 240A(e) of current law.
 

Section 239(e) protects certain information from pubic
disclosure and is virtually identical to section 240A(f) of
 
current law.
 
Section 240 defines certain terms used in this.Act and is
similar to section 238 of current law.
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Trade and Development Agency
 

The Subcommittee makes a number of changes to the Trade 
and Development Program. The Subcommittee recommends changing 
the name of the entity to the Trade and Development Agency 
which will act as an independent agency under the foreign
policy guidance of the Department of State. The Subcommittee 
also expands the mandate of the Trade and Development Agency 
to include preliminary engineering design studies. 

The Subcommittee recommends increasing the funding for
 
the Agency to $58 million in fiscal year 1992 (the Budget

Committee provides $58 million for fiscal year 1992) and a
 
modest increase of $12 million for fiscal year 1993. The
 
Trade and Development Agency estimates a $70 return for every
 
one dollar expended. By increasing the funding, the
 
Subcommittee is demonstrating its continued strong support
 
for this program.
 

Section 661(a) establishes the TradG and Development Agency
 
as an independent agency under the foreign policy guidance of
 
the Secretary of State. This section also states the purpose

of the Trade and Development Agency is to promote United
 
States private sector participation in development projects

in friendly developing and middle-income countries. The
 
language establishing the Agency is virtually identical to
 
section 661(b)(1) of current law. The statement of purpose is
 
new.
 

Section 661(b)(1) authorizes the Director of the Trade and
 
Development Agency to work with friendly countries, by

supporting feasibility studies, engineering design and other
 
activities related to development projects which provide

opportunities to promote U.S. exports.
 

Section 661(b)(2) authorizes the use of funds to support

feasibility studies, engineering design, and training

activities for bilateral and multilateral projects in order
 
to promote U.S. goods and services for export. This section
 
is similar to section 661(a) of current law, except that it
 
has been expanded to include engineering design. Grants for
 
engineering design studies are already offered by our major
 
competitors.
 

Section 661(b)(3) directs the Trade and Development Agency to
 
work with other Federal departments in an effort to
 
disseminate information on Agency projects to the private
 
sector. This section is virtually identical to the language

in section 661(b)(3) of current law.
 

Section 661(b)(4) authorizes the use of funds under this
 
section notwithstanding any other provision of law. This
 
language is based on language In section 661(a) of current
 
law.
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Section 661(c) establishes at the head of the Trade and
 
Development Agency, a Director to be appointed by the
 
President, by and with the advice and consent of the Senate.
 
This provision is virtually identical to section 661(b)(2) of
 
current law. This section also authorizes the hiring of four
 
employees without regard to civil services regulations. This
 
provision is new. 

Section 661(d) retains section 661(b)(4) of current law which
 
requires the Trade and Development Agency to submit an annual
 
report to Congress concerning its activities.
 

Section 661(e) directs the Director to establish an advisory

board, to include representatives of the private sector,

which will make recommendations to the Trade and Development

Agency. This section is virtually identical to section 661(c)

of current law.
 

Section 661(f) directs the Inspector General of the Agency

for International Development to conduct a thorough

investigation of the Trade and Development Agency to promote

efficiency and prevent fraud or abuse. The Inspector General
 
is to be under the general supervision of the Director of the

Trade and Development Agency with respect to review of that

Agency's programs. This section is not in current law.
 

Section 661(g) authorizes to be appropriated $58 million in
 
fiscal year 1992, and $70 million in fiscal year 1993. Of the
 
amounts to appropriated for fiscal years 1992 and 1993, $10
 
million shall remain available until expended.
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Industrial Cooperation Projects in China and Tibet
 

This new title, offered by Mr. Miller as an amendment to
 
the Foreign Assistance Act in Subcommittee mark up,
 
establishes a set of principles for businesses to voluntarily
 
abide by when conducting business in China and Tibet. These
 
principles include the creation of a working environment
 
which permits free speech, association, and press and the
 
establishment of a safe, environmentally sound workplace
 
which prohibits the use of goods make by forced labor in the
 
manufacturing process. The State Department will submit an
 
annual report on whether or not U.S. companies are in
 
compliance with the principles. Those companies not in
 
compliance would be ineligible for export marketing support
 
from the U.S. government.
 

Section 1. Statement of Principles
 

Section 1(a) Purpose: This newly created title establishes
 
principles to govern the conduct of industrial cooperation
 
projects of United States nationals in the People's Republic
 
of China (PRC) and Tibet.
 

Section 1(b) Principles: It is the sense of Congress that
 
United States nationals operating in the PRC or Tibet should
 
adhere to the following principles:(1) Suspend the use of all
 
goods mined, produced or manufactured by convict labor or
 
forced labor and refuse to use forced labor in the industrial
 
cooperation project. (2) Seek to ensure that political views
 
or activities, religious views, sex, ethnic or national
 
background, will not prohibit hiring nor affect the status or
 
terms of employment in the industrial cooperation project.
 
(3) Ensure safe methods of production in industrial
 
cooperation projects that do not harm workers, the
 
neighboring populations or the surrounding environment.
 
(4) Strive to use business enterprises that are not
 
controlled by the PRC or its agents as partners in the
 
industrial cooperation project. (5) Prohibit any military
 
presence on the premises of the industrial cooperation
 
project. (6) Undertake to promote freedom of association and
 
assembly among employees and protest any infringement by the
 
Chinese government of those freedoms to the appropriate
 
authorities and the International Labor Organization. (7)
 
Urge the Chinese government to release a list of all
 
individuals arrested since March 1989, end detention and
 
torture, and provide international observers access to places
 
of detention in the PRC and Tibet and to trials of prisoners
 
arrested in connection with pro-democracy events of April
 
through June 1989 in the PRC and demonstrations which have
 
taken place in Tibet since 1987. (8) Discourage political
 
indoctrination programs from taking place on the premises of
 
the operation. (9) Promote freedom of expression orally, in
 
writing or in print, in the form of art, or through any
 
media.
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Section I(c) Promotion of Principles by Other Nations: TheSecretary of State shall forward a copy of the principles to
members of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and
Development and encourage them to promote similar principles.
 

Section 2. Registration Requirement
 

Section 2(a) U.S. nationals conducting industrial cooperation

projects in the PRC or Tibet will register with the Secretary
of State and indicate whether the principles listed in

Section 1 will be adhered to.
 
Section 2(b) The registration requirement takes effect six
 
months after enactment of this Act.
 

Section 3. Reporting Requirements
 

Section 3(a) Report: A U.S. national conducting an industrial

cooperation project in the PRC or Tibet will report to the
Sate Department describing their adherence to the principles

listed in Section 1. The report will be submitted 1 year
after the date the national registers under Section 2 and

annually thereafter.
 

Section 3(b) Review of Report: The Secretary of State shall
review the report submitted under subsection (a) and
determine whether the U.S. national submitting the report is
adhering to the principles set forth in Section 1.
 

Section 3(c) Annual Report: The Secretary of State will
submit a report to the Congress and the Secretariat of the
Organization for Cooperation and Development describing the

level of adherence to the principles by U.S. nationals.
report will be submitted two years after the date of the 

The
 
enactment of this Act and annually thereafter.
 

Section 4. Export Marketing Support
 

Section 4(a) Support: Departments and agencies of the U.S.
 
may only intercede with a foreign government or foreign
national regarding export marketing activity in the PRC or
Tibet on behalf of a U.S. national if the U.S. national

adheres to the principles set forth in Section 1.
 

Section 4(b) Type of Contact: "Intercede with a foreign
government or foreign national" includes any contact by an
officer or employee of the U.S. with officials of any foreign

government or foreign national involving sales of a good,
service, or technology to the PRC or.Tibet. 
The term does
not include government-to-government trade negotiations

intended to resolve trade issues which may affect U.S.
nationals who do not adhere to the principles set forth in
 
Section 1.
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Section 5. Definitions
 

(1) The term "adhere to principles" refers to agreeing
 
to implement the principles set forth in Section 1,
 
implementing those principles in good faith, and reporting
 
accurately to the Department of State.
 

(2) An "industrial cooperation project" refers to
 
for-profit activity of a business operation which employs 
more than 25 individuals or has assets greater than $25,000 
in value. 

(3) "United States national" means (a) a citizen,
 
national, or permanent resident of the U.S. and (b) 
a
 
corporation, partnership, or other business association
 
organized under the laws of the U.S., any State, the District
 
of Columbia, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana
 
Islands, or any other territory or possession of the U.S.
 



Rport to Accompany HR. 964 
Enterprie for the AMin= Initiative 

BACKGROUND
 

The Subcommittee on-International Economic Policy and Trade together with the 
Western Henisphere Subcommittee held hearings on the President's Enterprise for 
the Americas initiative on July 18. 1990. September 27.1990 and February 27,199L 
Witnesses representing the departments of Treasury and State. the Enviionmental 
Protection Agency, the General Accounting Office. the Smithsonian Institution, the 
private sector and outside experts testified at these hearings. 

On April 17 and 18. 1991 the Subcommittees on International Economic Policy
and Trade and on Western Hemisphere Affairs met in open session to mark up H . 
964. a bill to implement the foreign aid provisions of the Enterprise for the 
Americas initiative. The subcommittees unanimously reported. by voice vote, a 
quorum being present, H.R. 964 as amended. 

SUBCOMMITTEE VIEWS 

The Subcommittees did not significantly alter the criteria for eligibility for 
foreign aid debt relief under the Enterprise initiative in order that the bill move on 
to the full Foreign Affairs Committee. 

The Subcommittees reviewed the implementation of the PL 480 provisions of the 
Enterprise initiative, signed into law last year as part of the 1990 Farm bill (S.2830 /
P.L. 101-624). The Subcommittees were extremely disappointed to learn that to date, 
nearly six months into the fiscal year, no country has yet been deemed eligible by
the Treasury Department for PL 480 debt relief. Moreover, according to the 
Treasury, only two or three countries may ever receive debt relief in fiscal year
1991. 

The text of H.R. 964 is nearly identical to the language in the 1990 Farm bill 
implementing the PL 480 provisions of the Enterprise initiative. Given the 
disappointing performance of that legislation, the Subcommittees havegrave doubts 
about using the same 1nguage for foreign aid debt relief in FY 92 and93. 
particularly with respect to the eligibility criteria.

The Subcommittees are concerned that the Treasury Department is interpreting 
the eligibility criteria inthe current Enterprise law for PL 480 debt relief too 
narrowly, despite the Congress's explicit instruction in the report accompanying
S.2830 not to do so. With respect to H.R. 964, it is the Subcommittees' intention that 
countries that do not have, and may never have had, I.M.F. or World Bank 
programs be considcred for debt relief if they have an economic program equivalent 
to an I.M.F. or World Bank program. 

The Subcommittees also have questions about the President's request of $285 
million in authorization for FY 92 and $182 million for FY 93 to implement the 
foreign aid provisions of the Enterprise initiative. It is the Subcommittees' view that 
it is the Administration's obligation to justify this expenditure over other, perhaps 
more pressing foreign aid requests that the Committee has under consideration. 
The Subcommittees expects this justification to include information on how many
and which countries are being actively considered for Enterprise debt relief in FY 92 
and FY 93 to the extent that the Administration was able to arrive at its 
authorization requests. 

Additional ififormation that has been requested by the Subcommittees on 
International Economic Policy and Trade and on Western Hemisphere Affairs 

46-816 0 - 91: ,-9 
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includes the following:
a) why only two countries may be eligible for debt relief under the Enterprise 

initiative mfiscal year 199L 
b) what, specifically. prevented other countries from being judged eligible by 

Treasury;
c) what countries are being considered for Enterprise debt relief in fiscal year 

1992 enabling the President to request 25 million; and 
d) what the term "IMF equivalent means to Treasury and whether Treasury 

interprets that language to mean that a country that does not have, and may never 
have had, an I.M.F. or World Bank program can become eligible for debt relief. 

It is the Subcommittees' view that it is essential that the Treasury provide this 
information prior to the Foreign Affairs Committee consideration of H.R. 964 in 
order that the Committee be able to make a reasoned judgement on the merits of 
this program. 
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Report to Accompany H.R. 1608
 
The Microenterprise Development Act of 1991
 

INTRODUCTION
 

On April 18, 1991 the Subcommittee on International-Economic
 
Policy and Trade marked up and ordered to-be reported a bill, the
 
Microenterprise Development Act of 1991. This bill formally

authorizes a microenterprise development program within the Agency

for International Development.
 

BACKGROUND
 

More than one billion people in the developing world are

living in poverty, with incomes of less than $370 per year.

According to the World Bank. mortality for children under age 5
 averages 121 per 1000 for duveloping countries, with nearly 40,000

children dying each day from malnutrition and disease.
 

The Subcommittee believes that the poor, and especially

women, can lead the fight against hunger and poverty through the

development of self-sustaining microenterprise projects. It is
an
 
unfortunate fact that women in poverty generally are less educated
 
and have less access to economic opportunity than their male
 
counterparts. Therefore, directly aiding women in the developing

world has a positive effect on family incomes, child nutrition,

and health and education.
 

Microenterprise development offers the opportunity for the
 poor to play a central role in undertaking strategies for small

scale, self-sustaining businesses that can bring them out of
 
poverty. The World Bank estimates that there are over 400 million
 
self-employed poor in the developing world and projects that, by
the year 2020, 95 percent of African workers will be employed in
 
the informal sector. For many people, the lack of credit creates
 
an obstacle to the development of self-sustaining enterprises.

Projects like the Grameen Bank of Bangladesh, the Badan Kredit

Kecamatan (BKK) in Indonesia, and ADEMI in the Dominican Republic

have been successful in promoting credit programs that have lent
 
money directly to the poor. Repayment rates in these programs are

often 95 percent or higher indicating that it is possible to "bank
 
on the poor."
 

The Subcommittee recognizes that the Agency for

International Development (A.I.D.) has been a leader in small and

microenterprise development for the past 20 years. The House
 
Foreign Affairs Committee and the Agency for International
 
Development first engaged in a dialogue regarding microenterprise

in 1987. At that time, Congressmen Edward Feighan (D-OH) and

Benjamin Gilman (R-NY) led an effort to amend section 313 of the
 
Foreign Assistance Act to authorize the provision of credit for

the poor in the developing world. (Both Members had introduced

free standing bills that same year.) This language was placed in
 
the 1988-89 Foreign Assistance Authorization which was never
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enaoted into law. Through subsequent appropriation acts, however, 
the Congress earmarked $50 million for fiscal year 1988 and $75 
million in fiscal years 1989, 1990 and 1991 for microenterprise
 
development. The Congress, through the Appropriations Committee.'
 
report language, also called upon the Agency for International
 
Development to take steps to ensure that its microenterprise
 
development activities included a credit component designed to
 
reach the poorest sector of the developing world.
 

In 1989, the Agency for International Development created the
 
Office of Small and Microenterprise Development within the Bureau
 
for Private Enterprise (now the Bureau for Asia and Private
 
Enterprise or A-PRE) to lead and coordinate the Agency's
 
microenterprise efforts. Because of a growing debate on the
 
effectiveness of A.I.D.'s implementation of its microenterprise
 
program, in October of 1989, Congressmen Gilman, Feighan, and
 
Senator DeConcini requested the General Accounting Office to
 
conduct an independent review of the microenterprise program.
 

The debate on A.I.D.'s microenterprise program centered on
 
three issues. First, poverty advocates and Private Voluntary
 
Organizations (P.V.O.s) argued that A.I.D. was targeting its
 
microenterprise program to the poor, but not the very poorest.
 

Secondly, it was charge that A.I.D. had not collected
 
adequate data on its microenterprise program. Because of this, it
 
was difficult to determine the population receiving credit,
 
therefore making it impossible to ascertain whether or not the
 
Agency was complying with congressional intent. In response to
 
congressional inquiries regarding compliance, A.I.D agreed to
 
investigate the development of a reporting system.
 

Third, the Congress, through report language in appropriation
 
acts, intended for A.I.D.'s average loan size to be less than
 
$300. The Agency's average loan size was above this target.

Generally speaking, small-dollar lending is seen as an indirect
 
yet effective way to ieach the very poor as only the poorest
 
sector would be interested in such small dollar loans.
 

In March 19S), the Agency for International Development

reported that now spending for microenterprise development was
 
$58,800,000 for 1988 and $83,3000,00 for 1989 and that the average
 
loan size for the credit component of the program averaged $325
 
for 1988 and $387 for 1989. However, less than 10 percent of the
 
spending for the 1989 program was for loans under $300.
 

In September of 1990, Congressman Gejdenson, Chairman of the
 
House Foreign Affairs Subcommittee on International Economic
 
Policy and Trade, held a hearing to review the implementation of
 
A.I.D.'s microenterprise progr4p.
 

The General Accounting OffiqeW (G.A.O.) interim report was 
presented in the form of testimony at the Subcommittee's September
1990 hearing. (The final repork, released in February, 1991, did*
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not differ substantially from the interim report.) The G.A.O.

indicated that data in A.1.D. Is March 1990 report was of 
"questionable validity" and that the Agency for International
 
Development did not have a system to track detailed information
 
concerning its microenterprise credit activities. Furthermore, the
 
General Accounting Office found that none of the three missions

that it visited targeted their microenterprise projects

specifically to women or to the poorest 20 percent of the
 
population, as recommended by Congress.
 

At the close of the September, 1990 hearing, Congressman

Feighan, noting the convergence of opinion between A.I.D. and the
 
P.V.0. community on the broad objectives of microenterprise
 
programs, called upon A.I.D and the P.V.O. community to engage in
 
a dialogue with the Subcommittee on how to move the debate on
 
microenterprise forward.
 

The draft legislation, now H.R. 1608, was the focus of a

second hearing in February, 1991. H.R. 1608 is the result of
 
extensive cooperation and consultation between the Congress, the
 
Agency for International Development, and the many private

organizations that implement microenterprise and poverty lending
 
programs. H.R. 1608 reflects the efforts of the Subcommittee to

understand the constraints facing A.I.D. in reaching the poorest

sector. The Subcommittee recognizes that access to credit alone
 
may not be approprL.te or sufficient for generating opportunities

for successful microenterprise development. The Subcommittee
 
embraces A.I.D.'s current four-pronged approach aimed at providing

credit, institutional strengthening, training and technical
 
assistance and policy reform. However, the Subcommittee believes
 
that "poverty-lending" should be an essential component of
 
A.I.D.'s overall microenterprise activities. Poverty lending is 
an
 
approach based on the idea that poor people themselves, when
 
provided with credit, can establish sustainable, income-generating

enterprises.
 

Within its general authority to conduct microenterprise

activities, the legislation calls upon A.I.D. to devote a portion

of its work to poverty lending activities. The legislation lays

out reasonable benchmarks for funding poverty lending activities
 
over the next two fiscal years. In Section 6(b)(1) of the bill,

A.I.D. is directed to disburse $20 million for loans of $300 or

less in fiscal year 1992 and $30 million in 1993. That leaves $65
 
million in fiscal year 1992 and $55 million in fiscal year 1993

for other microenterprise activities including loans greater than
 
$300.
 

The Subcommittee also agrees with A.I.D. and the poverty

lending community that reviewing. the aggregate of loans of $300 or
less is an imp3rfect mechanism to.ascertain whether or not A.I.D.
 
is able to address the microent rprise needs of the poorest of the
 
poor. However, in the absence o .amore precise measurement, it
 
was agreed among the organizatins'that implement this program

(financial intermediaries). tha this measurement was a workable 

http:approprL.te
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alternative for accomplishing the objectives of the legislation.

The two-tiered credit component in the legislation should be

viewed am a compromise between A.I.D. and those who implement

poverty lending programs.
 

The Subcommittee is also pleased that the Agency for
International Development has indicated its willingness to explore

the idea of holding a series of regional workshops on

microenterprise development. The Subcommittee encourages the

Agency to include in these workshops opportunities for training

Agency personnel and United States and indigenous private and
voluntary organizations in activities designed to reach the
 
poorest of the poor.
 

The Subcommittee is aware that A.I.D. did not want a formal,
congressional authorization for its microenterprise development

program. The Administrator of A-PRE, Henrietta Holsman Fore, note
 
at the February 1991 hearing that "given A.I.D.'s strong

microenterprise program and continued commitment to

microenterprise, I question the need for any legislation on

microenterprise." That comment left the Subcommittee hopeful that
A.I.D.,s upcoming Action Plan would incorporate the many agreed

upon goals from the above-referenced consultations.
 

The Subcommittee regrets to report that the Action Plan does
 
not specifically address the needs of the poorest of the poor,

contributing to concerns by Members of the Subcommittee and
 
poverty advocates as to A.I.D.'s commitment to work with and for

the poorest among us. The Subcommittee believes, therefore, that
this legislation is not only useful, but necessary to achieve the

goal of delivering the potential of economic empowerment through

microenterprise.
 

In the future, the Subcommittee hopes that discussions

regarding microenterprise will move away from the debate on loan
size and move ahead to a discussion of the global economic
 
policies of a growing informal sector.
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Following lasa summary of.the provisions of the!bill reported
by the House Foreign Affairs Subcommittee on Znternational 
Economic Policy and Trade. 

Section 1. Short Title
 

Section one states that the title be cited as the 
"Microenterprise Development Act of 1991."
 

Section 2. Findings
 

This section provides the findings of the Subcommittee which 
support the need for a microenterprise development program. 

Section 3. Purposes.
 

This section outlines the three essential purposes of this 
bill. (1) to provide for the continuation and expansion of the 
commitment of the Agency for International Development to 
microenterprise Development; (2) to increase the amount of
 
assistance going to credit activities designed to reach the
 
poorest sector in developing countries; and (3) to increase the
 
percentage of credit assistance to women beneficiaries.
 

Section 4. Assistance for Microenterprise Development.
 

Section 4 (a) formally authorizes a Microenterprise
 
Development Program within the Agency for International
 
Development and outlines the four components which should be
 
included in such a program: (1) building institutional capacity,
 
(2) providing credit, (3) furnishing training and technical
 
assistance, and (4) policy reform.
 

Section 4 (b) outlines the criteria by which the Agency for
 
International Development shall determine the financial
 
intermediaries that will receive assistance from A.I.D. to
 
implement the Agency's microenterprise program.
 

Section 4 (c) directs the Agency to target a significant
 
portion of its funding to intermediaries which are most able to
 
address the credit requirements of the poorest of the poor and
 
women.
 

Section 4 (d) requires the Agency to include in its annual 
report its strategy for increasing'acCess of women in developing
countries to microenterprise activities. The Agency is required to
 
consult with the Office of Women in Development within A.I.D. in
 
developing this strategy.
 

Section 5. Funding Sources.
 

Section five enumerates the possible sources of funds for the
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Agency's microenterprise program. The provisions regarding local
 
currency comport with the legislation within P.L. 480.
 

Section 6. Funding Levels for Fiscal Years 1992 and 1993.
 

Section 6 (a)authorizes $85 million for each fiscal year
 
1992 and 1993 for the Agency for International Development to
 
carry out its microenterprise development program.
 

Section 6 (b) directs the Agency to provide at least $20
 
million in fiscal year 1992 and at least $30 million in fiscal
 
year 1993 for loans of $300 or less, or for institutions that, in
 
turn, provide loans in this range. The Subcommittee believes that
 
reviewing the aggregate of loans of $300 or less is an imperfect
 
mechanism to ascertain whether or not A.I.D. is able to address
 
the microenterprise needs of the poorest of the poor. However, in
 
the absence of a more precise measurement, it was agreed among the
 
organizations that implement this program (financial
 
intermediaries) that this measurement was a workable alternative
 
for accomplishing the objectives of the legislation.
 

Section 6 (c) states that local currency may be used in place
 
of an equivalent amount of dollars.
 

Section 7. Monitoring of Microenterprise Assistance Activities.
 

Requires the Agency for International Development to develop
 
a monitoring system to evaluate the Agency's effectiveness in
 
achieving the goals of the legislation outlined in section 3.
 

Section 8. Reports to Congress.
 

Directs the Administrator of the Agency for International
 
Development to report to the Congress annually on the Agency's
 
microenterprise activities and on the Agency's strategy to provide
 
credit to the poorest of the poor.
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4/29/91 

RECOMMENDATIONSOF THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC
 

POLICY ANDTRaDE FOR THE FOREIGN AID BILL
 

1 SEC. PRIVATE SECTOR REVOLVING FND. 

2 Section 108 of the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961 is 

3 amended by adding at the end the followings 

4 (j)The authority under this section to furnish
 

5 assistance or 
issue loans or guarantees termlnates on
 
"
6 September 30, 1991. .
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I SEC. _ HOUSING GUANANTMS.
 

2 Title III of chapter 2 of part I of the Foreign 

3 Assistance Act of 1961 in amended by striking sections 221, 

4 222, 222A, and 223 and inserting the followings 

5 **SEC. 221. HOUSING AND URBAN D V PN GUARAMTE PROGRAM. 

6 "(a) FINDINGS AND POLICY.--The Congress finds that-

7 "(1) shelter and other essential urban development 

8 services are among the most fundamental of human needs; 

9 "(2) while most financing for urban services must 

10 come from domestic resources, carefully designed programs
 

11 involving United States capital and expertise can
 

12 increase the availability of domestic financing for
 

13 improved shelter and related services for low-income
 

14 people by demonstrating to local entrepreneurs and
 

15 institutions that providing urban services can be
 

16 financially viable;
 

17 "(3) particular attention should be given to
 

18 programs which will support pilot projects for low-cost
 

19 shelter and other urban services or which will have a
 

20 maximum demonstration impact on local institutions and
 

21 national policy; and
 

22 "(4) the long run goal of all such programs should
 

23 be to develop domestic capabilities and to stimulate
 

24 local credit institutions to make available domestic
 

25 capital and other management, and technological resources
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2 

1 required for.effective programs and policies relating to 

2 low-cost shelter and other urban services. 

3 t(b) GUARANTEE AUTHORITY,--To carry-out the-policies 

4 expressed in subsection (a), the President is authorized to
 

5 issue guarantees to eligible investors assuring against
 

6 losses incurred in connection.with loans made for projects
 

7 that meet the criteria set forth in subsection (a) and that
 

8 promote the policy set forth in in section 102. Each
 

9 guarantee issued under this subsection shall guarantee 100
 

10 percent of the principal and interest payable on such loans.
 

11 "(c) TERMS-AND CONDITIONS.--The President may issue
 

12 regulations from time to time with regard to-

13 ..(1) the terms and conditions on which guarantees
 

14 will be issued under this section; and
 

15 ".(2) the eligibility of lenders.
 

16 "(d) Focus OF ACTIVITIES,--Activities carried out under.
 
17 this section shall be directed to the shelter and urban
 

18 services needs of the poor, including-

19 (1) projects which provide-

20 (A) improved home sites to poor families on
 

21 which to build shelter, and
 

22 - (B) related servicesl
 

23 (2)projects comprised of expandable core shallar
 

24 units on serviced sites;
 

25 "(3) slum upgrading projects ,designed to conserve
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1 and improve existling shelteri 

2 (4)shelter projects for low income people designed 

3 for demonstration or Institution building purposes; 

4 * (5) community facilities and services in support of 

5 projects authorized under this section to Improve urban 

6 services; and
 

7 1.(6) other urban services of particular importance
 

8 to the needs of the poor.
 

9 ..(e) INTEREST RATE ON GUARANTEED INVESTNENTS.--zn the
 

10 case of any loan investment guaranteed under this section,
 

11 the President shall prescribe the maximum rate of interest
 

12 allowable to the eligible Investor. The maximum allowable
 

13 rate of interest under this subsection shall be prescribed by
 

14 the President as of the date the project covered by the
 

15 investment is officially authorized and, pribr to the
 

16 execution of the contract, the President may amend such rate
 

17 at his discretion, consistent with the provisions of this.
 

18 subsection.
 

.19 "(f) LIMITATION ON GUARANTEES FOR EACH COUNTRY,--The
 

20 face value of guarantees issued under this section in any
 

21 fiscal year with respect to any country may not exceed
 

22 $50,000,000.
 

23 (g)CEILING ON AVERAGE FACE VALUE.--The average face
 

24 value of guarantees issued under this section in any fiscal
 

25 year may not exceed $25,000,000. 
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1 (h) GUARANTEE CIILING.--The total principal amount of
 

2 guarantees issued under this section (or under the former
 

3 guarantee authority of section 222 oL this Act or predecessor
 

4 housing guarantee authorities) which are outstanding at any
 

5 one time may not exceed $3,400,000,000.
 

6 (1)MAINTENANCE OF PROGRAM LEVEL.--The principal amount
 

7 of guarantees issued under this section for,each fiscal year
 

8 shall be comparable to the total principal amount of such
 

9 guarantees issued for fiscal year 1984, subject to dollar
 

10 limitations on the issuance of guarantees under this section
 

11 which are contained in subsection (h) and subject to
 

12 subsection (j).
 

13 (j)APPROPRIATIONS ACTION REQUIRED.--Nev credit
 

14 authority provided for in this section may be exercised only
 

15 to such extent or in such amount as is provided in advance in
 

16 an appropriation Act.
 

17 (k)CERTAIN LOSSES NOT COVERED BY GUARANTEES.--No
 

18 payment may be made under any guarantee issued under this
 

19 section (or the former guarantee authorities of section 222
 

20 or 222A of this Act or predecessor guarantee r'ithorities) for
 

21 any loss arising out of fraud or misrepresentation for which
 

22 the party seeking payment is responsible.
 

23 '"(1)FEES To BE CHARGED.--A fee shall be charged for
 
24 each guarantee issued under this section in an amount to be
 

25 determined by the Administrator, In the event the fee to be
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1 charged for such type guarantee is reduced, fees to be paid
 

2 
under existing contracts for the; same type of guarantee may
 

3 be similarly reduced.
 

4 "(m) USE OF FEES.--All fees collected in connection with
 

5 guarantees issued under this section (or under the former
 

6 guarantee authorities of section 222 or 222A of this Act or
 

7 predecessor guarantee authorities) shall be available to
 

8 offset the cost of guarantee obligations under this section.
 

9 "(n) FINANCING ACCOUNT.--All of the fees referred to In
 

10 this section, together with earnings on those fees and other
 

11 income arising from guarantee operations under this section
 

12 (or under the former guarantee authorities of section 222 or
 

13 222A of this Act or predecessor guarantee authorities), shall
 

14 be held in a financing account maintained in the Treasury of
 

1S the United States. All funds in such account may be invested
 

16 in obligations of the United States. Any interest or other
 

17 receipts derived from such investments shall be credited to
 

18' such account and may be used for the purposes specified in 

19 subsection (m). 

20 "(o) DISCHARGE OF LIABILITIES.--Any payments made to 

21 discharge liabilities under guarantees issued under this

22 section (or under the former guarantee authorities of section
 

23 222 or 222A of this Act or predecessor guarantee authorities)
 

24 shall be paid-

25 "(1) 
 first, out of fees referred to in subsection
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1 (m); and
 

2 .(2) then,out of funds made available pursuant to
 

3 jubsection (q).
 

4 '(p) FULL FAITH AND CREDIT.--All guarantees issued under
 

5 thiLssection (or under the former guarantee authorities of
 

6 section 222 or 222A of this Act or predecessor guarantee
 

7 authorities) shall constitute obligations, in accordance with
 

8 the terms of such guarantees, of the United States of America
 

9 and the full faith and credit of the United States of America
 

10 is hereby pledged-for the full payment and performance of
 

11 such obligations.
 

12 '(q) AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS.~
 

13 '(1) FOR GUARANTEE OBLIGATIONS.--There are
 

14 authorized to be appropriated to the President not more
 

15 than $2,000,000 for fiscal year1992 and not more than
 

16 $8,l00,000 for fiscal year 1993 to pay the cost of
 

17 guarantee obligations under this section with a face
 

18 value of $150,000,000 for each such fiscal year. Funds
 

19 made available under this paragraph may be used only
 

20 after all fees referred to in subsection (m)have been
 

21 used.
 

22 "(2) FOR ADMINISTRATIVEEXPENSES.--There are
 

23 authorized to be approprtiated to the President not more
 

24 than $8,500,000 for each of the fiscal years 1992 and
 

25 1993 for administrative .expense..necessary to carry out
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this section.
 

2 (r)ELIGIBLEINVESTORS.--he used in tfis'sectiongthe
 

3 term 'eligible investor' has the same meaning thav term is
 

4 givenin section 240.
 

5 (s)EXPIRATION OF AUTHORITY.--The authority of this
 

6 section shall continue through September 30, 1993.
 

7 '(t) GUARANTEES UNDER FORMER AUTHORITIES,--Guarantees
 

8 committed, authorized, or outstanding under therguarantee
 

9 authorities formerly contained in section 222 or222A of this'
 

10 Act (or predecessor guarantee authorities) shall continue
 

11 subject to provisions of law originally applicable to those
 

12 guarantees.
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1 SC. _ OVERSEAS PRIVATE IN E WN CORPORATiO. 

2 Title IV of chapter 2 of part I of the ForeignAssistance

3 Act of 1961 ts amended to read as.follows:
 

4 TITLE IV--OVBRSEAS PRIVATE IMVSTKET..COUPOATION
 

5 -SEC. 231. PURPOSE AND POLICY.
 

6 :"(a) PURPOSE.--The Overseas Private Investment
 

7 Corporation-shall be an agency of the United States under the
 

8 foreign policy-guidance of the Secretary of State. The
 

9 purpose of the Corporation is to.mobilize and facilitate the
 

10 participation of United States private capital and skills in
 

11 the economic and social development of less developed
 

12 friendly countries and areas, thereby complementing the
 

13 development assistance objectives of the United States.
 

14 "(b) 
DEVELOPMENT AND PER CAPITA INCOME CRITERIA.--The
 

15 Corporation, in determining whether to provide insurance,
 

16 reinsurance, guarantees, or financing for.a project, shall,
 

17 especially-

18 "(1) 
 be guided by the economic and.social,
 

19 development impact and benefits of such a project and the
 

20 ways, in which such a project complements, or Ls,.
 

21 
 compatible vith,,other development,,assetance programs or
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1 projects of the United:States or other donorsi'and
 

2 "(2) give preferential consideration to investment
 

3 projects in less developed countriesthat have per capita
 

4 incomes of $1,091 or less in 1989 United States dollars,
 

5 and restrict its activities With respect to investment
 

6 projects in less developed countries that have per capita
 

7 incomes of $4,734 or more- n1989 United States dollars
 

8 (other than countries designated as beneficiary countries
 

9 under section 212 of the Caribbean Basin Economic
 

10 Recovery Act (19 U.S.C. 2702) and eligible East European
 

11 countries (within the meaning of the Support for East
 

12 European Democracy (SEED) Act of 1989).
 

13 "(c) GUIDELINES FOR ACTIVITIES OF OPIC.--in carrying out
 

14 its purpose, the Corporation, utilizing broad criteria, shall
 

15 undertake-

16 "(1) to conduct Insurance, reinsurance, guarantee,
 

17 and financing operations on a self-sustaining basis,
 

18 taking into account in its guarantee and financing,
 

19 operations the economic and financial soundness of

20 projects;
 

(2)to utilize private credit and investment
21 


22 institutions and the Corporation's guarantee authority as

23 the principal means of mobilizing capital investment
 

24 fundsj
 

25 (3) to broaden prIvaeparfLcLpation and revolve
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1 its funds through selling 'its direct: investments to
 
2 private investors whenever it can appropriately do'so on
 

3 satisfactory terms;
 

4 (4)to conduct its insurance operations with due
 

5 
 regard to principles of risk management, including
 

6 efforts to share its insurance risks and reinsurance
 

7 risks;
 

8 "(5) 
 to consider in the conduct of its'operations
 

9 
 the extent to which the governments of less developed
 

10 countries are receptive to private enterprise, domestic
 

11 and foreign, and their willingness and ability to
 
12 maintain.conditions which enable private enterprise to
 
13 
 make its full contribution to the development process;
 
14 "'(6) to foster private initiative and competition
 

15 and discourage monopolistic practices;
 

16 (7)to further to the greatest degree possible, in
 
17 a manner consistent with its goals, the
 

18 balance-of-payments and employment objectives of the
 

19 United States;
 

20 (8)to conduct it activities-in consonance with
 

21 the activities of the administering agency and the
 
22 international trade, investment, and financial policies.
 
23 
 of the United States Government, and to seek-to support
 

24 those developmental,projects having positive trade
 

25 benefits for the United States; and
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1 "(9) toadvLee and assiet, within its field of
 

2 competence, interested agencies of the United States and
 

3 other organizations, both public and private, national
 

4 and international, with respect to projects and programs
 

5 relating to the development of private enterprise in less
 

6 developed countries and areas.
 

7 "SEC. 232. STOCK OF THE CORPORATION; ORGANIZATION AD
 

8 NANAGDIENT.
 

9 "(a) STOCK.--The Secretary of the Treasury shall hold
 

10 the capital stock of the Corporation.
 

11 (b)STRUCTURE OF THE CORPORATION.--The Corporation
 

12 shall have a Board of Directors, a President# an Executive
 

13 Vice President, and such other officers and staff as the
 

14 Board of Directors mayinrmine.
 

1s Cc) BOARD OF DIRECTORS.-

16 "(1) IN GENERAL,--All powers of the Corporation
 

17 shall vest in and be exercised by or under the authority
 

18 of its Board of Directors (hereinafter in this title
 

19 referred to as 'the Board') which shall consist of 15
 

20 Directors (including the Chair, Vice Chair, and the
 

21 President of the Corporation), with 8 Directors
 

22 constituting a quorum for the transaction of business.
 

23 (2)COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD.-

24 (A) CHAIR.--The Chair of'the Boardshall be the
 

25 Administrator, ex officio.
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1 (9)VICE CHAIR,--The Vice Chair of the Board
 
2 shall be the United"States Trade Representative, ex
 
3 officio, or, If so designated by the United States
 
4 Trade Representative, the Deputy United States Trade
 

5 Representative.
 

6 "(C) PRESIDENT OF THE CORPORATION.--The
 
7 President of the Corporation shall serve as a
 

8 Director, ex officio.
 

9 (D)PUBLIC SECTOR DIRECTORS,--(i) In addition
 
10 
 to the directors provided for in subparagraphs (A),
 
11 (B), and (C), four Directors who are officers or
 
12 
 employees of the Government of the United States,
 
13 
 including an officer or employee of the Department of
 
14 Labor, shall be designated by and shall serve at the
 
15 pleasure of the President of the United States.
 
16 %"(i) The Directors designated under this
 
17 subparagraph shall receive no additional compensation
 
18 by virtue of their service as such a Director.
 

19 
 "(E) PRIVATE SECTOR DIRECTORS.--(i) Eight 
20 Directors who are not officers or employees of the
 
21 Government of the United States shall be appointed by
 
22 the President of the United States, by and with the
 
23 
 advice and consent of the Senate.
 

24 
 Of these, at least-

25 "(I) two'shall beexperienced insmall
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I business 

2 (1I) one shall'be experienced in organized 

3 labor, and 

4 (I1) one shall be experienced in 

5 caoperatlves. 

6 (i) Each Director appointed under this 

7 subparagraph shall be appointed for a term of not 

a more-than-3 years. The terms of not more than 3 such 

9 Directors shall expire in any 1 year. Such Directors 

10 shall-,serve until their successors are appointed and
 

11 qualified and may be reappointed to subsequent terms.
 

12 "(ii1) Each Director appointed under this
 

13 subparagraph shall be compensated at the daily
 

14 equivalent of the annual rate of pay in effect for
 

15 level IV of the Executive Schedule under section 5315
 

16 of title 5, United States Code, for each day 

17 (including travel time) during which such Director is 

18 actually engaged in the business of the Corporation, 

19 and may be paid travel or transportation expenses to 

20 the extent authorized for employees serving 

21 intermittently in the Government service under 

22 section 5703 of title 5, United States Code. Any such 

23 Director may waive any such compensation. 

24 (d)APPOINTMENT OF THE PRESIDENT,-The President of the 

25 Corporation shall be appointed by the Pr6sident of the United 
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1 States,by and withkthe advice'and consent of the Senate, and
 
2 shall serve-atithe pleasure of the President., 
n making such
 
3 appointment, the President shalitake into account the
 
4 private business experience of the appointee. The President
 
5 of the Corporation shall be its Chief Executive Officer and
 
6 shall be responsible for the operations and management of the
 
7 Corporation, subject to bylaws and policies established by
 

8 the Board. 

9 '(e) OFFICERS AND STAFF,-

10 (1) EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,--TheExecutiveiVice 

11 President of the Corporation shall be appointed by the 
12 President of the United States, by and with the advice 
13 and consent of the Senate, and shall serve at the 
14 pleasure of the President. 

15 "(2) OTHER OFFICERS AND STAFF@--(A) The Corporation 
16 may appoint such other officers and such employees 
17 (including attorneys) and agents as the Corporation 

18 considers appropriate. 

19 "(3) The officers, employees, and agents-appointed 
20 under this subsection shall have such functions as the 

21 Corporation may determine. 

22 (C)Of the officers, employees, and agents 
23 appointed under-this paragraph, 20 may be appointed 

24 without regard to the provisions bf title 5, United 
25 States Code, governing appointments .inthe competitive 
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1 service, and may De compensated without regard-to the
 

2 
 provisions of chapter 51or.subchapterUlI."of chapter 53
 

3 of'such title.
 

4 (D) Under such regulations am the Presidentmay
 

prescribe, any individual appointed under subparagraph
5 


6 (C) may be entitled, upon removal (except for cause) from
 

7 the position to which the appointment was made, to
 

8 reinstatement to the position occupied by that individual
 

9 at the time of appointment or to a position of comparable
 

10 grade and pay. 

11 SEC., 233. INVESTMENT INSURNCT, GUARANTEES, FIRUXING, AND 

12 OTHE PROGRAMS. 

13 "(a) INVESTMENT INSURANCE.-

14 "(1) RISKS FOR WHICH INSURANCE ISSUED.--The 

15 Corporation is authorized to-issue insurance, upon such
 

16 
 terms and conditions as the Corporation may determine, to
 

eligible investors assuring protection in whole or in
17 


18 part-against any or all of-the following risks with
 

respect to projects which the Corporation has approved:
19 


20 "(A) Inability to convert into'United States
 

21 dollars other currencies, or credits in such
 

'2 currencies, received as earnihgs or profits from the
 

23 approved project, as repayment or return of the
 

in part, or as
24 	 investment-in the projectiin whole,or 


compensation for the sale orb'disposition of all or
25 
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1 
 anyVpart of the invesrment.
 

2 
 (B)Lossof Lnvestment, inwholeor in parttin
 
3 thelapproved project~due to exproprLatLcn or
 
4 confiscation by action of a foreign government.
 
5 (C)'Loss due to war, revolution, inaurrection,
 

6 
 or civil strife.
 
7 
 (D)Loss due to business interruption caused by
 
8 
 any of'the risks set forth in subparagraphs (A), (B),
 

9 and (C).
 

10 "'(2) RISK-SHARING ARRANGEMENTS WITH FOREIGN
 
11 GOVERNMENTS AND MULTILATERAL ORGANIZATIONS.--Recognizing
 
12 
 that major private investments in less developed friendly
 
13 
 countries or areas are often made by enterprises in which
 
14 
 there is multinational participation, including
 
15 
 significant United States private participation, the
 
16 
 Corporation may make arrangements with foreign
 
17 governments (including agencies, instrumentalities, and
 
18 political subdivisions thereof) and with multilateral
 
19 organizations and institutions for sharing liabilities
 
20 assumed under investment insurance for such investments
 
21 
 and may, in connection with such arrangements, issue
 
22 insurance to investors not otherwiseleligible for
 
23 insurance-under this title, except that-
24 "(A) liabilities assumed by the Corporation.
 
25 under the authority of this paragraph shall be
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1 consistent with the purposes of this title, and 

2 '(B) the maximum share of liabilities so assumed 

3 shall not exceed the proportionate participation by 

4 eligible.investors in the project. 

5 "'(3) MAXIMUM CONTINGENT LIABILITY WITH RESPECT TO 

6 SINGLE INVESTOR.--Not more than 10 percent of the maximum 

7 contingent liability of investment insurance which the 

8 Corporation-is permitted to have outstanding under 

9 section 235(a)(1) shall be issued to a single investor. 

10 "(4) REPORTS ON INSURANCE ISSUED FOR BUSINESS 

11 . INTERRUPTION OR CIVIL STRIFE.--(A) In each instance in 

12 which-a significant expansion is proposed in the type of 

13 risk to-be insured under the definition of 'civil strife' 

14 or *business interruption', the Corporation shall,.at 

15. least 60 days before such insurance is issued, sUbmit to 

16 *the Committee on Foreign Relations of the Senate and the 

17 Committee on Foreign Affairs of the House of 

18 Representatives a report with respect to such insurance. 

19 "(B) Each such-report shall include a thorough 

20 analysis of the. risks to be covered, anticipated losses, 

21 and,.proposed rates and reserves and, in the case of 

22 insurance for loss due to business interruption, an 

23 explanation of the underwriting basis upon whichthe 

24 insurance is to be offered. 

2S (C) Any such'report with respect,to insurance,for, 
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1 
 loss:due to business interruption shall be considered in
 
2 
 accordance with-the procedures applicable to
 
3 
 reprogramming notifications pursuant to section.634A.
 

4 "(b) INVESTMENT GUARANTEES.-
5 "(1) AUTHORITY.--The Corporation is authorized to
 
6 
 issue to eligible investors guarantees of loans and other
 
7 investments made by such investors assuring against loss
 
8 
 due to such risks and upon such terms and conditions as
 
9 the Corporation may determine, subject to paragraphs (2),
 

10 (3), and (4).
 

11 "(2) 
 GUARANTEES ON OTHER THAN LOAN INVESTMENTS.--A
 
12 
 guarantee issued underparagraph (1)on other than a loan
 
13 
 investment may not exceed 75 percent of such investment.
 
14 "(3) 
 LIMIT ON AMOUNT OF INVESTMENT
 
15 GUARANTEED.--Except for loan investments for credit
 
16 
 unions made by eligible credit unions or credit union
 
17 associations, the aggregate amount of investment 
 '..
 
18 (exclusive of interest and earnings) for which guarantees
 
19 
 are issued under paragraph (1) with respect to any
 
20 
 project shall not exceed, at the time of issuance of any
 
21 such guarantee, 75 percent of the total investment*
 
22 
 committed to any such project as determined by the
 
23 
 Corporation. Such determLuatjon by the Corporation shall
 
24 
 be conclusive for purposes qt.the Corporation's authority
 
25 to Issue any such guarantee.
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1 (4) MAXIMUM CONTINGENT LIABILITY-WITH RESPECT TO
 

2 SINGLE INVESTOR.--Not more than 15 percent of the maximum
 

3 contingent liability of investment guarantees which the
 

4 Corporation is permitted to have outstanding under
 

5 section 235(a)(2) may be issued to a single investor.
 

6 "(c) DIRECT INVESTMENT.~
 

7 "(1) INGENERAL.--The Corporation is authorized to
 

make loans in United States dollars, repayable in
8 


dollars, and to make loans in foreign currencies, to
9 


10 firms privately owned or of mixed private and public
 

11. ownership, upon such terms andconditions as the 

12 Corporation may determine. Loans may be made under this 

13 subsection only for projects that are sponsored by or 

14 significantly involve United States small business or 

15 cooperatives.
 

16 "(2) USE OF LOAN FOR NEW TECHNOLOGIES, PRODUCTS, OR
 

17 SERVICES.--The Corporation may designate up to 25 percent
 

18 of any loan under this subsection for use in the
 

19 development or adaptation in the United States of new
 

20 technologies or new products or services that are to be
 

21 used in the project for which the loan is made and are
 

22 likely to contribute to the economic or social
 

23 development of less developed countrIes.
 

24 "(d) INVESTMENT ENCOURAGEMENT.--The Corporation is
 

25 authorized to initiate and support through financial
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1 participation, incentive grant, or otherwise, and on such 
2 terms and conditions as the Corporation may determine, the 
3 identification, assessment, surveying, and promotion of 
4 private investment opportunities, usingwherever feasible and 
5 effective the facilities of private investors, except that 
6 the Corporation shall not finance any survey to ascertain the 

7 existence, location, extent, or quality of oil or gas 

8 resources. 

9 (e)SPECIAL ACTIVITIES.--The Corporation is authorized 
10 to administer and manage special projects and programs, 
11 including programs of financial and advisory support, which
 
12 provide private technical, professional, or managerial 
13 assistance in the development of human resources, skills, 
14 technology, capital savings, intermediate financial and
 

15 investment institutions, and cooperatives. The funds for 
16 these projects and programs may, with the Corporation's 

17 concurrence, be transferred to it for such purposes under the
 
18 authority of section 632(a) or from other sources, public or
 

19 pri ate.
 

20 (f)OTHER INS6RANCE'FUNCTIONS.-

21 "(1) [N GENERAL.--The Corporation is authorized-
22 "(A) to'make and carry out contracts of 
23 insurance or,reinsurance,'or agreements toassociate
 
24 or sharr risks, with insdrance companiesi financial
 

25 institutIons,any other persons,. or groups thereof,
 



280
 

S.Sl501A
 

14
 

1: and
 

(B) to employ such insurance companies,
2 


financial institutions, other.persons, or groups,
3 


4 where appropriate, as its agent, or to act as their
 

agent, in the issuance and servicing of insurance,
5 


the adjustment of claims, the exercise of subrogation
6 


7 rights,- the -ceding and accepting of reinsurance, and
 

inany other matter incident to an insurance
8 


9 business,
 

except that such.agreements and contracts shall be
 

consistent with the purposes of the Corporation set forth
 
10 


11 


in section 231 and shall be on equitable terms.
12 


13 "(2) RISK-SHARING AGREEMENTS.--The Corporation is
 

authorized to enter into pooling or other risk-sharing
14 


agreements with multinational insurance or financing
15 


16 agencies or groups of such agencies.
 

OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN RISK-SHARING
17 "(3) 


15 ENTITIES.--The Corporation is authorized to hold an
 

ownership interest in any association or other entity
19 


20 established for the purposes of sharing risks under
 

-21 investment insurance. 

e
 

"'(4) REINSURANCE OF CERTAIN LIABILITIES.--Th
22 

23 Corporation is authorized to.issue, upon such terms and
 

conditions:as it may determine,.'reinsurance.ofi
24 

.thereof
25 liabilities,assumed by othet 'insurers or .groups
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1 with resprit to 'risks,referred to in subsections(a)(1).
 

2 "(5) LIMITATION ON REINSURANCE.--The amount of
 
3 reinsurance'of-liabilities under this title which the
 

4 Corporation may issue shall not in the aggregate exceed
 

5 c-t any one time an amount equal to the amount authorized
 
6 
 for the maximum contingent liability outstanding at any
 
7 one time under section 235(a)(1). All reinsurance issued
 
8 by the Corporation under this subsection shall require
 

9 :that the reinsured party retain for his or her own
 

10 account specified portions of liability, whether first
 

11 loss or otherwise.
 

12 (g)EQUITY FINANCE PROGRAM.-

13 "(1) 
 AUTHORITY FOR EQUITY FINANCE PROGRAM.--The
 
14 Corporation is authorized to establish an equity finance
 

15 program under which it may, on the limited basis
 

16 prescribed in paragraphs (2) through (4), purchase,
 

17 invest in,or otherwise acquire equity or quasi-oquity
 

18 securities of anyfirm or entity, upon such terms and
 

19 conditions as the Corporation may determine, for the
 
20 purpose of providing capital for any project which is
 

21 consistent with the provisions of this title, except
 

22 that-

23 (A) the aggregate amdunt of the Corporation's
 
24 equity investment wLth.respect to any project shall
 

25 not exceed 30 percent..of the aggregate amount of all
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1 :equity investment made with respect to such project 

2 at the time.that the.Corporation sequity investment
 

3 is-made, except for. securities acquired through the
 

4 enforcement of any lienepledge, or contractual
 

5 arrangement as a result of a default by any party
 

6 under any agreement relating to the terms of the
 

7 Corporation's investment; and
 

8 	 (B)the Corporation's eqity investment under
 

9 this subsection with respect to any project, when
 

10 	 added to any other investments made or guaranteed by
 

(c)with
11 	 the Corporation under subsection (b)or 


12 	 respect to such project, shall not cause the
 

aggregate amount of all such investment to exceed, at
13 


the time any such investment is made or guaranteed by
14 


15 the Corporation, 75 percent of the total investment
 

committed to such -project as determined by the
16 


17 Corporation.
 

18 The determination of the Corporation under subparagraph
 

(B) shallbe 	conclusive for: purposes of the Corporation's
19 


authority to make or guarantee anysuch investment.
20 


investment
21 	 "(2).ADDITIONAL'CRITERIA.--In'making 


22 decisions under this subsection,: the Corporation shall; 

give preferential consideration,to projects sponsored by
23 


nited, States small business24 or significantly involving 

25 or cooperatives. The.Corporation:shall also consider the 
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1 extent to which the Corporation! equity investment will 

2 asistin obaining the financing required.for the 

3 project. 

4 '(3) DiSPOSITION OF EQUITY INTEREST.--Taking into 

5 considerations.,among other things, the Corporation's
 

6 financial interests and the desirability of fostering the
 

7 development of local capital markets in less developed
 

a countries, the Corporation shall endeavor to dispose of
 

9 any equity .interest itmay acquire under this subsection
 

10 within a period of 10 years from the date of acquisition
 

11 of such interest.
 

12 "(4) CONSULTATIONS WITH CONGRESS.--The Corporation
 

13 shall consult annually with the Committee on Foreign
 

14 Affairs of the House of Representatives and the Committee
 

15 on Foreign Relations of the Senate on the implementation
 

16 of the equity finance program established under this
 

17 subsection.
 

18 **SEC. 233A. ENHANCING PRIVATE POLITICAL RISK INSURANCE
 

19 INDUSTRY.
 

20 (a)COOPERATIVE PROGRAMS.--In order to encourage
 

21. greater availibility of political risk insurance for eligible
 

22 investors by enhancing-the private political risk insurance
 

23 industry in the United States# and-to the extent consistent
 

24 with this title, the Corporation shal undertake programs of
 

25 cooperation.with such industry,;and inconnection with such
 

46-816 0 - 91 - 10 
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1 programs may engagejn-the following'activities,
 

2 :'(l) Utilizing its statutory authorities* encourage
 

3 the development of associations, pools, or consortia of
 

4 United States private political risk insurers.
 

5 (2) Share insurance risks (through coinsurance,
 

6 contingent insurance, or other means) in a manner that is
 

7 conducive to the growth and development of the private
 

8 political risk insurance industry in the United States.
 

9 -"(3) Notwithstanding section 237(e), upon the .
 

10 expiration of insurance provided by the Corporation for
 

11 an investment, enter into risk-sharing agreements with
 

12 United States private political risk insurers to insure
 

13 any such investments except that, in cooperating in the
 

14 offering of insurance under this paragraph, the
 

15 Corporation shall not assume responsibility for more than
 

16 50 percent of the insurance being offered ineach
 

17 separate transaction.
 

18' "(b) ADVISORY G Oup.-

19 "(1) ESTABLISHMENT AND MEMBERSHIP.--The Corporation
 

20 shall establish a group to advise the Corporation on the
 

21, development and implementation of the cooperative
 

22 programs under this section. Thu group shall be appointed
 

23 by the Board and shall -be composed of up to 12 members,
 

24 including the followings
 

25 (A)Up to 7 poisons from the private political
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1 risk i66iurance~fndustry, of;whono fewer thanz2 

2 shall repreaent private'political'risk insurers; 1 

3 ahall represent.private political risk reinsurers, 

4 and-l'shall represent Insurance or reinsurance 

5 brokerage firms. 

6 (B) Up to 4 persons, other than persons 

7 described in subparagraph (A), who are purchasers of 

a political risk insurance. 

9 "*(2) FUNCTIONS.--The Corporation shall call upon 

10 members of the advisory-group, either collectively-or 

11. individually, to advise it regarding the capability of 

12 the private political risk insurance industry tomeet the 

13 political risk insurance needs of United States 

14 investors, and regarding the development of cooperative 

15 programs to enhance such capability. 

16 "(3) NEETINGS.--The advisory group shall meet at 

17 least annually. The Corporation may from time to time 

18 convene meetings of selected members of the advisory 

19 group to address particular questions requiring their 

20 specialized knowledge. 

21 "(4) FEDERAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE ACT.-.-The advisory 

22 group shall not be subject to the Federal- Advisorv 

23 Committee Act (5 U.S.C. App.). 

24 SEC. 234. GUIDELINES AID REQUIREMENTS FOR OPIC'SUPPORT.. 

25 '(a)DEVELOPMENT IMPACT'PROFILE.--In order to carry out 
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1 the policy setlforth ,in section 231(b)(l)# the Corporation 

2 shall prepare and maintain for each investment project it 

3 insures, financem, or reinsures, a development impact.profle 

4 consisting of data appropriate to measure the projected and 

5 actual effects of such project on development. Criteria for 

6 evaluating projects shall be developed in consultation with 

7 the administering agency. 

8 (b)SMALL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT.--. 

9 "(1) BROADENED PARTICIPATION BY SMALL 

10 BUSINESSES.--The Corporation shall undertake, in 

11 ..cooperation with appropriate departments, agencies, and 

12 instrumentalities of the United States as well as private 

13 entities and others, to broaden the participation of 

14 United States small business, cooperatives, and other 

15 small United States investors in the development of small 

16 private enterprise in less developed friendly countries 

17 or areas. 

18 '(2) PREFERENTIAL CONSIDERATION.--The Crporation 

19 shall undertake, to the maximum degree possible 

20 consistent with its purposes-

21 .(A) to give preferential consideration in its 

22 investment insurance, reinsurance, and guarantee 

23 activities to investment projects sponsored !.yor 

24 involving United States small businessg and 

'25 "(D) to maintain the proportion of projects 
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1 sponsored by or significantly involving United States 

2 small business at not less than 30 percent of all 

3 proJects insured, reinsured, or guaranteed by the 

4 Corporation. 

5 "(3) ALLOCATION OF INCOME.--The Corporation shall 

6 allocate up to 50 percent of its annual net income, after 

7 making suitable provision for transfers and additions to 

8 reserves, to assist and facilitate the development of 

9 projects consistent with the provisions of this 

10 subsection. Such funds may be expended notwithstanding 

11 the requirements of section 231(c)(1), on such terms and 

12 conditions as the Corporation may determine through 

13 loans, grants, or other programs authorized by sections 

14 233 and 233A. 

15 "(c) ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS.-

16 "(1) ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH, OR SAFETY HAZARD.--The 

17 Corporation shall refuse to insure, reinsure, guaravitee, 

18 or finance any investment in connection with a project 

19 which the Corporation determines will pose an 

20 unreasonable or major environmental, health, or safety 

21 hazard, or will result in the significant degradation of 

22 national parks or similar protected areas. 

23 "(2).RESOURCE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT.--The 

24 Corporation, in determining whether to provide insurance, 

,25 reinsurance, guarantees, Qr financing for a project, 
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1 shall ensure that the project is consistentwith the 

2 objectives set forth in sections 117 (relatLng to 

3 environmental and natural resources), 118 (relating to 

4 tropical forests), and 119 (relating to endangered 

5 species). 

6 "(3) ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENTS AND 

7 ASSESSMENTS.--The requirements of section'117(c) relating 

8 to environmental impact statements and environmental 

9 assessments shall apply to any investment which the 

10 Corporation insures, reinsures, guarantees, or finances 

11 under this title in connection with a project in a 

12 country. 

13 "(4) NOTIFICATION OF FOREIGN GOVERNMENTS.--Before 

14 finally providing insurance, reinsurance, guarantees, or 

15 financing under this title for any environmentally 

16 sensitive investment in connection with a project in a 

17 country, the Corporation shall notify appropriate 

18 government officials of that country of-

19 ..(A)all guidelines and other standards adopted 

20 by the International Bank for Reconstruction and 

21 Development and any other international organization 

22 that relate to the public health or safety or the 

23 environment and are applicable 'to the project; and 

24" (B)to the maximum extent practicable, any 

25 restriction, under any lav"of the United States, that 
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1 relates to public health or'safety or the environment
 

2 and would apply to the project if the projectwera
 

3 undertaken in the United States.
 

4 'The notification under the preceding sentence shall
 

5 include a-summaryof the guidelines, standards, and*
 

6 restrictions referred-to in subparagraphs,(A) and (B)
 

7 and may include any environmental impact statement,
 

a assessment, review, or study prepared with respect to the
 

9 investment pursuant.to paragraph (3).
 

10 "(5) CONSIDERATION OF COMMENTS RECEIVED.--Before
 

11 finally providing insurance, reinsurance, guarantees, or
 

12 financing.for any investment subject toparagraph (4),
 

13 the Corporation shall take into account any comments it
 

14 -receives on the project involved.
 

15 '(d) WORKER RIGHTS.--.
 

16 "(1) LIM!TATION"ON-OPIC ACTIVITIES.--The Corporation
 

17, may insure, reinsure, guarantee" or 'financea project

18 only if the country in which the-project is to be'
 

19 undertaken is taking steps to adopt and implement laws
 

20 that extend internationally recognized-worker righte- as
 

21 defined-in section502(a)(4) of the Trade Act of 1974 (19
 

22 U.S.C. 2462(a)(4)), to'workers in that country'(including
 

23 any,'designated zone"'in that country). .
- r 

24 '(2) USEOF ANNUAL EPORTSION WORKERS'RIGHTS.--The 

25 'Corporation shall, in uhking its-determinations under 



290
 

SLS15O1A
 

24 

1 paragraph (1), use-the reports submittedto the-Congress 

2 pursuantto section S05(c) of the Trade Act Of 1974 (19 

3 U.S.C. 2465(c)). 

4 ."(3)-WAIVER.--Paragraph (1).shall not prohibit.the 

5 Corporation from providing any insurance,.,reinsurance, 

6 guarantee, or financing with respect..to a country if.the 

7 President determines that such activities by the, 

8 Corporation would be in the national economic interests 

9 of the United States. Any such determination shallbe 

10 reported in writing to the Congress, together with the 

11 reasons for the determination. 

12 (e)HUMAN RIGHTS.--The Corporation shall take into 

13 account in the conduct of its programs in a country, in,..
 

14 consultation with the Secretary of State, all available
 

15 information about observance of and respect for human rights 

16 and fundamental freedoms in such country and the effect the
 

17 operation of such programs will have on human rights and 

18 fundamental freedoms in such country. The provisions of
 

19 section 116 shall apply to any insurance, reinsurance,
 

20 guarantee, or financing provided by the Corporation for,.
 

21 projects in a c itry, except that in addition to the 

22 exception (with respect to benefiting needy.people) set.forth
 

23 -insubsection (a) of such section, the.Corporation may
 

24 support a project if the-,national securityinterest so
 

25 requires. 
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1 (f) HAHN TO EmPLOYMENT IN THE UNITED STATES.

2 (1)REPLACEMENT OF UNITED STATES PRODUCTION.--(A) 

3 The Corporation shall refuse to insure, reinsure, 

4 guarantee, or finance an investment if the Corporation 

5 determines that such investment is likely to cause such 

6 investor (or the sponsor of an investment project in 

7 which such investor is involved) significantly to reduce 

8 the number of the investor's or sponsor's employees in 

9 the United States because the investor or sponsor is 

10 replacing his or her United States production with 

11 production from such investment, and the production from 

12 such investment Involves substantially the same product 

13 for substantially the same market as the investor's or 

14 sponsorIs United States production. 

15 (B) If the Corporation determines that an 

16 investment is'not likely to have the effects described in 

.11 'subparagraph (A), the Corporation shall monitor 

18 conformance with the representations made by the investor 

19 on which the Corporation relied in making that 

20 determination. 

21 "(2) REDUCTION OF EMPLOYEES IN THE UNITED 

22 STATES.--The Corporation-shall refuse to insure, 

23 reinsure, guarantee,-or finance an investment if the 

24 Corporation determines that such investment is likely to 

25 cause a significant reduction in the number of employees 
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1 in the United States... 

2 "(g).PERFORHANCE REQUIREMENTS,--The Corporation shall 

3 refuse to insure, reinsure, guarantee, or finance an
 

4 investment which is subject to performance requirements which
 

5 would reduce substantially the positive trade benefits likely 

6 to accrue to the United States from the investment. 

7 "(h) PROHIBITED TRADE. PRACTICES.-

8 '(1) PAYMENTS TO VIOLATORS BARRED.--No payment may 

9 be made under any insurance or reinsurance which is 

10 issued under this title on or after April 24, 1978, for 

11 any loss occurring with respect to a project, if the 

12 preponderant cause of such loss was an act by the 

13 investor seeking payment under this title, by a person 

14 possessing majority ownership and control of the investor 

15 at the time of the acL, or by any agent of such investor 

16 or controlling person, and a court of the United States 

17 has entered a final judgment that such act constituted a 

18 violation of section 30A of the Securities Exchange Act 

19 of 1934 or section 104 of the Foreign Corrupt Practices 

20 Act of 1977. 

21 '(2) REGULATIONS.,--The Corporation shall have in 

22 effect regulations setting forth appropriate conditions 

23 under which.any person who has been finally determined by 

24 a court of the.United.States to have violated section 30A 

25 of the Securities Exchange AcA of 1934 or section 104 of 
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1 the-Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 shall be
 

2, suspended, for a-period of not more ,than 5 years, from
 

3 eligibility to receive any-insurance, reinsurance,.
 

4 guarantee, financing, or other~financial support
 

S. authorized by this title, if that violation related to a
 

6 project insured,,reinsured, guaranteed, financed, or
 

7 otherwLse-supported by the Corporation under this title.
 

8 "'(i) FRAUD OR'MISREPRESENTATION.--No payment may be made
 

9 under any guarantee, insurance, or reinsurance issued under
 

10 this title for-any loss arising out of fraud or
 

11 misrepresentation for which the party seeking payment is
 

12 responsible.
 

13 "1(j) PUBLIC HEARINGS.--The Board shall hold at least 1
 

14 public hearing each year in order to afford an opportunity
 

15 for any person to present views as to whether the Corporation
 

16 is carrying out its activities in accordance with section 231
 

17 and'this-section or whether any investment in a particular
 

18 country should have been or should be extended insurance,
 

19 reinsurance, guarantees, or financing under this title.
 

20 **SEC. 235. ISSUING AUTHORITY, DIRECT INVESTMENT FUND, EQUITY
 

21 FUND, AND RSERVES.
 

22 (a)ISSUING AUTHORITY.-

23 ,(1) INSURANCE.--The maximum contingent liability
 

24 outstanding at any onetime pursuant to insurance.issued
 

25 under section 233(a) shall,not exceed in the aggregate
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1 $74500,OO,000. 

2 (2)* GUARANTEES.-(A) The maximum contingent 

3 liability outstanding at any one time pursuant to 

4 guarantees imsued under section 233(b) shall not exceed 

S in-the aggregate $2,500,000,000.
 

6 (B)Notwithstanding section 504(b) of.the-Federal
 

7 Credit Reform Act of 1990, the Corporation is authorized
 

8 to draw up to $1,500,000 from its noncredit account
 

9 revolving fund to pay for the estimated subsidy cost of a
 

10 program level for the loan guarantee program under 

11 section 233(b) of $375,000,000 for fiscal year 1992. Such 

12 funds shall remain available in fiscal year 1993. 

13 ..(3)TERMINATION OF AUTHORITY.--The authority of 

14 subsections (a)and (b)of section 233 shall continue 

15 until September 30, 1992. 

16 "(b) DIRECT LOAN PROGRAM.--Notwithstanding section 

17 S04(b) of the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990, the 

18 Corporation is authorized to draw up to $4,800,000 from Lts 

19 noncredit account revolving fund to pay for the estimated 

20 subsidy cost of a program level for its direct loan program 

21 under section 233(c) of $50,000,000 for fiscal year 1992. 

22 Such amounts shall remein available for fiscal year 1993. 

23 (a)CREATION OF FUND.FOR ACoUiSITION OF EQUITYo--The 
24 Corporation is authorized to establish a revolving fund to be 

25 available solely for the purpowes specified in section 233(g) 
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1 and to make a.one-time transfer .to thefund of $35,000,000
 

2 (less.amounts transferred to'the fund before the effective
 

3 date ofithetInternational Corporation Act'of 199lj) from its
 

4 noncredit account revolving fund. The Corporation,shall
 

5 transfer to the fund in each fiscal year 'all.,amounts received'
 

6 by the Corporation during the preceding fiscal year as income
 

7 on securities acquired under section 233(g)- and from the
 

8 proceeds on-the disposition of such securities, Purchases of,
 

9 investments in, and other acquisitions of equity from the
 

10 fund are authorized for any fiscal year only to the extent or
 

11 in such amounts as are provided in advance in appropriations
 

12 Acts.
 

13 (d) INSURANCE RESERVES.-

14 "(1) MAINTENANCE AND PURPOSES.--The Corporation
 

15 shall maintain insurance reserves. Such reserves shall be
 

16 available for the discharge of liabilities, as provided
 

17 in subsection (e), until such time as all such
 

18 liabilities have been discharged or have expired or until
 

19 all such reserves have been expended in accordance with
 

20 the provisions of this section.
 

21 . (2) FUNDING.--The insurance reserves shall consist
 

22 of-

23 (A) any funds in-the insurance reserves of the
 

24 Corporation on the effecti~e date of the
 

25 (International Cooperation'Act of 19911,
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1 (B)amounts.transferred to the reserve'
 

2 pursuant to.this.titlei and
 

3 (C) such sums as are appropriated pursuant to
 

4 subsection (f) of this section for such purposes.
 

5 (e) ORDER OF PAYMENTS To DISCHARGE LIABILITIES.--Any,
 

6 payment made to discharge liabilities under investment
 

7 insurance or reinsurance issued under section 233, under
 

8 similar predecessor guarantee authority, or under section
 

9 233A6 shall be paid first out of the insurance rserver as
 

.10 long as such reserve remains available, and thereafter out of
 

11 funds made available pursuant to subsection (f) of this
 

12 section. Any payments made to discharge liabilities under
 

13 guarantees issued under section 233(b) shall be paid in 

V accordance with the Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990. 

15 "%(f) AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS.-

16 {1) AUTHORIZATION.--Subject to paragraph (2), there
 

17 are authorized to be appropriated to the Corporation, to
 

18 remain available until expended, such amounts as may be
 

19 necessary from time to time to replenish or increase the
 

20 Insurance reserves, to discharge the liabilities under
 

21 insurance or reinsurance, issued by the Corporation or
 

2, issued under predecessor guarantee authority, or to
 

23 discharge obligations of.the Corporation purchased by the
 

24 Secretary of the Treasury puxsuant to subsection (g).
 

25 "t21LIMITATION ON XPPROPRIATIONS.--Vn A lflF&*tAlfln 
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1- shall-be made under-paragraph,() to,augment the 

2 insurance reserve until the amount of funds in'the 

3 insurance reserve is- less than $25,000,000. Any 

4 appropriations to augment the insurance reserve shall 

then only be made either pursuant to specific 

6 authorization enacted after the date of enactment of the 

7 Overseas Private Investment Corporation Amendments Act of 

8 1974, or to.satisfy the full faith and credit provision 

9 of section-237(c).... 

"(g) -ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS.--In order to discharge 

11 liabilities under investment insurance or reinsurance, the
 

12 Corporation is authorized to issue from time to time.for
 

13 purchase by the Secretary of the Treasury its notes,
 

14 debentures, bonds, or other obligations; except that the .
 

aggregate amount of such obligations outstanding at any one
 

16 time may not exceed $100,000,000. Any suchobligation shall
 

17 be repaid to the Treasury within 1 year after the date of
 

18 issue of such obligation. Any such obligation shall bear
 

19 interest at a rate determined by the Secretary of the
 

Treasury, taking into consideration the current.average
 

21 market yield on outstanding marketable obligations of the
 

22 United States of comparable maturities during the month
 

23 preceding the issuance of any obligation authorized by this
 

24 subsection. The Secretary of.the Treasury shall purchase any
 

obligation of the Corporation issued under-this subsection, 
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1 and for such'purchase the Secretary 'may use aa~a'public debt 

2 transaction the proceeds'of the sal~eof any'securities issued 

3 under chapter 31 of title 31; United States Code.'The purpose 

4 for which securities may be issued under chapter 31 of title 

5 31, United States Code, shall include any such purchase. 

6 (h) ADmINISTRATIVE EXPENSES.--The Corporation is 

7 authorized to draw up to $12,000,000from its noncredit 

8 account revolving fund for the administrative costs of its 

9 direct loan and loan guarantee peograms for fiscal year 1992. 

10 Such funds shall remain available in fiscal year 1993.
 

11 "SEC. 236. INCOME AND REVENUES.
 

12 In order to carry out the purposes of the Corporation,
 

13 all revenues and income transferred to or earned by the
 

14 Corporation, from its noncredit activities, shall be held by
 

15 the Corporation and shall be available to carry out its
 

16 purposes, including without limitation-

17 (1) payment of all expenses of the 'COrporation, 

18 including investment promotion expenses;! 

19 (2) transfers and additions to the insurance 

20 reserves maintained under section 235(d), and such other 

21 funds or reserves as the Corporation may establish, -at 

22 such time and in such amounts-as the BoardMay determiner 

23 and' 

24 .-(3) payment of dividends, on capital stock, which

25 shalli conalst of and be paid;fron net earningsaof the 
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1 Corporation .after payments,- transfers, and additions 

2 under paragraphs (1)and (2).' 

3 SC.,237. GENER-AL.PROVISIONS RerATING TO INSURANC, 

4 GUARAN~ AND FINANCING.PROGRAN. 

5 (a)AGREEMENTS WITH COUNTRIES.--znaurance,' guarantees, 

6 and reinsurance issued under this title shall cover 

7 investment made in connection with projects in any less 

8 developed friendly country or area with the government of 

9 which the President of the United States has agreed to 

10 institute a program for such insurance, guarantees, 'or 

11 reinsurance. 

12 "(b) PROTECTION OF INTERESTS OFTHE CORPORATION.7T-he 

13 Corporation shall determine that suitable arrangements exist
 

14 for protecting the interest of the Corporation in connection
 

15 with any insurance, reinsurancei-or guarantee issued under,
 

16 this title, including arrangements concerning ownership, use,
 

17 and disposition of the currency; credits, assetsi or.
 

18 investments on account of which payment under such insurance,
 

19 guarantee, or reinsurance is to be made, and any:right,
 

20 title, claim; or cause of action existing in connection
 

21 therewith.
 

22 '(c)- FULL FAITH AND CREDIT:PLEDGED.--All guarantees
 
23 Issued under predecessor guarantee authority,:and all
 

24 insurance, reinsurance, and guarantees issued under this
 

25 title shall constitute obligations In accordance with the
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1 terms of suchkinsurance, reinsurance, or guarantees, of the
 

2 United States of America, and the full faith and credit of
 

3 the United States of America is hereby,pledged'for the full
 

4 payment and performance of such obligations.
 

5 ..(d) FEES.--(l) Fees may becharged for providing
 

6 insurance, reinsurance, guarantees, 'financing, and other
 

services under this title in amounts to be determined.by the
7 


8 Corporation. In the event fees charged for insurance,
 

9 reinsurance, guarantees, financing, or other services are
 

10 reduced, fees to be paid under existing contracts for the
 

11 same type of insurance, reinsurance, guarantees, financing,
 

12 or services and for similar guarantees issued under
 

13 predecessor guarantee authority may be reduced.
 

14 "(2) CREDIT TRANSACTION COSTS.--Fees paid for pioject

15 specific transaction costs relating to loan obligations or
 

16 loan guarantee commitments covered by the provisions of the
 

17 -Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990,, Ancluding project-related
 

18 travel-and expenses for legal representation provided by.
 

19 persons outside the Corporation' shall be considered cash
 

20 flows from the Government resulting from direct loan
 

21 obligations or loan guarantee commitments and shall.be paid
 

22 out of the appropriate financing account established pursuant
 

23 to section S05(b) of'such Act.
 
°
 

24 ,"(3) NON-CREDIT TRANSACTION COSTS.--.Fees paid for the,
 

25 project-specific transactioncosts and.other direct costs
 

http:determined.by
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1 associated-with services provided 
to specific investors or 

2 potential Investors pursuant to section 233 (other than those
 

3 covered in paragraph (2)), including financing,' insurance,
 

4 reinsurance, missions, seminars, conferences, and other pre-


S investment services, shall be avaLlablq for obligation for
 

6 the purposes for which they were collected, notwithstanding
 

7 any other provision of law.
 

8 ".(e) INSURANCE, GUARANTEES, AND REINSURANCE LIMITED TO
 

9 20 YEARS.--No insurance, reinsurance, or guarantee of any
 

10 equity investment under this title shall extend beyond 2Q
 

11 years from the date on which such Insurance, reinsurance, or
 

12 guarantee is issued.
 

13 ..(f)AMOUNT OF COMPENSATION PAID ON
 

14 CLAIS.--Compensation for any insurance, reinsurance, or
 
15 guarantee issued under this titleshall not exceed the dollar
 

16 value, as of the date of the investment, of the investment

17 made in the project with the approval of the Corporation plus
 

18 Interest, earnings, or profits actually accrued-on such
 

19 investment to the extentprovLded by-such insurance,
 

20 reinsurance, or guarantee, except-that the CorporatLon-may
 

21 provide that-

22 (1)appropriate adjustments in the'Lnsured dollar
 

23 value be made to reflect the replacement cost of project
 

24 asuets: 

25 "(2) coepenertion.'for a claim of loss under
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1 insurance of an equity investment may"be computed on the 

2 basis of the netbook value attributable to such equity 

3 investment on the date of los1s and 

4 (3)compensation for loss due to business. 

5 interruption may be computed on a basis to be determined 

6 by the Corporation which reflects amounts lost. 

7 Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Corporation shall 

8 limit the amount of direct insurance and reinsurance issued
 

9 under section 233 or 233A so that risk of loss as to at least
 

10 10 percent of the total investment of the insured and its
 

11 affiliates in the project is borne by the insured and such
 

12 affiliates, except that this limitation shall not apply to
 

13 direct insurance or reinsurance of loans by banks or other
 

14 financial institutions to unrelated parties.
 

15 "(g) LIMITATION WITH RESPECT TO FOREIGN CREDIT
 

16 INSTITUTIONS.--Insurance, guarantees, or reinsurance of a
 

17 loan or equity investment of an eligible investor in
a
 

18 foreign bank, finance company, or other credit institution
 

19 shall extend only to such loan or equity investment and not
 

20 to any individual loan or equity investment made by such
 

21 foreign bank, finance cowpany, or other credit institution.
 

22 "(h)1SETTLEMENT AND ARRITRATION OF CLAIMS.--Claims
 

23 arLsLng as a result of insurance, reinsurance, or guarantee
 

24. operations under this title or under predecessor guarantee
 

25 authority may be settled, and disputes arising as a result
 



SLSISOIA
 

37
 
1 thereof may arbitrated'with the consent of the parties, on
 
2 
such terms anA conditions as the Corporation may determine.
 
3 Payment made pursuant to any such settlement, or as a result
 
4 of an arbitration award, shall be final and conclusive
 

5 notwithntanding any other provision of law.
 

6 "(1) CONTRACTS PRiSUNED TO COMPLY WITH ACT.--Each
 
7 guarantee contract executed by such officer or officers as
 
8 may be designated by the Board shall be conclusively'presumed
 

9 to be issued in compliance with the requirements of this Act.
 
10 (j)OPERATIONS IN CERTAIN COUNTRIES.--ixcept for the
 
11 provisions of this title, no other provision of this or any
 
12 
other law shall be construed to prohibit the operation' in
 
13 Yugoslavia, Poland, Hungary, or any eligible East European
 
14 country (within the meaning of the Support for East European 
15 
 Democracy (SEED) Act of 1989) of any program authorized by
 
16 
this title, if the President determines that the operation of
 
17 such program in such country is important to the national
 

18 interest.
 

19 "'SEC. '238. GzEm Povisrous AND Powls.
 

20 
 "(a) PRINCIPAL OFFICE.--The Corporation shall have its
 
21 principal office in the District of Columbia and shall be
 
22 deemed, for purposes of venue in civil actions, to be a
 
23 resident of the District of Columbia.
 

24 (b)AUDITS.-

25 
 "'(1) IN GENERAL.--The Corporation 8ail be subject 
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1 to.the applicable provisions of chapter 91 of title 31, 

2 UnitedStates Code, except as otherwise provided in thiu 

3 title. 

4 (2)INDEPENDENT AUDIT.--An independent certified. 

public accountant shall perform a financial and 

6 compliance audit of the financial statements of the 

7 Corporation'each.year,. in accordance with generally 

8 accepted Government auditing standards for a financial 

9 and compliance audit, taking into consideration any 

standards recommended by the Comptroller General. The 

1 independent certified public accountant shall report the 

12 results of such audit to the Board. The financial 

13 statements of the Corporation shall be presented in 

14 accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

These financial statements and the report of the 

16 accountant shall be included in a report which contains, 

17 to the extent applicable, the information identified in 

18 section 9106 of title 31, United States Code, and which 

19 the Corporation shall submit to the Congress not later 

than 6 1/2 months after the end of the last fiscal year 

21 rovered by the audit. The Comptroller General may review 

22 the audit conducted by the accountant and the report to 

23 the Congress in the manner and at such times as the 

24 Comptroller General considers necessary. 

"(3) AUDIT BY COMPTROLLER GENERAL.--In lieu of-the 
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1 
 financial and compliance audit required.;by paragraph (2),,
 
2 the Comptroller General shall, if the Comptroller General
 

3 considers it necessary or.,upon the request of the
 
4 Congress, .audit the financial statements of the
 
5 
 Corporation in the manner provided in-paragraph (2). The
 
6 Corporation shall reimburse the General Accounting Office
 
7 for the full cost of any audit conducted under this
 

8 paragraph.
 

9 -"(4)AVAILABILITY OF INFORATION.--All books,
 
10 accounts, financial records, reports, files, workpapers,
 

11 and property belonging to or in
use by the Corporation
 
12 and the accountant who conducts the audit under paragraph
 

13 (2), which are necessary for purposes of this subsection,
 

14 shall be made available to the representatives of the
 
15 
 General Accounting Office designated by the Comptroller
 

16 General.
 

17 .(c) POWERS.--To carry out the purposes of-this title,
 

18 the Corporation is authorized-

19 (1) to adopt and usea corporate-seal, which shall
 

20 be judicially noticed;
 

21 .'(2)
to-sue and be sued in its corporate name;
 
22 
 (3),to adopt, amend, and repeal bylaws governing 

23 the conduct of its business and-the performance of the 
24 powers-and duties granted-to or imposed upon it by lag; 
25 '(4) to acquire, hold,.or dispose of, upon such
 

http:hold,.or
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1 termand..conditions as the Cor'pratiomuaydetermine,
 

2 any property,- real, petonal, or mixed, tangible or
 

3 intangible, or any inteiest'.therein;
 

4 '(5) to invest funds derived from fees and other 

5 revenues in obligations of the United States and to use 

6 the proceeds therefrom, including earnings and profits, 

7 as it considers appropriatel 

8 ".(6) to indemnify directors, officers, employees,
 

9 and agents of the Corporation for liabilities and
 

10 expenses incurred in connection with their Corporation
 

11 activities;
 

12 "(7) to require bonds of officers, employees, and
 

13 agents and to pay the premiums therefor;
 

14 -. "(8) notwithstanding any other provision of law, tc
 

15 represent Itself or to contract for representation in a]
 

16 legal and arbitral proceedings;
 

17 "(9) to purchase, discount, rediscount, sell, and
 

18 negotiate, with or without its endorsement or guarantee,
 

19 and guarantee notes, participation certificates, and
 

20 other evidence of indebtedness (except that the
 

21 Corporation shall not issue its own securities, except
 

.22 participation certificates for the purpose of carrying
 

23 out section 231(c)(3) or participation certificates as
 

24 evidence of indebtedness held by tho Corporation in
 

25 connection with settlement of claims under section
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1 237(h))j: 

2 (10)'to make':andcarry out-such-contracts.and 

3 agreements.as; are necessary and advisablein the.conduct 

4 of its.business 

5 (11) to exercise any priority of-the Government of,

6 the.United Statesin collectLng debts from-the estates of 

7 bankrupt, insolvent,-or decedent.partLes,. 

8 (12) to-determine the character of and the 

9 ne essityfor itsobligations and expenditures. and the 

10 manner in-whichthey'shall be Lncirred, allowed, and 

11 paldt- subject to-proviiions8of law specifically 

12 applicable to Government corporations; 

13 (13) to-collect,or compromise any obligations 

14 assigned to or held by the Corporation, including any 

15 legal or equitable rights accruing to the Corporation; 

16 and 

17 "(14) to take such actions as may be necessary or 

18 appropriate to carry out the powers of the Corporation. 

19 "(d),INSPECTOR GENERAL.-

20 t.(1) AUTHORITY.--The Inspector General of ,the 

21 administering agency-

22 " "(A) shall have full and independent authority 

23 to conduct -audits, investigations, and inspections of 

24 all phases of the:Corporation's programs and 

25 operations for the purpose. f promoting economy,. 
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1 efficLenci and effectiveness, and detecting and: 

2 preventingT!fraud and.abusi and 

" 
3 "(B) shall conduct all security activitiesiof 

4 the Corporation relating to personnel andthe.control 

5 of classified material. 

6 (2)RELATION TO PRESIDENT.OF CORPORATION.--The 

7 Inspector General.shall-report to and be under the 

a general supervision of the President of the Corporation 

9 with respect to activities undertaken~pursuant to this 

10 subsection, except that the President of-the Corporation 

11 shall not prevent or prohibit the Inspector General-from 

12 initiating, carrying out, or completing any such activity 

13 in accordance with the duties, authorities, and 

14 responsibilities contained in the Inspector General Act 

15 of 1978 and any other applicable law or'regulation. 

16 "(3) INSPECTOR GENERAL ACT.--For purposes of the 

17 -Inspector General Act of 1978, the Corporation shall 

18 continue to be considered a Federal entity and the 

19 President of the Corporation shall.be considered .the head 

20 of the Federal entity.. 

21 "'(4) SEMIANNUAL REPORT.--The,semiannual report 

22 required under section-5 of the Inspector General Act of 

23 .1978 shall include informatio..relating -to activities of 

24 the Inspector General undertaken pursuantto this 

25 subsection.: 
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1 (a) EXEMPTION FROM STATE AND LOCALJTAXATION.!--The 
2 Corporation (including its franchise, capital,i reserves, 

3 surplus, advances, Intangible property, and income) shall be
 

4 exempt from all taxation at any time imposed by any State,
 

5 the District of Columbia, or any county, municipality, or
 

6 local taxing authority.
 

7 (f) CORPORATE OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES.--The
 

8 Corporation-

9 '(1) shall establish and publish guidelines for its
 

10 programs and operations consistent with the provisions of
 

11 this title, and,

12 '(2) shall,make such guidelines available to
 

13 applicants: for insurance, reinsurance, guarantees,
 

14 financing; or other assistance provided by the
 

1s Corporation.
 

16 The provisions of this title shall be controlling with
 

17 respect to the Corporation's programs and operations.
 

1 "SEC. 239. ANNUAL REPORT; MAINTENANCE OF INFORMATION.
 

19 ".(a) ANNUAL REPORT.--After the end of each fiscal year,
 

20 the Corporation shall submit to the Congress a complete and
 

21 detailed report of its operations during such fiscal year.
 

22 Such report shall include-

23 (1)an assessment, based upon the development
 

24 impact profiles required'by section 234(a),Lof the 
25 economic and social development impact and benefitsi"Or 
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respect 	to which., such profiles are1 the projects' with 

2 prepared,: and of the extent to which the operations of 

3 the Corporation complement or are compatible with the 

4 development assistance programs of the United States and 

5 other donors; and., 

6 '(2) a description of any project for which the 

7 corporation-

refused to provide any insurance,
8 "(A) 


9 reinsurance, guarantee, financing, or other financial
 

10 support', on-account of violations of human rights
 

11 referred to in section 234(e)l or
 

12 "(B) notwithstanding such violations, provided
 

13 such insurance, reinsurance, guarantee, financing, or
 

financial support, on the basis of a determination
14 


15 that-

16 "(i) the project will directly benefit the
 

needy people in the country in which the project
17 


18 :is located, or
 

19 "(Ui) the national security interest so
 

20 ,,requires.
 

(b) PROJECTIONS OF EFFECTS ON EmPLOYMENT.-21 


22 '(1) IN GENERAL.--Each annual report required by
 

subsection (a) shall contain projections of the effects
23 


24 	 on'.employmentuIn the UnIted"Itates of all projects for
 

which, during the fiscal yiar covered by the report# the
25 
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1 Corporation initially issued any 
 insurance, reinsurance,
 

2 or guarantee or provided financing. Each such report
 

3 shall include projections of--.
 

4 "(A) the amount of United States exports to be 

5 generated by those projects, both during the start-up 

6 phase and over a period of years;
 

7 (B) the final destination of the products to be
 
8 produced as a result of those projects; and
 

9- (C)the impact such production will have on the
 
10 production of similar products in the United States
 

11 with regard to both domestic sales and exports.
 

12 "(2) INFORMATION IN AGGREGATE FORM.--The projections
 

13 required by this subsection shall be based on an analysis,
 

14 of each of the projects described in paragraph (1). 
Such
 

15 projections may, however, present information and,
 

16 analysis/in aggregate form, but only if-

17. (A) those projects which are projected to have
 

18 a positive effect on employment In the United States
 

19 and those projects which are projected to have a
 

20 negative effect onemployment in the United States
 

21 are grouped separately; and
 

22 "(B) 
 there is,set forth for each such grouping
 

23 the key characteristics.of.,the projects within that
 

24 grouping, Including the number of projects in each
 
25 
 economic sector,-the codntries in which the projects
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1 'ineach'economicsector are located, and the'
 

.2 :projected.ievel of the impact of~the projects'ln each
 

3 economic sector on employment in'the United States
 

4 and on*United States trade.
 

5 (c) MAINTENANCE OF INFORMATION.--The Corporation shall
 

,6 maintain as part of its records-

7 "(1) aL.Linformation collected in preparing the
 

8 report required.by section 240A(c) of the Foreign
 

9 Assistance Act of 1961 (as inleffect before the enactment
 

10 of the Overseas Private Investment Corporation Amendments
 

11 Act of 1988), whether the ,information was collected by
 

12 the Corporation itself or by-a contractor; and
 

13 "(2) a copy of the analysis of each project analyzed
 

14 in preparing the'projections required by subsection (b)
 

15 of thissection or the report required by section 240A(c)
 

16 of this Act (as in effect before the enactment of the
 

17 Overseas:Private Investment Corporation-Amendments Act of
 

18 i988).
 

19 (d) PROGRAMS OF COOPERATION-WITH PRIVATE
 

20 INDUSTRY.--Each annual report'required by subsection (a)
 

21 shall include an assessment of programs implemented by the
 

22 Corporation under section 233A(a), including the following
 

23 information, to the extent such information is available to
 

24 the Corporatioh:i '
 

25 "(1) The nature and dollar value of political risk
 

http:required.by
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1 
 insurance provided by privateinsurers in conjunction
 
2 with the Corporation, which the Corporation was not.
 

3 permitted to provide under this title.
 
4 (2)The nature and dollar value of -political risk
 
5 
 insurance provided by private insurers in conjunction
 

6 with the Corporation, which.the Corporation was permitted
 

7 to provide under this title.
 

8 '(3) The manner in which such private insurers and
 
9 the.Corporation..ooperated in recovery efforts and claims
 

10 management.
 

11 
 "e) PROTECTION OF CERTAIN INFORNATION.--Subsectioni (b)
 
12 
and (d) do not require the inclusion in any information
 
13 
'submitted pursuant to those subsections of any information
 
14 which would not be required to be made available to the
 
15 public pursuant to section 552 of title 5,United States Code
 

16 (relating to freedom of information).
 

17 "EC. 240. DEVINITIONS.
 

18 As used in this itle, the following terms have the
 

19 following meanings:
 

20 "(1) ADmINISTERING AGENCY.--The term 
administering
 
21 agency' means the agency primarily responsible for
 

22 administering this part.
 

23 "(2) DMINISTRATOR.-rThe term 
Administrator means
 
24. the head of the administering agency., 

25 (3)BOARD.--The.tekn. 'Board' means,.the Board of 
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1 Drect~rs ot the Overseas Private Investment Corporation.
 

"(4) 	 Corporation meane the
2 1. CORPORATION.--The -term 


Overseas Private Investment Corporation.
3 


4 (5)ELIGIBLE IkvESTOR;--(A) The-term 'eligible
 

5 investor means-

(1)*aUnited States citizen;
6 


7 '(ii)a corporation, partnership, or other
 

Sassociation, including a nonprofit association, which
 

is created under the laws of the United States, any
9 


State, the District of Columbia, or any commonwealth,
i0 


ii territory, or possession of the United States, and
 

12 which is substantially beneficially owned by United
 

13 	 States citizens; and
 

(iii) 'aforeign corporation, partnership, or
14 . 

15 	 other association which is wholly owned by one or
 

more United States citizens or corporations,
16 


17 partnerships, or other associations,described in
 

clause (ii), except that the eligibility of any.such
18 


19 foreign corporation shall-be determined without
 

regard to any shares held by other than United States
20 


21 	 citizens or.-corporations, partnerships, or other.
 

22 	 associations described in clause (i) if, in the
 

23 	 aggregate, such shares equal less than 5 percent of
 

24 	 te total.issued'and subsclrbed share capLta- of.sucb
 

25 	 foreign'corporation.
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1 (B)Forpurposes of this title-

2 (L)%in the case of insurance or a guarantee for
 
3 any loan:investment, a final determination of whether
 

4 a person is an eligible investor may be made at the
 

5 time the insurance or guarantee is issued; and
 

6 '(ii) in the case of insurance or a guarantee
 
7 for any otherinveatment,-an Investor must be an
 

8 eligible'investor at the timea claim arises as well
 

9 as the time the insurance or guarantee is issued.
 

10 "(6) EXPROPRIATION.--The term 'expropriation'
 

11 includes any abrogation# repudiation, or impairment by a
 

12 foreign government of its own contract with an investor
 

13 with respect to a project, where such abrogation,
 

14 repudiation, or impairment is not caused by the
 

15 investor's own fault or misconduct, and materially
 

16 adversely affects the continued operation of the project.
 

17 '(7) INVESTMENT.--The term *investment' includes any
 

18 contribution or commitment of funds, commodities,
 

19 services, patents, processes, or techniques, in the form
 

20 of-

21 (A)a loan or loans to an approved project, 

22 -'(D).the purohase of a share of ownership in any 

23 such project, 

24 (C)participatLo .inroyalties, tarnLns, or . 

25 profits of any such-proj t, and.

46-816 0 - 91 - 11
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1 (D) the furnishing of commodities or services 

2 pursuant to a lease or other contract. 

3 "(8) NONCREDIT ACCOUNT REVOLVING FUND.--The term 

4 noncredit account revolving fund' means the account in 

5 which funds-under section 236 and all funds from 

6 nonoreditlactivities are held. 

7 "(9) NoNCREDiT ACTIVITIES.--The term ,'noncredit 

8 activities' means all activities of the Corporation other 

9 than its loan guarantee program under section 233(b) and 

10 its direct loan program under section 233(c). 

11 (10) PREDECESSOR GUARANTEE AUTHORITY.--The term 

12 predecessor guarantee authority' means prior guarantee 

13 authorities (other than housing guarantee authorities) 

14 repealed by the Foreign Assistance-Act of 1969, section 

15 202(b) and 413(b) of the Mutual Security Act of 1954, and 

16 section 1ll(b)(3) of the Economic Cooperation Act of 

17 1948, (exclusive of authority relating to informational 

18 media guarantees). 
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1 SEC. __.TRADE AM DBVLMKERT AMICM.
 

2 (a) IN GENERAL.--Section 661 of the Foreign Assistance 

3 Act of 1961 is amended to read as follows: 

4 "SEC. 661. TRADE D DEVELOPMENT AGENCT. 

5 "(a) PURPOSE.--The Trade and Development Agency shall be 

6 an agency of the United States unde the foreign policy 

7 guidance of the Secretary of State. The purpose of the Trade
 

8 and Development Agency is to promote United States private
 

9 sector participation in development projects in friendly 

10 developing and middle-income countries, in order to promote 

11 the policies set forth ih section 102. 

12 (b)AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE ASSISTANCE.-
13 "(1) AUTHORITY.--The Director of the Trade and 

14 Development Agency is authorized to work with friendly 

15 countries, including those in which the United States 

16 development programs have been concluded or those not 

17 receiving assistance under part I of this Act, to carry 

18 out..the purpose of this section by providing funds for 

19 feasibility studies, engineering design, and other 

20 activities related to development projects which provide 

21 opportunities for the use of United States exports. 

22 (2).USE OF FUNDS.--Funds under this section may be 

23 used to provide support for feasibility studies for the 

24 planning of,.development of,. management of, and 

25 procurement for, bilateral and multilateral development. 
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1 projects, including training activities undertaken in
 

2 connection with a project, for the purpose of promoting
 

3 the use of United States goods and services in such
 

4 projects. Funds under this section may also be used'for
 

5 engineering design, including-

6 "(A) "concept design, which establishesthe basic
 

7 technical and operational criteria for a project,
 

8 such as architectural drawings for a proposed
 

9 facility, evaluation of sito'constraints, procurement
 

10 requirements, and equipment specifications; and
 

11 (B)detail design, which sets forth specific
 

12 dimensions and criteria for structural, mechanical,
 

13 electrical, and architectural operations,'and
 

14 identifies other resources required for project
 

15 operations.
 

16 '-(3) INFORMATION DISSEMINATION.-

17 "(A)1IN GENERAL.--The.Trade and Development
 

18 Agency shall disseminate information about its
 

19 project activities to the private sector.
 

20 "(B) OFFICE OF INTERNATIONAL MAJOR PROJECTS OF
 

21 THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE.--The Trade and
 

22 Development Agency shall cooperate with the Office of
 

23 International Major Projects of the Department of
 

24 Commerce in order 'toprovide information to persons
 

25 in'the private sector.concerning trade development
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1 and'export promotion related to-multlateral
 

2 development projects.
 

3 (C) OTHER AGENCIES.--Other Federal department
 

4 and agencies shall cooperate with the Trade and
 

5 Development Agency in order for the Agency to more
 

6 effectively provide informational services in
 

7 accordance with this paragraph.
 

8 '(4) NONAPPLICABILITY OF OTHER PROVISIONS.--Any
 

9 funds used for purposes of this section may be used
 

10 notwithstanding any other provision of law.
 

11 (c)DIRECTOR AND PERSONNEL.-

12 "(1) DIRECTOR.--The Director of the Tradeand
 

13 Development Agency shall be the head of the agency. The
 

14 Director shall be appointed by the President, byand wi
 

15 the advice and consent of the Senate.
 

16 (2)OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES.-

17 "(A) APPOINTMENT.--The Director may appoint su
 

18 officers and employees as the Director considers
 

19 appropriate.
 

20 "(B) FUNCTIONS.--The officers and employees
 

21 appointed under this paragraph shall have such
 

22 functions as the Director may determine.
 

23 (C)APPOINTMENTS WITHOUT REGARD TO CERTAIN
 

24 CIVIL SERVICE LAWS.--Of the officers and employees 

25 appointed under this paragraph, 4 may be appointed 



820
 

OLS1521
 

4 

1. without regard to the provisions of title 5, United 

2 States Code, governing appointa'ents in the, 

3 competitive service, and may be compensated without 

4 regard to the provisions of chapter 51or subchapter 

5 II of chapter 53 of such title. 

6 "(D) REINSTATEMENT RIGHTS,--Under such 

7 regulations as the President may prescribe, any 

8 individual appointed under subparagraph (C) may'be 

9 "entitled, upon removal (except for cause) from the 

10 position to which the appointment was made, to 

,11 reinstatement to the position occupied by that 

12 individual at the time of appointment or to a 

13 position of comparable grade and pay. 

14 id) ANNUAL REPORT.--The Director of the Trade and 

,15 Development Agency shall, not later than December 31 of each
 

16 year, submit to the Committee on Foreign Affairs of the House
 

17 of Representatives and the Committee on Foreign Relations of
 

18. the Senate a report on the activities of the Trade and 

19 Development Agency in the preceding fiscal year. 

20 "(e) ADVISORY BOARD.-

21 "(1) ESTABLISHMENT.--The Director of the Trade and 

22 Development Agency shall, by regulation, establish an
 

23 advisory board which shall include'representatives of the
 

24 private sector.
 

25 (2) PURPOSE.--The purpose'of the advisory board
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1 shall be to make recommendations to the,Director with 

2 respect to the Trade and Development Agency. 

3 If) INSPECTOR GENERAL.-

4 "(1) AUTHORITY.--The Inspector General of the Agency 

5 for International Development--. 

6 (A) shall have full and independent authority 

7 to conduct audits, investigations, and inspections of 

8 all phases of the program and operations of the Trade 

9 and Development Agency for the purpose of promoting 

10 economy, efficiency, and effectiveness, and detecting:. 

11 and preventing fraud and abusel and 

12 (B) shall conduct all security activities of 

13 the Trade and Development Agency relating to 

14 personnel and the control of classified material. 

15 "(2) RELATION TO DIRECTOR OF THE TRADE AND 

16 DEVELOPMENT AGENCY.--The Inspector General shall report 

17 to and be under the general supervision of the Director 

18 of the Trade and Development Agency with respect to 

19 activities undertaken pursuant to this subsection, except 

20 that the Director shall not prevent or prohibit the 

21 Inspector General from Lnitiating, carrying out, or 

22 completing any such activity in accordance with the 

23 duties, authorities, and responsibilities contained in 

24 the Inspector General Act of 1978, and any other 

25 applicable laws and regulations. 
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1 "(3) INSPECTOR GENERAL ACT.--For purposes of the 

2 Inspector General Act of 1978,:the Trade and Development 

3 Agency shall continue to be considered a Federal nntity 

4 and the Director of the Trade and Development Agency 

5 shall be considered the head of the Federal entity. 

6 ''(4) SEMIANNUAL REPORT.--The semiannual report 

7 required under section 5 of the Inspector General Act of 

8 1978 shall include information relating to activities of 

9 the Inspector General undertaken pursuant to this 

10 subsection. 

11 "(9) FUNDING.--There are authorLed to be appropriated 

12 for purposes of this section, in addition to funds otherwise 

13 available for such purposes, $58,000,000 for fiscal year 1992 

14 and $70,000,000 for fiscal year 1993. Of the amounts made 

15 available under the preceding sentence for fiscal years 1992 

16 and 1993, $10,000,000, in the aggregate, may remain available 

17 until expended.' 

18 (b) CONFORMING A4ENDMENTS.--(i) Sections 644,'645, and 

19 646 of the Trade and Development Enhencement Actoof 1983 (12 

20 U.S.C. 635q# 635r, and 635s) are each amendedby striking 

21 **Trade and Development Program"'each place it appears and 

22 inserting 'Trade and Development Agency". -

23 (2) Section 5314 of title 5; United States Code, is 

24 amended by striking 

25 'Director, Trade and Development Program 
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1 and inserting 

2 Director, Trade and'Development Agency 
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1 TITLE _-INDCJSTRIAL COOPERATION PROJECTS IN CHINA AND. TIBET 

2 SECTION 01. STATfNEN'OF PRINCIPLESf. 

3 (a) PURPOSE.--It is the purpose of this title tolcreate 

4 principles governing the conduct of industrial cooperation 

5 projects of United States nationals in the People's Republic 

6 of China and Tibet. 

7 (b) PRINCIPLES.--It is the sense of the Congress that any 

8 United States national conducting an industrial cooperation 

9 project in the People's Republic of China or Tibet should 

10 adhere to the following principles:
 

11 (1) Suspend the use of all goods, wares, articles,
 

12 and merchandise that are mined, produced, or
 

13 manufactured, in whole or in part, by convict labor or
 

14 forced labor if there is reason to believe that the
 

15 material or product is produced or manufactured by forced
 

16 labor, and refuse to use forced labor in the industrial
 

17 cooperation project.
 

18 (2) Seek to ensure that political or religious views,
 

19 sex, ethnic or national background, involvement in
 

20 political activities or nonviolent demonstrations, or
 

21 association with suspected or known dissidents will not
 

22 prohibit hiring, lead to harassment, demotion, or
 

23 dismissal, or in any way affect the status or terms of
 

24 employment in the industrial c6operation project. The,
 

25' United States national should not discriminate in terms
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1 or.conditions of employment in the inoustrlai cooperation
 
2 project against persons with past records of arrests or
 

3 internalexile for nonviolent protest or membership in
 

4 unofficial organizations committed to nonviolence.
 

5 (3) Ensure that methods of production used in the
 

6 industrial cooperation project do not pose an unnecessary
 

7 physical danger to workers and neighboring populations
 

a and property and that the industrial cooperation project
 

9 does not unnecessarily risk harm to the surrounding
 

10 environment, and consult with community leaders regarding
 

11 environmental protection with respect to the industrial
 

12 cooperation project.
 

13 (4) Strive to use business enterprises that are not
 

14 controlled by the People's Republic of China or its
 

15 authorized agents and departments as potential partners
 

16 in the industrial cooperation project.
 

17 (5) Prohibit any military presence on the premises of
 

18 the industrial cooperation project.
 

19 (6) Undertake to promote freedom of association and
 

20 assembly among the employees of the United States
 

21 national. The United States national should protest any
 

22 infringement by the Chinese Government of these freedoms
 

23 to the appropriate authorities of that government and to
 

24 the International Labor Organization, which has an office
 

25 in Beijing.
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1 (7) Use every possible channel of comunication with 

2 the Chinese Government to urge that governaent to 

3 disclose publicly a complete list of all those 

4 individuals arrested since March 1989, to end 

5 incommunicado detention and torture, and to provide 

6 international observers access to all places of detention 

7 in the People's Republic of China and Tibet and to trials 

8 of prisoners arrested In connection with the 

9 pro-democracy events of April through June of 1989 and 

10. the pro-democracy demonstrations which have taken place 

11 in Tibet since 1987. 

12 (8) Discourage or undertake to prevent compulsory 

13 political indoctrination programs from-taking place on 

14 the premises of the operations of the industrial 

15 cooperation project. 

16 (9) Promote freedom of expression, including the 

17 freedom to seek, receive, and impart information and 

18 ideas of all kinds, regardless of frontiers, either 

19 orally, In writing or in print, in the form of art, or 

20 through any media. To this end, the United States 

21 national should raise with appropriate authorities of the 

22 Chinese Government concerns about restrictions on 

23 importation of foreign publications. 

24 (c).PROMOTION OF PRINCIPLES BY OTHER NATIONS.--The 

25 Secretary of State shall for4ard-a copy of the'principles set 
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1 forth in subsection (b)to the member nations of the 
2 Organization forlEconomaciCooperation and Development and 
3 encourage them to promote principles similar to these 

4 principles. 

5 SEC. _02. REZSTRA&TON REQUIRIEnT. 

6 (a) |N GENERAL.--Each United States national conducting 
7 an industrial cooperation project in the People's Republic of 
8 China or Tibet shall register with the Secretary of State and 
9 indicate whether the United States national agiees to 

10 implement the principles set forth in section _01(b). No fee 
11 shall be required for registration under this subsection. 

12 (b)EFFECTIVE DATE.--The registration requirement o' 
13 subsection (a)shall take effect 6 months after the date of
 
14 the enactment of this Act.
 

15 SEC. _03. REPORTING REQOUIREINTS.
 

16 (a) REPORT.--Each United States nationai conaucting an
 
17 industrial cooperation project in the People's Republic of
 
18 China or Tibet shall report to the Department of State
 
19 describing the United States national's adherence to the
 
20 principles set forth in section _01(b). Such national shall
 
21 
 submit a completed reporting form furnished by the Department
 
22 of State. The first report shall be submitted not later than
 
23 1 year after the date on which the United States national
 

24 registers under section 02 and not later than the end-of*

25 each 1-year period occurring thereafter.
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1 (b) REVIEW OF REPORT.--The Secretary of State shall
 

2 review each report submitted under subsection (a) and
 

3 determine whether the United States national submitting the
 

4 report is adhering to the principles. The Secretary may
 

5 request additional information from the United States
 

6 national and other sources to verify the information
 

7 submitted.
 

8 (c) ANNUAL REPORT.--The Secretary of State shall submit a
 

9 report to the Congress and to the Secretariat of the
 

10 organization for. Economic Cooperation and Development,
 

11 describing the level of adherence to the principles by United
 

12 States nationals subject to the reporting requirement of
 

13 subsection (a). Such report shall be submitted not later than
 

14 2 years after the date of the enactment of this Act and not
 

15 later than the end of each 1-year period occurring
 

16 thereafter.
 

17 SEC. 04. EXPORT MARKETING SUPPORT.
 

is (a) SUPPORT.--Departments and agencies of the United
 

19 States may only intercede with a foreign government or
 

20 foreign national regarding export marketing activity in the
 

21 People's Republic of China or Tibet on behalf of a United
 

22 States national subject to.the reporting requirements of
 

23 section _03(a) if that United States national adheres to the
 

24 principles set forth in section 01(b).
 

25 (b):TYPE OF CONTACT.--For purposes of this section, the
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1 term "ilntercede with a foreign government or foreign 
2 national".includes any contact by an officer or employee of
 

3 the United States with officials of any foreign government or 
4 foreign national involving or contemplating any effort to 

5 assist in selling a good, service, or technology in the 

6. People s;Republic of China or Tibet. Such term does not
 
7 include multilateral or bilateral government-to-government
 

8 trade negotiations intended to resolve trade issues which may
 

9 affect United States nationals who do not adhere to the
 

10 principles set forth in section 
01(b)..
 

11 (c)EFFECTIVE DATE.--Subsection (a) shall take effect 2.
 

12 years after the date of the enactment of this Act. 

13 SEC. 05. DEFINITIONS. 

14 For purposes of this title-

15 (1) the terms 'adhere to the principlese 

16 adhering to the principles'' and 'adherence to the 

17 principles"'mean-

18 (A)agreeing to implement the principles et 

19 forth in section _01(b); 

20 (6) Implementing those principles by taking goc 

21 faith measures with respect to each such principlep 

22 and 

23 (C) reporting accurately to the Department of 

24 Stirite on the measures.taken to.implement those 

25 ptincipleol 
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1 (2) the term!, industril,, cooperation"projeat 

2 refersto a for-profit activity thelbusiness operations 

3 of which employmore 'than 25 individuals or have assets 

4 greater than $25,000 in value;'and 

5 (3')the term "'United States national" means-

6 (A)a citizen ornational of the United States or 

7 -apermanent resident of the United States;"and 

S (B) a corporation, partnership, and other 

9 business association organized under the laws of the 

10 United States, any State of the United States, the 

11 District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto 

12 Rico, the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana 

13 Islands, or any other territory or possession of the 

14 United States. 



81
 

ucKl96e 

[COII1ITTEE PRINTI
 

Showing R.R. 964 as amended by the Subcmittee on Western 
aeuisphere Affairs and the Subcommittee on international
 

Nconomic Policy and trade
 

IText to be deleted shown amu- through text to be added shown 
in Italia. The subcommittees adopted identical amendments 
except for the amendments on pages 4-5 and 14-15 which were
 

adopted only by the IMEP Subcommittee.)
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INTHE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 
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bill; vnicnh was referred-to Vie Committee on Foreign Affairs 

A BILL
 

To provide -for the implementation of the foreign assistance 
Srovisions.of the.Enterprise for the.Aeuicas Initiative, and 
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1 20 it enacted by the Senate and Iouse of fenentativea 

2 of the ffted States of AmeiOa In Co0Dg reaeua eMbld, 

3 8CTINC I. ne tWTfIh 

4 this Act may be cited as the "**nterprise for the
 

5 Americas Initiative Act of 19910'.
 

6 212%9 i-WMii SS FOR 2WU MICAS FICILITI',
 

7 8UC° 101. WISUOE
101eTI 

8 There i hereby established in the Department of the 

9 Treasury the Enterprise for the Americas Faclity
 

10 (hereinafter in this Act referred to as the "'Facit7y' ),
 

11 GHC. 102. PURlPOS OF IUITIATIVZ AND WE FACILI!.*
 

12 The purpose of the Enterprise for the Americas Initiative 

13 is to encourage and support improvement in the lives of the 

14 people of Latin Aaerica and the Caribbean through 

15 market-oriented reforms and economic growth with interrelated 

16 actions to promote debt reduction, investment reform, and 

17 community based conservation and sustainable use of the 

18 environment. The Facility will support these objectives 

19 through administration of debt reduction operations for those 

20 countries that meet Investment reforms and other policy 

21 conditions. 

22 SEC. 103. MOBILITIFroR SIaITS UNW TIB FACILIT. 

23 (a)REQUIREMENTS.--To be eligible for benefits under the
 

24 Facility, a country must-

25 (1)be a Latin American or Caribbean country'
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1 (2). have in ef ect,,.have received approval for, off 

2 as appropriate in exceptional circumstances, be making 

3 significant progress tovard-

4 (A) an International monetary Fund standby 

5 arrangement, extended Fund arrangement, or an 

6 arrangement under the structural adjustment facility 

7 or,enhanced structural adjustment facility, or in 

8 exceptional circumstances, a Fund monitored program 

9 or its equivalent, unless the President detezninea 

10 (after consultationwith the Zvironuent for the 

11 lmericaa Board) that such an arrangement or program 

12 (or its equivalent) could reasonably be expected to 

13 have significant adverse social or environmental 

14 affectg and 

1s (8) as appropriate, structural or sectoral 

16 adjustment loans from the International Bank for 

17 Reconstruction and Development or the International
 

18 Development Association, unless the President 

19 determines (after consultationwith the vironment 

20 for the Americas Board) that the resulting adjustment 

21 requirements could reasonabi be expected to have 

22 significant adverse social or environmental effects; 

23 (3) have put in place major investment reforms in 

24 conjunction with an Inter-Akerican Development Bank loan 

25 or otherwise be implementing# or making significant 
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1 progress toward, an open Investment regimel and 

2 (4) If appropriate, have agieed with its commercial 

3 bank lenders on a satisfactory financing program, 

4 Including, as appropriate, debt or dbt service 

S reducilon. 

6 (b) ELIGIBILITY DETERNIATIONS.--mhe President shall 

7 determine whether A country Is an eligible country for 

a purposes of subsection (a). 

9 T1TLZ I-DIB ABMDOCZOUI 

10 s. 201. REUCtION OF C IU= DODT.
 

11 (a)AUTHORITY TO REDUCEDEST.-

12 '(1) AUTHORITY.-The President may reduce the amount
 

13 owed to the United States (or any agency of the United
 

-14 States) that Is outstanding as of January 1, 1990, as a 

15 result of concessional loans made by the United States 

16 pursuant to the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961 (or 

17 predecessor foreign economic assistance legislation) to a 

18 country eligible for benefits under the Faclity. 

19 (01 fmitat.... The.. berity o. hli 8stle. may ha 

20 e:erelse: only to su:,. :Lnt aisapoe in 

21 in ai;; iltiln Asks. 

22 (27 FEDERAL CREDIT REFORM ACT AND AUTHORIZATION 

23 REQUIREHETS.--(') the authority of this section may be 

24 exercised only to the -extent -that the budget authority 

25 for the zesiting additioanal 
i 

cost (within the meaning of 
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1 the federal Credit Reforma t of 199M) ba been provid d 

S In advance in appropriatione Acts, except that a snu 

3 bdget authorit so provided shawl be available for 

4 payenut from the appropriatecredit program account Into 

5 the financing account only to the extent that the 

6 enactment of such budget authority has been authorisedIn 

7 an authorizationAct. 

8 (3) rhe enactment of the following amounts of budget 

9 authoritg described in subparagraph (A) is hereby 

10 authori edt $285,000,000 for fiscal gear 1992 and 

11 $182,000,000 for fiscal gear 1993. 

12 (3)CERTAIN PROHIBITIONS INAPPLICABLE.--(A) A 

13 reduction of debt pursuant to this section shall not be 

14 considered assistance for purposes of any provision of 

1s lay limiting assistance to a country. 

16 (B)This section supersedes section 620(r) of the 

17 Foreign Assistance Act of 1961 and section 321 of the 

18 International Development and Food Assistance Act of 

19 1975. 

20 (4)DEFINITION.--gereinafter in this Act, a country 

21 with respect to which the authority of parag.reph -(1) is 

22 exercised is referred to as the beneficiary country. 

23 (b)IMPLEMENTATION OF DEBT REDUCTION.-

24 (1) IN GENERAL.--Any debtreduction pursuant-to 

25 subsection (a) shall be.accomplished:lat the, direction.of 
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the facility by the exchange of,a nw obligation for 
I 

2 obligations outstanding as of Januaryl, 1908. 

3 (2)EXCHANGE OF OBLI6ATIONS.--The facility shallI 

4 notify the Agency for International Development of the 

5 agreesent with an eligible country to exchange a new 

6 obligation for outstanding obligations pursuant to this 

7 subsection; and at the direction of the Facility, the old 

8 obligations shall be canceled and a new debt obligation 

9 for the country shall be established, and the Agency for 

.10 International Development shall make an adjustment In its 

11 accounts to reflect the debt reduction. 

12 SE. 202. PAIKAUIET OF PINCIPAL. 

13 (a)CURRENCY OF PAYMENT.--The principal amount of each 

14 nev obligation issued pursuant to section 201(b).shall be
 

15 repaid In United States dollars.
 

16 :(b) DEPOSIT OF PAYMENTS.--Principal repayments of'L
ne
 

17, obligations shall be deposited in the United States
 

18 Government account established for principal repayments of
 

19 the obligations for which those obligations vere exchanged.
 

20 SeC. 203. XMST OGn NME OBLIGATIONS.
 

,21 (a) RATE OF |NTEREST.--New obligations Issued by a
 

.22 beneficiary country pursuant to section 201(b) shall bear
 

23 interest at a concessional rate. 

24 (b) CURRENCY OF PAYMENT;.DEPOSITS.-

25 (1)LOCAL CURRENCY.--if thot beneficiary country has 
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1 entered Into an Environmental framwork Agreement under 

2 section 302, interest shall be paid in'the, locall curren 

3 of theibenefioiary country and deposited In the 

4 Environmental fund paxuided for In section 301(a). Such 

S interest shall be the property of the beneficiary 

6 country, until such time-as it is disbursed pursuant to 

7 section 301(d). Such local currencies shall be used for 

a the purposes specified in the Environmental Framework 

9 Agreement. 

(2)UNITED STATES DOLLARS.--If the beneficlary..
10 


11 country has not entered into an Environmental Framework 

12 Agreement under section 302, interest shall be paid in 

13 United States dollars and'deposited in the United States 

14 Government account established for interest payments of 

15 the obligations for which the new obligations were 

16 exchanged.
 

17 (c) INTEREST ALREADY PAID.--zf a beneficiary country
 

16 enters into an Environmental framework Agreement subsequent
 

19 to the date on which interest first became due on the newly
 

20 issued obligation, any Interest already paid on such new
 

21 obligation shall not be redeposited into the Environmental
 

22 Fund established for that beneficiary country pursuant to
 

23 section 301(a).
 

24 T!IU III-EMUT IBS FtI"5 UVI0UAMIAL 1 *
AEICAS 6U1 

25 SEC. 301. 3TABLXSUM n CPi DSI!S IM#O MW DISeMRUN
I 
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I JIM ZOVItOmUALL rumll. 

2 (a)ESTAbLISHMENT.--Zach beneficiary country that enters 
3 into an Environmental Framework Agreement under section 302 

4 shall be required to establish an Enterprise for the Americas 

5 Environmental Fund (referred to in this Act as the 

6 "'nvironmental Fund-) to receive payments in local currency 

7 pursuant to section 203(b)(1). 

8 (b)DEPOSITS.--Local currencies deposited Inan 

9 Environmental Fund shall not be considered assistance for 

10 purposes of any provisionof law limLting assistance to a 

1 country. 

12 (a)-INVESTNENT.--DeposLts made In an Environmental Fund 

13 shall be invested until disbursed. Any return on such 

14 Investment may be retained by the Environmental Fund, without 

15 deposit in the Treasury of the UnLted States and without 

16 further appropriations by Congress. 

17 (d)DISBURSEMENTS.--Funds Ln.an Environmental fund shall 

18 be disbursed only pursuant to an Environmental Framework 

19 Agreement under section 302. 

20 WC. 302. IVI0UN MTAL FRAIWOR AGREDEETS. 

21 (a)AUTHORITY.--The Secretary of State Isauthorixed, In 

22 consultation with other appropriate Government officials, to 

23 enter Into an agreement (referred to in this Act as an 

24. "'nvironmental Framework Agreement") with any country 

25 eligible for benefits upder the Facility concerning ths 
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I operation and use of the Environmental Fund for that-county. 

2 In the negotiation of such agreements, the Secretart shall 

3 consult with the Environment for the Americas oard in 

4 accordance with section 303. 

5 (b)CONTENTS OF AGREEMETS.-An nvironmntal'rriaeork 

6 Agreement with an eligible country shall-

7 (1)require that country to.establish an 

a znvironmental Fund 

9 (2) require that country to make Interest payments 

10 unher section 203(b)(1) Into an Environmental Fundl 

11 (3)require that country to make prompt disbursements 

12 from'the Environmental Fund to the administering body 

13 described in subsection (c)t 

14 (4)when appropriate, seek to maintain the value of 

15 the local currency resources of the Environmental Fund In 

16 ,terms of United States dollars; 

17 (5)specify, in accordance with subsection (d)o the 

18 purposes for which the fund may be used, and 

19 (6)contain reasonable provisions for the enforcement 

20 of the terms of the agreement. 

21 (c)ADMINISTERING BODY.-

22 (1) IN GENERAL.--Funds disbursed from the 

23 Environmental Fund in each beneficiary country shall be 

24 administered by a body canstituted under the laws of that 

25 country (referred to In'this Act as the "administering 
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I body.. 

2 '(2)'OCPOSITION.--The adinisterina body shall,: 

3 ..uuist of-" 

4 (A) one or note individuals nomiuted by the 

5 United states Government, 

6 (B) one or more individuals, nominated by the 

7 government of the beneficiary country, and 

8 (C) individuals who represent a broad range of 

9 environmental nongovernmental organizations of the 

10 beneficiary country, local comunity development 

11 nongovernmental organizations of the beneficiary 

12 country, and scientific or academic organizations or 

13 institutions of the beneficiary country. 

14 A majority of the members of the administering body shall 

15 be individuals described in subparagraph (C). 

16 (3) RESPONSIBILITIES.--The administering body-

17 (A) shall receive proposals for grant assistance 

18 from eligible grant recipients (as determined under 

19 subsection (e)) and make grants to eligible grant 

20 recipients In accordance with the priorities agreed 

21 upon in the Environmental Framework Agreement, 

22 consistent with subsection (d)j 

23 (3) shall be responsible for the management of 

24 the program and oversight of grant activities funded 

25 from resources of .the Environmental Fundl 
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1 t) u : I. to slm; Jdits h
 

2 4a1eeridt awdit3: an an annual bauis;
 

3 (c) 0211l be subject, on an amual bsis, to an 

4 audt Of fIancal aateMnt&conducted -in accordace 

S with genexally accepted auditing standards by an 

6 Independent auditora 

7 (D) shall present an annual program for revLew 

8 each year by the Environment for the Americas Board; 

9 and 

10 '(z) shall submit a report each year,on the 

11 activities thatit undertook during the previous year 

12 to the Chair of,the Invironment for the Americas 

13 Board and to the government of the beneficiary
 

14 country.
 

1s (d) ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES.--Grants from an Environmental
 

16 Fund shall be used for activities that link the conservation
 

17 and sustainable use of natural resources vith local community
 

18 development, in:ludi ; achivibies described insection. 463 of
 

19 chapter a! part ; of th.-Foreign A.e,.;is@ - -f 1961 (as
 

20 enated b. the Global Envro~nental Protection. r. isban:e r;t
 

21 of-i#99.
 

22 (e) GRANT RECIPIENTS.--Grants made from an Environmental,
 

23 Fund shall be made to-

24 (1)nongovernmenta. environmental, conservation,
 

25 development, and indigenous peoples: OrgLanu ations of'the
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I beneficiary,coantryl

2 (2) other appropriate local or regional entitles, and 

3 (3) In exceptional circumstances, zhe government of 

4 the beneficiary country. 

S (f)REVIEW OF LARGER GRANTS.--Any grant of more than 

6 $100,000 from an Environmental lund shall be subject to veto 

7 by the Government of the United States or the government of 

8 the beneficiary country. 

9 81. 303. IMV110U FOR TE IIUICAS BOARD. 

10 (a) ESTABLISUHENT.--ftere is hereby established an 

11 Environment for the mericas'Board (hereinafter.in this Act 

12, referred to as the "Board"). 

13 (b)HEAERSHIP.--The Board shall be composed-of.9 11 

14 members appointed by the President as followss 

15 (1)6 6 officers or employees of the United States 

16 'Government. 

17 (2) 4 S individuals who are representatives of 

'18 private nongovernmental environmental, scientific, or 

19 academic organizations that have experience and expertise 

.20 inLatin America and the Caribbean.
 

21 The chair of the Board shall be designated by the President 

22 from among the members of the Board appointed pursuant to 

.23. paragraph (1). 

24 (c)RESPONSIDILITIES.--fhe Board shall-

25 (1)advise the Secretary.of.State-on the negotiations 

http:hereinafter.in
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1 of Znvironmental Framework Agreeuentes 

2 (2)ensure, in consultation with-

3 (A) the government of the beneficIary country,

4 (S)nongoernmental organ~iationi Ofrthe 

S beneficiary country, 

6 (C) nongovernmental organizations of the region 

7 (Ifappropriate), 

8 (D) environmental, scientific, and academic 

9 leaders of the beneficiary country, and 

10 (3) environmental, scientific, and academic 

11 leaders of the region (as appropriate)* 

12 that a suitable administering body Is identified for each 

13 Environmental Fund; and 

14 (3)review the programs, operations, and fiscal 

15 audits of each administering body. 

16 (d) SUPPLEMENTAL VIEWS INANNUAL REPORT ON THE 

17 FACILITY.-Uacb member of the Board shall be entitledto 

18 receive a copy of any report to be transmitted to the 

19 Congress pursuant to section 401 at least 14 days before the 

20 report is to be so transmitted, to have 14 days within which 

21 to prepae and submit supplemental views for Inclusion In 

22 such report, and to have those views Included In the report 

23 vhen It is so transmitted. 

24 SEC. 304. ICOURIM XILULATEUrAL DET DONAIIOUS. 

25 (a) ENCOURAGING DONATIONS FRO 'OIFICIAL-CREDITORS.--The, 
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I President should activeliyencourage other official creditors 

2 of a beneficiary country whose debt is reduced under this Act 

3 to provide debt reduction to such country. 

4 (b) ENCOURAGIN DONATIONS FROM PRIVATE CREDITORS.--he 

5 President shall make every effort to ensure that 

6 Environmental Funds established pursuant to section 301 are 

7 able to receive donations from private and public entities
 

8 and from private creditors of the beneficiary country.
 

9 TZTL ZV-9W E36 OMAR PAMSIONS
 

10 SEC. 401. NUAL REPORT TO CONGRESS.
 

11 Not later than December 31 of each year, the President 

12 shall transmit to the Speaker of the House of Representatives 

13 and the President of the Senate an annual report on the
 

14 operation of the Facility for the prior fiscal year.
 

402. r o Mr OW
 

16 ar NoNxGOVERVmrAL OxGANIxZnzONS.
 

15 SEC. AUMOo 0 FOWZ XNO.C ASSISMANCZ 

17 (a) AUTHORIZATION.--Zx the President determines that to 

18 do so mould further the development assistancepolicies of 

19 chapter 1 of part Z of the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961, 

20 the President may, on a case-by-case basis, zrelease any 

21 nongovernmental organizationfrom its obligation to make such 

22 payments to the United States Government as the Presidentmay 

23 determine on account of loans made -to that organisationunder 

24 part Z of that Aft (22 U.S.C. 2151 "i. following) or 

25 predecessor economic assistance legislation, subject to 
I 
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I uba "0on(I) of ts facoa. 

2 nabFEDERAL CREDIT RPORN ACT R-ouIRFENTS.--re 

3 authority of subsectio (a) my be exercised only to the 

4 extent that the budget authority for the zuniting,additonal 

S ost (witbin the Meanng of the Fedeal Credit Refom lt of 

6 1990) has been rorided n advance In appropriationa Act. 
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102D CONGRESS
1ST sawoN H. R. 1.608 

To promote the development of miCroenterpria. in developing oountrie... 

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

MARu 22, 1991 
Mr. FoHom (for himself, Mr.*GUMAN, Mr. GE'DENSON, Mr. WOLP, Mr. 

JOHNSTON of Florida, Mr. MURPHY, Mr. BLAz, Mr. LEV= of Califor. 
nia, Mr. MILLER of Washington, Mr. BEREUTzR, Mr. ORTON, Mr. 
ENGEI, and Mr. HOUGHTON) introduced the following bill; which was re. 
ferred to the Committee on Foreign Affairs 

A BILL
 
To promote the development of microenterprises in 

developing countries. 

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa

2 tims of the United States ofAmerica in Congresw assembl4
 

3 SECTION 1. SHORT TrrLE.
 

4 This Act may be cited as the "Mficroenterprise Devel

5 opment Act of 1991".
 

6 SEC. I. FINDINGS.
 

7 The Congress makes! the following 'findinis and dec

8 larations: 
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2 
1 (1) More Ithan a billion people in the developing 
2 world are living in poverty,"Withincomes of,less thin 

3 $370 a year. 

4 (2) According to the Worl Bank, mortality for 
5 children under 5 averaged 121 per thousand for all 

6 developing countries. 

7 '(3) Nearly 40,000:children die each day from 

8 malnutrition and disease. 
9 (4) Poor people themselves can lead the fight 

10 against hunger and poverty through the development 

11 of self-sustaining microenterprise projects.

12 (5) Women in poverty generally are less edu-, 
13 cated, have a larger workload, andhave less access 
14 to economic opportunity than their male 'counter

15 parts. Directly aiding women in the developing world 
16 has a positive effect on family incomes, child nutri

17 tion, and health and education.' 

18 (6) Microenterprise development offers the op
19 portunity for the poor to play a-central role in un
20 dertaking strategies for small scale, self-sustaining 

21 businesses that can bring them'out of poverty. 
22 (7) The, World Bank estimates that there are 
23 over 400,000,0oo selfemployed poor. in the develop-' 
24- ing world and projects that, .by the yeae 2020, 95 

.HR 1608 I0 
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1 percent of African workers will be employed in the6 -

2 informal'sector. 

3 (8) For many people, lack of credit creates an 

4 obstacle to the, development of self-sustaining enter

prises. 

6 (9) Projects like the Grameen Bank of Ban

7 ~gadesh, the BadanKredit Kecamatan in Indonesia, 

8 and ADEMI in the Dominican Republic have been 

9 successful in promoting credit programs that have 

lent money directly to the poor. Repayment rates in 

11 these programs are 95 percent or higher indicating 

12 that it is possible to "bank on the poor". 

.13 (10) The Agency for International Development 

14 has been a leader in small and microenterprise devel

opment in the past 20 years. 

16 (11) The Congress earmarked funds for fiscal 

'17 years 1988, 1989, 1990, and 1991 for 

18 microenterprise -development activities and has called 

19 upon the Agency for International Development to 

take steps to ensure that its microenterprise activi

21 ties included a credit component designed to reach 

22 the poorest sector of the developing world. 

23 (12) In 1989, thl Agency for International De

24 vlopment created the. Office of Small and 

Microenterprise D~velopment within the Bureau for 

.i Igoe m 
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1 Private Enterprise to-lead and coordinateIthe Agen

2 cy's nicroenterprise efforts. 

3' (13) In March 1990, the Agency for Inter

4 national Development reported that newi spending 

5 for microenterprise development was. $58,800,000 

6 for 1988 and $83,300,000 for 1989 and that the av
7 erage loan size for the credit component of the pro

8 gram averaged $329 for 1988 and $387 for 1989. 
9 However, less than 10 percent of the spending for 

10' the 1988 program, and less than. 7 percent of the 
11 spending for the 1989 program, was for loans of 

12 under $300. 

13 (14) A February 1991 report by the General 
14. Accounting Office indicated that data in that March 

15, 1990 report was of "questionable validity" and that 
16 the Agency for International Development did not 
17 have a system to track detailed information concern

18 ing its microenterprise credit activities. Fur

19 thermore, the General Accounting Office found that 
20 none of the three missions that it visited targeted 

21 their microenterprise projects specifically to women 

22 or to the poorest 20 percent of the population, as 

23 recommended by the Congress. 

24, 
25 

(15) The Congress reqpgnizes that provision of 
credit alone may not be sufficient to generate oppor

lRR 1608 Wf 
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1 tunities for successful mieroenterprie development 

2 "6dthat assistance focused in the areas of institu

3 tional development, technical assistance, training, 

4 and policy reform may also be appropriate for assist

ing microenterprise development. 

6 (16) The Agency for International Development 

7 has indicated its willingness to explore the idea of 

8 holding a series of regional workshops on 

9 microenterprise development. The Congress encour

ages the Agency to include in these workshops op

11 portunities for training Agency personnel and Unit

12 ed States and indigenous private and voluntary or

13 ganizations in activities designed to reach the poor

14, est of the poor. 

SEC. &PRPoSES. 

16 The purposes of this Act are

17, (1) to provide for the continuation and expan

18 sion of the commitment of the Agency ,for Inter

19 national, Development to nicroenterprise ,develop

ment; 

21 (2) to increase the amount of assistance going 

22 to credit activities designed to reach the poorest see

23 tor in developing countries; and 

24 (3) to increase the nercentage of such credit 

that goes to women beneficiaries. 

OUR lw 
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1 SEC. 4. ASSIWANCE FOR 1MCRONTmu
n] r oDP. 

2 lENT. 

3 (a) GENERAL AuTHoRrr.-The President, acting 

4 through the Administrator of the Agency for International 
5 Development, is authorized to provide assistance for pro
6 grams of credit and other assistance for microenterprises 
7 in developing countries. In addition to providing financial 
8 resources for direct credit activities of indigenous financial 
9 intermediaries, assistance under this Act may include as

10 sistance for institutional development of such 
11 intermediaries (including assistance to enable private and 
12 voluntary organizations to develop the capability to serve 
13 as financial intermediaries), technical assistance, training, 
14 and policy reform. Microenterprise credit and related ac
15 tivities assisted under this Act shall be carried out pri
16 marily through those indigenous financial intermediaries 
17 and private and voluntary organizations that are oriented 
18 toward working directly with the poor and women. 
19 (b) ELiGiIuTY CRITERIA FOR FINCIAyL 
20 INTERMEDIARIES.-The mission of the Agency for Inter
21 rtional Development that is responsible for a country re
22 e&iAng assistance under this Act shall establish criteria 
23 for determining the financial intermediaries that will re
24 ceive assistance under this Act, .taking into. account the 

25 folowing. 

elR l606 H 
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(1) The extent to which the recipients of credit 

from the intermediary lack collateral. 

(2) The extent to which the recipients of credit 

from the intermediary do not have access, to the 

local formal financial sector. 

(3) The extent to which the recipients of credit 

from the intermediary have relatively limited 

amounts of fixed assets. 

(4) The extent to which the recipients of credit 

from the intermediary are among the poorest people 

in the country. 

(5) The extent to which interest rates chrged 

by the intermediary on loans reflect the real cost 

of lending. 

(6) The extent to which the intermediary 

reaches women as recipients of credit. 

(7)- The extent to which the intermediary is ori

ented toward working directly with the poor and 

women. 

(c) LOWER TImR FOR PovERTY LENDING ACTIVI. 

mas-A significant portion of the amount made available 

each fiscal year to carry out this Act shall be used to sup

port direct credit assistance by, and the institutional devel

opment of, those financial intermediaries with a primary 

oH, 160 H 
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1 emphasis on assistine those -people living in absolute pov

2 erty, especiallywomen. 

3 (d) FOCUS ON WOBMN,--The Office of Small and 
4 Microenterprise Development in the Agency for Inter
5 national Development shall include in its annual action 
6 plans a strategy for increasing the access of women in de
7 veloping countries to credit and other microenterprise de
8 velopment activities, with the goal of increasing to at least 
9 50 percent the percentage of microenterprise credit that 

10 goes to women beneficiaries. This strategy shall be devel
11 oped in consultation with the Agency's Women in Develop

12 ment Office. 

13 SE. . FUNDING SOURCES. 

14 (a) SouIEs.-Funds to carry out this Act shall be 
15 derived fiom the following sources: 

16 (1) Funds available to carry out chapter 1 of 
17 part I of the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961 (relat
18 ing to the functional development assistance ac

19 counts). 

20 (2) Funds available to carry out chapter 10 of 
21 part I of that Act (relating to the Development 
22 Fundfor Africa). 

23 (3) Funds available ito carry out chlnter 4, of 
24 part-il of that At (relating to tile economicsupport 

25 flnd). 

.HR 0Ws M 
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(4) Local -currency accruing as a result of as

2 sistance provided under chapter 1 of part I, chapter 

3 10 of part I, or chapter 4 of part Hof that AcL 

4 (5) Local currency proceeas available for use 

under section 306(a)(9) ofthe Agricultural Trade 

6 Develoument' and Assistance Act of 1954 (as amend. 

7 ed by section 1512 of the Food,. Agriculture, Con

8 servation, and Trade- Act of 1990 (Public Law 101

9 624)). 

(6) Local currency which acrues as a result of 

11 assistance provided ;under the Agricultural Trade 

12 Development and Assistance Act of 1954 as in effect 

13 immediately before the effective date of, the amend

14 ment made by section 1512 of the Agricultural De

velopment and Trade Act of 1990. 

16 (7) Local currency generated under subsection 

17 (b) of this section. 

18 (b) AUTHORITY To GENERATE LOCAL CUR. 

19 RENGEB.-In order to generate local currencies for use 

in providing assistance under this Act, the President is 

21 authorized to use funds made available to carry out chap

22 ter 1 of part I, chapter 10 of part I, or chapter 4 of part 

23, H of the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961 to provide assist

24 ance to the governments 'of deweloping countries on a loan 

basis repayable in local cufrncies, at a rate of exchange 

.HR 160 H 
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1 to be negotiated by the President and the foreign govern

2 ment. Such loans shall have a rate of interest and a repay

3 ment period determined by the President. Section 122 of 

4 the Foreign Assistance Act of 1961 shall not apply with 

5 respect to loans pursuant this subsection. 

6 (a) NoNAPPLzOABImrY OF CERTAIN LAws.-Lcal 

7 rencies used under this section shall not be subject to 

8 requirements of section 1306 of tite 31, United States 

9 le, or other laws governing the use of foreign currencies 

10 ied by, owed to, or accruing to the United States. 

11 .&.FUNDING LEVELS FOR FISCAL YEARS 1992 AND 199. 

12 (a) MINIMUM LEVML OF ASSiSTANCE.-The Admin

13 istrator of the Agency for International Development shall 

14 use not less than $85,000,000 for fiscal year 1992i and 

15 not less than $85,000,000 for fiscal year 1993, for 

16 microenterprise assistance pursuant to this Act. 

17 (b)ASSISTANCE FOR THE POOREST SECTORS.

18 (1) MINIMUM FUNDING LEVEL.-Of the 

19 amounts used pursuant to subsection (a), not less 

20 than $20,000,000 for fiscal year 1992 and not less 

21 than $30,000,000 for fiscal year 1993 shall be used 

22 to support loans having a purchasing power equal to 

23 or less than $300 (in United States dollars). 

24 (2) CRITERIA FOR- ATTRIBUTIONTO MINIMUM 

25 FUNDING LEVEL.-Ih addition to amounts made 

iM 11106 y11 
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1: 

available for direct credit activities involving loans 

havinga ,purchasing power equal to or less than 

$300 (in United States dollars), amounts used for 

institutional development of a financial intermediary 

described in section 4(c) shall be considered to sup

port such loans for purposes of paragraph (1) to the 

same extent as the aggregate amount loaned by such 

institution represents loans having a purchasing 

power equal to or less than $300 (in United States 

dollars). 

(e)USE oF LOCAL CuRmENCIES.-In order to meet 

the minimum funding requirements of this section, local 

currencies described in section 5(a) may be used in lieu 

of an equivalent amount of dollars. 

SEC. 7. MONORING OF MICROENTERPEIS ASSISrANCE 

ACT1VIIES. 

The Administrator of the Agency for International 

Development shall develop a monitoring system to evalu

ate the Agency's microenterprise development activities, 

including their effectiveness in reaching the poor and 

women and their overall impact on economic development 

in each beneficiary developing country. In developing this 

system, the Administrator shall consult with the Congress 

and with appropriate private and voluntary organizations. 

*HR160 M 
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i SEC. & REPORTI TO CONGRES&
 

2 The Administrator of the Agency tor International 

3 Development shall report to the Congress annually on the 

4 Agency's microenterprise development activities, includinr 

5 the Agency's strategy for complying with the minimum 

6 funding requirements of sections 6(a) and (b). 

0 

-HR lif M 
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2-APPENDIX 

----------- onRtMS ot"tht Unittd etatr---
- ft onjfon Offah 

- e ,mof auIoi 

-.--. April 30w,,1992
 

The Honorable Dante B. Fssell
 
Charm-n
 

committee on Foreign Affairs
 2170 Rayburn House Office Building
 

Washington, D.C. 20515
 

Dear Chairman Fascell:
 

The Subcommittee on International Economic Policy and Trade met on
 
April 18, 1991, to mark up three pieces of legislation. The first is
 
comprised of amendments to those sections of the Foreign Assistance Act
 
that fall within the jurisdiction of the Subcommittee. The second piece
 
of legislation is H.R. 964, the authorization of the Enterprise of the
 
Americas Initiative. The third is H.R. 1608, the Microenterprise
 
Development Act of 1991.
 

The sections within the Foreign Assistance Act amended by the
 
Subcommittee fall within the so-called "trade and aid" provisions.
 
Attached is the document entitled "Recommendations of the Subcommittee
 
on International Economic Policy and Trade to the Foreign Aid Bill,"
 
along with the Subcommittee's report language. 

The provisions approved by the Subcommittee are as follows:
 

The Subcommittee terminates the authority of the Private Sector
 
Revolving Fund to furnish asistance, loans or guarantees as of
 
September 30, 1991. This provision reflects the conclusion by the
 
Subcommittee that A.I.D. has failed, despite repeated expressions of
 
concern by this Subcommittee, to improve the management and
 
effectiveness of this program. Furthermore, the Subcommittee is unable 
to see how this program, as it is currently implemented, enhances 
economic development. The termination of this program will result in a 
saving. within the foreign assistance act of some portion of the $57 
million that A.I.D. requested in its testimony before this 
Subcommittee. 

The Subcommittee proposes to keep the Housing Investment
 
Guarantee Program, or "HIG", at its current $150 million level and to
 

broaden its mandate to include assistance in urbain infrastructure.
 
Wherever possible, we have used the language from H.R. 2655, which was
 
passed by the House in 1989. Any other changes are reflections of
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credit reform. The Administration has requested $100 million in
guarantee authority for the Housing Investment Guarantee Program.
 

We propose to make a number of changes to the Overseas PrivateInvestment Corporation. First, we would keep the language passed bythe House in H.R. 2655 which essentially updates OPrC's original

legislation and eliminates outdated programs. 
We would also eliminate
the language restricting OPIC'. programs in the PRC since there in
already language in the Foreign Assistance Act restricting opIc's
activities if human and/or labor rights violations exist and in P.L.101-246 (Title IX, sections 901 and 902 of the Foreign Relations 
Authorization Act, Fiscal Years 1990 and 1991).
 

The remaining changes reflect compliance with the Federal Credit

Reform Act of 1990. 
 The Credit Reform Act requires OPIc to place itscredit programs on budget. It separates OPIC's assets into twoaccounts: credit and non-credit. The credit accounti are controlled
by the Treasury, while the non-credit accounts remain under OPIC'm
control. 
Both accounts are physically held in the Treasury. Since
 
there is over 
$1.4 billion in assets in the ron-credit account

revolving fund, we have provided OPIC with the authority to use funds

available in its non-credit account revolving fund to cover estimated
subsidy costs of its credit programs and its administrative costs,
approxisately $18.3 million. The interest alone on this account will
 
more than pay for these programs. For 1990, the interest on this
 reserve account totaled $149.4 million 
--eight times the amount we
 
would utilize.
 

This legislation enables oPIC to continue to operate without

appropriated funds and, therefore, frees up funds in the Foreign

Assistance Account  about $18.3 
million - for other purposes. This
would also enable OPIC to maintain its status as a self-sustaining
 
agency within the U.S. Government.
 

The legislation would rename the Trade and Development Program,
the Trade and Development Agency, which will be an independent agency

under the foreign policy guidance of the State Department. It would

also expand the Agency's mandate to cover the preliminary stages of
engineering design. 
We propose an authorization of $58 million in

fiscal year 1992 and $70 million for fiscal year 1993. Despite the

fact that TDP now generates $70 of exports for every dollar it spends
on feasibility studies, the Administration had proposed only $35

million for fiscal year 1992. 
 The House Budge Committee has authorized
 
$58 million for this program for fiscal year 1991.
 

In addition there was an amendment offered by Mr. Miller (R-WA)
and approved by the Subcommittee regarding industrial cooperation

projects in China and Tibet. The amendment establishes a set of
principles for business to voluntarily abide by when conducting

br.iiness in the People's Republic of China and Tibet. The principles

inulude the creation of a working environment which permits free

speech, association and press and the establishment of a safe,

environmentally sound workplace which prohibit, the use of goods made
by forced labor in the manufacturing process. 
The State Department
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will submit an annual written report on whether or not U.S. companis 
are in compliance with the principlme. Those companies not in , 
compliance would be ineligible for export marketing support from the 
U.S. government. 

The second piece of legislation is H.R. 964. H.R. 964 authorizes
 
the implementation of the foreign assistance provisions of the 
Enterprise for the Americas Initiative. An amendment by Congressman 
Johnston (D-FL) to permit the President to forgive the debt owed by 
non-profit private institutions in Latin America to the Agency for 
International Development was accepted. The Subcommittee also accepted 
another amendment that I offered to modify the eligibility criteria, to
 
increase the membership on the Enterprise for the Americas Board, to
 
allow members of the Board to offer supplementary views to the annual
 
report and to establish a spending cap of $285 million in FY 1992 and
 
$182 million in FY 1993.
 

This Subcommittee (and the Subcommittee on Western Hemisphere) has 
a number of concerns regarding this legislation. Although some of 
these concerns have been addressed by the Department of Treasury, I 
would like to reserve the right of the Subcommittee to include relevant 
report language in the full committee's report regarding any remaining 
concerns. 

Finally, the Subcommittee reports H.R. 1608, the Microenterprise
 
Development Act of 1991. This bill formally authorizes the
 
impler3ntation of A.I.D.'s microenterprise development program. H.R. 
1608 is the result of extensive cooperation and consultation between 
the Congress, the Agency for International Development, and the many 
private organizations that implement microenterprise and poverty 
lending programs. H.R. 1608 reflects the efforts of the Subcommittee to 
understand the constraints facing A.I.D. in reaching the poorest 
sector. The Subcommittee recognizes that access to credit alone may not 
be appropriate or sufficient for generating opportunities for 
successful microenterprise development. The Subcommittee embraces 
A.I.D.'. current four-pronged approach aimed at providing credit, 
institution strengthening, training and technical assistance and policy 
reform. However, the Subcommittee believes that "poverty-lending" 
should be an essential component of A.I.D.'s overall microenterprise 
activities. 

Within its general authority to conduct microenterprise
 
activities, the legislation calls upon A.I.D. to devote a portion of
 
its work to poverty lending activities. The legislation lays out
 
reasonable benchmarks for funding poverty lending activities over the
 
next two fiscal years. In Section 6(b)(1) of the bill, A.I.D. is
 
directed to disburse $20 million for loans of $300 or less in fiscal
 
year 1992 and $30 million in 1993. That leaves $65 million in fiscal
 
year 1992 and $55 million in fiscal year 1993 for other microenterprise
 
activities including loans greater than $300.
 

The Subcommittee also agrees with A.I.D. and the poverty lending
 

community that reviewing the aggregate of loans of $300 or less is an
 
imperfect mechanism to ascertain whether or not A.I.D. is able to
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address the xicroenterprise needs
in the ablence of a 

of the poorest of the poor. However,more precise measurement,organizations that implement this program 
it was agreed ang the

(financial intermediaries)that this measurement was a workable alternative for accomplishing theobjectives of the legislation. The two-tiered credit component in the
legislation should be viewed an a compromise between A.I.D. and those
who implement poverty lending programs.
 

Should you have any questions or concerns re7irding this
legislation, please give me a call. I look forward to working with youto ensure a smooth mark-up at the full committee. 

Sincerely,
 

Chairman
Subcommittee on International 

Economic Policy and Trade
 

0 

46-816 (368) 


